
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 8 February 2011 
6.00 pm 

Pittville Room 
Municipal Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 9SA 

 
Membership 

Councillors: Steve Jordan (Leader of the Council), John Rawson (Cabinet 
Member Built Environment), Klara Sudbury (Cabinet Member 
Housing and Safety), Andrew McKinlay (Cabinet Member Sport and 
Culture), John Webster (Cabinet Member Finance and Community 
Development), Roger Whyborn (Cabinet Member Sustainability) and 
Colin Hay (Cabinet Member Corporate Services) 

 
Agenda  

 
 SECTION 1 : PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
(Pages 1 - 2) 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 
4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 

None received. 
 

 

 SECTION 2 :THE COUNCIL 
 

 
 There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council 

on this occasion 
 

 

 SECTION 3 : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

 
 There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by Scrutiny 

Committees on this occasion 
 
 

 

 SECTION 4 : OTHER COMMITTEES 
 

 



 
2 
 

 There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by other 
Committees on this occasion 
 
 

 

 SECTION 5 : REPORTS FROM CABINET MEMBERS 
AND/OR OFFICERS 
 

 

5. MARKETING BRIEF FOR DISPOSAL OF NORTH PLACE 
AND PORTLAND STREET 
Report of the Cabinet Member Built Environment 
 

(Pages 7 - 50) 

6. GLOUCESTERSHIRE WASTE CORE STRATEGY 
CONSULTATION 
Report of the Leader 
 

(Pages 51 - 60) 

7. FUTURE JOINT WORKING IN THE SOUTH WEST 
Report of the Leader 
 

(Pages 61 - 84) 

8. SECTION 25 REPORT 
Report of the Chief Finance Officer   
 

(Pages 85 - 98) 

9. FINAL  GENERAL FUND BUDGET PROPOSALS 2011/12 
Joint report of the Cabinet Member for Community 
Development and Finance and the Chief Finance Officer.  
 

(Pages 99 - 192) 

10. FINAL HRA BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR 2011/12 
Joint report of the Cabinet Member for Community 
Development and Finance and the Chief Finance Officer.  
 
 

(Pages 193 - 208) 

11. TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2011/12 
Report of the Chief Finance Officer  
 

(Pages 209 - 234) 

 SECTION 6 : BRIEFING SESSION 
 

 
 • Leader and Cabinet Members 

 
 

12. BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS 
 

 
 SECTION 7 : DECISIONS OF CABINET MEMBERS AND 

OFFICERS 
 

 

 Member decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting 
 

 
13. DECISIONS OF CABINET MEMBERS AND OFFICERS 

- Decision of the Chief Finance Officer regarding the loan to 
the Everyman Theatre 
 

 

 SECTION 8 : ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE LEADER 
DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND REQUIRES A 
DECISION 
 

 

 SECTION 9 : LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXEMPT  



 
3 
 

BUSINESS 
 

14. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXEMPT BUSINESS 
The Cabinet is recommended to approve the following 
resolution:- 
 

“That in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government 
Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the 
remaining agenda items as it is likely that, in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings, if members of the public are present there will 
be disclosed to them exempt information as defined in 
paragraph ?, Part (1) Schedule (12A) Local Government Act 
1972, namely: 
 
Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular  
person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Paragraph 7A: Information which is subject to any obligation 
of confidentiality 
 
 

 

15. EXEMPT MINUTES 
To approve the exempt minutes of the last meeting held on 
18 January 2011. 
 

(Pages 235 - 236) 

 
Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



 
4 
 

Public Information 
 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure at the Municipal Offices 
 
(i) In the event of a fire you will hear a continuous alarm. 
 In the event of a bomb alert the alarm will sound in repeated short bursts. 
 
(ii) Members, officers and the public should leave the building promptly and in a 

quiet and orderly fashion using the nearest available escape routes and 
assemble on the Promenade footway by the War Memorial. 

 
Attendance at Meetings - Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
Meetings are open to the public and a limited amount of public seating is available. 
Copies of the agenda will also be available. You may be asked to leave the meeting if 
any “exempt” (confidential) business is considered. This will normally be shown on the 
agenda 
 
Inspection of Papers - Local Government  
(Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
We can also arrange for copies of individual decision records, reports or minutes to be 
supplied. If you wish to inspect minutes or reports (other than those which are exempt) 
relating to any item on this agenda, please contact Democratic Services. The 
background papers listed in a report may also be inspected. Please notify Democratic 
Services who will arrange with the report author for papers to be made available to 
you at a mutually convenient time. 
 
All meeting information is published on the Council’s Internet website at: 
www.cheltenham.gov.uk.  
 
If you have difficulty reading this agenda please let us know 
and we will do everything we can to meet your requirements.  
 



CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
 

DATE: …………… 
 

DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 

NAME 
 
You are asked to complete this form if you intend to declare an interest in 
connection with any item on this agenda. 
 
Please hand any completed form to the committee administrator at the 
meeting. 
 
You are reminded that you are still required to declare your interest orally at 
the commencement of the committee's consideration of the matter. 
 

Agenda 
item 

*Personal 
interest 

*Prejudicial 
Personal 
interest 

Nature of interest 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 
* The Council’s Code of Members Conduct explains what is a ‘Personal Interest’ and 
a ‘Prejudicial Interest’.  The Code is set out in Part 5A of the Council’s Constitution.  
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 1



Page 2

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 8 February 2011. 
 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 18th January, 2011 
6.00  - 6.27 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors: Steve Jordan (Leader of the Council), John Rawson (Cabinet 
Member Built Environment), Klara Sudbury (Cabinet Member 
Housing and Safety), Andrew McKinlay (Cabinet Member Sport 
and Culture), John Webster (Cabinet Member Finance and 
Community Development), Roger Whyborn (Cabinet Member 
Sustainability) and Colin Hay (Cabinet Member Corporate 
Services) 
 

 
 

Minutes 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
None 
 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
None declared. 
 
 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
Resolved that the minutes of the last meeting held on 21 December 2010 be 
approved as a correct record subject to a clarification in the third paragraph of 
agenda item 5 that “car park income would fall by about £50,000 to £70,000 as 
a result.” 
 
 
 

4. REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S CULTURAL INVESTMENT GRANTS 
In the absence of any member of the Social and Community Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, Community Investment Grant Review Group, the Cabinet 
Member for Sport and Culture introduced the report. He explained that the 
council’s three-year funded community investment grants were now in their final 
year of funding arrangement.  A final review had been undertaken by this 
working group on behalf of the Social and Community Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee who had endorsed their findings and approved that the 
recommendations be forwarded to Cabinet. 
 
The Cabinet Member considered that the report contained a fair summary of the 
key points and issues in section 2 and their conclusions were set out in section 
3. He advised members that a three year programme had been agreed with the 
Everyman Theatre in 2010 which included decreasing the grant by £5,000 each 

Agenda Item 3
Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 8 February 2011. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 
 

year. The Service Level Agreement (SLA) with Cheltenham Festivals was due 
to come to an end on 30 March 2011. The current SLA included financial 
arrangements but the draft budget currently out for consultation, did not include 
any financial contributions to the Festivals in 2011/2012. Negotiations regarding 
the new SLA were ongoing. Regarding MAD Young Peoples Council, no budget 
was being proposed for 2011/12. He concluded by commending overview and 
scrutiny for their work and felt confident in their conclusions. 
 
The Cabinet Member Finance and Community Development provided some 
additional financial background to the three organisations. The Everyman 
Theatre had received a £250,000 cash investment from the council last year 
and the council had also facilitated a £1 million loan for the theatre’s 
refurbishment programme subject to Heritage Lottery Funding which had since 
been agreed. The grant to the Everyman had already been reduced by £5,000 
in 2010.  The negotiations with the Cheltenham Festivals were more 
complicated as the organisation begins to separate itself from the council and 
also has to take account the support in kind which has been provided by the 
council for such things as legal and ICT support. Regarding MAD he confirmed 
that a full-time post within Cheltenham Borough Council to support the Young 
Peoples Council had been deleted two years ago. Since then the borough 
council had been funding a part time role through the county youth service but 
this contribution is now being cut as it is felt that the Youth Service could no 
longer support such a role in their reorganisation. However the council was 
working with the county council to reach agreement on the allocation of youth 
services funding to Cheltenham and there would be matched funding by 
Cheltenham Borough Council. 
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services felt that the moves to make the 
Everyman Theatre and Cheltenham Festivals more independent had been 
successful and acknowledged that it was a challenge for both organisations. 
However he had every confidence that they would continue to be successful 
and in future would not have to depend on the vagaries of local government 
funding. 
 
Resolved that the funding to each of the named three organisations 
(Everyman Theatre, Cheltenham Festivals and MAD Young People’s 
Council (GCC)) be as set out in the draft budget for 2011/12 which is 
currently subject to consultation.  
 
 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
None.  
 
 
 

6. CABINET MEMBER BRIEFING SESSION 
Cabinet Member Corporate Services 
He reported that he had had a very positive meeting with the management 
group of the four councils making up the GO programme. All councils were very 
keen to move the project forward and drive out savings whilst maintaining their 
levels of service. This was all very encouraging. 
 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 8 February 2011. 
 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 
 

Leader 
He advised that he had attended the inaugural meeting of the new county 
leadership group. This replaced the Gloucestershire Strategic Partnership, the 
Accountable Bodies Group and the Chief Executives’ group. All County and 
district leaders were represented as well as the chair of the PCT and the Police 
Authority. The Leader had been selected to lead a group on the countywide 
management of assets and the Leader from Stroud was leading a group looking 
at the links with the voluntary sector. 
 
 
 

7. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXEMPT BUSINESS 
Resolved that in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local Government Act 1972 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining items of business as 
it is likely that, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the 
nature of the proceedings, if members of the public are present there will be 
disclosed to them exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 and 7A, Part 1, 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972, namely: 
 
Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Paragraph 7A;  Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality  
 
 
 
 

8. CONTRACT AUTHORISATION 
After excluding the press and public the Leader explained that this item was the 
subject of a confidentiality agreement which had been signed by the council. 
Any officers and members present who stayed for this item would also be 
covered by this confidentiality agreement.  
 
The Cabinet Member for Sport and Culture introduced the report which had 
been circulated with the exempt papers for the meeting. Supporting information 
was provided by the Chief Executive. Cabinet considered the report and agreed 
the recommendations in it. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

  
Chairman 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$r3ec4yqv.doc Page 1 of 5 Last updated 31 January 2011 
 

 
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 8th February, 2011 

 
Adoption of bidder evaluation matrix in relation to proposed land 

disposal at North Place and Portland Street 
 

Report of the Cabinet Member Built Environment 
 

Accountable member Cabinet member Built Environment,  Councillor John Rawson 
Accountable officer Assistant Director Built Environment, Mike Redman 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Environment 

Ward(s) affected St Paul’s 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary This report seek Cabinet approval for the proposed bidder evaluation 

matrix relating to the proposed disposal for mixed use development of the 
North Place and Portland Street sites (the ‘Sites’), currently used for 
surface car parking. 

Recommendation 
 

 

 

 

 

That Cabinet: 
 
1.1      delegates authority to the Head of Property and Asset Management 

in consultation with Cabinet Member for Built Environment to enter 
into competitive dialogue with bidders to dispose of the Sites, 
whether in whole or in part, acknowledging that disposal could be 
by way of a freehold transfer, leasehold disposal or a mixed 
freehold and leasehold disposal. The final structure of the proposed 
disposal to be determined by dialogue procedure and the 
evaluation methodology referred to below; 

 
1.2      delegates authority to the Head of Property and Asset Management 

in consultation with Cabinet Member for Built Environment to select 
the developer in accordance with the evaluation methodology, as 
set out at Appendix 2 below; 

 
1.3      delegates authority to the Assistant Director Built Environment in 

consultation with the Cabinet Member for Built Environment to 
finalise the Evaluation Criteria before sending them out to the final 
5 bidders. 

 

Agenda Item 5
Page 7



 

   

$r3ec4yqv.doc Page 2 of 5 Last updated 31 January 2011 
 

Financial implications The council is looking to the development of the site to provide a net 
capital receipt to support the pump priming of public realm improvements 
across the town. The scoring criteria allows for this important element in 
the list of outcomes to be measured. 
Contact officer:          Mark Sheldon, Chief Finance Officer , 
mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264123 

Legal implications The EU Competitive Dialogue procedure is set out in the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2006 and involves a staged process of assessment as 
follows: 
• Pre-qualification selection process; 
• Invitation to short listed candidates to participate in a dialogue 

process during which aspects of the project will be discussed and 
solutions developed; 

• Dialogue continues until a limited number of solutions, say 2, are 
identified as capable of satisfying the council’s requirements; 

• Dialogue closed and final tenders invited. 
In view of the expense incurred by tenderers during this process, as well 
as the intensity of discussions once the dialogue commences, it is 
essential that the lead officer has the necessary delegated authority to 
enter into dialogue and to discuss solutions with bidders. Members are 
asked to approve the various options relating to the disposal of the Sites 
as set out in the recommendations and the evaluation methodology, so 
that the competitive dialogue process may commence with the necessary 
certainty it requires to be effective within the timescales set for the 
processs.  
Contact officer:          Shirin Wotherspoon, Solicitor          
shirin.wotherspoon@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272017 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None arising directly from this report. 
Contact officer:       Julie McCarthy, HR Operation Manager                
julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, Ext 4355 

Key risks CR32 -  If the council is unable to realise the capital value of some of its 
assets it will be unable to progress the civic pride proposals – current risk 
rating 12. 
It is essential that the Council follows due process in disposing of the site 
to eliminate legal, financial and reputational risks that might otherwise 
arise. 

Page 8



 

   

$r3ec4yqv.doc Page 3 of 5 Last updated 31 January 2011 
 

Corporate and 
community plan 
implications 

The development of the North Place and Portland Street sites will 
contribute to the following community and corporate plan objectives:- 
• enhancing and protecting our environment;  
• strengthening our economy;  
• strengthening our communities.  

In addition to the direct benefits arising from the development of this site, 
its sale should generate a substantial receipt that it is proposed will be 
reinvested in town centre infrastructure improvements. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None relating directly from this report. 
 

  
1. Background 
1.1 Following public consultation the revised Development Brief and Supplementary Planning 

Document (SPD) relating to the North Place and Portland Street sites was formally adopted by 
the Council on 13th December, 2010, as an SPD and technical appendix and this now forms an 
integral part of Cheltenham’s Local Development Framework (LDF). 

1.2 The SPD provides the context for the marketing of the North Place and Portland Street 
development sites which has commenced (see para 1.3. below). Additional preparatory tasks 
have now also been completed including: the conclusion of the archaeological investigation 
works recently undertaken; the production of a Planning Policy Statement 5 assessment 
concerning historical context and the appointment of professional advisers. 

1.3 Officers commenced marketing of the sites on 24th January 2011, by placing the notice for 
disposal and associated works in the OJEU (Official Journal of the European Union). An advert 
was placed in the Estates Gazette and advertising boards have been erected on the sites. The 
selection of the preferred developer needs to follow the requirements of the EU procurement 
rules. The timetable should allow for the identification of a preferred bidder to develop the sites 
by late autumn 2011. 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The adoption of an evaluation matrix is essential in selecting prospective developers of the site 

for the following reasons:- 
• To provide a consistent and fair selection methodology;  
• To ensure transparency in relation to the criteria applied; 
• To minimise legal, financial and reputational risks to the Council; 
• To maximise the likelihood of a successful development of the site that meets the 

Council’s aspirations for this important town centre location. 
 

2.2 It is also essential to give officers the necessary delegated authority to enter into formal  
competitive dialogue with bidders and to select the preferred developer(s) in accordance with 
the evaluation methodlogy. Briefing notes will be submitted to members as the dialogue 
progresses. 

3. Alternative options considered 

Page 9



 

   

$r3ec4yqv.doc Page 4 of 5 Last updated 31 January 2011 
 

3.1 None applicable. 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 The selection criteria and scoring matrix have been the subject of consultation with key officers 

internally, One Legal, the Cheltenham Development Task Force and our appointed property 
advisors. 

5. Performance management – monitoring and review 
5.1 Officers will report back to Cabinet in due course with a recommendation regarding the preferred 

bidder. 

Report author Contact officer:  Mike Redman, Assistant Director Built Environment,                
mike.redman@cheltenham.gov.uk, Ext 4160 
01242 264160 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment  
2. Proposed bidder evaluation criteria and scoring matrix 
3. Bidder Introductory Information Pack and Pre Qualification 

Questionnaire – for information only 
Background information Report to Council on 13th December, 2010 entitled ‘Review Of North Place 

& Portland Street Development Brief & Civic Pride Urban Design 
Framework’ 

 

Page 10



 

   
$r3ec4yqv.doc Page 5 of 5 Last updated 31 January 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

CR32 If the council is unable to 
realise the capital value of 
some of its assets it will be 
unable to progress the civic 
pride proposals 

GL 23/08/10 4 3 12 Reduce SPD consultation 
completed and approval 
by Council in December. 
OJEU process to 
commence January 
2011. 
Other asset disposal 
progressing as planned. 

 Strategic 
director  
Grahame 
Lewis 

Yes 

            

 
  

P
age 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3 
 

 
 
 
3.1 INTRODUCTORY INFORMATION PACK 

 
 

3.2 PUBLIC WORKS CONCESSION CONTRACT - PRE-QUALIFICATION 
QUESTIONNAIRE 

Page 17



 

Page 18



�

��������

����������	
	


����	
����	�	
�������	������	�����������	
����	

�
�����������	
������
����
�
��




����
�
��
�	
����


�

��� �
�

� �
�
�
�
�

Page 19



�

��������

���������

��� �	
��
�����
��� ��������	���������������	�����

��
��� ���������������������
 �� !�	�����������"��
#�� �����������������"��
$�� !
�
�
�������
�
����

Page 20



�

��������

��
 �
��������




���� ��������	�����
���%������
�����&����
'�	

����
��
�(�����
�"�������������	
�����	����
������	
�(�������	���	�������
����
�	����	��'�	

�	�����)	����	��*����
	
�
��
����

�
���� ��������	���	��
�������������
	�����

�������'�������������


�

�����
�����
������
�������	������������'�+�	����	��
�������'����������������,-�	�	�����	�������.����
�����	��
	��
	������,� -���
�
	'��������
�������
�����+�������������'�
	�����'���
	����
���%�����
��	����������	���

�
���� ��������	����
���������
���/0���12�	���%��
���������)�
���

!�	
��	���!�
��	�����
���������
�

����'����������	����
�	
��
	
�
�	
���	
�����������
������������������������
�	�
	�������������

�
�� � ���������������'���������������
	���	�	��	+������������%��
���
�����

��������	��	���
��
�������	����3�������
�����'����

�	���	�
��
������
�������
	
'���
���
���"�������������������	�4��
�����
�
�
�
����
������������������������	���"��������
�����
��	��	����������
����
�������'�	
�	�����������%��%������	������
�	��������+�����������������&����
'���
��	����



��
 ��� ����
�
!�"� �#����
$
%�
&����





���� ��
�����
	��'�	
����������	����
���������
����	��+����

��
������	���
+	����������������
	���'��������������
�!
�����5��
�
��
�����
��
�����
�������
���������	��������	������	
��	��
������
'�����	��������	
���
��6���
����
���
�������'�����
��(�
����������.����&�����	��������������7���
'�	�������*�����
8�������������7���
'�	�
��������������	��	
�����������	���
��

������
�	��������������
�	�
��

�
���� ������������	���������������	�����

��
	���������
����������

9	��	
'������	����	��+��������
�	������
��	
	��
'�%�
�����
��������������'�������������������������
���
	��	
�	�	�+�����������
�	�����

�������%��
��
��������������������
������	���
%���
���%��
���
��	�+����������+��	��������������������	������
�%����+'������

�
���� 7�'�
	���	��
�
����������
	������
�����������	���%����/��+:�
��

�������
���
	����
	����2�+�������'������������
�����%���
�	����
��
��	����+��
�
�	������
����������������
��
�������

� � � �
�
�
�

Page 21



�

 �������

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 22



�

#�������

�
'�
 $��
��"� �#����
(���




���� ����������"���������	��
�"��	���'����$���
�	
���/#��,#�	

��2�

	��������
	�����#�����
���)�
����������*������
����	���

����
�������
��	���
���
�����+����!���������/	��������"��������
�	
�2�	��������
�%�
'�/�����
�������	���2�
�����"��

�
���� ���������
������������%���"����������
�	
��
	
��	
����%����	���

���
	����+'���������	����
���������
�������
�����	��
	�������	���	

�������	�������	��������������������!�
��	���
��
����
	
��	
���%����+'�6���
����
���
�������'�����
���
%��
�����	����	�	��	+����

�
� �

�
�

���� )�
���!�	
��%	����
��
�'�������������������	
��8�.���������
������%������!�
��	�����
����%	���
������	���'�;�
��
�	��

��������	�������������%�
���"�����������+'������<=�4��%����
%�����	���������������	�������	
���

�
�

�� � ������

�������+����
�����"��
���������

�	���	������
������(�
	���������
�	������������
(�����%�����������������������	'�+������
��
%	
���������+	�������	
3��
����	��
��������
��������	�������
����
�����������%����������/�
�	���"��
������
�������	���
��	�����������
�����
���
��������%���������2���+:�
�����
�	
	�
	�����#�+���%�����������
������	��������
���������
�"���
����	���	
�����������	�������
�
���(�����������%��
��	��
����
���������������������	���������
��	������������
	
��	
��
��������(�+��������	��>�
���+��
���	
�����������
���
�����������

Page 23



�

$�������

����
��?��
�	���
�	�����'(���
��	������+�����
��	����(�
�	���	�����	������
	����+'�������������
���
�����+��������������
����
���	���������+��
��

�
��#� ��������
���
�

����'��	������+������������
�����
�������
	
�

�	
���	�������������	
���"��
�������
��	��������	
�/	�+����

���
��2����	�
�	��+���������
�����
�����������7��	�
����3���
���
��������
���%�������'��
	����
�	���	�����������
���������������
��������
�%����������
	�������
	
��	
��������������

�
�
�
�
�

)�
 � 
�����
�����*�




 ��� �����������	���+����������+:�
�����	�����������	
'���	������
��
������/�!�2�	���	
����������	
���
�����
�!
����@
+	���������
�
	��%�
��	���	����	����	�������
���
	��	������"A�)�
���!�	
��
	���!�
��	�����
�����������������
�����������%�
��
����������
�����	�����+:�
�������
���
���+��
�
������	�����	�����������	��
��
���������
���	���������
�
��������

�
����A>>%%%�
�������	��������>����>�

����>��%���	�B��������C����5�D�<� �
�
�

 ��� ������������
����	��'�����
����%����+���"��
��������	���	�
��
�	��	����
	��������������
	����	������	����
��'���������%���������
+
����	���%����+����+:�
������������	����	����
'�������������

���
����
�
���
����

�
 ��� 5�����	�
�3��
��������	��������

���������������
��������'�

�
��
������	���	������	����
	�����+���	����
�����
���	���
������
��������������������
����	�������	��+������
�
����

�
+�
 !�"� �#����
�����*�




#��� �������
	���
���	

���	��+��������
�	�����������
��	�������
�������	��������
	+�������������
����AE�

�
•� 7��
�����
���������
���
��
•� 7�!!�#���	���������������
�
	��
����"��
•� 7������+	����	

�	������
	��	���������������
����+'�	��������
	���

	

�	������
	����	��	�����
•� 7��	�	�'����������	��������
•� 5����	����������	����������������������

�
#��� 7��������������
��������	���+������
������%����������

��
���
	������
�	�����!	
��	���%����+����������������

Page 24



�

,�������

�
�	���	���������
������������	
�	����������
�������������	������
F�������������������	����

�
#��� !��	����������	����������
�	������
�����������������
������������

	������
	������	��
�����'�	����������	�����������
�3��
������
�	���'������+�����	������+'������������
���
����	��������������	��

�3��
������%����+���
�������������
��������+����
����	��	
��
�����������������	��������	�����������
�
�
�����������
���
����
����
���������	
'�	���	����������
����	����
	����������

�3��
���������	��%����+�������	������+	�����������
������������

�
#� � )��������������(�����	�����
�(�������
�
��
�(�����
�
�(����+�
�(�

�	
���
�(������'�����
�	�����AE�
�
#� ��� �	����	�'�
��
�����	������
�%	

	��'�/�"�
�����
��������2�	���������

	

�
	
'(�
�	���	+��������
�
�����������������������
�	��������
�������
��������7�'���
�����
������
�����	�����	���
���������
��+����	�+�����������	�������
��%����������	������	�������
��%��
������������	���������������������	�������
�3��
���������
�����
����������������
�����'�	�������������������
��%���
��������	��
���	�
�	��	������	��	���
�?�

�
#� ��� 	

�����	�'�
�������+����'���
���������
�	�����
���	������������

����
�	���������������
�������
���
������	�
����(�	

�
	
'��
�

��������������)�
���	���	�'���������+����	+�����
�	�'�������
�
�	�	���/����
���	�����
����
������
	�����������
��
�����	����2�
	
������	��	�
���������
���	�
�������
������
�	������
�	�'�
��+��3�����
������
	�������

�
,�
 �����������
�����%%




$��� ����
�����	��������������	
���
����%�
��%������������	��
��
���������
������������
�����
������
�����%����+������
�	����
�����
����	�����	�����

�
$��� ��	���F���%����������������	���
������������������
�����'�

��
�����F9G@�	�������
��������	�%����	�������	�������
�
����
�������	
����������+����	�!
�EH�	����
	�����H��������	�
��
/!HH4�2����6;7�	��	���������������

�
$��� @����
�
��������!HH4��%�����������������������
	�������	���

�����	
���
��	���	�����
��%�������
������������	��	"��������#�
+����
��%�����������	�
�	��
����

���	����"��
��������������
����
������'�������������������

�
$� � ��	����%��%������������	�������	���������	
��
��	������	�������

��	��������
���������
��������+����
����
�

$�#� ��	�����
���%�������������������	���%�����
��������+����
��+�����
����������������������	���������������	�����+�������	�������
���5��

Page 25



�

=�������

���	���
��	������	��	�������	������	������%���������	���'�
���������
������������
	��������	��
���

�����������
��

�
$�$� �����
������������	+��������������	��+���%�����������	��

����
	����������	+���	�����������
���
��������
��������	�����
	����	
'����������	+���������	���%�������	���+����
��	�����	�'�

���������	

�
�����'��

�
�
�
�

(�
��
�



-�"����%�����

��
����.�
 ����
����




•� 5�����F9G@�����
���
�

•� !HH(�+
�
��
��	������
���
��
'�����
�	�����
�	
���	���	�	��	+���+'�6;7�����������	��
+����
��

�

� >��>���
�

•� 7���
�������������
�����'���
������	
�����
����	�

�

�<>��>���
�

•� ��	��������
�
���
�����!HH����6;7�
�

� >��>���
�

•� ���>6;7���	��	����!HH�
���
�������
��
���
�
����������
��������������"��+����
�����
�	
��
��	������
�������������	������

�

�#>��>�������#>� >���
�

•� &���
�������������	���������������	���
��

��+'�
������	����
����
�������	���
�
����
	��������������
���+��
����

�

�=>� >���
�

•� �
�������)������������	+�����
�

�<>� >���

(�
��
�



���#�����"�
!�
 ����
/
��� ���
(� �����%
/
+
0�����%




•� &�"�����
��������+����
��	�����
���+'�����
	���6;7��������5����	��������!	
��
��	������
��	������	�����+����F�����������������/%����
��	��	�����

���
�	�	�������������'(�
���
���
	�����
�3��
������(�
���
	
�����	����
	�����
���
�����
�	��������������
���
	��
5���
�	�����!	
�22��

�<>� >���
�

•� �����
���	'�	��I���
��	��F���
��
 ��>�#>���
�

Page 26



�

<�������

•� F���
�����'���
���
�	���
�E	����
	�����
���
��������%������	��������	���

� >�#>���J��#>�#>���

•� 5����	�����������%�����	
��+����
�������
����
�
	���F����������������	��
�	
��	����
����	���

�

� >�#>���J��#>�#>���

•� !
�����	������+'�+����
������
	���F�������
����������������	�����	����������+	
���
���
����

�

�$>�#>���8��,>�#>���

•� ��	��������
�+����
����+�����������F�������
����������

�

��>�,>���
�

•� ���>6;7���	��	������+�������F�������
��������������
��
���
�����������
�������1��
+����
������	
��
��	������
�������������	������
��������������	���������������

�

�

•� 5���
���
���
�������������	��������������
�	�����

��

�#>�,>���
�

•� �
�������)������������	+����� �$>�,>���
�

(�
��
'



���#�����"�
!�
 ����
/
!��
� ��
(� �����%
��
&��
 
$�����%
/
�
0�����%

�

•� &��
 
�1�����
��������+����
��	�����
���+'�
����	���6;7�������������	����������+����
���	����������������������
�%�������	�����������
5����	����������+�������	�������
�

7���������	�������

�������+����
��%����+��
	�������	�����+
�������

�$>�,>���

•� !�
���������	���������������%�������	���%��
+����
����
�����
�����A


o� �
����������+	
�����F�����������������

o� ������	���
���
	
����
��

o� ���	���%����+����
���������
�

������������������	��������������


�
�
�,>,>���J��<>�,>���
��>�=>���J��=>�<>���

•� �����
���	
�	��������+��
�
������	������"�

����
%��������

��>�=>���J��<>�<>���

•� �����
����+��������������	��������������/�
	���
+���2�

�
�<>�<>���

•� 5����	����������+�������	�������
������������
���	���%��+����
��

��>�<>���

!�
���������
���
���	���������������%�������	���%��
+����
����
�����
�����A�

o� �
����������+	
��	������	����������
���	���������������/�
	���+���2�

o� �����+����
4��	����������	���
������
	+����'�������	���������������/�
	���

��>�<>��������>�<>���

Page 27



�

���������

+���2�
o� ������	���	�'�
��	������
���
	
�����	���




•� �����������	������

�
G��������>�<>���

•� ��	��������
���+��������������	�������
�
�

��>�<>���

•� ��	
���
	�����	���������������������	�������
�
��+���������

•� G�	��	�����������	�������
���+���������+'�
���>6;7������	+�����������������'�����
!
���

��������
�

�

�>��>��������>��>���

•� &���
�������������	���������������	���
��

��

�

� >��>���

•� &�
������	������������!
���

��������
����
�����	+�����	�������	��
��	���
�
����

�

�#>��>���

�
(�
��
)
/
���������
������

��
-1
��
!���%���

�

•� 7������������������!
���

��������
� �$>��>���
•� ��	
��'�����
���

���+����
�������
(�
����
�����


�����������	������	�������
���
	
�����	����
%���������
���

���+����
��

�$>��>�������	
�'�
9	��	
'������

•� 7%	
����
������+'�����	������	�
�	�������� ��+
�	
'������
�

�
#�#�5��'���%�������+��
������
������	�����+����'��
�!HH�+'�� >��>������

6;7����	

�
�	�
��%��������
�3��
����������������������!HH�
��
�������

�
#�$�7�'�3��
�������	���
���	
��6;7��

Page 28



Appendix 3 

1 of 22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council (“the Authority”) 
 

North Place & Portland Street Development 
 

Public Works Concession Contract 
 

PRE-QUALIFICATION QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



Appendix 3 

2 of 22 

This pre-qualification questionnaire (“PQQ”) is divided into two parts: 
 
 
• Part 1 provides information about the procurement process for the award of the 

contract by the Authority and in particular the pre-qualification process and 
evaluation. 

 
• Part 2 sets out (in the form of a questionnaire, statement and checklist) the 

information which Candidates must submit to the Authority. 
 
 
 

Glossary of Terms 
Candidate  The bidder (or potential bidder) applying to compete for the 

award of the contract. A Candidate may be (i) an individual 
organisation or (ii) a Consortium. 
 

Consortium  A group of organisations coming together to form a bidding 
entity (which may include partners and/or a lead contractor 
with sub-contractors). 
 

Consortium Member  A member organisation of a Consortium. 
 

Lead Organisation  The lead organisation of a Consortium that is expected to 
enter into the contract with the Authority and co-ordinate bid 
responses from Consortium Members. 
 

 
 
 
Please note the Authority reserves the right to require groupings of contractors to take a particular 
legal form or to require a single contractor to take primary liability or to require that each party 
undertakes joint and several liability in the award and performance of the contract. 
 
 
 

Page 30



Appendix 3 

3 of 22 

PART 1 
 
 
1 Overview of the Document and Procurement Process 
 

1.1 The Authority is seeking to appoint a contractor to award a contract for the 
development of the site at North Place and Portland Street.  Further details of the 
opportunity are provided in the Introductory Information Pack accompanying this 
PQQ. 

 
1.2 The Authority is running this process under the EU Procurement Rules to award a 

development contract (as a Public Works Concession Contract) in accordance with 
the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 (“the Regulations”).  Many of the provisions of 
the Regulations do not apply to the award of a Public Works Concession Contract.  
However, the Authority intends to conduct a competition similar to that of the 
competitive dialogue procedure described in the Regulations in order to identify the 
most economically advantageous tender for its requirement.  However, since the 
Authority is not bound by many of the formalities of the Regulations it reserves the 
right to use such flexibilities in this procurement process. 

 
1.3 Part 1 of this document sets out background information about the process that the 

Authority will be using. 
 

1.4 This document has been produced to enable the Authority to obtain information from 
potential bidders about (i) their economic and financial standing; and (ii) their technical 
and/or professional ability to perform the proposed contract. 

 
1.5 Part 2 of this PQQ includes a questionnaire that asks for financial and technical 

information from you.  The financial information which we are asking you to provide 
allows the Authority to be satisfied that a Candidate has adequate financial and other 
resources and will be in a position to continue to deliver the services throughout the 
contract period. The technical information allows the Authority to assess whether a 
Candidate has the relevant skills and experience to be capable of performing the 
proposed contract to meet the Authority’s needs. 

 
1.6 Part 2 contains a statement relating to good standing which you are required to sign 

confirming that you are:  
 

1.6.1 not guilty of committing certain specified offences which would make 
you ineligible to tender; and 

 
1.6.2 various listed circumstances which could result in your exclusion 

from the process do not apply to you. 
 

1.7 In addition, Part 2 contains a checklist for you to use to check that you have included 
the correct information and which you should complete and return with the pre-
qualification questionnaire responses and the statement. 

 
1.8 The Authority will review the responses provided by Candidates and evaluate those 

responses that comply with the requirements of this PQQ using the selection stage 
criteria and weightings in the Selection Evaluation Matrix set out at Part 1 of this 
document below. 

 

Page 31



Appendix 3 

4 of 22 

1.9 Following this evaluation exercise, the Authority will draw up a shortlist of up to five 
Candidates that will be invited to tender. The Authority will issue an Invitation to 
Tender document ("ITT") to those short-listed Candidates. 

 
1.10 Following the receipt of the tenders from the shortlisted Candidates, the Authority 

intends to evaluate the tenders received and appoint the contractor offering the most 
economically advantageous tender. 

 
 
2 The Procurement Timetable 
 

2.1 The Authority is using a process similar to the competitive dialogue procedure under 
the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 for the appointment of a contractor for the 
contract. 

 
2.2 The main stages of the procurement process and the timetable are detailed in the 

Introductory Information Pack accompanying this PQQ. 
 

2.3 The Authority reserves the right to vary and update this timetable at any time and will 
notify the relevant Candidates if it decides to do so. 

 
 
3 Enquiries and Further Information 
 

3.1 All queries in relation to this pre-qualification process must be made in writing and 
submitted by e-mail for the attention of James Petherick at: 
james.petherick@gva.co.uk to be received by the Authority (through GVA) no later 
than 5pm 25 February 2011. 
 
The Council has appointed GVA as its agents to co-ordinate the pre-qualification 
exercise. 

 
3.2 The Authority intends to copy both the query raised and the Authority’s responses to 

all Candidates except where in its opinion the response relates to information that is 
commercially confidential. 

 
3.3 Any queries arising from this PQQ document that may have a bearing on the PQQ 

responses to be made should be raised. 
 
 
4 Right to Reject and/or Disqualify 
 

4.1 The Authority reserves the right to reject or disqualify a Candidate where: 
 

4.1.1 the PQQ submission response, statement and checklist are 
submitted late, is completed incorrectly, is incomplete or fails to meet 
the Authority’s submission requirements which have been notified to 
Candidates;  

 
4.1.2 the Candidate must or may be excluded under Article 45 of Directive 

2004/18/EC at any stage during the pre-qualification selection and 
evaluation process or the subsequent tender evaluation process (see 
section 3 below in relation to the Statement of Good Standing);  

 

Page 32



Appendix 3 

5 of 22 

4.1.3 the Candidate is guilty of serious misrepresentation in relation to its 
pre-qualification application, tender submissions, and/or its conduct 
in the procurement process; or 

 
4.1.4 there is a change in identity, control, financial standing or other factor 

impacting on the selection and/or evaluation process affecting the 
Candidate. 

 
4.2 Please note that following the submission of PQQ submission responses by 

Candidates, Candidates continuing in the competition process are required to 
immediately notify the Authority of any changes (or foreseeable potential changes) to 
the PQQ submission responses (including the Statement of Good Standing) 
information submitted. 

 
 
5 Canvassing and Non-Collusion 
 

5.1 Except as specifically authorised by the Authority, Candidates shall not approach or 
canvass the Authority with a view to providing information in respect of any part of 
their PQQ submission or attempting to support or enhance their prospects of being 
selected to be invited to submit a tender. 

 
5.2 Any collusion between Candidates, combining of Candidates or transfer of any key 

partner, adviser or Consortium Member from one Candidate to another may lead to 
the exclusion of the Candidate(s) involved at the discretion of the Authority. 

 
5.3 Candidates must not collude with their approach or share information with any other 

Candidate in the preparation of their PQQ submissions with a view to enhancing their 
or such other Candidates’ prospect of being selected to be invited to submit a tender 
in relation to the proposed contract (or as such on any other contract, project, scheme 
or opportunity). 

 
 
6 Right to Cancel or Vary the Process 
 

6.1 The Authority reserves the right to: 
 

6.1.1 cancel the selection and evaluation process at any time; and/or 
 

6.1.2 require a Candidate to clarify its submission in writing and/or provide 
additional information (failure to respond adequately may result in the 
Candidate not qualifying); and/ or 

 
6.1.3 vary or change all or any part of the procedures or requirements for 

this procurement process at any time.  
 

6.2 The publication of the PQQ document in no way commits the Authority to award any 
contract and the Authority reserves the right not to proceed with the procurement 
process at any time. 

 
 
7 Costs and Expenses 
 

7.1 All Candidates are solely responsible for their costs and expenses incurred in 
connection with participating in all stages of the procurement process including (but 

Page 33



Appendix 3 

6 of 22 

not limited to) the preparation and submission of the PQQ responses and tenders.  
Under no circumstances will the Authority (or any of its advisors) be liable for any 
costs or expenses borne by the Candidate (or any of its advisors) in this process. 

 
 
8 The Pre-qualification Questionnaire 
 

8.1 The PQQ (and supporting information) has been prepared by the Authority for the 
purpose of providing an application procedure for individuals or organisations 
interested in tendering for these services and to assist Candidates in making their 
own evaluation of the potential opportunity. 

 
8.2 Whilst prepared in good faith, the PQQ (and supporting information) is intended only 

as a preliminary background explanation of the Authority's activities and plans and is 
not intended to form the basis of any decision on whether to enter into any contractual 
relationship with the Authority.  The PQQ (and the accompanying Introductory 
Information Pack) does not purport to be all-inclusive or to contain all of the 
information that a potential Candidate may require. 

 
8.3 Any persons considering making a decision to participating in this procurement 

competition process with the Authority following receipt of the PQQ (and supporting 
information) with a view of entering into a contract with the Authority if successful 
should make their own investigations and their own independent assessment of the 
Authority and its requirements for the development opportunity and should seek their 
own independent professional financial and legal advice. 

 
8.4 Neither the Authority nor its advisors, directors, officers, members, partners, 

employees, other staff, agents (or advisors of any such body or person): 
 

8.4.1 makes any representation or warranty (express or implied) as to the 
accuracy, reasonableness or completeness of the PQQ (and 
supporting information);  

 
8.4.2 accepts any responsibility for the information contained in the PQQ 

(and supporting information) or for its fairness, accuracy or 
completeness; 

 
8.4.3 shall be liable for any loss or damage (other than in respect of 

fraudulent misrepresentation) arising as a result of reliance on such 
information or any subsequent communication. 

 
8.5 Only the express terms of any written contract relating to the subject matter of the 

contract as and when it is executed shall have any contractual effect in connection 
with the matters to which it relates.  English law will govern any such contract. 

 
8.6 Nothing in the PQQ (or other procurement and contract documents) is, or should be, 

relied upon as a promissory or a representation as to Authority's ultimate decisions in 
relation to the scope of services which may be awarded by the Authority at the 
conclusion of the procedure. 

 
 
9 Confidentiality 
 

9.1 The information in the PQQ and any associated documents is made available on 
condition that it is treated as confidential by the Candidate and is not disclosed, 

Page 34



Appendix 3 

7 of 22 

copied, reproduced, distributed or passed to any other person at any time except for 
the purpose of enabling a submission to be made: for example disclosure by a 
Candidate to its insurers who are directly involved in the bid, is permitted provided 
they have each given an undertaking at the time of receipt of the relevant information 
(and for the benefit of the Authority) to keep such information confidential. 

 
 
10 Freedom Of Information 
 

10.1 The Authority is subject to the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 
and the Environmental Regulations 2004, the subordinate legislation made under the 
Act/Regulations and any guidance and/or codes of practice issued (from time to time) 
in relation to such legislation.  Candidates are required to: 

 
10.1.1 specify (with reasons) those parts of their PQQ submission 

responses which they regard as falling within any of the exemptions 
from disclosure specified under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 
and/or the Environmental Regulations 2004 including (without 
limitation) information provided in confidence; and 

 
10.1.2 state which provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and/or 

the Environmental Regulations 2004 apply to the information 
identified under paragraph 10.1.1. 

 
10.2 The Authority however, shall be responsible for determining, at its absolute discretion, 

whether such exemption should apply and Candidates agree to comply with any such 
decision taken by the Authority. 

 
 
11 Conflicts Of Interest 
 

11.1 The Authority is concerned to avoid conflicts of interest. Candidates should note that 
the Authority reserve the right to disqualify Candidates where there is an actual or 
potential conflict of interest.  Candidates are therefore advised to review carefully the 
prior or current involvement of the Candidate with the Authority and to contact the 
named contact in paragraph 3 of the PQQ prior to submission of the completed PQQ 
to discuss actual or potential conflicts they have identified. 

 

Page 35



Appendix 3 

8 of 22 

12 Selection Evaluation Matrix 
 

12.1 The Authority will first assess PPQ submission responses to ascertain that their 
minimum pass/fail compliance requirements have been met.  Those PQQ responses 
that meet these minimum requirements will then be evaluated in accordance with the 
matrix below. 

 
 

Level 1 Criteria Level 1 
Criteria 

Weightings 
Level 2 
Criteria 
Question 

No. 

Level 2 Criteria Level 2 
Criteria 
Sub- 

Weighting 

Available 
Scores 

Economic and 
Financial Standing 30%     
  3 

 
Financial Information 30% 0-4 

  
 SUB-TOTAL 30% 4 

Technical and 
Professional Ability 70%     
  4.1 

 
Key Personnel 10% 0-10 

  4.2 
 

Similar Project Experience 10% 0-10 
  4.3 

 
Design Quality 10% 0-10 

  4.4 
 

Sustainability Approach 10% 0-10 
  4.5 Health and Safety 

Approach 
Pass/Fail  

  4.6 Previous Contract 
Performance 

10% 0-10 
  4.7 

 
Finance Raising Ability and 
Experience 

20% 0-4 
  

 SUB-TOTAL 70% 54 

OVERALL TOTAL: 100% 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



Appendix 3 

9 of 22 

 
The Authority will apply the following scoring scale in assessing Level 2 Questions for Financial 
Information (3) and Finance Raising Ability and Experience (4.7) 
 

SCORING SCALE 
Score Commentary 
0 Unacceptable 
1 Poor - below 

expectations 
2 Meets expectations 

3 Good - well above 
expectations 

4 Exceptional 
 
 
 
The Authority will apply the following scoring scale in assessing each of the other Level 2 Criteria 
Questions. 
 
 

SCORING SCALE 
Score Commentary 
0 Unacceptable 

1 Very weak - almost unacceptable 

2 Weak - well below expectations 
3 Poor - below expectations 
4 Satisfactory but below expectations 

5 Meets expectations 

6 Slightly exceeds expectations 
7 Good - well above expectations 
8 Very good 
9 Outstanding 
10 Exceptional 

 
 

Page 37



Appendix 3 

10 of 22 

12.2 The Authority proposes to invite the Candidates with the five highest scoring 
compliant PQQ submissions to the tender stage of the competition process. 

Page 38



Appendix 3 

11 of 22 

PART 2 
 
INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED TO THE AUTHORITY 
 
1 Return of Pre-qualification/Short-listing Information Requested in Part 2 
 

1.1 A Candidate wishing to participate must provide: 
 

• All of the background information requested in section 1 
• All of the financial and technical information requested in section 2 
• the Statement of Good Standing at section 3 (fully completed and signed) 
• the pre-qualification checklist at section 4 (fully completed) 

 
To GVA 

St Catherine’s Court, Berkeley Place 
Bristol BS8 1BQ 
 

By: 12:00 noon on Monday 14 March 2011 
 

1.2 Please note that GVA has been appointed as the agent of the Authority to receive 
completed PQQ submissions on its behalf at this address. This is the only address at 
which the Authority will accept completed PQQ submissions in relation to this 
procurement. 

 
1.3 Candidates must submit 2 hard copies and a copy in electronic format on CD-ROM.  

In the event of discrepancy the hard copy will take precedence. 
 

1.4 Submissions must be contained in a sealed envelope bearing the following words 
“CONFIDENTIAL - PQQ for NORTH PLACE & PORTLAND STREET 
DEVELOPMENT – CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL ref DM/15861” and not 
bear on the envelope any name or mark indicating the sender. 

 
1.5 When providing its response to this PQQ, Candidates must follow the order set out in 

this Part 2.  Any additional information provided (not requested in this PQQ) as 
supplemental sheets will not be evaluated by the Authority. 
 

 
1.6 Checklist: There is a checklist at the end of this PQQ at section 4 which Candidates 

can use to check that they have answered all the questions required and which must 
be completed and returned as part of the PQQ. 

 
 

Page 39



Appendix 3 

12 of 22 

PART 2 - SECTION 1 – CANDIDATE INFORMATION 
 
Please provide the following information: 
 
1 Basic Information 
 

• Name of Candidate (or in the case of a Consortium the Lead Organisation) 
 

• VAT Registration Number 
 

• Contact Details: 
 

- Address for Correspondence 
 

- Contact Name and Position 
 

- Telephone Number 
 

- Fax Number 
 

- E-Mail Address 
 

• A one-page chart illustrating the ownership structure of the Candidate (or in the 
case of a Consortium the Lead Organisation) including relations to any parent or 
other group and holding companies. 

 
 

In the case of a Company 
 

• Registered Company Number 
 

• Registered Office Address 
 

• Year of Registration 
 

• Country of Registration 
 

In the case of a Partnership 
 

• Total Number of Partners 
 

• Date the Partnership was formed 
 

• Details of any fundamental changes in the composition of the Partnership in the last 
three years (e.g. partnership dissolution, merger or departure of Partners) 

 
• County of establishment 

 
In the case of a Limited Liability Partnership 

 
• Registered LLP Number 

 
• Registered Office Address 

 

Page 40



Appendix 3 

13 of 22 

• Country of Registration 
 

In the case of Other Entities then please specify and provide details of: 
 

• The type of organisation 
 

• Period of establishment 
 

• County of establishment 
 
 

• A brief history (maximum 400 words) of the Candidate (and in the case of a 
Consortium the Lead Organisation) including length of time trading, ownership 
structure; any significant changes (over last 3 years or any pending); changes in 
financial structure; prospective take-over bids, buy-outs etc in the public domain. 

 
 
2 Consortium Information (if applicable) 
 
Where the Candidate is a Consortium then please additionally provide: 
 

2.1 the above Basic Information in respect of each key Consortium Member that will play 
a significant role in delivering the development under the proposed contract; and 

 
2.2 details of the role of each Consortium Member in delivering the development under 

the proposed contract and their relationship with the Lead Organisation and other 
Consortium Members (including (but not limited to) any proposed contractual 
arrangements and ownership structures). 

 
 

Page 41



Appendix 3 

14 of 22 

PART 2 - SECTION 2 – FINANCIAL AND TECHNICAL INFORMATION 
 
3 FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Candidates must provide the financial information requested in this section. 
 
In the case of a Candidate that is a Consortium then the following financial information should be 
provided by the Lead Organisation and also each of the key Consortium Members who will play a 
significant role in the performance of the services under the proposed contract. 
 

Bankers Statement 
 

3.1 Please provide the name and address of the principal banker together with a banker’s 
reference for the Candidate confirming the period and nature of relationship together 
with details of the Candidate’s credit status. 

 
Statutory Accounts and Statements of Business Turnover 

 
3.2 Please provide a statement of the Candidate’s overall business turnover in respect of 

each year in the last three financial years. 
 

3.3 Please provide a statement of the Candidate’s turnover in respect of each year in the 
last three financial years in relation to similar regeneration/development opportunities 
to those to be provided under this procurement. Please state details of individual 
turnover or Consortia Aggregate. 

 
The minimum annual turnover in order for the PQQ to be compliant is 20 million 
GBP. 

 
In addition, the indicative transaction size of this project as a ratio of turnover (of 
individual or an aggregate if the Candidate is a Consortium) will be considered when 
assessing this element of the selection criteria. The Authority will take into account the 
risk of financial dependency on this project. 

 
3.4 Candidates are required to evidence the statements of turnover referred to above and 

provide further financial information by providing the following statutory accounts (as 
required to be published under the laws of the relevant State in which the economic 
operator is established) and details for the Candidate: 

 
3.4.1 In the case of a Company 

 
Audited accounts for the last three financial years.  If the most recent 
accounts submitted are for a year ended more than 10 months ago 
then please also enclose the latest set of management accounts. 

 
3.4.2 In the case of a Partnership 

 
Two copies of the accounts, audited if available, for the last 3 years.  
If the accounts submitted are for a year ended more than 10 months 
ago then please also enclose the latest set of management accounts.  
The accounts should include: 

 
• Profit and Loss Account; 
• Balance Sheet; 

Page 42



Appendix 3 

15 of 22 

• Full notes to the accounts; 
• Directors Report/Managing Partners Report (if available); and 
• Auditor’s Report (if accounts are audited). 

 
 

3.5 Please provide an abstract of key data from the accounts stating the total business 
turnover, gearing, gross profit margin, net profit margin, current ratio, debt to assets, 
Turnover, Net assets. 

 
Statement of any contingent liability or loss 

 
3.6 Please confirm whether the Candidate, as at the last reporting date, have any 

contingent liability or loss (where not otherwise reported) which would require 
disclosure in accordance with International Accounting Standard 10. 

 
Details of Litigation 

 
3.7 Please provide details of any material, pending or threatened litigation or other legal 

proceedings (where not otherwise reported) against the Candidate where the claim is 
of a value in excess of £10,000. 

 
Evidence of Insurance 

 
3.8 Please provide copies of insurance certificates held, in particular, certificates are 

required for public liability insurance and employers’ liability insurance. 
 

Candidates (and in the case of Consortia the Lead Organisations) are required 
to hold public liability insurance at the time of PQQ submission with a minimum 
cover of £5m in order for the PQQ to be compliant.  
 
In the case of Consortia, where the design team is identified, each member of 
the design team is required to hold professional indemnity insurance at the 
time of PQQ submission with a minimum cover of £10m in order for the PQQ to 
be compliant 
 

 
Other Appropriate Information 
 

3.9 A Candidate/Lead Organisation wishing to rely on the capacities of other entities, 
members in a group or Consortium Members for the purposes of the economic and 
financial standing assessment should provide additional details of those capacities 
and how they will be made available to the Candidate (e.g. banker’s reference, last 
three financial year audited / signed accounts for any proposed guarantor and parent 
company guarantee details etc.). 

 
 
 

Page 43



Appendix 3 

16 of 22 

4 TECHNICAL INFORMATION 
 

Key Personnel 
 

4.1 Please provide details of all key personnel of the Candidate that will be involved in 
organising the performance and delivery of the development contract using the 
template below: 

 
Name of 
Individual 

Specialist Area 
and role in the 
Candidate 

Employer Qualifications Appointed or to 
be appointed 

     
     
     
 

CVs should be attached in your response for all individuals listed. 
 

Please limit your response to this question (including CVs) to no more than 5 
pages of A4. 

 
 

Similar Projects Experience 
 

4.2 Please identify three similar projects which the Candidate has delivered in the past 5 
years and believes demonstrates their capabilities to deliver this particular 
development recognising the issues identified in the Supplementary Planning 
Document (”SPD”) 
http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/site/scripts/download_info.php?fileID=2164 and 
development brief such as car parking, historical context, conservation area, relation 
to town centre, road infrastructure, bus node, public space, sustainability and 
affordable housing. 

 
Please provide details of: 

 
• Name of customer organisation to whom services are being or were 

provided (and whether such customer organisation was public or private) 
• The date of the contract and contract period 
• The value of the contract 
• Nature of the scheme 
• Project status (e.g. completed or projected completion) 
• Specific relevance of project cited to this opportunity 

 
Please provide contact details (name, position, address, phone number and e-mail) 
for each of the customer organisation (or alternatively where relevant, the public 
sector partner, planning department, landowner or end user etc.) whose contract is 
referred to in order for the Authority to take up references to verify the submitted 
information and the quality of the service if necessary. 

 
Please limit your response to this question to no more than 5 pages of A4. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



Appendix 3 

17 of 22 

Design Quality 
 

4.3 The Authority is requiring a high quality scheme that reflects the surrounding 
environment. Please provide details of 2 or 3 schemes produced by the Candidate (or 
key Consortium Members) that are noted for their quality of design, noting any awards 
won or standards attained for each scheme. 

 
 

Please limit your response to this question to no more than five pages of A4. 
 
 

Sustainability Approach 
 

4.4 Sustainability is a key requirement for the development. Please provide details of the 
Candidates experience of delivering environmentally friendly construction, design and 
whole life cycle approach to buildings noting any awards won or standards attained 
for implemented schemes. 

 
Please limit your response to this question to no more than three pages of A4. 

 
 

Health and Safety Approach 
 

4.5 Please provide a copy of the Candidate’s (and in the case of a Consortium that of the 
Consortium Member responsible for co-ordinating and performing the construction 
works and any facilities maintenance services) health & safety policy and/or 
statement. 

 
Has the Candidate (and in the case of a Consortium the Consortium Member 
responsible for co-ordinating and performing the construction works and any facilities 
maintenance services) been issued any enforcement notices or been subjected to any 
prosecutions in relation to Health & Safety in the last 3 years? 

 
If so, please provide details, including details of subsequent changes to prevent 
reoccurrence. 

 
Please limit your response to this question to no more than 400 words. 
 
This is a Pass/Fail Compliance Requirement that needs to be satisfied if for 
your PQQ to be scored. 
 
In order to pass, the Bidder needs to: 
 
Demonstrate to the Authority that the Authority should not, in its reasonable 
opinion, have any material concerns that the bidder is not meeting its Health & 
Safety duties. 

  
 

Previous Contract Performance 
 

4.6 Has the Candidate (and in the case of a Consortium each of the key Consortium 
Members that will play a significant role in delivering the development under the 
proposed contract) ever had any contract terminated for poor performance within the 
last 5 years?  If so then please provide details of the contract and the circumstances 
surrounding termination. 

Page 45



Appendix 3 

18 of 22 

 
Please limit your response to this question to no more than 400 words. 

 
 

Finance Raising Ability and Experience 
 

4.7 Please provide information as to how the Candidate intends to obtain and secure 
finance for its delivery of the development. Please state source of funds, indicative 
terms and any (anticipated) covenant requirements. If applicable please provide an in 
principle letter of support from all relevant third party funders. 

 
Please provide details of your track record in being able to raise finance for similar 
regeneration/development opportunities in the past 5 years. 
 
Your answer should demonstrate the ability to raise finance for a minimum capital 
investment in the region of 20 million GBP to deliver the project. 
 
Please limit your response to this question to no more than three pages of A4. 

 
 
 
 

Page 46



Appendix 3 

19 of 22 

PART 2 - SECTION 3 – STATEMENT 
 
STATEMENT OF GOOD STANDING – CRITERIA FOR REJECTION OF CANDIDATES - in 
accordance with Article 45 of Directive 2004/18/EC/Regulation 23 of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2006 
 
Name of Candidate ("Contractor"): 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
In the case of a Consortium, each Consortium Member must complete and return this 
Statement. 
 
If the Contractor is not in a position to confirm any of the statements below then full details 
of the relevant incident and circumstances should be provided and set out in a separate 
Annex as part of your PQQ submission response. 
 
We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge, the Contractor is not in breach of the provisions of 
Article 45 of Directive 2004/18/EC/Regulation 23 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2006 and in 
particular that: 
 
1 The Contractor or its directors or any other person who has powers of representation, 

decision or control of the Contractor has not been convicted of any of the following 
offences: 

 
1.1 conspiracy within the meaning of section 1 of the Criminal Law Act 1977 where that 

conspiracy relates to participation in a criminal organisation as defined in Article 2(1) 
of Council Joint Action 98/733/JHA; 

 
1.2 corruption within the meaning of section 1 of the Public Bodies Corrupt Practices 

Act 1889 or section 1 of the prevention of Corruption Act 1906; 
 

1.3 the offence of bribery; 
 

1.4 fraud, where the offence relates to fraud affecting the financial interests of the 
European Communities as defined by Article 1 of the Convention relating to the 
protection of the financial interests of the European Union, within the meaning of: 

 
1.4.1 the offence of cheating the Revenue; 

 
1.4.2 the offence of conspiracy to defraud; 

 
1.4.3 fraud or theft within the meaning of the Theft Act 1968 and the Theft 

Act 1978; 
 

1.4.4 fraudulent trading within the meaning of section 458 of the 
Companies Act 1985; 

 
1.4.5 defrauding the Customs within the meaning of the Customs and 

Excise Management Act 1979 and the Value Added Tax Act 1994; 
 

1.4.6 an offence in connection with taxation in the European Community 
within the meaning of section 71 of the Criminal Justice Act 1993; or 

 

Page 47



Appendix 3 

20 of 22 

1.4.7 destroying defacing or concealing of documents or procuring the 
extension of a valuable security within the meaning of section 20 of 
the Theft Act 1968; 

 
1.4.8 money laundering within the meaning of the Money Laundering 

Regulations 2003; or  
 

1.4.9 any other offence within the meaning of Article 45(1) of the Public 
Sector Directive. 

 
2 None of the following sub-paragraphs 2.1 to 2.9 apply to the Contractor: 
 

2.1 being an individual is bankrupt or has had a receiving order or administration order or 
bankruptcy restrictions order made against him or has made any composition or 
arrangement with or for the benefit of his creditors or has made any conveyance or 
assignment for the benefit of his creditors or appears unable to pay or to have no 
reasonable prospect of being able to pay, a debt within the meaning of section 268 of 
the Insolvency Act 1986, or article 242 of the Insolvency (Northern Ireland) Order 
1989, or in Scotland has granted a trust deed for creditors or become otherwise 
apparently insolvent, or is the subject of a petition presented for sequestration of his 
estate, or is the subject of any similar procedure under the law of any other state; 

 
2.2 being a partnership constituted under Scots law has granted a trust deed or become 

otherwise apparently insolvent, or is the subject of petition presented for sequestration 
of its estate; 

 
2.3 being a company or any other entity within the meaning of section 255 of the 

Enterprise Act 2002 has passed a  resolution or is the subject of an order by the court 
for the company’s winding up otherwise than for the purpose of bona fide 
reconstruction or amalgamation, or has had a receiver, manager or administrator on 
behalf of a creditor appointed in respect of the company’s business or any part thereof 
or is the subject of the above procedures or is the subject of similar procedures under 
the law of any other state; 

 
2.4 has been convicted of a criminal offence relating to the conduct of his business or 

profession; 
 

2.5 has committed an act of grave misconduct in the course of his business or profession; 
 

2.6 has not fulfilled obligations relating to the payment of social security contributions 
under the law of any part of the United Kingdom or of the relevant State in which the 
Contractor is established; 

 
2.7 has not fulfilled obligations relating to the payment of taxes under the law of any part 

of the United Kingdom or of the relevant State in which the Contractor is established; 
 

2.8 is guilty of serious misrepresentation in providing any information required of him 
under Regulation 23 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2006; 
 

2.9 is not licensed in the relevant State in which he is established or is not a member of 
an organisation in that relevant State when the law of that relevant State prohibits the 
provision of services to be provided under the contract by a person who is not so 
licensed or who is not such a member. 

 

Page 48



Appendix 3 

21 of 22 

3 Where applicable, the Contractor is registered with the appropriate trade or professional 
register(s) in the EU member state where it is established (as set out in Annex IX B of 
Directive 2004/18/EC) under the conditions laid down by that member state. 

 
 
Signed  …………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Name   …………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Position …………………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
 

Page 49



Appendix 3 

22 of 22 

 
SECTION 4 – CHECKLIST 
 
Candidate's Name……………………………………………………………………… 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Question 

No.  Enclosed N/A 
1 Basic Information   
2 Consortium Information   

 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Submissions in relation to Economic & Financial Standing 
 
Question 

No.  Enclosed N/A 
3.1 Banker's Details and Banker’s Reference   

3.2 to 3.5 Statutory Accounts and Statements of Business Turnover   
3.6 Statement of any contingent liability or loss   
3.7 Details of Litigation   
3.8 Evidence of Insurance   
3.9 Other Appropriate Information   

 
TECHNICAL INFORMATION 
 
Submissions in relation to Technical and Professional Ability 
 
Question 

No.  Enclosed N/A 
4.1 Response to Key Personnel Question (and CV 

attachments) 
  

4.2 Response to Similar Projects Experience Question (with 
reference details) 

  
4.3 Response to Design Quality Question   
4.4 Response to Sustainability Approach Question   
4.5 Response to Health and Safety Approach Question (and 

health and safety policy/statement) 
  

4.6 Response to Previous Contract Performance Question   
4.7 Finance Raising Ability and Experience   

 
STATEMENT OF GOOD STANDING 
 

 Enclosed N/A 
Signed Statement(s) of Good Standing (including where applicable 
from all Consortium Members) 

  
Where applicable, Annex submissions relating to Statement(s) of Good 
Standing 

  
 
 

Page 50



 

   
$etomtogu.doc Page 1 of 6 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 8 February 2011 

Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy - Publication version public 
consultation v1 

 
 

Accountable member Leader,  Councillor Steve Jordan  
Accountable officer Strategic Land Use Manager, Tracey Crews  
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Environment  

Ward(s) affected All wards 
Key Decision Yes  
Executive summary Gloucestershire County Council is the waste planning authority for the county. The 

County Council has prepared the Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy (WCS) 
Publication version for public consultation from Monday 13th December until 
Monday 7th February 2011.   Once adopted, it will provide the planning framework 
for waste management across the county for the period 2012 to 2027 and will form 
part of the Waste Development Framework and part of the statutory development 
plan for Cheltenham. 
This publication stage follows on from previous stages of consultation: 
Issues and Options (2006); Preferred Options (2008) and Site Options 
(2009); with targeted ongoing consultation between each stage.   
The publication version is broadly in line with the earlier strategies and the 
comments previously submitted by Council.  The WCS has allocated four strategic 
sites, none of which fall within Cheltenham Borough, however there are two sites in 
proximity at Wingmoor Farm.  Aside from these allocations, the WCS places 
emphasis on a policy based approach to be used in determining future allocations.  
This stage of consultation will only allow representations discussing the 
“soundness” of the document rather than the merits of individual sites and 
falls within Regulation 27 of the Town and Country Planning Regulations 
which seeks views primarily on whether the plan is:  
� Legally compliant, and  
� Sound. To be considered sound it must be, justified; effective and 

consistent with national policy. 
 
Members are requested to support the formal publication of the 
Gloucestershire WCS, subject to appropriate consideration of the issues 
raised in the response.  

Recommendations That the Cabinet approve the appended consultation response for 
submission to Gloucestershire County Council.  

 

Agenda Item 6
Page 51



 

   
$etomtogu.doc Page 2 of 6 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

Financial implications No financial implications associated with this report, however, the siting of 
waste treatment facilities could have a significant impact on the transport 
costs accrued by the Operations Division. 
Contact officer Andrew Powers: 
Andrew.Powers@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264121 

Legal implications When adopted, the Waste Core Strategy will form part of the statutory 
development plan for Cheltenham. 
Contact officer: Jonathan Noel      Jonathan.noel@tewkesbury.gov.uk  
01242 77 5117 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None  
Contact officer:       ,                @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 

Key risks No relevant corporate risks.  
No divisional risks identified 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The principles of the WCS support the aspirations of Objective 1, 
Enhancing and Protecting our Environment, of the Corporate Strategy and 
the longer term ambition of Promoting Sustainable Living, of the 
Sustainable Community Strategy  

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The allocation of strategic disposal sites within the WCS at Wingmoor Farm, within 
close proximity to existing facilities and close to collection areas offers advantages 
in terms of reducing carbon emissions and provides operational and financial 
efficiencies.  However, this needs to be balanced against the impact of such sites 
on the existing, and potential, communities living in close proximity.  
Whilst not within Cheltenham’s administrative area, there are likely to be impacts 
on biodiversity associated with the allocation of the two strategic waste 
management facilities at Wingmoor Farm. To the south of Wingmoor Farm lies 
Wingmoor Farm Meadow which is a key wildlife site.  
Biodiversity has been considered by Gloucestershire County Council in the 
preparation of the WCS and will be a consideration in the determination of 
planning applications for waste facilities.  
A Habitats Regulation Assessment has been prepared alongside the WCS which 
assesses the potential impacts of the plan on protected European species and 
habitats/ 

Page 52



 

   
$etomtogu.doc Page 3 of 6 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

1. Background 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the Waste Core Strategy (WCS) Publication 

Version consultation document and seek approval for the submission of the appended 
consultation response.  

1.2 Gloucestershire County Council is the waste planning authority for the county. As part of the 
Minerals and Waste Development Framework, Gloucestershire County Council has prepared the 
Gloucestershire WCS Publication version for public consultation from Monday 13th December 
until Monday 7th February 2011.   Once adopted, it will provide the planning framework for waste 
management across the county for the period 2012 to 2027 and sets out: the key issues; the 
vision for Gloucestershire for 2027; the objectives to be achieved; and the strategy for achieving 
them, including the allocation of sites.  Once adopted it will form part of the Minerals and Waste 
Development Framework and part of the statutory development plan for Cheltenham. 

1.3 This publication stage follows on from previous stages of consultation: Issues and Options (2006); 
Preferred Options (2008) and Site Options (2009); with targeted ongoing consultation between 
each stage.   

1.4 The WCS was originally intended to be submitted for Examination in Public in late 2008. 
However, changes in Government guidance resulted in the need for the strategy to include 
strategic sites, as such the County Council undertook the additional site options consultation in 
2009.   

1.5 During the Site Options consultation the importance of submitting specific comments was 
stressed as the next formal stage of consultation at the Pre-submission stage (i.e. this stage) will 
only allow representations discussing the “soundness” of the document rather than the merits of 
individual sites.  This current consultation falls within Regulation 27 of the Town and Country 
Planning Regulations and seeks views primarily on whether the plan is:  
• Legally compliant, and  
• Sound. To be considered sound it must be, justified; effective and consistent with national 
policy 

 
1.6 Cheltenham Borough Council’s previous representations to the Preferred Options consultation 

and the Site Options consultation can be viewed online, see links contained within Background 
documents.   

1.7 Cheltenham Borough Council was broadly supportive of the vision and strategy within the 
Preferred Options document which remain similar and the majority of our policy preferences have 
been progressed into the final version of the document, with the exception of the comment made 
in relation to WPO10, now Core Policy WCS8.  The council had considered that the chosen 
option would provide an increasing role for local planning authorities in the planning of waste 
sites, for which local planning authorities would not necessarily have the relevant skills to perform.  
However, WCS8 allows for consultation with the Waste Planning Authority and therefore when 
dealing with applications the council will need to look to the county for advice.  This is considered 
acceptable by the Development Control Manager. 

1.8 In terms of the Site Options consultation, the Council was broadly supportive of the general 
principle that waste facilities should be located in proximity to waste arisings and accepts this will 
necessitate the majority of waste treatment facilities being located within ‘Zone C’.  With Zone C 
focusing on the central area of Gloucestershire, close to the main urban areas along the M5, 
including Cheltenham and Gloucester. The Council had previously suggested that sites should 
also be considered outside of this zone. This has been addressed by the inclusion of a criteria 
based policy (Core Policy WCS4) to address non strategic sites arising both within and outside of 
Zone C and for if one of the four strategic sites does not progress within Zone C.   
 

Page 53



 

   
$etomtogu.doc Page 4 of 6 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

1.9 The four strategic sites identified within Zone C are: 
• Wingmoor Farm East, Bishops Cleeve (mainly Commercial & Industrial (C&I) waste with 

potential for Municipal Solid Waste (MSW)) 
• Wingmoor Farm West (A & B), Bishops Cleeve (primarily MSW with potential for C&I) 
• Javelin Park, Haresfield (primarily MSW, but with C&I potential) 
• Land at Moreton Valence (primarily C&I, but with MSW potential) 
 

1.10 Gloucestershire County Council has recognised the opportunity at Javelin Park to provide a ‘one 
site solution’ to residual waste.  Cheltenham Borough Council does not necessarily support this 
approach, as considers the significance of journey times and distances from collection point to 
disposal point as an important factor in reducing carbon emissions and making operational and 
financial efficiencies. The County Council owns a large section of this site.  If the decision is taken 
to have a single site to accommodate residual waste recovery, then this needs to be supported by 
the provision of appropriate waste transfer facilities elsewhere in the county.  Core Policy WCS4 
does not make reference to the possibility of a one site solution to residual waste recovery, but it 
is recommended that the policy or supporting text be expanded to include a requirement to 
provide waste transfer stations should such an approach be explored.  

1.11 The Council also previously commented on the right to comment in detail on site specific 
proposals at the application stage, as the WCS does not specify the type of waste treatment 
facilities proposed and as such potential hazards could not be properly assessed.  This remains 
the position within this Publication Stage, the County Council is ‘technology neutral’ and therefore 
has no preference for one technology/process over another, the main consideration is that any 
site identified is suitable for that use and this is generally established at the planning application 
stage.  The council previously stated that it reserved the right to comment in specific detail at the 
planning stage and this position is maintained and will be reiterated in the response for clarity.  
The Council would have very significant concerns if support for a specific site implied the 
processing of hazardous waste, and/or the production of toxic end products in a location close to 
centres of population. 

1.12 The council also retains previous concerns over the potential proximity of residential areas to 
Wingmoor Farm East and West and will also reiterate previous comments for clarity and reserves 
the right to further comment at planning application stage.  In particular, in relation to any potential 
health impacts on the use/increased use of the site on local communities, taking account of the 
most up to date information contained within the Wingmoor Waste Treatment Plant and Landfill 
Sites Community Health Impact Assessment (HIA).  

1.13 The Waste Planning Authority is considering a planning application to extend the life of the landfill 
at Wingmoor Farm. Due to be determined in Spring 2011, the granting of planning permission 
would ensure significant capacity for hazardous waste in Gloucestershire for approximately 22 
years. In the event that planning permission was not granted, or subsequent applications were 
forthcoming, Policy WCS6 would be used primarily to determine an application for hazardous 
waste. The WCS is supportive of proposals to recycle and recover hazardous waste, with 
disposal as a last option, where it can be demonstrated that the proposal is ‘environmentally 
acceptable.’ As mentioned above, the Council would have very significant concerns if support for 
a specific site implied the processing of hazardous waste, and/or the production of toxic end 
products in a location close to centres of population. 

1.14 In terms of the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) work, it will be necessary to ensure that these allocated 
sites are reflected on the Proposals Map.   

1.15 Gloucestershire County Council will consider all representations made on the publication version 
of the WCS and then formally submit the WCS to the Secretary of State in April 2011.  An 
Idependent examination of the document will be carried out by the Planning Inspectorate to 
explore whether the document is legally compliant and sound.  It is anticipated that 
Gloucestershire County Council will adopt the WCS in January 2012.  
 

Page 54



 

   
$etomtogu.doc Page 5 of 6 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The current consultation seeks views on the legal compliance and soundness of the document.  

Council has responded to two previous consultations and the majority of the Council’s 
representations have been adequately addressed.  Where representations have not been able to 
be incorporated, particularly with reference to site specific comments, the council retains the 
ability to comment at the planning application stage. Previous comments in relation to strategic 
sites have been reiterated within this response for clarity.  

2.2 The policies and proposals within the WCS are in accordance with national policy relating to 
waste management and are soundly based. 

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 None at this stage. Consultation on the WCS is primarily related to the legal compliance and 

soundness of the consultation, to which there are no objections.  The opportunity to comment on 
strategy and site locations was provided through previous stages of consultation.  

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 The Gloucestershire WCS Publication version has been out for public consultation from Monday 

13th December until Monday 7th February 2011.  Cheltenham Borough Council has been given 
an extension in order for the consultation response to be agreed by Cabinet. 

4.2 Internal consultation on proposed consultation response has been undertaken with relevant 
cabinet members; Assistant Director – Operations; Development Control Manager and Climate 
Change and Sustainability Officer.   

5. Performance management –monitoring and review 
5.1 Gloucestershire County Council has responsibility for monitoring performance against the WCS. 

Report author Contact officer:    Claire Cullen-Jones,  
Claire.cullen-jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 216725 

Appendices 1. Draft consultation response 
2. Map of Zone C  

Page 55



 

   
$etomtogu.doc Page 6 of 6 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

Background information 1. The Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy, Publication version 
December 2010 
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/index.cfm?articleid=17991 

2. Waste Core Strategy Site Options consultation 2009 
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/index.cfm?articleid=21884 

3. Cheltenham Borough Council’s response to Waste Core Strategy 
Site Options consultation 2009 
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/Data/Cabinet/20091208/Age
nda/2009%2012%2008%20CAB%207.2%20Appendix.pdf 

4. Waste Core Strategy Preferred Options 2008 
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/index.cfm?articleid=17990 

5. Cheltenham Borough Council Response to Waste Core Strategy 
Preferred Options 2008 
https://democracy.cheltenham.gov.uk/Data/Cabinet/20080311/Age
nda/2008%2003%2011%20Minerals%20and%20Waste%20Core%
20Strategies%20-
%20Preferred%20options%20consultation%20App.pdf 

 

Page 56



Appendix 1 

 
DRAFT CBC RESPONSE TO GLOUCESTERSHIRE WASTE CORE STRATEGY – 
PUBLICATION VERSION   
 
Cheltenham Borough Council wishes to make the following comments in relation to 
the Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy (WCS) – Publication Version.  
 
Recognising that this consultation is primarily aimed at assessing the soundness and 
legal compliance, Cheltenham Borough Council has no objection to the legal 
compliance or soundness of the Core Strategy but would like to make the following 
comments:  
 
Strategic Objective 2 – Re-use, Recycling and Composting  
Whilst the council is supportive of the strategic objective of achieving at least 60% of 
household waste to be recycled/composted by 2020 with an aspiration of achieving 
70%, this will also have operational implications for both the County and the districts 
in terms of levels of vehicles and depots required and the promotion of the 
reduce/recycle/re-use agenda.  Any increase in re-use, recycling and composting will 
reduce the amount of residual waste and therefore will have implications on the 
amount, location and type of resource required across the county.  Therefore, any 
proposals should ensure that they are sustainable in the long term, as well as the 
short term, as would not wish to see a position where new plants become unviable 
due to insufficient waste thus resulting in the need to import significant amounts from 
elsewhere in the country.  
 
Core Policy WCS4 – Other Recovery (including energy recovery) 
The Council continues to support the general principle that waste facilities should be 
located in close proximity to waste arisings and accepts that this will necessitate the 
majority of strategic waste treatment facilities being located in the “Zone C”.  Whilst 
the allocation of disposal sites close to collection areas offers advantages in terms of 
reducing carbon emissions and provides operational and financial efficiencies, this 
needs to be balanced against the impact of such sites on the existing, and potential, 
communities living in close proximity. 
The Council welcomes the criteria based approach to additional/alternative sites that 
may come forward in the future for strategic and non-strategic sites. Any new sites, 
occurring as a result of the criteria based policy, either of strategic or non-strategic 
nature should consider the journey times and distances from collection point to 
disposal as significant savings in cost and CO2 emissions can be achieved through 
reduced vehicle mileage. 
The Council acknowledges that the WCS is ‘technology neutral’ and therefore does 
not include reference to specific technologies, as such, Cheltenham Borough Council 
has been restricted to commenting on the principle of waste treatment on strategic 
sites and reserves the right to further comment to specific uses at a later date and at 
the planning application stage. Cheltenham Borough Council, whilst recognising the 
benefits that result in terms of economies of scale and carbon savings that result 
from utilising central sites close to waste arisings, would have very significant 
concerns if support for a specific site implied the processing of hazardous waste, 
and/or the production of toxic end products in a location close to centres of 
population. Cheltenham Borough Council therefore wishes to reiterate concerns over 
the potential proximity to any possible North West Urban Extension to the hazardous 
waste plant at Wingmoor Farm and will take account of the most up to date 
information contained within the Wingmoor Waste Treatment Plant and Landfill Sites 
Community Health Impact Assessment (HIA). 

Page 57



Appendix 1 

 
Cheltenham Borough Council does not necessarily support the County’s potential 
approach for Javelin Park to provide a ‘one site solution’ to residual waste, as 
consider the significance of journey times and distances from collection point to 
disposal point as an important factor in reducing carbon emissions and making 
operational and financial efficiencies. If the decision is taken to have a single site to 
accommodate residual waste recovery, then this needs to be supported by the 
provision of appropriate waste transfer facilities elsewhere in the county.  Core Policy 
WCS4 does not make reference to the possibility of a one site solution to residual 
waste recovery, but it is recommended that the policy or supporting text be expanded 
to include a requirement to provide waste transfer stations should such an approach 
be explored.  
Wingmoor Farm East and West 
 
In principle, the Council continues to support the use of existing waste treatment 
sites, as opposed to building new sites, however wish to reiterate the following in 
relation to Wingmoor Farm.   
 
• The proximity to any possible urban extension at North West Cheltenham1 

needs to be considered and, in practice, may prove unacceptably close. The 
Council reserves the right to object to specific uses on this site. The specific 
type of facility promoted on the site will need to take into account the potential 
impact on existing residential properties and those that may come forward in 
the future.  

 
• Development of this site may have impacts on the Wingmoor Farm Meadow 

Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust Reserve and suitable mitigation measures may 
be required at the application stage. 

 
• Development of this site has the potential to increase traffic on the A435, 

A4019 and A40 in and around Cheltenham. This increase in traffic needs to 
be considered in conjunction with increases which could result from the 
proposed urban extension at North West Cheltenham. 

 
• Consideration will need to be given to the potential for increased surface 

water flooding resulting from development of the site. This needs to be 
considered in conjunction with the proposed urban extension to the south of 
the site. 

 
Cheltenham Borough Council reserves the right to further comment at the planning 
application stage of the strategic sites identified by the WCS  
 

                                                 
1 The Council would like to make it clear that any references to urban extensions as 
proposed by the draft Regional Spatial Strategy for the South West (RSS) do not 
imply that they are supported and the Council remains opposed to significant 
elements of the RSS. The Council is specifically opposed to the construction of the 
proposed NW extension, for reasons which include its proximity to existing and 
proposed waste treatment sites. 
 

Page 58



Ma
p s

ho
wi
ng

 Zo
ne

 C
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  A

pp
en

dix
 2 

Gl
ou

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 W
as
te 

Co
re 

St
rat

eg
y 

 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$rb54f22p.doc Page 1 of 5 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 8 February 2011 

Membership of South West Councils 
 
 

Accountable member Leader, Councillor Steve Jordan 
Accountable officer Assistant Chief Executive, Jane Griffiths 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy and Business Improvement 

Ward(s) affected None 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary The council is a member authority of South West Councils (SW Councils) 

and pays a subscription to support the running of a secretariat.  Given the 
current budget situations of member councils, reductions in government 
funding to the regions and indeed the demise of many regional structures, 
South West Councils are requesting councils to confirm whether or not they 
wish to remain a member. The council’s liabilities have been set out if we 
choose to leave along with future subscription levels if we wish to remain a 
member.   
Given the recognition of the need to reduce costs and that regional 
structures are changing consideration has been given to creating a smaller 
organisation.  The proposal is to establish an ‘Employers Plus’ option which 
would be in a  position to provide ongoing human resources advisory 
support and networking opportunities with other councils but would not be 
undertaking the range of activities that are currently provided through the 
current model.   There is a meeting of the SW Councils Resources and 
Management Committee on 11 February and we have been requested to 
provide confirmation as to our position. 

Recommendations The Chief Executive be authorised to sign the letter in appendix 3 to 
this report on the basis that further clarification is provided, to his 
satisfaction, on the proposed mechanism for the apportionment of 
liabilities and assets and subject to consultation with the Leader of the 
Council, the Cabinet Member Finance, Borough Solicitor and the Chief 
Financial Officer. 
That subject to above, the South West Councils’ Secretariat be advised 
that Cheltenham Borough Council is in favour of pursuing the 
Employers Plus option and will enter into membership of new 
arrangements on that basis, subject to them being viable and the 
annual subscription costs not exceeding those currently paid. 

 

Agenda Item 7
Page 61



 

   

$rb54f22p.doc Page 2 of 5 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

Financial implications The council has within its base budget £7,100 for subscriptions to the SW 
Councils and would therefore be able to meet the proposed subscription of 
£5,466 from this budget.  The financial liabilities of the proposal and 
options are set out in appendix XX of the report. 
Contact officer:           

Legal implications If the council, continues with the subscription, by signing the letter, as 
requested, the Council will be accepting the formula for the sharing of 
liabilities and surpluses as follows 
‘Any net liabilities or surpluses of the South West Council, South West 
Employers and South West Leaders shall be borne by or due to the 
members of the organisation. Each member shall be entitled to or liable 
for, as the case may be, a proportion of such amounts equivalent to the 
proportion of the total subscriptions payable by that member in the last full 
financial year prior to the assessment of surplus or liability. Members will 
note that this liability or entitlement may change over time and, therefore, 
imposes a financial risk which cannot be easily quantified. 
Specific legal advice is set out at exempt appendix 4 to this report (by 
virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972)   
Contact officer: Shirin Wotherspoon, Corporate Solicitor, Onelegal         
Shrin.Wotherspoon@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272017 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None directly arising from the report, however support and advice is 
provided on a range of HR issues including benchmarking policies and 
processes, which has added considerable value (see comment in Section 
4, and Risks).   
Contact officer: Amanda Attfield   
amanda.attfield@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264186 

Key risks As set out in the risk register 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

None 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 

Page 62



 

   

$rb54f22p.doc Page 3 of 5 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

1. Background 
1.1 Members in the South West have agreed it would be timely to review joint working arrangements 

in light of changes to Government policy and funding. Currently there are joint working Member 
structures in the South West supporting a number of functions:  

o South West Employers – providing the employers arm for regional discussion with the 
Unions. Staff providing specialist employment services and training . Members meet twice 
a year with the Unions, the Management Committee meets 3 times a year;  

o South West Councils – inclusive of all local authorities, membership reflective of size of 
authority and political proportionality. Provides forum for debate across authorities and 
lobbying on shared issues. Meets twice a year with a Business Committee meeting 
quarterly;  

o South West Leaders – an informal grouping of the County and Unitary Leaders with 
District representation (constitutionally the Executive arm of SW Councils) providing a 
joint forum for lobbying and sharing of information. Has been meeting quarterly.  

1.2 The SW Councils and SW Leaders Members share between them responsibility for the strategic 
direction and delivery of the work of the Regional Improvement and Efficiency Partnership.   

1.3 The integrated SW Secretariat was established to provide support for all the work of these 
organisations. This enabled the structure to be built on the SW Employers structure already in 
place in the region and enabled a streamlined and integrated workforce which has delivered 
substantial economies of scale.  Other regions have different structures, some continued to run 
completely separate entities with separate subscriptions and management structures for each.  

1.4 The SW Councils has identified the opportunity to create a smaller body “Employers Plus” which 
would provide the ongoing provision of the specialist employment services and income generation 
provided through South West Employers. In addition to this there would also be secretarial 
support for streamlined Member structures and Officer Networks. Details of the Member 
structures and Officer Networks are yet to be developed.  The total core cost of the ‘Employers 
Plus’ model is estimated at £270,000 per year which would be divided between remaining 
member authorities. 

1.5 SW Councils have obtained legal advice as to how any liabilities or assets would be dealt with 
should member authorities seek to resign and how these obligations would be apportioned.  The 
proposal is that apportionment would be based on a proportionate basis linked to the population 
that the member authority serves.  Some councils are keen to continue with a partnership 
arrangement and SW Councils have put forward proposals as to what each councils liabilities 
would be should they choose to leave and also what service and subscription would be should 
they choose to remain as members.   

1.6 The council has been advised that if it ceased to be a member from 31 March 2011 it would be 
liable to pay within 30 days of receipt of the invoice a sum of £44,186 which is the council’s 
apportioned liability based on current estimates.  The council within the draft budget papers has 
earmarked £54,000 of the LAA performance reward grant to meet any liability.   Should the 
council wish to remain a member the subscription payable would be £5,466, which can be met 
from the current budget for subscriptions. 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 The council have always participated in the work of the regional organisations and have found it 

useful to have supported both in terms of employment advice but also in terms of networking and 
support for key issues.  Attached at Appendix 2 is an outline of the work that the smaller 
secretariat would undertake to support activities along with a copy of the paperwork which the 

Page 63



 

   

$rb54f22p.doc Page 4 of 5 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

council would need to complete.  If the council remained as a member then it would need to 
understand that if the arrangements were to cease at some point in the future then it would have 
to meet any future obligations which may be greater than their share at this stage. 

2.2 Attached at appendix 4 is the legal advice received from Bevan Brittan on behalf of all the 
member organisations which sets out the rationale for apportionment of liabilities and the ongoing 
issues should members leave over time, and at appendix 5 a copy of the legal advice we have 
received from Onelegal.  Both appendices 4 and 5 are exempt appendices. 

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 The council could choose to resign its membership but it may then need to seek advice and 

support on HR matters from other sources. It may not benefit from reduced rates for training 
courses which are valuable and specific to local authority needs in the southwest, and it would 
lose the benefits of networking and lobbying.   

3.2 There is always the risk that given the current financial climate the number of councils remaining 
in membership would be insufficient to sustain a viable partnership organisation and if this was 
the case then we would need to meet the outstanding liabilities at that time. 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 Officers who use the resources and services offered by SW Councils have been consulted and 

they are of the opinion that continuing membership would be worthwhile. 
5. Performance management –monitoring and review 
5.1 As members of the partnership organisation it would be incumbent upon us to satisfy ourselves 

that we are getting value for money from the organisation and to ensure that any concerns 
regarding performance are fed through the formal channels. 

Report author Contact officer:  Jane Griffiths, Assistant Chief Executive, 
jane.griffiths@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 4126 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Outline proposals from SW Councils  
3. Letter from SW Councils 
4. Legal advice from solicitors appointed by SW Councils - exempt 
5. Legal advice from Onelegal – exempt 

Background information 1.  
 

Page 64



 

   
$rb54f22p.doc Page 5 of 5 Last updated 27 January 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1. If more members wish to 
leave than currently 
anticipated then it may be 
unsustainable to support a 
small shared officer function 
and we may have to meet 
our share of the liabilities of 
the organisation being 
wound up. 

ACE 18 
January 
2011 

2 3 6 Accept Money has been 
earmarked to meet our 
liability at this time. 

31 
March 
2011 

ACE P&P risk 
register 

2. If the council continues with 
membership then should the 
organisation be wound up at 
a future date then there is a 
risk that we may face greater 
liabilities than those currently 
outlined. 

ACE 18 
January 
2011 

3 3 9 Reduce Money has been 
earmarked to meet our 
liability at this time. 
The council will need to 
satisfy itself that the 
arrangements in place for 
future apportionment of 
liabilities and assets is 
fair 

31 
March 
2011 

ACE P&P risk 
register 

3. If the Council does not 
continue membership, the 
Human Resources 
benchmarking and advisory 
contribution would not be 
available and there may be 
capacity and/or cost issues 
in sourcing this in house, 
costs may increase due to 
the need to source advice 
from external means. 

AD 
HR & 
OD 

20th 
January 

3 3 9 Reduce  Assess capacity for 
benchmarking in house 
or via Gloucs HR Forum, 
CIPD, or Expert HR, and 
explore other means of 
sourcing advice re local 
government specific 
issues e.g. more use of 
One Legal, direct from 
Layden House, Expert 
HR. 

31 
March 
2011 

HR 
Manager, 
Operations  
 

HR Service 
Risk 
Register  

 

P
age 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

A MEMBER-LED LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ORGANISATION SPECIALISING IN: 

 
� HUMAN RESOURCE SERVICES 
� MEMBER AND OFFICER DEVELOPMENT 
� NEGOTIATION, CO-ORDINATION AND LOBBYING 

 
Membership benefits include: 
 

� Employers Advice Service:  access to independent, professionally  qualified and 
experienced specialists for HR advice including the provision of direct  support to 
Members on sensitive senior staff issues, Chief Executive appraisal etc 

 
� Advice on national terms and conditions including teachers 
 
� Additional consultancy support for challenging issues on a not-for-profit basis 

including Disciplinary investigations; Job Evaluation and Employment Tribunals etc 
 
� Bringing authorities together to influence policy development such as pay and 

pensions and undertake lobbying as appropriate on issues of concern and 
supporting SW voice on national LGA Executive. Facilitating relationships with 
national LGA, central Government etc 

 
� Support for  meetings of Leader Members and other Member networks as required 

e.g. Childrens Services portfolio holders; Scrutiny members etc  
 

� Up to 33% discount for all Members and Officers on events e.g. Topical 
Conferences held in the SW; Pension Managers Conferences 

 
� Briefing sessions and specialist networking sessions eg HR professional network 

providing opportunity for sharing of expertise and discussions on current HR issues 
 

� Support for Chief Executives to meet as required on issues of shared interest e.g. 
discussions on Health agenda 

 
� Supporting Member Development and broader improvement as appropriate 

 
� Subsidised access to advice and support on Member Development Charter and 

independent assessment process 
 

� Provision of confidential electronic discussion group  
 

� Qualified psychometric testing provision and discounted rates for authorities to 
access testing licences 

 
� Discount on access to E recruitment portal services 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
De

nn
ett

 H
ou

se
, 1
1 M

idd
le 
St
ree

t, T
au

nto
n, 
So

me
rse

t, T
A1

 1S
H 

Te
l: 0

18
23
 27

01
01
   F

ax
: 0

18
23
 42

52
00
 

ww
w.
sw

co
un

cil
s.g

ov
.uk
 

 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 
3 

   Cll
r S

tep
he
n J

ord
an
 

Le
ad
er 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Bo

rou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il 

4 P
rio
ry 
Me

ws
 

Sid
ne
y S

tre
et 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 

GL
52
 6D

J 
  11
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
11
 

  De
ar 

Ste
ph
en
 

 UP
DA

TE
 O
N 
FU

TU
RE

 JO
IN
T W

OR
KI
NG

 IN
 TH

E S
OU

TH
 W

ES
T 

 As
 yo

u k
no
w,
 fro

m 
ou
r le

tte
r o

f 2
6 N

ov
em

be
r a

nd
 su

bs
eq
ue
nt 
em

ail
 of
 21

 D
ec
em

be
r a

uth
ori
tie
s h

av
e b

ee
n a

sk
ed
 to
 co

nfi
rm

 by
 th
e 3

1 
Ja
nu

ary
 20

11
 w
he
the

r th
ey
 w
ish

 to
 co

nti
nu
e w

ith
 jo
int
 w
ork

ing
 an

d w
he
the

r th
ey
 w
ish

ed
 to
 co

ns
ide

r o
ng
oin

g s
ub
sc
rip
tio
n t
o a

 sm
all
, 

sh
are

d o
ffic

er 
str
uc
tur

e. 
 A 

for
m 
is 
en
clo

se
d f
or 

yo
u t
o c

on
firm

 th
e v

iew
 of
 yo

ur 
au
tho

rity
 by

 31
 Ja

nu
ary

. A
lso

 at
tac

he
d i
s a

 no
te 

co
nfi
rm

ing
 th
e s

ub
sc
rip
tio
n f
or 

yo
ur 

au
tho

rity
 fo
r n

ex
t y
ea
r a

nd
 th
e i
nd
ica

tiv
e l
iab

ility
 fo
r re

sig
nin

g m
em

be
rs.
 

 As
 a 
res

ult
 of
 th
e p

rov
isio

na
l re

sp
on
se
s w

e h
av
e c

on
clu

de
d t
ha
t th

ere
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 su

ffic
ien

t c
riti
ca
l m

as
s t
o m

ov
e f
orw

ard
 w
ith
 an

 
org

an
isa

tio
n s

up
po
rtin

g t
ho
se
 of
 us

 w
ho
 ch

os
e t
o s

ub
sc
rib
e. 
 H
ow

ev
er,

 so
me

 au
tho

riti
es
 re

ma
in 
un
ce
rta

in 
– t
o h

elp
 w
ith
 th
eir
 de

cis
ion

 
ma

kin
g i
t w

as
 fe
lt h

elp
ful
 to
 pr

od
uc
e t
he
 ve

ry 
sh
ort

 su
mm

ary
 of
 ke

y s
erv

ice
s t
ha
t w

ou
ld 
be
 pr

ov
ide

d a
nd
 th
is 
wa

s c
irc
ula

ted
 w
ith
 ou

r 

Page 69



 
 

em
ail
 bu

t is
 al
so
 en

clo
se
d. 
 W

e a
re 

als
o h

ap
py
 to
 m
ee
t a
uth

ori
tie
s a

nd
 di
sc
us
s t
he
 is
su
es
, a
nd
 Ph

il N
orr

ey
, C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e o

f D
ev
on
 

wh
o h

as
 be

en
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 ad

vic
e t
hro

ug
h t
he
 pr

oc
es
s i
s h

ap
py
 to
 di
sc
us
s w

ith
 yo

ur 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
. 

 In 
ter

ms
 of
 re

sig
na
tio
n, 
the

 di
sc
us
sio

ns
 w
e h

av
e h

ad
 ba

se
d o

n l
eg
al 
ad
vic

e, 
ha
ve
 be

en
 cl
ea
r th

at 
an
y d

ep
art

ing
 m
em

be
r m

us
t p
ay
 

the
ir s

ha
re 

of 
the

 lia
bil
itie

s b
efo

re 
the

ir r
es
ign

ati
on
 be

co
me

s e
ffe
cti
ve
.  W

e h
op
e i
t w

ill b
e p

os
sib

le 
to 
ma

na
ge
 th
is 
pro

ce
ss
 sm

oo
thl
y. 
 

Att
ac
he
d i
s a

 le
tte
r th

at 
ou
r la

wy
ers

 ha
ve
 dr

aft
ed
 se

ttin
g o

ut 
the

 po
sit
ion

 an
d s

ee
kin

g y
ou
r c
on
firm

ati
on
 of
 th
e p

os
itio

n a
nd
 th
e 

pro
ce
ss
. W

e a
lso

 en
clo

se
 th
e f
ull
 de

tai
led

 le
ga
l a
dv
ice

 as
 w
e f
elt
 it 
im
po
rta

nt 
to 
sh
are

 al
l th

is 
inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d a
vo
id 
ind

ivid
ua
l m

em
be
r 

au
tho

riti
es
 ha

vin
g t
o s

pe
nd
 re

so
urc

es
 on

 es
tab

lish
ing

 th
e p

os
itio

n i
nd
ivid

ua
lly.

 

Page 70



 
 

W
e a

re 
no
w 
se
ek
ing

 fir
m 
co
mm

itm
en
ts 
by
 31

 Ja
nu
ary

 so
 th
at 
the

 fu
tur

e a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 
ca
n b

e m
ov
ed
 fo
rw
ard

 at
 th
e m

ee
tin
g o

f th
e 

Re
so
urc

es
 an

d M
an
ag
em

en
t C

om
mi
tte
e m

ee
tin
g o

n 1
1 F

eb
rua

ry.
 Fo

llo
win

g t
ha
t m

ee
tin
g w

e a
re 

pro
po
sin

g t
o h

old
 a 
me

eti
ng
 of
 al
l 

on
go
ing

 m
em

be
r a

uth
ori
tie
s i
n M

arc
h t
o f
orm

all
y e

nd
ors

e t
he
 Bu

sin
es
s P

lan
 fo
r 2

01
2/1

3 a
nd
 to
 ag

ree
 on

go
ing

 m
em

be
r s
tru

ctu
res

 
wh

ich
 w
e h

av
e a

gre
ed
 in
 ou

r d
isc

us
sio

ns
 w
ith
 al
l th

e L
ea
de
rs 
an
d m

em
be
rs 
of 
SW

 C
ou
nc
ils,

 ne
ed
 to
 be

 re
vis

ite
d t
o b

e m
ad
e f
it f
or 

pu
rpo

se
. 

 Yo
urs

 si
nc
ere

ly 
  

 

An
gu
s C

am
pb
ell
 

Ch
air
 SW

 Le
ad
ers

 
Ha

rve
y S

igg
s 

Ch
air
 SW

 Em
plo

ye
rs 
 

Ala
n C

on
ne
tt  

Ch
air
 SW

 C
ou
nc
ils 

Page 71



 
 

To
 be

 co
mp

let
ed
 by

 31
 Ja

nu
ar
y 2

01
1  

 PL
EA

SE
 R
ET

UR
N 
TO

  R
OS

IE 
DE

NH
AM

, S
W
 Em

plo
ye
rs 
11
 M
ID
DL

E S
TR

EE
T, 

TA
UN

TO
N,
TA

1 1
SH

  
OR

 EM
AIL

 ro
sie

.de
nh
am

@
sw

co
un
cils

.go
v.u

k  
   Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Bo
ro
ug

h C
ou

nc
il 

   Do
es
 yo

ur
 au

tho
rit
y w

an
t to

 co
nti

nu
e w

ith
 a 
sm

all
, s
ha

red
 of

fic
er 

str
uc

tur
e f

un
de

d b
y s

ub
sc
rip

tio
n .

  
 

(N
B 
if t

he
 an

sw
er 

is 
NO

:  -
 pl

ea
se
 no

te 
tha

t y
ou

r a
uth

or
ity

 w
ill 
be

 
req

uir
ed

 to
 pa

y i
ts 

sh
are

 of
 th

e l
iab

ilit
ies

 re
fle

cti
ng

 le
ga

l a
dv

ice
) 

  
Ye

s 
we

 w
ish

 to
 co

nti
nu
e  
 

 
   
No

 w
e d

on
’t w

ish
 to
 co

nti
nu
e 

 
(pl

ea
se
 de

let
e a

s a
pp

ro
pr
iat

e) 
    

 
TH

AN
K 
YO

U 
 Ple

as
e r

etu
rn 

wit
h a

 fin
al 
de
cis

ion
 by

 31
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
11
 to
:   
RO

SIE
 D
EN

HA
M,
 SW

 Em
plo

ye
rs 
11
 M
ID
DL

E S
TR

EE
T, 

TA
UN

TO
N,
TA

1 
1S

H 
OR

 EM
AIL

 ro
sie

.de
nh
am

@
sw

co
un
cils

.go
v.u

k 
    

Page 72



Page 73By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



 Page 1 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 8 February 2011 
Council – 11 February 2011 

Section 25 Report 
Accountable member Cabinet Member for Community Development and Finance, John 

Webster 
Accountable officer Section 151 Officer, Mark Sheldon 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

all scrutiny committees 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary This report fulfils the requirement under Section 25 of the 2003 Local 

Government Act for the Section 151 Officer to make a report to the authority 
when it is considering its budget, council tax and housing rents covering the 
robustness of estimates and adequacy of reserves.  
The Act requires Councillors to have regard to the report in making 
decisions at the Council’s budget and council tax setting meeting.   

Recommendations 1. That Cabinet / Council consider this report in agreeing the 
budget and level of council tax for 2011/12. 

 
Financial implications  As contained in the report and appendices. 

Contact officer: Mark Sheldon.  
E-mail: mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264123 

Legal implications There is a legal requirement under Section 25 of the 2003 Local 
Government Act for the Section 151 to prepare a report to council. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis 
E-mail: peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

HR implications are outlined in the main budget report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy 
E-mail: julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264355 

Key risks See risk register at Appendix 1 of the main budget report. 

Agenda Item 8
Page 85



 Page 2 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

See main budget report. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

See main budget report. 

 
1. Background 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to fulfil the requirement under Section 25 of the 2003 Local 

Government Act for the Section 151 Officer to make a report to the authority when it is 
considering its budget, council tax and housing rents covering the robustness of estimates and 
adequacy of reserves. The Act requires Councillors to have regard to the report in making 
decisions at the Council’s budget and council tax setting meeting.   

2. Robustness of the estimates 
2.1 In drawing together the detailed revenue budgets for each service a number of assumptions and 

principles have been applied. In reviewing the overall robustness of the estimates these should be 
assessed. 
Inflation  

2.2 At the time of preparing the budget the inflation allowances built into the base figures for 2011/12 
were a reflection of the available indices with an allowance to reflect the expected trend into 2011. 
The September 2010 rates for the 'Consumer Prices Index' (CPI) was 3.1% and for the 'All Items 
excluding Mortgage Interest Payments' (RPIX) was 4.6%. The latest indices available for 
December 2010 are for CPI 3.7% and for RPIX 4.7%. Contract inflation has been allowed for at 
the appropriate contractual rate e.g. utilities budgets reflect negotiated rates. 

2.3 In line with previous practice, general inflation has not been provided for unless the relevant 
professional officer has indicated that there are inflationary pressures. Whilst this creates natural 
efficiency saving across the Council, it will be important to continue to monitor this policy to 
ensure that budgets are sufficient to provide services. 

2.4 I am confident that service managers have sufficient budgets to fund supplies and 
services based upon prevailing pay and price levels in 2011/12. 
Employee costs – pay / turnover 

2.5 In line with government policy, employee budgets for 2011/12 do not allow for a pay award but do 
allow for contractual incremental progression for some staff that are below the top of their grade. 
The net cost of service assumes an employee turnover saving of around 3% of gross pay budget 
which equates to an estimated annual saving of c£400,000. Based on previous year’s experience 
this has been achieved but, given the current economic situation and the impact of the job market 
on turnover, this needs to be closely monitored.  

 
2.6 Currently the unions are lobbying for a pay award for lower paid workers for a flat rate of £250 for 

those earning under £21k per annum. This would cost the authority around £88k. Given the 
financial settlement and the uncertainty over whether this will be supported, no budgetary 
provision has been made for this. Had this been built into the budget, additional savings with 
potential staffing implications would have had to be made. The decision to deal with any financial 
consequences of an agreement above a pay freeze within the revised budget for 2011/12 is 
prudent given the uncertainty and implications of allowing for it. 

 
2.7 Given the government proposals that pay is actually frozen for the following 2 years, the MTFS 

Page 86



 Page 3 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

projection does not include any provision for 2012/13 or 2013/14 but allows for pay awards for the 
remainder of the period of the MTFS at 2%. Given inflationary pressure and a prolonged period of 
pay freeze there is likely to be upward pressure on pay. 

 
Employee costs – pensions 

2.8 The budget addresses the result of the triennial revaluation of the pension fund in 2010. Having 
built in the provisional additional contribution level increase notified by the actuary in the interim 
budget proposals, the revised position of the actuary i.e. stepping up to the increase contribution, 
allowed the Cabinet to make changes to its proposals. The changes allow for the saving to be 
used for one-off purposes in 2011/12. The resulting changes made to final budget proposals for 
2011/12 ensure that the budgetary provision for the increase in pension contribution in 2012/13 is 
embedded into the base budget without further adding to the funding gap. This is a prudent 
approach. 

 
2.9 The MTFS allows for further increases in contribution rates for the new triennial revaluation. The 

Government’s Hutton review of pensions may conclude that the current public sector pension 
scheme is unsustainable and changes to the scheme may be made making it less generous and 
less expensive but will require legislative changes. However, the MTFS currently allows for further 
increase in pension costs as a result of a revaluation in 2013 reflecting the uncertainty in the 
economy and fund performance which may be offset by pension changes. Given the uncertainty 
over the outcome and timing of any changes, the approach to the MTFS is not unreasonable. 

2.10 I am satisfied that the Council has sufficient budgetary provision for employee related 
costs in 2011/12 and is being prudent in planning for potential future increases in pay and 
pension fund costs in the MTFS.   
Treasury Management 

2.11 The Council signed up to the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in 2002 and 
updates annually its Policy and Strategy statements accordingly. Its decisions are supported by 
an external consultancy (ArlingClose) and considered by the Treasury Management Panel.  

2.12 Despite treasury management activity generating significant returns for the Council in the past, 
the sustained low level of interest rates would suggest that previous levels of investment income 
will not return for some considerable time. The level of investment interest earned by the Council 
is now budgeted at c£170k (a reduction from c£1.5m per annum before the recession). The 
Council has reduced the reliance on investment interest to support the net budget and in turn 
reduced the risk and impact of the volatility of interest rates on the budget. 

2.13 No assumptions are made in the MTFS in respect of higher investment returns resulting from a 
potential increase in interest rates. Once the longer term situation becomes clearer, a more 
optimistic view may be reflected in the MTFS. The financial implications included in the budget 
are based on the recommendations of the Treasury Management Panel supported by Arling 
Close. 

2.14 The collapse of the Icelandic banks (in which the Council had deposits of £11m made in 2006 for 
fixed three-year periods) presented a significant challenge for the Council. At this stage £1.6m 
has been returned to the council leaving £9.4m still to be recovered. 

2.15 Currently the Council is awaiting the outcome of court test cases in Iceland, challenging the 
Winding-Up Board (wWUB) of Glitnir bank’s decision to treat local authority deposits the same as 
other depositor’s rather than give them preferential depositor status as had been determined by 
the WUB of Llandsbanki bank. There is currently no evidence to suggest that the level of losses 
may increase. The third bank in which the council made investment, Kaupthing, Singer and 
Friedlander, is now predicted to pay out more than originally anticipated. Given the uncertainty 
over the final outcome, the decision to make no further provision for losses in the budget is not 
unreasonable. 

Page 87



 Page 4 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

2.16 Following the banking collapse, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) reviewed the Code of Practice covering this area and the Council revised its Treasury 
Management Policy and Annual Investment Strategy to take on board the recommendations of 
the review which strengthen the security of public money. The Annual Investment Strategy 
determines the parameters within which Officers undertake daily treasury management decisions. 
Following the banking crisis, the Council’s treasury advisors, ArlingClose, continue to work with 
the Council and the Treasury Management Panel and provide on-going advice on policy.  

2.17 In February 2009, a number of recommendations were incorporated in the revised Treasury 
Management Policy and Annual Investment Strategy’s lending criteria to a much smaller lending 
counterparty list which was approved by the Council. Following advice from ArlingClose there is a 
proposal to increase the lending period to 2 years for some banks. Given that the council is now 
lending to only a very limited number of banks approved by ArlingClose, I consider this to be a 
reasonable relaxation in the lending policy which will not open up further risk to the Council. 

2.18 The prudential code requires that certain calculations be made (prudential indicators) which 
measure the impact of treasury and borrowing decisions and these are included in the Annual 
Investment Strategy. The indicators for 2011/12 include the implications of the borrowing for the 
Gloucestershire Airport to finance the runway safety project, borrowing to support the financing of 
the refurbishment of the Everyman Theatre, borrowing to support the redevelopment of St Pauls 
by CBH and the implications on financing resulting from moving to International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) which require all forms of borrowing, including leases, to be included 
in the prudential borrowing limits. I am comfortable that the treasury related decisions, as 
measured by these indicators, are in accordance with the prudential code. The Council’s 
Minimum Revenue Position policy statement supports the borrowing decision in respect of the 
Airport and the Everyman. 

2.19 I am satisfied that, given the prevailing low interest rates, the assumptions for budgeting 
for investment interest and potential Icelandic bank losses are reasonable and follow 
Government advice. In addition, given endorsement of the lending list by ArlingClose, the 
slight relaxation in deposit terms in the Annual Investment Strategy are appropriate and 
represent a tolerable increase in risk.  
Income, Charging and Demand.  

2.20 The Council continues to provide a number of demand led services e.g. car parking, land 
charges, leisure@cheltenham etc. The estimates for 2011/12 have been prepared on the advice 
of the professional Officers who have taken a realistic view about income levels, taking into 
account the continued impact of the economic downturn. Income from development control and 
land charges remains suppressed and income budgets for 2011/12 have been prepared on this 
basis. No assumptions have been made in the MTFS in respect of improving income levels. 
Given the uncertainty over how long the downturn will last this is a reasonable approach to take. 

2.21 Car parking income remains one of the Council’s largest demand led risks. Given the sustained 
shortfall in car parking income revenues over recent years, the budget estimates for 2011/12 
allow for a reduction in target by £500k and reflect the freeze in car parking charges. 

2.22 The Council operates in some highly competitive areas where fees are subject to commercial 
decisions which are supported by benchmarking against the competition. The Council needs to be 
able to respond to the market and be ‘business like’ and as such, although fees and charges are 
proposed in the final budget, changes to fees and charges are not restricted to the annual budget 
meeting. This is particularly relevant in light of the MTFS funding gap projections and the work of 
the ‘Bridging the Gap’ (BtG) Programme which includes work streams for closing the funding gap 
from increasing income by increasing prices above inflation or the identification of new income 
streams, taking into account comparable charges with neighbouring authorities. Given the lack of 
Government funding, whilst being mindful of the impact on customer in the current economic 
climate, it is more important to maximise income levels and, as such, service managers need the 
flexibility to vary charges to maintain demand for services. 

Page 88



 Page 5 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

2.23 Over a number of years, the Council has benefited from sizeable amounts of Housing and 
Planning Delivery Grant (HPDG). As a result of the funding squeeze, this will no longer be 
received by the council. As such, given the desire to retain the current level of planning service, 
the Cabinet have built £130k into the base budget to cover the recurring cost of funding the 
residual posts being historically funded from this source. 

2.24 Overall, I am satisfied that the estimates for income are based upon reasonable 
assumptions made by Officers and which take into account the sustained 
underperformance of car parking income targets recognising the difficulty in predicting 
income streams in the current economic climate. Monitoring of income levels will be 
undertaken during 2011/12 and reported in the quarterly budget monitoring reports. 

3. Housing related budgets 
Housing Revenue Account 

3.1 The Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA) capital programme and revenue account have 
been prepared in consultation with Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH). They are in line with 
housing rent limits, and take into account the full year financial impact for both the General Fund 
and the HRA of the additional borrowing consents received to support meeting the decent homes 
standard. 

3.2 The estimates take into account a revised estimate of the charges to CBH for Council services 
which continue to be refined annually to take account of the management agreement. The 
estimates have been drawn up based on the latest information available concerning relevant 
subsidy levels, expected mid year Capital Financing Requirement, and borrowing capacity (item 8 
debit and credit calculations). 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit. 

3.3 The housing benefit regulations are changing and given the potential for unemployment levels to 
rise as a result of the government approach to tacking the deficit, the budget for benefit activity 
may become a higher risk area. This is one of the few areas where external audit is required to 
undertake a separate annual audit of subsidy, payments and claims work. As Members will be 
aware, given the size of the financial amounts involved (c£40m), this is always an area of concern 
in preparing budget estimates. The Council continues to improve its standards and monitoring 
procedures in this area. Sound processes are in place to manage this complex area of activity 
which supports accurate budgeting and control. Based upon the year end position for 2009/10 
and the monitoring of the current year’s budget I believe the budgets (as far as can be predicted 
in this very volatile area), are sufficient to fund predicted activity levels.  

3.4 In summary, the estimates for the HRA and Housing General Fund related budgets, as far 
as can be reasonably determined, appear to be robust. 

4. Finance Settlement  
4.1 The estimates for 2011/12 provide for the financial settlement notified to the Council by the 

Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) resulting from the Government’s 
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR10) providing estimates for the Government support for 
the 2 year period 2011/12 to 2012/13.  

4.2 In the coalition Government’s comprehensive spending review in October 2010, the Chancellor of 
the Exchequer announced that councils would receive a cut in government support of 7.1% in 
each of the next 4 years, a total of 28.4% (which was broadly in line with the assumptions for a 
reduction in government support modelled in the Council’s MTFS). The actual settlement results 
in a cash reduction in government support (revenue support grant plus share of redistributed non 
domestic rates) of £1.09m, a cut of 15.16% in 2011/12 followed by a further cash cut of £579k 
(9.57%) in 2012/13. Cumulatively, this equates to a 23.86% cash cut over 2 years.  

Page 89



 Page 6 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

4.3 The Council accepts that, through the reduction in government funding, it will play its part in 
tackling the level of national debt. However, in order to be able to respond appropriately and plan 
effectively, the Council needs clarity over the actual scale of cuts and timescale. The delays and 
lack of clarity over the size of the cuts have created a great deal of uncertainty which has added 
further pressure to a very difficult budget setting process. The Council has made representation to 
that effect through the response to the provisional settlement in December 2010 and via Martin 
Horwood MP. In particular, the ministers new measure of government support, ‘revenue spending 
power’ (CBC’s spending power is reduced by 6.03% in 2011/12), the Council had not been 
notified that is was basing its estimates on this new measure until the provisional settlement in 
December.   

4.4 Some Members have raised concerns over the lack of published papers prior to the Cabinet and 
council tax setting meeting making it difficult for members to submit questions. The lateness of 
this year’s settlement presented particular difficulties which will hopefully not be repeated. 
However, in agreeing the budget strategy for 2012/13 budget I will review the timetable and 
budget setting process with members to ensure that members concerns are addressed.  

4.5 In addition, the Council anticipated that it would receive funding levels for the life of the 
Parliament. The lack of clarity over future years adds greater uncertainly to the MTFS forecasting 
and planning. The MTFS projections now assume a further 5% cut in cash grant for the following 
2 years. 

4.6 The transfer in responsibility for administration of concessionary fares from district councils to the 
higher tier from 1st April 2011 takes away the uncertainty of costs and funding pressures from the 
Council. Despite responding to the settlement consultation the final settlement removed the total 
costs of £2.2m for concessionary fares including the local discretions i.e. 9:00am to 9:30am and 
taxi vouchers. As Section 151 Officer I have met, along with the Cabinet Member for Finance, 
Martin Horwood MP to lobby for the retention of the estimated £171,000 cost of the local 
discretions funded by the Council. Whilst there may be a possibility that this may be rectified in 
the future no assumption has been made as such in the budget proposals.  

4.7 Based upon the CSR10 settlement, the projections in the MTFS allowing for further 
reductions beyond the next 2 years is a prudent approach. Based upon the uncertainty 
over the outcome of any lobbying over the discretionary element of concessionary fares, 
the budgeting approach is sensible.   

5. Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and strategy for ‘Bridging the Gap 
(BtG)’  

5.1 Sound financial management requires that the Section 151 Officer and Councillors have full 
regard to affordability when making recommendations about the local authority’s future revenue 
and capital programme. The Council produces a Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which 
assists in its planning and preparing for future potential liabilities. The budget proposals include 
an updated MTFS which is based on known or expected expenditure plans for 2012/13 onwards, 
together with a number of assumptions over the next 5 years. The MTFS predicts the funding gap 
for the next 5 years modelled using various funding scenarios. 
‘Bridging the Gap’ (BtG) 

5.2 The Council’s ‘Bridging the Gap (BtG)’ programme outlines the Council’s strategy for closing the 
funding gap which has undoubtedly helped to strengthen the Council’s approach to longer term 
financial management. The BtG programme board meets monthly with the Cabinet Member for 
Finance which ensures that tackling the budget problem remains high on the Council’s agenda. 
This approach has meant that in approaching the 2011/12 budget, the Cabinet have avoided 
salami slicing to close the funding gap. The BtG programme has delivered savings and additional 
income to meet the funding gap of £2.8m for 2011/12 and £3.8m over the period of the MTFS.  
My assessment of the progress and robustness of the BtG work streams is as follows: 
Procurement savings 

Page 90



 Page 7 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

5.3 The budget proposals for 2011/12 and the MTFS do not now include a target from procurement 
savings. Whilst a programme of procurement projects/savings has been identified, given the 
pressure on procurement resources and the difficulty in turning procurement savings into 
recurring cashable savings, it was agreed that the target should be removed from the 2011/12 
budget and MTFS. However, SLT have agreed that a procurement target should still be in place 
outside the MTFS and that SLT will work with the Procurement Officer to translate procurement 
activity into cashable savings, to be monitored by the BtG programme. This is a completely 
reasonable position to take given that the Council may have exhausted its own individual 
purchasing power in driving out procurement savings and the impact of rising prices. However, 
looking ahead, the GO shared Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system should help to deliver 
future shared procurement savings. 
Asset Management:  

5.4 Significant progress has been made in the delivery of the Asset Management Plan. Some key 
successes include the sale of some buildings that were surplus to Council requirements 
generating £638k of capital receipts which were used to deliver a £75k annual saving to the 
revenue budget and support the financing of the capital programme. Work on reducing the cost of 
utilities in buildings through optimising fuel usage will also make a valuable contribution over the 
period of the MTFS. The recent commencement of the process of sale and redevelopment of 
North Place and Portland Street car park could help to pump prime investment into the public 
realm. 
Shared services:  

5.5 The Council has made significant steps forward in progressing the shared services agenda. The 
Council now successfully shares legal and building control services with Tewkesbury Borough 
Council and works collectively on joint core strategy work. The partnership with Cotswold and 
West Oxfordshire for audit is also, whilst still in its infancy, gaining momentum. The sharing of an 
ERP and the establishment of a shared services for Finance and Procurement, HR and payroll 
services will follow shortly. It is evident that the work to implement shared services successfully is 
significant and should not be underestimated. The GO project is clearly a critical project since it 
provides the technology platform for other shared services and the Council must ensure that 
resources are not diverted from its implementation. Similarly, the establishment of a shared waste 
service with Tewkesbury Borough Council and rolling out the new waste and recycling service will 
require significant organisational effort. 
Systems thinking / Service Reviews:  

5.6 Some progress has been made in a number of areas resulting in savings targets for ICT and 
revenues and benefits being built into the budget for 2011/12. Translating systems thinking 
interventions into savings often requires a service restructure and the work required to fully deliver 
saving should not be underestimated. The early conclusions from initial systems thinking work 
has been very encouraging with suggestions that significant improvement in services can be 
achieved at the same time as making savings. It is important for the Council to learn from these 
early systems thinking / service reviews and should roll out the systems thinking approach across 
the organisation so that all services benefit. 
Commissioning: 

5.7 Now that Members have approved the decision to establish the Council as a commissioning 
authority, it needs to ensure that the programming of activity dovetails in with other BtG work 
streams and the timing of the commissioning programme is logical e.g. drive out systems thinking 
savings before commissioning. In approaching commissioning, services need to understand more 
clearly how they compare with other councils and other providers. Looking ahead, I am committed 
to working with SLT to begin to undertake ‘value for money’ assessments for all services and to 
use the budget working group of members to facilitate the debate over what level of service the 
organisation wants and can afford in future. 

Page 91



 Page 8 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

‘One off’ staffing costs 
5.8 Members need to be mindful that, in making decisions to reduce staffing numbers, savings may 

not be delivered immediately since one off redundancy / pension costs may offset savings initially. 
The level of the General Reserve is not sufficient to meet significant one off costs. In the final 
budget proposals, many of the savings have been delivered as a result of vacancies which have 
been actively managed across the organisation. Careful workforce planning and vacancy 
management has been key to ensuring minimal impact on the General Reserve in 2011/12. 
Looking ahead, SLT need to ensure that they work collectively to look for redeployment 
opportunities to avoid redundancy costs and opportunities to manage workforce levels down in 
line with assessment of future BtG and commissioning work plans. 
Future approach /capacity 

5.9 In developing the BtG programme, SLT have collectively supported both the Cabinet and I in 
developing options for consideration in meeting the funding gap for 2011/12. This approach has 
been successful but has been extremely time consuming and the options now being suggested 
are often politically very difficult since they inevitably result in a cut or loss in service and are 
quickly rejected. Given the significant level of cuts required and the difficulty in avoiding hard 
decisions Members are urged to develop cross party consensus on more significant issues, 
possibly through the cross party budget working group. 

5.10 The BtG programme contains some 93 separate work streams. Some of these will be delivered 
as a result of setting the budget but some still require significant effort and energy to deliver in 
both 2011/12 and future years. As part of the monitoring of the programme, officers will be 
undertaking more effective risk assessments of individual work streams to highlight any delivery 
issues. In tackling future year’s budget gaps, Members need to be mindful not to add significantly 
to the programme of activity and to focus attention on fewer big ticket items. Opportunities to 
maximise income should be considered. 

5.11 In moving to a commissioning authority, the council set aside £80k to support the significant 
amount of business change that the council is undertaking. SLT have undertaken some work on 
resource planning which should inform the council on where to direct this valuable source of 
funding. 

5.12 Overall, the BtG programme continues to be an effective, collective approach for the 
identification and delivery of the savings and additional income required to bridge the 
funding gap for 2011/12, without significant impact on service levels or reverting back to 
‘salami slicing’. However, Members need to be mindful of the capacity to deliver other 
significant projects / work streams without additional resource.  
Level of council tax increase 

5.13 The final budget proposals assume a council tax freeze for 2011/12 which is in line with the 
Government aspiration. This will cost the Council c£197k in lost income based on the originally 
planned council tax increase of 2.5%, but this will be offset by specific grant from the government, 
guaranteed for 4 years. The alternative approach would have been to increase council tax up to 
the government cap, for which a new regime is being developed based on a maximum revenue 
spend (for CBC this is estimated at £15.1m, some £0.9m more than the £14.25m proposed 
budget) At a council tax increase of 2.5%, the Council would have been no better off since it 
would have lost the £197k additional grant and would still have had to make £2.9m of savings. At 
a council tax increase of 5% (which is unlikely to have been unacceptable in the current climate), 
the council would have only been around £197k better off. Any increase above 5% up to the new 
expenditure cap would clearly not be acceptable or worth considering. 

5.14 The MTFS models the 4 years of support for freezing the council tax and the impact of its 
withdrawal. Over this period, pay and price level will increase which could be offset by future 
potential tax increases. Members need to be mindful in considering future council tax increase of 
the impact on the MTFS and avoid opening up the funding gap further in future. 

Page 92



 Page 9 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

5.15 Given the support offered by the government in freezing council tax, the decision to freeze 
council tax is reasonable. 
Asset Management Plan (AMP) and Capital Strategy (CS) 

5.16 Sound asset management planning is a key activity and it is increasingly important to ensure that 
the council maximises the use of its asset portfolio in a period of reducing resources. The localism 
bill is likely to result in additional work and activity which promotes the transfer of assets to the 
third sector as a way of reducing the burden on councils e.g. through the publication of assets.   

5.17 As outlined, the AMP has now been approved which sets the general direction and parameters in 
which asset management decisions can be taken. This was a major step forward, however the 
financing of the Council’s aspirations for its assets e.g. Town Hall, Art Gallery & Museum and 
Pittville Park, as well as public realm as part of the Civic Pride proposals, has yet to be fully 
developed. The next development step is to supplement the AMP with a fully costed “shopping 
list” of aspirations for the Council’s property portfolio including capital and revenue implications 
and the identification of options for funding. This will provide Members with a clear indication of 
what can be afforded from existing resources / future capital receipts and identify the potential 
level of prudential borrowing that may be required to fulfil these aspirations.  

5.18 The Council is not yet in a position where it has enough money built into the base revenue budget 
to fund the annual maintenance budget (circa £1.4m) for the property portfolio. As a result, an 
incremental increase in revenue contribution to the Planned Maintenance Reserve used to fund 
building maintenance is factored into the MTFS. However, given the severity of the settlement the 
planned increase for 2011/12 has been deferred and the programmed maintenance for 2011/12 
has been contained within the revised affordability envelope. Co-incidentally the decision to 
support the Everyman Theatre in their redevelopment proposals have resulted in the transfer of 
the maintenance liability from the Council to the theatre as a result of the move to a full repairing 
lease. As a one off decision this does not significantly impact on the overall strategy to increase 
annual contribution levels to support the annual maintenance programme but I would advise that 
this should not become regular practice unless the Council takes significant steps to reduce its 
property portfolio and maintenance liability. 

5.19 The budget addressed the immediate need to top-up pump priming to support the Civic Pride 
Initiative in that, through the re-allocation of reserves, the Civic Pride reserve will increase to 
£1.1m. This will be used to support the initial works to bring sites to market, pump prime public 
realm improvements, plus fund the delivery vehicle.  

5.20 The Prudential code allows councils to undertake non-supported borrowing to meet its objectives 
if this is considered to be prudent and affordable. Although a potential option, it is difficult to see 
how prudential borrowing can be considered at this stage given the squeeze on public finances. 

5.21 The budget includes prudential borrowing from the Public Works Loans Board to fund the 
investment in the Runway Safety Project for Gloucestershire airport and restoration works to the 
Everyman theatre.  

5.22 In line with the decision made by the council in October 2010 the council will, along with 
Gloucester City Council borrow £1.2m from the Public Works Loans Board for onward lending to 
the airport and to provide a temporary borrowing facility of up to £350k to carry out the runway 
safety works. The borrowing is to be repaid by the airport company and, as such, there is no cost 
to the council tax payer.  

5.23 The Everyman Theatre funding proposal involves £1m of prudential borrowing from the Public 
Works Loans Board for onward lending to the theatre to fund the refurbishment works. The 
development of the funding mechanism and signing off of the business plan was delegated by 
Council in February 2010 the Section 151 Officer. As such, following the renegotiation of the 
lease, agreement of a funding agreement and finalisation of the business case, I have signed off 
the necessary paperwork to enable the theatre to now progress the scheme. The decision has 
been included in the Cabinet papers for 8th February 2011 and concludes that the business case 

Page 93



 Page 10 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

is robust enough to ensure that the Everyman Theatre can repay the loan so that there is no cost 
to the council tax payer. As such, the budget includes the necessary prudential borrowing to 
facilitate the loan.  

5.24 The Cabinet is committed to completing the AG&M subject to a bid to the HLF for complementary 
funding being successful and a robust business plan for future operations. The Council is being 
asked to underwrite the funding shortfall for the project, currently estimated at £922k. Should this 
materialise, the Council may need to re-assess existing funding streams, use of any future capital 
receipts or the potential for prudential borrowing. In considering the funding mechanism for any 
underwriting, the Council needs to evaluate the alternative use of any future capital receipts i.e. 
the potential to make treasury management decisions (such as repayment of debt premiums), 
which could help address the projected funding gaps by reducing cost of premium write-off in the 
revenue budget and avoid future cuts in services. Given the MTFS projections it is difficult see 
how the council could fund the cost of prudential borrowing unless the business plan for a new 
building, the outcome of a commissioning exercise for leisure or cuts elsewhere generated 
enough savings to finance the costs of financing borrowing.  

5.25 The assumptions for financing the capital programme and the planned maintenance 
programme in the 2011/12 budget are reasonable. In moving forward, the Council must 
continue to ensure that it maximises the use of, and minimises the cost of, its asset 
portfolio. 

6. Assessment of Reserves 

6.1 The requirement for financial reserves is acknowledged in statute. Section 32 and 43 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 requires billing authorities to have regard to the level of reserves 
needed for meeting estimated future expenditure when calculating the budget requirement. 

6.2 It is the responsibility of the local authority and its Section 151 Officer to maintain a sound 
financial position. External auditors also have a key responsibility in reviewing the arrangements 
in place and may, in the course of their duties, form an opinion on the level of reserves taking into 
account their local knowledge of the authority’s financial performance over a period of time. 
However, it is not the responsibility of auditors to prescribe the optimum or minimum level of 
reserves for individual authorities.  

6.3 Within the existing statutory and regulatory framework it is the responsibility of the Section 151 
Officer to advise the authority on its level of reserves. Councillors, on the advice of the Section 
151 Officer, should make their own judgements on such matters taking into account all the 
relevant local circumstances. The adequacy of reserves can only be assessed at a local level and 
requires a considerable degree of professional judgement. The assessment needs to be made in 
the context of the authority’s MTFS, its wider financial management, and other associated risks 
over the lifetime of the plan. The Secretary of State has reserved powers to set a minimum level 
of reserves to be held by councils if required. 

6.4 The final budget proposals include a schedule of the reserves held by the Council, stating their 
purpose together with actual and proposed changes between years. These are reviewed on a 
regular basis and have been again in the process of finalising the budget proposals.  

6.5 The MTFS provides longer term projections of reserves indicating a gradual reduction in the level 
of reserves over the next 5 years. This reflects the use of some of the one off reserves which are 
currently set aside to fund specific spending plans e.g. pensions, Art Gallery and Museum 
development and capital and maintenance programmes. Over this period the annual revenue 
budget to fund the 20 year maintenance programme will increase to around £1.4m per annum 
which will be more in line with the annual spend, mitigating the reduction in the maintenance 
reserve currently used to finance the programme.  At the end of the 5 year period of the MTFS, 
the total level of reserves, including the General Reserve, is estimated to be circa £5.2m 2015/16. 
The Council may, of course build up additional earmarked reserves to meet future spending plans 
which are not currently identified. 

Page 94



 Page 11 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

6.6 Nationally the Secretary of State for Communities and Local government, Eric Pickles, is 
advocating that councils use reserves to support budget setting. Aside from the General Reserve, 
the reserves held by the council are held for specific purposes. Historically, as Section 151 Officer 
I have argued maintained that using reserves in this way is not a sustainable approach and, 
despite the suggestion, have not changed my view. 

6.7 In assessing the level of the General Reserve, the Council has historically placed reliance on the 
degree and protection provided by earmarked reserves. Clearly there is an opportunity cost to 
holding reserves and I undertake a regular review to ensure that the Council does not hold money 
in reserves unnecessarily. This has resulted in a reduction in the number of specifically 
earmarked reserves over recent years. This had the potential to increase the risk of having to use 
the General Reserve but, in practice, has not caused an issue and is therefore a reasonable 
strategy. Money held in reserve ties up resources which could be spent on one off initiatives. 
However, conversely, every £100,000 held in reserve earns approximately £500 for the Council 
which is budgeted for in the revenue estimates as treasury management income.  

6.8 The Council has previously agreed to aim to maintain its General Reserve at approximately 10% 
of net operating expenditure, or a level between £1.5m and £2m. The budget proposals for 
2011/12 include the re-alignment of reserves to maintain the size of the General Reserve at 
c£2m. Although the Council has managed to deliver services without calling in the General 
Reserve, there is a potential for it to be called upon given the considerable period of change 
resulting from the need to drive out savings and the potential to need to support the 
commissioning programme of activity with one off money. There are other pressures which are to 
be considered in a confidential report to council which may put further pressure on the General 
Reserve. In addition, although measures are in place to address the projected overspend 
2010/11, the year has yet to conclude and the outturn yet to confirm that the strategy has worked 
without needing to call on the General Reserve.  

6.9 The delivery of the budget for 2011/12 and many of the Bridging the Gap initiatives which support 
it, has required ‘up front’ investment. The revenue budget is now extremely tight and there is less 
potential to deliver underspends, particularly in the current economic climate. In order to continue 
to deliver future savings as quickly as possible, it is important to have access to one off money. 
Therefore, I would recommend that Members take every opportunity to use further one off 
windfalls i.e. either future budget underspends or windfall funding, to top up the General Reserve. 
My advice would be that the level of General Reserve should be maintained toward the top end of 
the range £1.5m - £2m to fund future up front investment costs. 

6.10 The triennial revaluation of the pension fund in 2010 resulted in an increase in the contribution 
rate. Historically the impact of the increase has been managed and phased in through the use of 
the pension reserve, which is now exhausted. However, given that the budget allows for the 
increasing in contribution rates within the base budget, no top up of the pension reserve is 
required.  

6.11 Overall, I am satisfied that the projected levels of reserves are adequate for the 
forthcoming year and that the balance of reserves held is about right. However, there are 
still some uncertainties over the duration of the MTFS, particularly in respect of funding 
the aspirations for the Council’s property portfolio. 

7. Budget setting and monitoring. 

7.1 In response to the reduction in public spending, the Council supported the budget consultation 
exercise which was undertaken over the summer of 2010. Whilst not perfect, this proved to be a 
valuable exercise with both positive feedback from Members, officers, residents and the local 
media. It provided some important indicators to the Cabinet as to where to look in making their 
decision for 2011/12 budget. Looking ahead, Members need to consider how it can build on this 
work to inform decisions in respect of outcomes to be commissioned by the Council in future. 

7.2 The Council has a good track record in budget setting and financial management which is 

Page 95



 Page 12 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

recognised by the council’s auditors. It has a history of delivering services within budget and has 
a regular budget monitoring process which is reported to Cabinet and ensures that corrective 
action can be taken to address any in year financial issues where appropriate, as was the case in 
the current year 2010/11. 

7.3 The Council has end of year procedures in place for budget under/overspends which are actively 
designed and communicated to ensure openness and positive financial management in removing 
the temptation to spend unnecessarily at the year end in order to use up unspent budgets.  

7.4 Sound financial management is key to the success of the organisation and Officers continue to 
look at ways of improving financial management information. Training in both the use of the 
system and in budgetary control takes place on an on-going basis.  

8. Corporate Risk Management 

8.1 The Council’s work around risk management continues to develop. Divisions and project and 
programme managers regularly review their individual risk registers and continue to improve 
procedures / take action to mitigate risk where possible. The Council’s corporate risk register is 
now assessed monthly by SLT and reported quarterly to Cabinet.  

8.2 Whilst the Council has made some progress in tackling some of the key risks or recognises the 
need to undertake work in the near future to deal with others, it continues to be challenged by the 
issue of capacity. The Senior Leadership Team are tackling capacity issues through the 
development of resource planning with a view to focusing scare resource and money into high 
priority work.  

8.3 The Council provides a wide range of services which should be re-examined in the light of 
reducing resources. The Council’s decision to become a commissioning authority will help to 
focus the Council on outcomes for the residents given the financial outlook.  

8.4 The budget proposes a reduction in the level of staff training which has the potential to impact on 
staff professional capability. However, given increased sharing of services and expertise and new 
methods of training e.g. e-learning this does not propose an impact on corporate governance 
arrangement. However, in considering the budget proposals, the Audit committee were concerned 
that project management training remained a high priority despite the proposed cuts in training 
budgets.   

8.5 I am satisfied that the budget, as far as is possible within limited resources, aims to tackle 
some of the key risks in the corporate risk register and poses no significant increase in 
risks. 

9. Conclusions 

9.1 The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Section 151 Officer to report to Council on the 
robustness of the budget estimates and the adequacy of reserves. This report aims to address 
this requirement and draws together a number of challenges and issues that are likely to face the 
Council in future years. The key issues and messages which require Members consideration in 
approving the budget proposals for 2011/12 include the following: 
• The impact on the Council’s funding levels as a result of the Governments response to the 
management of the level of national debt.  
• The impact of the recession on income levels for services and investment income levels 
resulting from sustained low interest rates. 
• The measures to deal with the exposure to Icelandic banks built into future financial projections. 

Page 96



 Page 13 of 13 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

• The funding implications of the AMP and future capital and maintenance programmes for 
Council owned assets. 
• The capacity required to deliver the ‘BtG’ programme work streams for closing the funding gaps. 
• The need to develop cross party working in light of the public sector funding squeeze in order to 
seek buy-in to more difficult decisions. 
• The need to maintain the reserve levels to fund future ‘one-off’ costs given the pressure on the 
General Fund budget. 
• The overall financial standing of the Council, despite the challenges ahead, is currently sound.  
• The Council has a reasonable level of reserves. 

9.2 Members are asked to consider the advice provided in this report, in line with statutory duties 
placed on Members, based upon my assessment of the robustness of the overall budget and 
estimates in the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  

 
Report author Mark Sheldon, Chief Finance Officer 

Tel. 01242 264123;   
e-mail address mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices None 
Background information 1. Final budget proposals 2011/12 
 

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Page 1 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 8 February 2011 
Council – 11 February 2011 

General Fund Revenue and Capital - Revised Budget 2010/11 and 
Final Budget Proposals 2011/12 

Accountable member Cabinet Member for Community Development and Finance, John 
Webster 

Accountable officer Chief Finance Officer, Mark Sheldon 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

All scrutiny committees 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary This report summarises the revised budget for 2010/11 and the 

Cabinet’s final budget proposals for 2011/12. 
Recommendations 1. Note the revised budget for 2010/11. 

2. Approve the final budget proposals detailed in this report and 
supporting appendices, including a proposed council tax for 
the services provided by Cheltenham Borough Council of 
£187.12 for the year 2011/12 (a 0% increase based on a Band D 
property). 

3. Approve the growth proposals, including one off initiatives at 
Appendix 3. 

4. Approve the reserve re-alignments at Appendix 8, as outlined in 
section 10. 

5. Approve the proposed capital programme at Appendix 9, as 
outlined in Section 11 and note the intention to fund the 
replacement of vehicles and recycling bins through prudential 
borrowing where deemed appropriate. 

6. Approve the proposed Property Maintenance programme at 
Appendix 10. 

7. Note the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy at Appendix 
11 including the impact of the ‘bridging the gap’ programme on 
the forecast budget gap. 

8. Approve a level of supplementary estimate of £100,000 for 
2011/12 as outlined in section 15. 

9. Approve the creation of the budget working group, with 2 
members nominated from each overview and scrutiny 
committee, to support the process of developing the budget 
process and improving scrutiny as outlined in Appendix 13. 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 99



 

 Page 2 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Financial implications  As contained in the report and appendices. 
Contact officer: Mark Sheldon.  
E-mail: mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264123 

Legal implications The budget setting process must follow the Council's Budget and Policy 
Framework Rules. 
. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis 
E-mail: peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

In the spirit of building on our positive industrial relations environment, the 
recognised trade unions received a budget briefing on 9th December 2010 
and continue to be updated. The final budget proposals (Appendix 4) 
details the savings generated from a number of restructures that have 
already taken place this financial year. Dialogue with the recognised trade 
unions will continue in order to ensure that the potential impact on 
employees are kept to a minimum and in doing so help to avoid the need 
for any compulsory redundancies. Many of the fte (full time equivalent) 
reductions shown below will be as a result of restructures, and the 
Council’s policies on managing change and consultation regarding any 
redundancies will be followed.  
On going, it is important that capacity is carefully monitored and managed 
in respect of any reductions on fte and reduced income streams as the 
reductions represent a 5.3% reduction in fte capacity overall.   
The budget proposals include the following implications for staff: 
Total reduction in staffing = 31.9fte (full time equivalent) of which 17.8fte 
are vacant posts, 6.6fte are redundancies, 0.5fte is shared, 4fte are to be 
confirmed, and 3fte seasonal therefore not required. A further planned 
reduction of 7.4fte will take place in 2012/13.  
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy 
E-mail: julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264355 

Page 100



 

 Page 3 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Key risks An overall risk assessment of the final budget proposals is contained in 
Appendix 1 and the risks associated with each of the proposals for 
bridging the funding gap are identified in Appendix 4. 
During the current year, the council through its budget monitoring 
predicted an overspend of £800k, much of this as the result of income 
streams not matching target levels.  There is a risk that 2011/12 will see a 
similar pattern of income reduction particularly if as predicted public sector 
cuts, inflation and other pressures reduce household incomes and the 
predicted economic recovery is slow.  The council will need to satisfy itself 
that the income levels in the budget are robust and that regular budget 
monitoring identifies any issues at an early stage so that remedial action 
can be taken. 
The council had been planning for reductions in funding and through its 
bridging the gap (BtG) programme had been planning a range of initiatives 
which would reduce expenditure over the life of the Medium Term 
Financial strategy (MTFS).  As outlined above, earlier in the year the 
coalition government announced their intention to reduce public sector 
expenditure and indicated that there would be a front loading to this i.e. 
greater reduction in years one and two. There is now a real risk therefore 
that the profile of reduction in public sector grant support will impact on a 
planned response to the medium term financial savings, as the council 
needs to make cuts now and cannot wait for shared services and other 
commissioning initiatives to deliver their planned savings.  
The government have announced the settlement for future years which 
helps with resource planning but it means that the council will face budget 
cuts in future years, and will need to identify savings to meet these cuts.  
Although plans are in place to meet some of these savings there are still 
significant shortfalls in future years and the council will need to identify 
how it will meet these savings targets.  The council has agreed a 
commissioning approach but there is a risk that in delivering immediate 
savings there is insufficient resources to work up plans for future years.  
The council will need to prioritise the commissioning work plan to ensure 
that those areas which have the greatest opportunity to deliver savings are 
reviewed first. 
As the council moves towards other delivery models for service provision 
e.g. shared services, service level agreements or contracts there is a risk 
that the savings which need to be found in future years fall on fewer 
service areas and potentially have a disproportionate impact on the 
retained organisation.  When commissioning services the council will need 
to be mindful of its budget situation and consider how contracts can be 
flexible to new demands. 
Some of the budget proposals will impact directly on the public.  There is a 
risk that if the communication of these proposals is not handled sensitively 
then there will be public opposition to them.  If these proposals are 
accepted then there will need to be a clear communication plan with those 
service users about the cuts and what other alternative arrangements, if 
appropriate, are being made. 
The audit committee at its meeting in January have confirmed that the 
budget does not propose any cuts which have the potential to impact on 
corporate governance although were concerned that project management 
training remained a high priority despite the proposed cuts in training 
budgets.  

 

 

Page 101



 

 Page 4 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The aim of the final budget proposals is to direct resources towards the 
key priorities identified in the Council’s Corporate Business Plan whilst 
recognising the reduction in government funding. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The final budget contains a number of proposals for improving the local 
environment, as set out in this report. 

Page 102



 

 Page 5 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

1. Introduction 
1.1 In accordance with the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework Rules, which is part of the 

Council’s constitution, the Cabinet is required to prepare interim budget proposals for the 
financial year ahead and consult on it’s proposals for no less than four weeks prior to finalising 
recommendations for the Council to consider in February 2011. The consultation period took 
place between 22nd December 2010 to 22nd January 2011 and this report sets out the final 
budget proposals for 2011/12. 

2. Background 
2.1 Following consultation on the interim budget proposals, the Cabinet is required to draw up its firm 

budget proposals, having regard to the responses it has received during the consultation period. 
This report reflects the Cabinet’s response to such comments. 

2.2 For 2011/12, the coalition Government expects the average council tax increase to be 0%. 
 

3. 2010/11 Revised Budget 
3.1 The budget monitoring report to the end of August 2010, considered by Cabinet on 26th October 

2010, identified a potential projected overspend of £800k for the current year, 2010/11. In 
response, the Senior Leadership Team implemented a recruitment freeze and reviewed all 
unspent supplies and services budgets. As a result of the action taken, the revised budget for 
2010/11 which includes projected savings in employee related and supplies and services budgets 
is now projected to have managed the projected overspend to zero.  

 
4. Finance Settlement including Concessionary fares funding  
4.1 The Government’s comprehensive spending review (CSR10) in 2010 determines the level of 

funding for the whole of the public sector for the period 2011/12 to 2012/13. The following table 
summarises the headline final figures for the level of Government support to the Council released 
on 31st January 2011. 

 2010/11 £m 
adjusted 

2011/12 £m 2011/12 £m 
adjusted 

2012/13 £m 

Revenue Support Grant 1.118 1.440 1.440  
Cheltenham’s share of 
Redistributed Business Rates 

7.701 4.658 4.658  

Formula Grant   8.819 6.098 6.098 5.473 
less formula grant adjustment e.g. 
concessionary fares 

(1.631) - (0.046)  

Adjusted formula grant 7.188 6.098 6.052 5.473 
Actual cash (decrease) over 
previous year 

 (1.090)  (0.579) 

% cash cut  (15.16%)  (9.57%) 
 
. 
 

Page 103



 

 Page 6 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

4.2 The final figures for 2011/12 show an increase of £21,922 over the provisional figures announced 
in December 2010, and for 2012/13 a reduction of £61,925. 

4.3 In the coalition Government’s comprehensive spending review in October 2010, the Chancellor of 
the Exchequer announced that councils would receive a cut in government support of 7.1% in 
each of the next 4 years, a total of 28.4%. This was broadly in line with the assumptions for a 
reduction in government support modelled in the council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) although the council anticipated some front loading and planned for a 10.7% cut in 
2011/12. 

4.4 The actual settlement is very different. The council will receive a cash reduction in government 
support (revenue support grant plus share of redistributed non domestic rates) of £1.090m, a cut 
of 15.16% in 2011/12 followed by a further provisional cash cut of £579k (9.57%) in 2012/13. 
Cumulatively, this equates to a 23.86% cut over 2 years. Funding levels for the following 2 years 
i.e. 2014/15 and 2015/16, have yet to be announced but it is likely that they will continue to impact 
on the council’s finances detrimentally. 

4.5 In announcing the provisional settlement in December 2010, the local government minister Eric 
Pickles referred to a new measure of government support, ‘revenue spending power’. Rather than 
measuring cash changes, this measures the total resources available to the council including 
council tax revenues and one off grants. In declaring that no council would be any worse off than 
8.9% he was referring to the revenue spend rather than actual cash position. Cheltenham’s 
calculation of this ‘revenue spending power’ is a decrease of 6.03%.  

4.6 The provisional finance settlement includes the removal of £2.2m of funding for free bus service 
for the over 60’s concessionary fares scheme as a result of the transfer of the responsibility to 
Gloucestershire County Council with effect from 1st April 2011. As a result, the council’s top up of 
annual government funding for the scheme, estimated at £1m, will NOT be released back to the 
council. This will leave the council with no resources to either top up the county’s proposed 
statutory concessionary fares scheme i.e. the current discretionary 9.00 – 9.30 period of use 
funded by the council or to fund the existing transport schemes which operate.  

 
 

5. The Cabinet’s general approach to the 2011/12 budget 
5.1 The Cabinet’s budget strategy for 2011/12, approved at a meeting on 26th October 2010, included 

an estimate of £2.6m for the 2011/12 budget gap i.e. the financial gap between what the Council 
needs to spend to maintain services (including pay and price inflation) and the funding available 
assuming a 10.7% cut in government support. This was subject to the outcome of the 
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR10) and assumed a funded council tax freeze. The 
council only received notification of its actual grant on 31st January 2011 and it was worse than 
anticipated. The final assessment of the budget gap for 2011/12, based on the detailed budget 
preparation undertaken over recent months and the actual financial settlement is £2.808m. 

 
5.2 The settlement was actually £223k worse than anticipated and, given the delay in its publication, 

presented the Cabinet and the council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) with an incredibly difficult 
task in responding to deeper and more rapid cuts. 

 
5.3 In preparing the final budget proposals, the Cabinet and officers have made the following 

assumptions: 
 
• Prepared a standstill budget projection under a general philosophy of no growth in levels of 

service with the exception of a 6 FTE planning posts, costing £130k annually, which have now 
been built into the base budget. These posts had previously been funded from Planning Delivery 
Grant (PDG) which has been withdrawn as part of the overall CSR10 settlement.  

• Provided for inflation for contractual and health and safety purposes has been allowed at an 
appropriate inflation rate where proven.  

Page 104



 

 Page 7 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

• Not budgeted for pay inflation for 2011/12 or 2012/13. 
• Increased income budgets based on an average increase in fees and charges of 2.5% with the 

exception of property rents which have not been inflated but are now set in line with rent 
projections based on property leases. The Cabinet intend to freeze car park charges at current 
year’s levels which have been shown as growth within the budget proposals. 

• Assessed the impact of prevailing interest rates on the investment portfolio, the implications of 
which have been considered by the Treasury Management Panel. 

• Removed the central savings target for procurement in recognition that these will be targeted 
through the GO programme. 

• Built into the base budget for 2011/12, the cost of the final revised single status pay structure 
following the transition period and conclusion of the appeals process. 

• Estimated the financial impact of the triennial revaluation by the pension fund actuary in 2010/11 
resulting in increased annual costs of £27,700 wef from 1st April 2011.  

• Allowed for a council tax freeze, in line with the coalition Government’s request, on the basis that 
it will be funded though a specific grant. 

 
5.4 The key aims in developing the approach to the budget were to: 
 
• Protect frontline services, as far as possible 

 
• Reduce costs by the development of longer term plans for efficiencies over the period of the 

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) including work on shared services, systems thinking, 
reducing the cost of assets and energy usage, and the new approach to commissioning services.  

 
5.5 There has been considerable activity during the course of the year to develop this longer term 

strategy for closing the funding gap. The Cabinet have worked with officers to develop the 
‘Bridging the Gap (BtG)’ programme using the BtG group supported by the Senior Leadership 
team. The Cabinet’s budget proposals for closing the budget gap in 2011/12, the result of this 
work, are detailed in Appendix 4 and include an assessment of the impact of these proposals over 
the period of the MTFS, split into: 

 
• Decisions already made by council and therefore built into the base budget, totalling £732k. 
 
• Proposals yet to be agreed by council which are not built into the base budget, totalling £2,076k 

 
5.6 The Cabinet and SLT have been anticipating having to make significant savings and have been 

actively managing vacancies and staffing levels in order to minimise the impact of service 
reviews, system’s thinking and savings initiatives and cuts. As a result, the reduction in staffing 
numbers (31.9 full time equivalents) outlined in the budget proposals have been achieved at 
minimal cost to the taxpayer. 
 

5.7 Following the consultation period , a number of changes have been made to the budget to reflect 
further consideration of the proposals and their impact on the organisation which are documented 
in the supporting appendices to the report and summarised as follows:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 105



 

 Page 8 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Summary of changes to Interim Budget proposals 
 

£ 
Revised contribution rates following the 2010 formal valuation of 
the pension fund 

(259,000) 
Additional funding from finance settlement (21,922) 
One Legal savings (cumulative effect of 2 year pay freeze) (9,600) 
LGA subscriptions (additional saving) (900) 
Extended programme of urban gull population control by egg 
oiling (sterilization) 

1,500 
Investment in Imperial and Montpellier Gardens to provide 
improved facilities for hirers, including Cheltenham Festivals. 

140,000 
One-off transitional funding to Arts Council in lieu of permanent 
cut to funding. 

6,000 
Additional income from allotment rentals (1,000) 
Deferred cut to grass verges contract to 2012/13 110,000 
Reduced saving from closure of public toilets 21,750 
Reduced saving from training budgets 500 
Net ‘write-off’ in box office commission  11,200 
Additional contribution to General Balances 
 

1,472 
Net impact on General Fund Budget for 2011/12 
 

nil 
 

 
6. Service growth 
6.1 The Cabinet’s initial approach was that, given the difficult financial situation, there should be no 

growth in services which has an impact on revenue expenditure except where there is a statutory 
requirement or a compelling business case for an 'invest to save' scheme. The growth identified in 
the budget proposals supported by Cabinet meets these criteria and reflect the need to invest in 
business processes and schemes which support the BtG programme. 

 
6.2 The revised contribution rates following the 2010 formal valuation of the pension fund has 

released a one-off sum of £259,000 which has been used to fund one-growth growth detailed 
within Appendix 3 to the value of £149,000. It is proposed that the remaining £110,000 is used to 
continue the additional 10 cuts per year to grass verges before transferring back to the County 
Council wef 1st April 2012. 

 
6.3 The Cabinet has an aspiration to make the following one off investment, funded from LAA 

performance reward grant, estimated at £278k for 2011/12, subject to it being awarded and these 
will be confirmed in the outturn report to council in June 2011. 

 
• £50k towards match funding the £50k contribution from GCC to address youth work issues that 

the County can no longer fund in the way that it traditionally has. 
 
• £30k for community pride / big society initiatives to establish another round of Community Pride 

as last year, with the emphasis on enabling ‘Big Society’ initiatives to be taken forward, such as 
promoting volunteering or voluntary initiatives. 

 
• £30k towards supporting Cheltenham Voluntary and Community Action (VCA) at £10k a year for 

the next three years from the LAA Performance Reward Grant  to develop the voluntary and 
community market through capacity building and supporting the Council to achieve its goal of 
being a commissioning organisation. 

 
• A capital contribution towards the Warm and Well scheme administered by Severn Wye Energy 

Agency on the basis that private sector renewal grant has been withdrawn from 2011/12. 
 

Page 106



 

 Page 9 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

6.4 The full list of proposals for growth, including one off initiatives, is included in Appendix 3. 
 
 
7. Treasury Management   
7.1 Appendix 6 summarises the budget estimates for treasury management activity taking into 

account the following changes, considered by the Treasury Management Panel, at its meetings 
on 22nd November 2010 and 27th January 2011. 

 
7.2 The council has been affected by the low interest rates which have remained at 0.50% throughout 

the year and are predicted to remain at this level for some time still. Due to our consolidated debt 
rate being lower this has resulted in the Housing revenue Account (HRA) paying £183,000 less 
interest to the General Fund for 2011/12, even though borrowing interest costs have reduced 
overall by £6,700. 

 
7.3 The low interest rates will also affect our investment income and is estimated to fall by £74,900 in 

2011/12. 
 
7.4 As a result, the net impact on 2011/12 budget is a reduction in net treasury income of £236,200. 
 
7.5 The council has been actively pursuing the deposits from the three Icelandic owned banks, Glitnir, 

Landsbanki and Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander (KSF). The situation with both Glitnir and 
Landsbanki is that the council’s legal advisors have now filed written submissions with the 
Icelandic courts with regards to the deposits made in 2006, and court hearings are due to take 
place in Spring 2011. As regards to KSF we have received £1.628m back to date which amounts 
to 53p in the pound. The latest information we have indicates a recovery rate in the range of 75p 
to 84p in the pound. 

 
 
8. Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
8.1 Prior to the comprehensive spending review, the council was estimating the MTFS funding gap to 

be c£4.7m based on an anticipated cut in government support of 25%.The MTFS projections 
have been updated for the Cabinet’s final budget proposals in February 2011, taking into account 
the levels of Government support for the period of the CSR10 spending review.  
 

8.2 The MTFS approved in February 2010 has been updated to reflect the latest estimates of the 
implications of the spending review and assumes a 31.28% reduction in the level of government 
support as a result of a public sector spending squeeze. It also includes the Council’s strategy for 
closing the gap and makes further projections of the impact of this strategy on the gap. The 
updated MTFS is attached at Appendix 11 and assumes a worst case scenario.  

 
8.3 The cumulative funding gap over the next 5 years is projected to be c£2.5m although measures 

taken to date results in a residual cumulative funding gap of c£1.5m. 
 

9. Pensions 
9.1 The Council’s pension fund has been subject to triennial revaluation by the pension fund actuary 

in 2010/11, the draft results of which were published in December 2010. The valuation found that 
the Fund’s objective of holding sufficient assets to meet the estimated current cost of providing 
members’ past service benefits was not met at the valuation date.  
 

9.2 Contribution rates are calculated on an individual basis for each participating employer. For the 
council’s element of the fund, the funding level was  assessed at 66% (compared with 75.3% in 
2007), with a shortfall of £34.1m. The fund actuary is aiming for this deficit to be recovered over a 
20 year period, giving the following target contribution rates for the council (for this three-year 
valuation period): 
 

Page 107



 

 Page 10 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

 
• a 14.65% future service rate which should cover the liabilities scheme members build up in the 

future, plus 
 
• an annual lump sump past service deficit contribution of £1.387m in 2011/12 (rising to £1.728m 

by 2013/14), to cover the shortfall in the fund 
 
 

10. Reserves 
10.1 The Cabinet has taken the opportunity to review the reserves held by the council on the advice of 

SLT and the CFO. Some realignment of reserves, detailed in Appendix 8, are proposed to further 
the aims of the council including: 

 
• Transfer £1m of the reserve realignment to increase the civic pride reserve to fund future costs 

including site investigations and preparation work in order to present development sites and 
some pump priming for Boots corner redevelopment. The council is progressing with the civic 
pride scheme using the Cheltenham Task Force delivery vehicle. In February 2010, a projection 
of the council’s civic pride reserve, including external partner contributions, identified a funding 
shortfall for 2011/12 of c£110k. The reserve realignment will address this shortfall. 

 
• Transfer £717k of Planning Delivery Grant (PDG) reserve to the General Reserve, given that 

planning posts funded from this reserve have been built into the base budget from 2011/12. 
 
• Recently the council owned properties in Ledmore Road have been sold and the receipt can now 

be used to fund the redevelopment of St Paul’s and other housing regeneration schemes, in line 
with the council decision in July 2009. This allows for transfer of £1.3m of the Housing Capital 
Reserve (General Fund) which had been earmarked to support housing regeneration schemes, 
releasing it for other purposes. 

 
• Transfer £300k of the reserve realignment to the capital reserve to support future capital 

programmes. 
 
• The sourcing strategy programme has now been closed down and the balance of unused 

sourcing strategy money, £274.4k, is to be returned back to the general reserve as outlined in 
Appendix 7. However, it is proposed that some of this money is earmarked to support potential 
work around the creation of shared services for revenues and benefit (£100k), subject to 
business case. A further £80k is to be used to support the business change flowing from the 
restructuring proposals around commissioning and GO programme, as outlined in the Section 4 
report and agreed by council on 13th December 2010. 

 
• More work is to be undertaken to understand both the immediate and longer term investment 

required to pump priming the commissioning activity which may justify a further earmarking of 
money or an earmarking of the general reserve, subject to business case.  

 
11. Capital Programme  
11.1 The proposed capital programme for the period 2011/12 to 2015/16 is at Appendix 9.  
 
11.2 The programme includes a provisional sum of £250k for investment in new car park management 

technology, which will be subject to a business case and options appraisal and investment in 
telephony switch upgrades, identified in the council’s ICT strategy, approved by Cabinet on 22nd 
June 2010. 

 
11.3 The adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) has necessitated the need to 

review all council leases to determine whether they are classified as operational or finance 
leases. The review has concluded that leases drawn for the purchase of vehicles and recycling 

Page 108



 

 Page 11 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

bins are deemed to be finance leases and as such must be represented on the council’s balance 
sheet as external borrowing. 

 
11.4 As a consequence of the above, officers have reviewed and compared the costs associated with 

leasing against prudential borrowing and concluded that whilst the gains from prudential 
borrowing were marginal in the early years, it gave the council more flexibility in terms of 
ownership.  

 
11.5 With the potential shared waste management service, it is the view of officers that the flexibility 

surrounding ownership of the assets from the outset and the marginal financial benefits support a 
decision to finance those assets through prudential borrowing. 

 
 

12. Property Maintenance Programmes 
12.1 The proposed property repairs and maintenance programme for 2011/12 is at Appendix 10.  
 
12.2 The budget proposals include a proposal to defer the increase in annual contribution of £125k to 

the planned maintenance reserve by one year, in response to the severe settlement position. As a 
result the planned maintenance programme, at appendix 10, has been reviewed to reflect the 
affordability envelope available. 

 
12.3 A decision to close public toilets will save substantial maintenance costs over the course of the 20 

year property maintenance programme. This is currently costed at c£400,000 and further 
endorses the proposal to defer the annual increase in planned maintenance contributions by one 
year. 

 
12.4 The programme includes a sum of £157k towards the council’s share of the costs of the 

refurbishment of the arcade, finalised at £517k.  
 
12.5 There are a series of initiatives to reduce power consumption. The installation of voltage 

optimisation devices to moderate the electricity supply coming into buildings will cost £97k of 
which some £14k is being spent in 2010/11 for a pilot plant at Leisure@. In total these will save 
the Council some £15.7k pa, and reduce our Carbon footprint by 92 tonnes of CO2 p.a. 
Further schemes are proposed for the future costing a total of £76k - as follows:  
 

• Replacing pool hall lights with 100w LEDs, (£27k); 
 
•  Replacement of lighting at Regent Arcade car park (£33k); Improving cooling efficiency in server 

room, including replacing air-con units with evaporative cooling unit (£10.5k);  
 
• Extend replacement of security lighting at Depot with LEDs and install PIRs on percentage of 

security lighting (£5.5k).  
 

12.6 In total these will save the Council an estimated £36k pa, and reduce our Carbon footprint by 
some 159 tonnes of CO2 p.a. Because these are initiatives that promise a payback they will be 
funded from the Repairs and Renewals reserve. 

 
13. Budget consultation and feedback 
13.1 Given the scale of the level of public sector funding squeeze, the Cabinet were keen to engage 

with the public on where to make savings ahead of the decision making process. The results from 
the summer public consultation road shows and residents panels provided the Cabinet with an 
indication of where the Cabinet might look to protect, reduce or stop spending on services. The 
budget proposals take into account the response to this consultation. 
 

13.2 The formal budget consultation on the detailed interim budget proposals took place over the 

Page 109



 

 Page 12 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

period 22nd December 2010 to 22nd January 2011.  The Cabinet sought to ensure that the 
opportunity to have input into the budget consultation process was publicised to the widest 
possible audience. During the consultation period, interested parties including businesses, 
tenants, residents, staff and trade unions were encouraged to comment on the initial budget 
proposals. They were asked to identify, as far as possible, how alternative proposals complement 
the Council’s Business Plan and Community Plan and how they can be financed. The Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees were invited to review the interim budget proposals meetings in January 
2011 and comments were fed back to the Cabinet.  
 

13.3 A summary of the budget consultation responses and the Cabinet’s responses, in arriving at the 
final budget proposals, are contained in Appendix 12. 
 
 

14. Performance management – monitoring and review 
14.1 The scale of budget cuts will require significant work to deliver within the agreed timescales and 

there is a danger that it diverts management time from delivery of services to delivery of cuts.  
There are regular progress meetings to monitor the delivery of savings and this will need to be 
matched with performance against the corporate strategy action plan to ensure that resources are 
used to best effect and prioritised.   
 

14.2 The delivery of the savings workstreams included in the final budget proposals, if approved by full 
council will be monitored via the BtG group. 

 

15. Supplementary Estimates 
15.1 Under financial rule 11.3, the Council can delegate authority to the Cabinet for the use of the 

General Reserve up to a certain limit. This is to meet unforeseen expenditure which may arise 
during the year for which there is no budgetary provision. It would be prudent to allow for a total 
budget provision of £100,000 for supplementary estimates in 2011/12 to be met from the General 
Reserve, the same level as in 2010/11. 

 
 
16. Budget Presentation 
16.1 The budget presented in this report at Appendix 2 includes a projection of the base budget i.e. the 

cost of providing the same level of services in 2011/12 as in 2010/11 taking into account inflation 
and pay awards including savings and additional income in the base budget. In an attempt to 
concentrate attention on the policy changes to the budget, the detailed projection of base budgets 
for existing service levels are not included.  
 

17. Alternative Budget Proposals 
17.1 It is important that any political group wishing to make alternative budget proposals should 

discuss them, in confidence, with the Chief Finance Officer and / or the appropriate Strategic 
Director / Chief Executive (preferably channelled through one Group representative) to ensure 
that the purpose, output and source of funding of any proposed changes are properly identified. 

17.2 It is important that there is time for members to carefully consider and evaluate any alternative 
budget proposals. Political groups wishing to put forward alternative proposals are not obliged to 
circulate them in advance of the budget-setting meeting, but in the interests of sound and lawful 
decision-making, it would be more effective to do so, particularly given that they may have 
implications for staff. 

 

Page 110



 

 Page 13 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

18. Final Budget Proposals and Council Approval 
18.1  The Cabinet have presented firm budget proposals having regard to the responses received.  In 

reaching a decision, the Council may adopt the Cabinet’s proposals, amend them, refer them 
back to the Cabinet for further consideration, or in principle, substitute its own proposals in their 
place. 

18.2  If it accepts the recommendation of the Cabinet, without amendment, the Council may make a 
decision which has immediate effect. Otherwise, it may only make an in-principle decision. In 
either case, the decision will be made on the basis of a simple majority of votes cast at the 
meeting. 

18.3  An in-principle decision will automatically become effective 5 working days from the date of the 
Council’s decision, unless the Leader informs the Chief Finance Officer in writing within 5 
working days that he objects to the decision becoming effective and provides reasons why. It 
should be noted that a delay in approving the budget may lead to a delay in council tax billing 
with consequential financial implications.  

18.4  In that case, another Council meeting will be called within 7 working days of the date of appeal 
when the Council will be required to re-consider its decision and the Leader’s written submission. 
The Council may (i) approve the Cabinet’s recommendation by a simple majority of votes cast at 
the meeting or (ii) approve a different decision which does not accord with the recommendation 
of the Cabinet by a majority. The decision will then become effective immediately. 

19. Conclusions 
19.1 As outlined throughout the report, the economic situation and severe cuts to public spending are 

having a major impact on the budget setting process. The budget proposals for 2011/12 have 
been prepared in a climate of uncertainty and have been severely impacted upon by the 
continued economic downturn. Low interest rates coupled with suppressed income levels have 
presented a huge challenge for both Officers and Members in preparing a budget for the year 
ahead. Future funding gaps, coupled with the uncertainty of the implications for local government 
of a public sector spending squeeze point to a challenging period for the Council.  

19.2 The Council continues to find itself under pressure in the following key areas: 
• The cost implications of providing a wide range of services, including many discretionary 

services. 
 
• The impact of the performance of the pension fund, due to falling stock markets, on 

employment costs. 
 

• The cost of maintaining a large property portfolio. 
 

• The impact of low interest rates on investment income. 
 

• The potential impact of the Icelandic banking situation. 
 

• The impact of sustained low income levels.  
 

 
19.3 As part of the Council’s medium term financial planning, it is important to continue to prepare for a 

number of challenges, including the identification of savings required for future years to bridge 
future funding gaps, maintaining the Council’s substantial asset portfolio, meeting new 
government targets and local customer demand for improved services. 

 
 

Page 111



 

 Page 14 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

20. Reasons for recommendations 
20.1  As outlined in the report. 
 
 

Report author Mark Sheldon, Chief Finance Officer 
Tel. 01242 264123;   
e-mail address mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Summary net budget requirement 
3. Growth 
4. Savings / additional income 
5. Capital charges 
6. Interest and investment income 
7. Detailed reserve movements and sourcing strategy programme 

closedown 
8. Projection of reserves 
9. Capital programme 
10. Planned maintenance programme 
11. Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
12. Consultation responses 
13. Budget Scrutiny working group report 

Background information 1. Finance settlement 2011/12 
http://www.local.communities.gov.uk/finance/1112/grant.htm 

 

Page 112



 

   
$csqzqf1s.doc 
 
 

Page 15 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 

 

Risk Assessment  - Final budget 2011/12             Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1.01 If the council is unable to 
come up with long term 
solutions which bridge the 
gap in the medium term 
financial strategy then it 
will find it increasingly 
difficult to prepare budgets 
year on year without 
making unplanned cuts in 
service provision. 

Mark 
Sheldon 

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 R The council has agreed 
a commissioning 
approach and the 
MTFS identifies a 
number of longer term 
solutions. The council 
will need to be mindful 
of capacity to deliver 
the savings programme 

Sept 2011 Mark Sheldon  

1.02 If the robustness of the 
income proposals is not 
sound then there is a risk 
that the income identified 
within the budget will not 
materialise during the 
course of the year. 

Mark 
Sheldon 

15 
December 
2010 

3 2 6 R Robust forecasting is 
used to prepare the 
budget looking back on 
previous income targets 
and collection, and 
forecasts take into 
account the current 
economic situation. 
Professional judgement 
used on the 
deliverability of income 
targets. 
Once budget approved, 
regular monitoring of 
income targets will 
identify any issues and 
any corrective action 
which need to be taken 
and will be reported 
through the budget 
monitoring reports. 

Ongoing 
during 
course of 
year 

Mark Sheldon  

P
age 113



 

   
$csqzqf1s.doc 
 
 

Page 16 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 

 

1.03 If when developing a 
longer term strategy to 
meet the MTFS, the 
council does not make the 
public aware of its financial 
position and clearly 
articulates why it is making 
changes to service 
delivery then there may be 
confusion as to what 
services are being 
provided and customer 
satisfaction may decrease. 

Jane 
Griffiths 

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 R As part of the 
development of BtG 
programme there will 
need to be a clear 
communication 
strategy. 
In adopting a 
commissioning culture 
then it will be basing its 
decisions on customer 
needs and 
requirements and this 
should help address 
satisfaction levels. 

31 March 
2011 

Communications 
team to support 
the BTG 
programme 

 

1.04 There is a reliance on 
shared services delivering 
savings. If these savings 
do not materialise or 
shared service projects do 
not proceed as anticipated 
then other savings will 
need to be found to meet 
the MTFS projections. 

Pat 
Pratley 

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 R All shared services are 
operated under prince 2 
principles, with clear 
business case and risk 
logs are maintained for 
the shared service 
projects and regularly 
reviewed 

Ongoing 
during 
course of 
year 

Pat Pratley  

1.05 In the past the council has 
used in year savings to 
support one off growth to 
fund new initiatives or 
unpredicted expenditure. It 
is unlikely that moving 
forward over the life of the 
MTFS there will be such 
savings and if new 
initiatives or unpredicted 
expenditure arises then 
the dependency on the 
General Reserve will 
intensify. 

Mark 
Sheldon 

15 
December 
2010 

4 3 12 R Future capital receipts 
may be needed to 
galvanise the General 
Reserve. 

1st 
December 
2011 

Mark Sheldon 
(working with 
SLT and 
Cabinet) 

 

P
age 114



 

   
$csqzqf1s.doc 
 
 

Page 17 of 17 Last updated 03 February 2011 

 

1.06 If the council does not 
carefully manage its 
commissioning of services 
then it may not have the 
flexibility to make 
additional savings required 
by the MTFS in future 
years and a greater 
burden of savings may fall 
on the retained 
organisation. 

Mark 
Sheldon 

15 
December 
2010 

3 3 9 R Contracts, SLAs and 
other shared service 
agreements will need to 
be drafted and 
negotiated to ensure 
that there is sufficient 
flexibility with regards to 
budget requirements 

Ongoing AD 
Commissioning  

 

1.07 If the levels of cuts are 
deeper and sooner than 
suggested in the coalition 
Government’s 
comprehensive spending 
review, the council may 
not be able to deliver a 
measured and planned 
response to a reduction in 
services.  

Mark 
Sheldon 

15 
December 
2010 

4 4 16 Reduce SLT work with the 
Cabinet using the BtG 
programme to deliver 
existing workstreams, 
new initiatives and 
accelerate the 
commissioning 
programme. 

Feb 2012 Chief Finance 
Officer 
Mark Sheldon 

 

1.08 If the triennial review of 
pensions identifies that 
contribution rates should 
be greater than anticipated 
then this will increase the 
budget gap within the 
MTFS. 

Mark 
Sheldon 

26 
January 
2010 

3 3 9 R MTFS based on advice 
received from actuary. 

November 
2010 

Mark Sheldon  

 
 

P
age 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

NET GENERAL FUND BUDGET 2010/11 REVISED AND 2011/12

2010/11 2010/11 2011/12
GROUP ORIGINAL REVISED ORIGINAL
Projected cost of 'standstill' level of service £ £ £

Strategic Management 406,050 379,200 342,100
Assistant Chief Executives 3,496,300 3,224,550 2,929,250
Built Environment 22,000 1,477,900 (741,800)
Community Services 47,600 1,162,900 1,227,200
Customer Access & Service Transformation 562,400 331,000 441,600
Financial Services 1,385,400 1,370,300 1,450,900
Health & Culture 4,084,500 4,900,750 4,483,250
Human Resources & Organisational Development (33,200) 35,500 53,100
Operations 7,589,700 6,129,600 6,448,000
Business Change 17,000 646,600 554,800
Programmed Maintenance (Revenue) 811,000 751,600 406,200
Savings from procurement (120,000)
Savings from vacancies (400,000) (50,000) (400,000)
Bad debt provision 40,000 40,000 40,000

17,908,750 20,399,900 17,234,600

Capital Charges - Appendix 5 (757,600) (1,838,700) (2,097,600)
Interest and Investment Income - Appendix 6 293,600 (72,700) 529,800
Use of balances and reserves - Appendix 7 (685,353) (1,717,303) 429,543
Proposed Growth recurring - Appendix 3 106,500
Proposed Growth one-off - Appendix 3 147,500
Savings / Additional income identified - Appendix 4 (2,076,050)
Area Based Grant (28,500) (40,300)
Specific Grant in lieu of council tax freeze (197,000)
NET BUDGET 16,730,897 16,730,897 14,077,293

Deduct:
Revenue Support Grant (1,118,206) (1,118,206) (1,439,927)
National Non-Domestic Rate (7,700,653) (7,700,653) (4,658,405)
Collection Fund Contribution (33,500) (33,500) (59,500)

(8,852,359) (8,852,359) (6,157,832)

NET SPEND FUNDED BY TAX 7,878,538 7,878,538 7,919,461

Band ‘D’ Tax £187.12 £187.12 £187.12
Increase per annum £0.00
Increase per week £0.00
% Rise 0.0%

INCREASE - 2010/11 base v 2011/12 budget 40,923

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



PR
OP

OS
AL

S F
OR

 G
RO

WT
H

AP
PE

ND
IX 

3

Re
f

Di
vis

ion
Pr
oje

ct 
Na

me
De

sc
rip

tio
n

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

SU
PP

OR
TE

D 
GR

OW
TH

 (R
EC

UR
RI
NG

)

1
CA

&S
T

Te
lep

ho
ny
 sw

itc
h u

pg
rad

e

Th
e u

pg
rad

e o
f th

e t
ele

ph
on
y s

oft
wa

re 
ve
rsi
on
 is
 

es
se
nti
al 
to 
ma

int
ain

 su
pp
ort

 w
ith
 th
e 

ma
nu
fac

tur
er.

 W
e a

re 
un
ab
le 
to 
pu
rch

as
e a

ny
 

ad
dit
ion

al 
tel
ep
ho
ny
 lic

en
ce
s u

nd
er 

the
 cu

rre
nt 

ve
rsi
on
. T

his
 w
ill e

na
ble

 us
 to
 ha

ve
 m
ore

 up
 to
 

da
te 
ve
rsi
on
s o

f th
e c

on
tac

t c
en
tre

 so
ftw

are
 w
hic

h 
is 
es
se
nti
al 
for

 su
pp
lyin

g t
ele

ph
on
y t
o o

ur 
se
rvi
ce
s.

    
  7
0,3

00
 

2
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on
me

nt
Fre

ez
e c

ar 
pa
rki
ng
 ch

arg
es

Ma
int
ain

 ca
r p

ark
 ch

arg
es
 at
 cu

rre
nt 
lev

els
 - i
.e.
 no

 
inf
lat
ion

ary
 in
cre

as
e

    
 10

6,5
00
  
   1

06
,50

0 
    
10
6,5

00
 

   1
06
,50

0 
   1

06
,50

0 
   1

06
,50

0 

3
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on
me

nt
Ca

r p
ark

 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

tec
hn
olo

gy

Th
e u

pg
rad

e o
f th

e c
ar 

pa
rk 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
tec

hn
olo

gy
 at
 se

lec
ted

 si
tes

 su
ch
 as

 R
eg
en
t 

Ar
ca
de
 is
 es

se
nti
al 
as
 th
e e

xis
tin
g m

an
ag
em

en
t 

sy
ste

ms
 an

d h
ard

wa
re 

ha
ve
 no

w 
rea

ch
ed
 th
e e

nd
 

of 
the

ir l
ife
 cy

cle
.

    
25
0,0

00
 

Th
e u

pg
rad

es
 w
ill e

ns
ure

 co
nti
nu
ed
 co

mp
lia
nc
e i
n 

da
ta 
co
lle
cti
on
 an

d s
tor

ag
e, 
on
go
ing

 vi
ab
ility

 of
 th
e 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d o

pe
rat

ing
 sy

ste
m 
an
d w

ill 
rel
ea
se
 re

so
urc

es
 ne

ed
ed
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 on
go
ing

 
se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry

    
 10

6,5
00
  
   1

06
,50

0 
    
10
6,5

00
 

0
0

0
10
6,5

00
10
6,5

00
10
6,5

00
    
32
0,3

00
  
    
    
 -  

  
    
    
  - 

  
SU

PP
OR

TE
D 
GR

OW
TH

 (O
NE

 O
FF

)

4
Op

era
tio
ns

Ex
ten

de
d p

rog
ram

me
 of
 ur

ba
n 

gu
ll p

op
ula

tio
n c

on
tro

l b
y e

gg
 

oil
ing

 (s
ter

iliz
ati
on
)

Ch
an
ge
s i
n w

ea
the

r p
att
ern

s h
as
 re

su
lte
d i
n 

bre
ed
ing

 tim
es
 ch

an
gin

g w
ith
 eg

gs
 be

ing
 la
id 
ov
er 

a l
on
ge
r p

eri
od
. A

dd
itio

na
l £
1,5

00
 pe

r a
nn
um

 w
ill 

pa
y f
or 

3-4
 ex

tra
 tre

atm
en
t d
ay
s.

    
    
 1,
50
0 

    
    
1,5

00
 

5
Op

era
tio
ns

Pa
rks

 an
d G

ard
en
s

Inv
es
tm
en
t  i
n I
mp

eri
al 
an
d M

on
tpe

llie
r G

ard
en
s t
o 

pro
vid

e i
mp

rov
ed
 fa
cili

tie
s f
or 

hir
ers

, in
clu

din
g 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Fe

sti
va
ls.

    
 14

0,0
00
 

6
He

alt
h a

nd
 W

ell
be
ing

Ar
ts 
Co

un
cil

On
e-o

ff t
ran

sit
ion

al 
fun

din
g i
n l
ieu

 of
 pe

rm
an
en
t c
ut 

to 
fun

din
g.

    
    
 6,
00
0 

    
 14

7,5
00
  
    
   1

,50
0 

    
    
    
  - 

  
    
    
    
   -

   
    
    
    
   -

   
    
    
    
 -  

 
    
    
    
 -  

  
    
    
    
-   

    
    
    
 -  

 
    
    
    
  - 

   
    
    
 -  

  
    
    
  - 

  
SU

PP
OR

TE
D 
GR

OW
TH

 (F
UN

DE
D 
FR

OM
 G
EN

ER
AL

 R
ES

ER
VE

)

7
CA

&S
T

Bu
sin

es
s C

ha
ng
e

Su
pp
ort

 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
’s 
bu
sin

es
s c

ha
ng
e a

cti
vit
y 

in 
a p

eri
od
 of
 si
gn
ific

an
t c
ha
ng
e i
nc
lud

ing
 th
e m

ajo
r 

ch
an
ge
 to
 an

 En
ter

pri
se
 R
es
ou
rce

 Pl
an
nin

g (
ER

P)
 

sy
ste

m 
fac

ilita
ted

 by
 th
e G

O 
pro

gra
mm

e.
    
   8

0,0
00
 

8
CA

&S
T

Sh
are

d R
ev
en
ue
s a

nd
 

Be
ne
fits

 Se
rvi
ce

Fu
nd
ing

 to
wa

rds
 a 
po
ten

tia
l s
ha
red

 re
ve
nu
es
 an

d 
be
ne
fits

 sh
are

d s
erv

ice
 w
ith
 an

oth
er 

co
un
cil 

su
bje

ct 
to 
a b

us
ine

ss
 ca

se
.

    
 10

0,0
00
 

    
 18

0,0
00
  
    
    
    
 -  

  
    
    
    
 -  

 
    
    
    
   -

   
    
    
    
   -

   
    
    
    
 -  

 
    
    
    
 -  

  
    
    
    
-   

    
    
    
 -  

 
    
    
    
  - 

   
    
    
 -  

  
    
    
  - 

  
SU

PP
OR

TE
D 
GR

OW
TH

 (F
UN

DE
D 
FR

OM
 PR

OP
ER

TY
 R
&R

 R
ES

ER
VE

)

9
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on
me

nt
Po

we
r P

erf
ec
tor

s

Ins
tal
lat
ion

 of
 vo

lta
ge
 op

tim
isa

tio
n d

ev
ice

s t
o 

im
pro

ve
 ef
fic
ien

cy
 of
 el
ec
tric

ity
 su

pp
ly 
co
mi
ng
 in
to 

bu
ild
ing

s.
    
   7

5,9
00
 

    
    
  4
,30

0 
    
   1

5,7
00
 

    
   7

5,9
00
  
    
    
    
 -  

  
    
    
    
 -  

 
    
    
  4
,30

0 
    
   1

5,7
00
  

    
    
    
-   

    
    
    
 -  

  
    
    
    
-   

    
    
    
 -  

 
    
    
    
  - 

   
    
    
 -  

  
    
    
  - 

  

    
    
 R
ev
en

ue
 C
os

ts 
    
    
   

Inc
om

e/s
av
ing

s/m
atc

h f
un

din
g

    
  N

et 
rev

en
ue

 re
qu

ire
me

nt
    
  C

ap
ita

l C
os

ts 
    
 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



BR
ID
GI
NG

 TH
E 
GA

P 
(B
tG
) P

RO
GR

AM
ME

AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Cu
mu

lat
ive

20
11
-12

Br
idg

ing
 th

e G
ap

 P
ro
gr
am

me
 

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

an
nu

al 
im

pa
ct 

on
On

e-o
ff 

FT
E 
Im

pa
ct

FT
E 

FT
E 

Eq
ua
lity

 an
d D

ive
rs
ity

 im
pa

cts
Se

rvi
ce
/R
isk

 im
pli

ca
tio

ns
Pr
oje

ct 
/ A

re
a o

f A
cti

vit
y 

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

20
16
/17

MT
FS

 20
15
/16

 
Co

sts
Lo

ss
es

Lo
ss
es

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

20
11
/12

Fu
tur

e Y
rs

A
D

F
G

H
I

J
K

L
M

N
O

P
Q

20
11

-1
2 
BR

ID
GI
NG

 T
HE

 G
AP

 IN
IT
IA
TI
VE

S 
- B

UI
LT

 IN
TO

 B
AS

E 
BU

DG
ET

CO
RP

OR
AT

E
1

DE
FE

RR
ED

 IN
CR

EA
SE

 IN
 C
ON

TR
IBU

TIO
N 
TO

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y R
EP

AIR
S 

& 
RE

NE
W
AL

S 
RE

SE
RV

E 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

De
fer

ral
 of
 ad

dit
ion

al 
co
ntr
ibu

tio
n s

up
po
rte

d b
y r
ev
iew

 an
d r

ed
uc
tio
n o

f th
e 

ma
int
en
an
ce
 pr

og
am

me
.

12
5,0

00
12
5,0

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Ris
k t
ha
t th

e c
ou
nc
il's
 bu

ild
ing

s w
ill n

ot 
be
 

rep
air
ed
 an

d r
en
ew

ed
 to
 th
e d

es
ire
d 

sta
nd
ard

s. 
 O
nly

 m
inim

um
 w
ork

s w
ill b

e 
co
mp

let
ed
.

FIN
AN

CI
AL

 S
ER

VIC
ES

2
IN
SU

RA
NC

E 
BR

OK
ER

S 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

St
op
 em

plo
yin

g i
ns
ura

nc
e b

rok
ers

  u
se
d t
o s

up
po
rt t

he
 co

un
cil 

an
d m

ov
e 

tow
ard

s p
urc

ha
se
 of
 m
ore

 ad
 ho

c a
dv
ice

 w
he
n n

ee
de
d.

5,5
00

5,5
00

No
ne
 id
en
tife

d.
Th
ere

 w
ou
ld 
no
 lo
ng
er 

be
 ex

ter
na
l s
up
po
rt f

or 
ad
-ho

c q
ue
rie
s. 
Th
ere

 w
ou
ld 
the

ref
ore

 be
 a 

rel
ian

ce
 on

 th
e i
nte

rna
l e
xp
ert

ise
 to
 ha

nd
le 

ins
ura

nc
e m

att
ers

.  T
he
 cu

rre
nt 
ins

ura
nc
e 

off
ice

r w
ill h

av
e t
he
 ex

pe
rie
nc
e t
o d

ea
l w

ith
 

su
ch
 is
su
es
 fo
r C

he
lte
nh
am

, b
ut 
the

re 
is 
a r

isk
 

tha
t o
ne
-of

f, u
ne
xp
ec
ted

 is
su
es
 m
ay
 oc

cu
r, 

req
uir
ing

 ex
ter

na
l s
up
po
rt.

3
AP

PR
OV

AL
 O
F G

LO
UC

ES
TE

RS
HI
RE

 A
IR
PO

RT
 B
US

IN
ES

S 
PL

AN
    
    
    
    
  

Ad
dit
ion

al 
pro

jec
ted

 di
vid

en
ds
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of
 ap

pro
vin

g b
us
ine

ss
 pl
an
 / 

fac
ilita

ted
 bo

rro
win

g

9,0
00

9,0
00

56
,10

0
32
,90

0
6,1

00
11
3,1

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Re
qu
ire
s b

oth
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 B
oro

ug
h a

nd
 

Gl
ou
ce
ste

r C
ity
 to
 ap

pro
ve
 th
e f
ac
ilic
ate

d 
bo
rro

win
g o

f £
1.2

m 
ea
ch
 fo
r o

nw
ard

 le
nd
ing

 
to 
the

 ai
rpo

rt c
om

pa
ny

HE
AL

TH
 &
 W

EL
LB

EIN
G

4
IN
CR

EA
SE

 C
OS

T O
F H

AL
L H

IR
E 
FO

R 
W
ED

DI
NG

S 
AT

 TH
E 
PIT

TV
ILL

E 
PU

MP
 R
OO

MS
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Inc
rea

se
 in
 co

st 
of 
we

dd
ing

s b
y £

22
5 f
rom

 £1
,90

0 t
o £

2,1
25
.

5,0
00

5,0
00

10
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tife

d.
No

ne
 id
en
tfie

d.

5
RE

DU
CE

 C
HA

RI
TA

BL
E 
CO

NC
ES

SIO
N 
FO

R 
HI
RE

 O
F T

OW
N 
HA

LL
 

AN
D 
PIT

TV
ILL

E 
PU

MP
 R
OO

MS
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Re
du
cti
on
 fro

m 
30
% 

to 
20
%

5,0
00

5,0
00

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 co

nc
es
sio

ns
 m
ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e 

ab
ility

 of
 so

me
 V
olu

nta
ry 
Co

mm
un
ity
 G
rou

ps
 

to 
hir
e t
he
 fa
cili
tie
s.

Th
ere

 is
 a 
ris
k t
o t
he
 se

rvi
ce
 if 
ch
ari
tie
s 

dis
co
nti
nu
e t
o u

se
 th
es
e v

en
ue
s a

nd
 

rep
lac

em
en
t b
oo
kin

gs
 ar

e n
ot 
ma

de
.

6
LE

ISU
RE

 @
  - 

CU
ST

OM
ER

 S
ER

VIC
ES

 - R
ED

UC
TIO

N 
IN
 C
OS

TS
 D
UE

 
TO

 IN
CR

EA
SE

D 
ON

LIN
E 
BO

OK
IN
GS

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Sa
vin

g g
en
era

ted
 th
rou

gh
 th
e d

ele
tio
n o

f a
 po

st

15
,00

0
15
,00

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tife

d.
No

ne
 id
en
tfie

d.

7
TO

W
N 
HA

LL
 / P

UM
P 
RO

OM
 - S

TA
FF

IN
G 
RE

OR
GA

NI
SA

TIO
N 
    
    
    
    
   

46
,40

0
46
,40

0
No

ne
 id
en
tife

d.
No

ne
 id
en
tfie

d.

8
OP

ER
AT

IO
NA

L R
ES

TR
UC

TU
RE

 A
T L

EIS
UR

E@
24
,30

0
24
,30

0
Re

du
nd
an
cy

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tife

d.
No

ne
 id
en
tfie

d.

9
AD

MI
N 
TE

AM
 R
ES

TR
UC

TU
RE

 A
T L

EIS
UR

E@
11
,90

0
11
,90

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tife

d.
No

ne
 id
en
tfie

d.

10
TO

UR
IST

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N 
IN
TE

RV
EN

TIO
N 
-   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
vie

w 
res

ult
ed
 in
 re

org
an
isa

tio
n a

nd
 de

let
ion

 of
 a 
po
st 
fol
low

ing
 re

tire
me

nt 
of 
po
sth

old
er.

15
,00

0
15
,00

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tife

d.
No

ne
 id
en
tfie

d.

11
RE

MO
VA

L O
F L

EIS
UR

E 
@
 C
ON

TIN
GE

NC
Y B

UD
GE

T
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tife

d.
No

ne
 id
en
tfie

d.
12

EV
ER

YM
AN

 TH
EA

TR
E 
PH

AS
ED

 G
RA

NT
 R
ED

UC
TIO

N 
(O
VE

R 
6 

YE
AR

S)
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Ph
as
ed
 re

du
cti
on
 in
 gr

an
t o
ve
r 6

 ye
ars

 re
su
ltin

g f
rom

 th
e r

en
eg
oti
ati
on
 of
 

lea
se
 an

d s
up
po
rt f

or 
the

 gr
an
t a
pll
ica

tio
n o

f £
25
0k
 to
wa

rds
 th
ea
tre

 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 
co
sts

 an
d l
oa
n a

pp
lica

tio
n f
or 

£1
m,
 w
ith
 in
ter

es
t (t

ota
l £
30
k 

ov
er 

6 y
ea
rs)

5,0
00

5,0
00

5,0
00

5,0
00

5,0
00

25
,00

0
Th
e g

ran
t re

du
cti
on
 m
ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e 

Ev
ery

ma
n's

 ab
ility

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 ou
tre

ac
h w

ork
 

wh
ich

 is
 pa

rtic
ula

ly 
va
lue

d b
y c

om
mu

nit
y 

gro
up
s; 
the

 ev
ery

ma
n h

as
 fo
cu
se
d r

ec
en
tly
 on

 
wo

rk 
wit

h B
ME

 co
mm

un
itie

s. 

Ma
y i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 op

era
tio
ns
 of
 th
e 

Ev
ery

ma
n T

he
atr

e.

BU
ILT

 E
NV

IR
ON

ME
NT

13
SA

LE
 O
F A

SS
ET

S 
AG

RE
ED

 B
Y T

HE
 A
SS

ET
 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

W
OR

KIN
G 
GR

OU
P 
(A
MW

G)
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

De
bt 
Pr
em

ium
 sa

vin
gs
 re

su
ltin

g f
rom

 sa
les

 of
 as

se
ts 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

CA
MB

RA
Y P

LA
CE

75
,00

0
75
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

14
AD

DI
TIO

NA
L I
NC

OM
E 
FR

OM
 LE

TT
IN
GS

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

14
,00

0
14
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

15
BU

ILD
IN
G 
CO

NT
RO

L: 
RE

DU
CE

 A
DM

IN
IST

RA
TIO

N 
SU

PP
OR

T  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

(1 
FT

E 
- S

HA
RE

D 
50
:50

 W
ITH

 TE
W
KE

SB
UR

Y B
C)

11
,60

0
11
,60

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

0.5
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y c

ou
ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 se

rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry 
an
d i
nc
om

e g
en
era

tio
n.

16
BU

ILD
IN
G 
CO

NT
RO

L: 
TE

RM
IN
AT

E 
CO

NT
RA

CT
S 
OF

 2 
PT

 B
UI
LD

IN
G 

IN
SP

EC
TO

RS
 (S

HA
RE

D 
50
:50

 W
ITH

 TE
W
KE

SB
UR

Y B
C)

19
,90

0
19
,90

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y c

ou
ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 se

rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry 
an
d i
nc
om

e g
en
era

tio
n.

17
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T C
ON

TR
OL

: R
ED

UC
E 
AD

MI
NI
ST

RA
TIO

N 
SU

PP
OR

T 
(1F

TE
)

20
,00

0
20
,00

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y c

ou
ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 se

rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry.

MT
FS

 P
ER

IO
D

03
/02

/11
Pa

ge
 1 
of 

7

Page 121



BR
ID
GI
NG

 TH
E 
GA

P 
(B
tG
) P

RO
GR

AM
ME

AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Cu
mu

lat
ive

20
11
-12

Br
idg

ing
 th

e G
ap

 P
ro
gr
am

me
 

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

an
nu

al 
im

pa
ct 

on
On

e-o
ff 

FT
E 
Im

pa
ct

FT
E 

FT
E 

Eq
ua
lity

 an
d D

ive
rs
ity

 im
pa

cts
Se

rvi
ce
/R
isk

 im
pli

ca
tio

ns
Pr
oje

ct 
/ A

re
a o

f A
cti

vit
y 

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

20
16
/17

MT
FS

 20
15
/16

 
Co

sts
Lo

ss
es

Lo
ss
es

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

20
11
/12

Fu
tur

e Y
rs

A
D

F
G

H
I

J
K

L
M

N
O

P
Q

MT
FS

 P
ER

IO
D

OP
ER

AT
IO
NS

18
DE

PO
T R

AT
IO
NA

LIS
AT

IO
N 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Op
era

tio
na
l g
ain

s c
rea

ted
 by

 Te
wk

es
bu
ry 
BC

 an
d a

 re
cy
clin

g o
pe
rat

ors
 

oc
cu
pa
nc
y e

.g.
 le
as
e i
nc
om

e a
nd
 fu
el 
sa
vin

g d
ue
 to
 re

du
cti
on
 in
 jo
urn

ey
s t
o 

the
 tip

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

0
As

sis
tan

t D
ire
cto

r to
 ke

ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 of
 ho

w 
old

er 
pe
op
le 
/ d
isa

ble
d p

eo
ple

 ar
e u

sin
g t
he
 

ne
w 
ou
tdo

or 
fac

iliti
es
 an

d m
ak
e s

ure
 th
ey
 ar

e 
aw

are
 of
 th
e h

elp
 th
at 
is 
av
ail
ab
le.

Th
e p

rop
os
ed
 ch

an
ge
s t
o w

as
te 
an
d r

ec
yc
ling

 
co
lle
cti
on
 sy

ste
ms

 m
ay
 re

su
lt i
n i
nc
rea

se
d u

se
 

of 
the

 re
cy
clin

g c
en
tre

. If
 ad

dit
ion

al 
ve
hic

le 
mo

ve
me

nts
 ar

e r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 di
sp
os
e o

f a
n 

inc
rea

se
d v

olu
me

 of
 m
ate

ria
l th

is 
wil
l h
av
e a

 
ne
ga
tiv
e f
ina

nc
ial
 im

pa
ct.
  W

ork
 is
 be

ing
 do

ne
 

to 
hig

hlig
ht 
tha

t th
e s

ite
 is
 pr

ed
om

ina
ntl
y f
or 

rec
yc
ling

 an
d n

ot 
wa

ste
 di
sp
os
al.

Inc
om

e f
rom

 TB
C 
co
-lo
ca
tin
g d

ep
ots

 (re
nt 
rev

iew
)

22
,60

0
22
,60

0
Pr
int
wa

ste
 P
rem

ise
s L

ice
nc
e

39
,00

0
39
,00

0
19

UN
DE

RT
AK

E 
EX

TE
RN

AL
 A
IR
 Q
UA

LIT
Y M

ON
ITO

RI
NG

 A
S 

AL
TE

RN
AT

IVE
 TO

 O
W
N 
EQ

UI
PM

EN
T

4,0
00

4,0
00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

CA
ST

20
SO

UR
CI
NG

 S
TR

AT
EG

Y -
 R
EV

EN
UE

S 
& 
BE

NE
FIT

S 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Sa
vin

gs
 fro

m 
Sy

ste
ms

 Th
ink

ing
35
,00

0
11
5,0

00
15
0,0

00
20
11
-12

 1 
FT

E 
Va

ca
nt 
po
st 
    
    
    
    
  

20
12
-13

 2.
9 F

TE
 

Re
du
nd
an
cie

s

1.0
2.9

Th
e s

ys
tem

s t
hin

kin
g w

ork
 sh

ou
ld 
pro

du
ce
 a 

mo
re 

eff
icie

nt 
an
d e

ffe
cti
ve
 se

rvi
ce
 fo
r o

ur 
cu
sto

me
rs.

No
ne
 id
en
tife

d..

21
SY

ST
EM

S 
TH

IN
KIN

G 
- IC

T P
HA

SE
 1 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Te
mp

ora
ry 
po
st 
de
let
ed
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of
 ef
fic
ien

cie
s a

ris
ing

 fro
m 
a s

ys
tem

s 
thi
nk
ing

 re
vie

w

30
,00

0
30
,00

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

22
CA

NC
EL

 LI
CE

NC
E F

OR
 G
EO

GR
AP

HI
C 
IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N 
SY

ST
EM

 
(G
IS)

12
,90

0
12
,90

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

PO
LIC

Y &
 P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

23
IN
TE

RN
AL

 A
UD

IT 
PA

RT
NE

RS
HI
P 
W
ITH

 C
OT

SW
OL

D 
DC

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sa
vin

gs
 re

su
tlin

g f
rom

 ap
pro

va
l o
f th

e b
us
ine

ss
 ca

se
 by

 bo
th 
Ca

bin
ets

 in
 

Ju
ne
 20

09
 an

d i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 ne

w 
sh
are

d s
erv

ice
 on

 01
/09

/09
.   

30
,40

0
30
,40

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

24
SH

AR
ED

 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 LA

ND
 U
SE

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Sh
are

d S
tra

teg
ic 
La
nd
 U
se
 m
an
ag
er 

wit
h T

ew
ke
sb
ury

 B
oro

ug
h C

ou
nc
il

24
,10

0
24
,10

0
Sh

are
d p

os
t

0.5
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Fu
tur
e s

erv
ice

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 to
 be

 re
vie

we
d 

20
11
-12

.

25
AU

DI
T C

OM
MI
SS

IO
N 
FE

E 
SA

VIN
GS

 FO
LL
OW

IN
G 
CE

SS
AT

IO
N 
OF

 
CO

MP
RE

HE
NS

IVE
 A
RE

A 
AS

SE
SS

ME
NT

18
,00

0
18
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

26
LO

CA
L G

OV
ER

NM
EN

T A
SS

OC
IAT

IO
N 
(LG

A)
 - S

AV
IN
G 
RE

SU
LT

IN
G 

FR
OM

 R
ED

UC
TIO

N 
IN
 M
EM

BE
RS

HI
P 
CO

ST
2,6

00
30
0

30
0

3,2
00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

HU
MA

N 
RE

SO
UR

CE
S

27
SY

ST
EM

S 
& 
BU

SIN
ES

S 
IM
PR

OV
EM

EN
T M

AN
AG

ER
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Po
sth

old
er 

tra
ns
fer

red
 to
 G
O 
Pr
og
ram

me
 fro

m 
Au

gu
st 
20
11

16
,30

0
16
,30

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tfie

d.
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
 bu

t w
ill m

on
ito
r P

ay
rol
l 

res
ilie

nc
e d

uri
ng
 fir
st 
ha
lf o

f 2
01
1-1

2.
28

CO
RP

OR
AT

E 
TR

AIN
IN
G 
- IN

CR
EA

SE
D 
US

E 
OF

 LM
S 
LE

AR
NI
NG

 
GA

TE
W
AY

2,0
00

2,0
00

2,0
00

2,0
00

8,0
00

Ne
ed
 to
 ke

ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 of
 st
aff

 ac
ce
ss
 to
 

tra
inin

g t
o m

ak
e s

ure
 th
at 
the

re 
are

 no
 

ba
rrie

rs 
to 
lea

rni
ng
.

Ne
ed
 to
 em

be
d u

se
 of
 Le

arn
ing

 G
ate

wa
y a

nd
 

pro
mo

te 
us
e o

f s
elf
 m
an
ag
ed
 le
arn

ing
. 

Re
du
ce
d d

ire
ct 
tra

inin
g d

eli
ve
ry.
 W

ill n
ee
d t
o 

be
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 cu
ltu
re 

an
d b

eh
av
iou

r 
ch
an
ge
 - t

o s
elf
-m

an
ag
ed
 le
arn

ing
 th
rou

gh
 

us
e o

f e
-te

ch
no
log

y. 
 W

ill i
mp

ac
t s
erv

ice
 

ab
ility

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 in
-ho

us
e s

up
po
rt f

or 
co
mp

ete
nc
y d

ev
elo

pm
en
t, p

erf
orm

an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt,
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 de

ve
lop

me
nt,
 

fac
ilita

tio
n o

f e
ve
nts

. 

ON
E 
LE

GA
L

29
ON

E 
LE

GA
L  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Cu
mu

lat
ive

 ef
fec

t o
f tw

o y
ea
rs 
of 
pa
y f
ree

ze
s.

9,6
00

9,6
00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 S
ER

VIC
ES

30
CO

MM
UN

ITY
 D
EV

EL
OP

ME
NT

 R
EO

RG
AN

ISA
TIO

N 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Re
org

an
isa

tio
n o

f th
e C

om
mu

nit
y D

ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 H
ou
sin

g O
pti
on
s 

Te
am

s: 
ba
lan

ce
 of
 sa

vin
g f
oll
ow

ing
 re

str
uc
tur
e

14
,60

0
14
,60

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

31
CO

MM
UN

ITY
 A
LA

RM
S 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Sa
vin

g f
rom

 re
ne
go
tia
tio
n o

f e
me

rge
nc
y c

all
 ou

t c
on
tra

ct 
an
d r

ed
uc
tio
n i
n 

life
line

 eq
uip

me
nt 
bu
dg
et 
to 
ma

tch
 st
oc
k r
eq
uir
em

en
ts

13
,00

0
13
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

73
1,7

00
13
6,0

00
63
,40

0
39
,90

0
11
,40

0
0

98
2,4

00
0

0
10
.0

2.9
TO

TA
L S

AV
IN
GS

 B
UI
LT

 IN
TO

 B
AS

E B
UD

GE
T

03
/02

/11
Pa

ge
 2 
of 

7

Page 122



BR
ID
GI
NG

 TH
E 
GA

P 
(B
tG
) P

RO
GR

AM
ME

AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Cu
mu

lat
ive

20
11
-12

Br
idg

ing
 th

e G
ap

 P
ro
gr
am

me
 

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

an
nu

al 
im

pa
ct 

on
On

e-o
ff 

FT
E 
Im

pa
ct

FT
E 

FT
E 

Eq
ua
lity

 an
d D

ive
rs
ity

 im
pa

cts
Se

rvi
ce
/R
isk

 im
pli

ca
tio

ns
Pr
oje

ct 
/ A

re
a o

f A
cti

vit
y 

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

20
16
/17

MT
FS

 20
15
/16

 
Co

sts
Lo

ss
es

Lo
ss
es

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

20
11
/12

Fu
tur

e Y
rs

A
D

F
G

H
I

J
K

L
M

N
O

P
Q

MT
FS

 P
ER

IO
D

20
11

-1
2 
BR

ID
GI
NG

 T
HE

 G
AP

 IN
IT
IA
TI
VE

S 
- N

OT
 B
UI
LT

 IN
TO

 B
AS

E 
BU

DG
ET

CO
RP

OR
AT

E
32

RE
ST

RU
CT

UR
E 
OF

 S
EN

IO
R 
LE

AD
ER

SH
IP 

TE
AM

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Th
e b

us
ine

ss
 ca

se
 fo
r m

ov
ing

 to
wa

rds
 a 
co
mm

iss
ioi
ng
 co

un
cil 

wa
s 

ap
pro

ve
d b

y c
ou
nc
il o

n 1
3/1

2/1
0

14
4,0

00
54
,00

0
15
,00

0
21
3,0

00
20
11
-12

 1 
FT

E 
Va

ca
nt 
po
st 
    
    
   

1 F
TE

 
Re

du
nd
an
cy
    
    
    
 

20
12
-13

 1 
FT

E 
Re

du
nd
an
cy

2.0
1.0

Th
e r

es
tru
ctu

re 
of 
Se

nio
r L

ea
de
rsh

ip 
Te

am
 

co
uld

 po
ten

tia
lly 

red
uc
e t
he
 pr

op
ort

ion
 of
 

fem
ale

s i
n t
he
 to
p 5

% 
of 
ea
rne

rs.

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y o

f th
e S

en
ior
 

Le
ad
ers

hip
 Te

am
.

33
RE

ST
RU

CT
UR

E 
OF

 A
DM

IN
IST

RA
TIO

N 
SU

PP
OR

T F
OR

 S
EN

IO
R 

LE
AD

ER
SH

IP 
TE

AM
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

10
,00

0
15
,00

0
25
,00

0
Re

du
nd
an
cy

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Ris
k t
ha
t s
en
ior
 m
an
ag
ers

 ar
e n

ot 
ful
ly 

su
pp
ort

ed
 in
 th
eir
 ro

les
.

34
RE

ST
RU

CT
UR

E 
OF

 C
OM

MI
SS

IO
NI
NG

 D
IVI

SIO
N

25
,00

0
25
,00

0
Re

du
nd
an
cy

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y t
o d

eli
ve
r th

e n
ew

 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 ap

pro
ac
h.

FIN
AN

CI
AL

 S
ER

VIC
ES

 &
 H
UM

AN
 R
ES

OU
RC

ES
35

SO
UR

CI
NG

 S
TR

AT
EG

Y -
 G
O 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 FI
NA

NC
IAL

 S
ER

VIC
ES

 &
 

HU
MA

N 
RE

SO
UR

CE
S 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Ini
tia
l b
us
ine

ss
 ca

se
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
of 
the

 G
O 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f 
an
 E
RP

 sy
ste

m 
(Fi
na
nc
e /
HR

/pr
oc
ure

me
nt)
 an

d t
he
 cr
ea
tio
n o

f c
en
tre

s o
f 

ex
ce
lle
nc
e f
or 

pro
ce
ss
ing

 tra
ns
ac
tio
ns
 (p

ay
rol
l, p

ay
me

nts
, in

vo
icin

g) 
/ 

pro
du
cti
on
 of
 ba

sic
 re

po
rtin

g /
 st
ate

me
nt 
of 
ac
co
un
ts,
 V
AT

, g
ov
ern

me
nt 

ret
urn

s e
tc.

17
8,8

00
17
8,8

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Tra
ns
ac
tio
na
l p
roc

es
sin

g (
ac
co
un
ts 

rec
ev
ab
le,
 pa

ya
ble

, p
ay
rol
l e
tc.
) m

ay
 no

t 
un
de
rta

ke
n l
oc
all
y a

nd
 th
ere

 is
 lik

ely
 to
 be

 
mo

re 
se
lf s

erv
ice

 by
 m
an
ag
ers

 an
d u

se
rs 
of 

the
 sy

ste
ms

. T
he
 re

su
ltin

g s
ign

ific
an
t c
ult
ura

l 
ch
an
ge
 w
hic

h w
ill r

eq
uir
e s

up
po
rt /

 re
so
urc

ing
 

in 
ord

er 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t th

e t
ran

sit
ion

 is
 

su
cc
es
sfu

l.
HU

MA
N 
RE

SO
UR

CE
S

36
RE

DU
CE

D 
W
OR

KIN
G 
HO

UR
S 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Of
fer

 em
plo

ye
es
 th
e o

pp
ort

un
ity
 to
 pe

rm
an
en
tly
 re

du
ce
 th
eir
 co

ntr
ac
ted

 
ho
urs

 ai
me

d a
t d
eli
ve
rin
g a

 ta
rge

t p
erm

an
en
t e
mp

loy
ee
 bu

dg
et 
sa
vin

g o
n 

the
 as

su
mp

tio
n t
ha
t a
ny
 po

ten
tia
l c
ha
ng
e i
n s

erv
ice

 le
ve
ls 
are

 ac
ce
pta

ble
.

8,0
00

8,0
00

Va
ca
nt 
po
st

0.5
Th
e o

pti
on
 to
 re

du
ce
 w
ork

ing
 ho

urs
 is
 m
ore

 
like

ly 
to 
be
 ta
ke
n u

p b
y f
em

ale
 m
em

be
rs 
of 

sta
ff w

ho
 m
ay
 ha

ve
 ch

ild
ren

 or
 ca

rin
g 

res
po
ns
ibi
litie

s. 
 S
en
ior
 Le

ad
ers

hip
 Te

am
 to
 

ma
ke
 su

re 
sta

ff h
av
e a

cc
es
s t
o f
ull 

inf
orm

ati
on
 ab

ou
t th

e r
ed
uc
tio
n i
n h

ou
rs 
an
d 

the
 im

pa
ct 
thi
s w

ill h
av
e o

n s
ala

rie
s /
 

pe
ns
ion

s.

W
ill n

ee
d t
o b

e s
ub
jec

t to
 th
e n

ee
ds
 of
 th
e 

bu
sin

es
s a

nd
 on

ly 
ap
pro

ve
d i
f h
as
 no

 
de
trim

en
tal
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e s

erv
ice

. A
 po

licy
 

an
d g

uid
an
ce
 w
ill n

ee
d t
o b

e w
ritt
en
 fo
r 

Ma
na
ge
rs,
 to
 as

sis
t in

 de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 re

qu
es
ts 

fro
m 
sta

ff. 
Co

uld
 im

pro
ve
 st
aff

 m
ora

le 
thr
ou
gh
 im

pro
ve
d w

ork
-lif
e b

ala
nc
e. 
Po

ss
ibl
e 

im
pa
ct 
on
 fin

al 
sa
lar
y p

en
sio

n e
nti
tle
me

nts
 fo
r 

so
me

 st
aff

, w
hic

h m
ay
 di
sc
ou
rag

e t
ak
e-u

p o
n 

a p
erm

an
en
t b
as
is.
  C

ou
nc
il w

ill n
ee
d t
o 

ma
na
ge
 ex

pe
cta

tio
ns
 of
 re

du
ce
d w

ork
loa

d 
an
d  
po
ss
ibl
e r

ed
uc
tio
ns
 in
 ou

tpu
t fo

r s
taf
f 

aff
ec
ted

.  
37

EM
PL

OY
EE

 P
AR

KIN
G 
LE

VY
 / G

RE
EN

 TR
AV

EL
 P
LA

N 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Int
rod

uc
e a

 ch
arg

e f
or 

pa
rki
ng
, c
ou
ple

d w
ith
 th
e i
ntr
od
uc
tio
n o

f a
 gr

ee
n 

tra
ve
l p
lan

 ai
me

d a
t re

du
cin

g e
mp

loy
ee
s u

se
 of
 th
e c

ar 
an
d s

hif
t to

 
alt
ern

ati
ve
 m
od
es
 of
 tra

ns
po
rt.

10
,70

0
10
,70

0
Po

ten
tia
l g
rea

ter
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th
os
e o

n l
ow

er 
pa
y a

nd
 S
en
ior
 Le

ad
ers

hip
 Te

am
 w
ill n

ee
d t
o 

en
su
re 

tha
t s
taf
f w

ith
 m
ob
ility

 pr
ob
lem

s 
co
nti
nu
e t
o h

av
e a

cc
es
s t
o p

ark
ing

 cl
os
e t
o 

the
ir p

lac
e o

f w
ork

, a
nd
 co

ns
ide

r lo
ca
tio
n o

f 
sp
ac
es
 re

. c
ar 

us
ers

 e.
g. 
es
se
nti
al 
us
ers

.

Lik
ely

 to
 re

du
ce
 st
aff

 m
ora

le,
 es

pe
cia

lly 
 if 
a 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
ch
arg

e o
r if
 fu
tur
e e

sc
ala

tio
n i
n 

ch
arg

e i
s l
ike

ly.
  M

an
y s

taf
f m

ay
 op

t o
ut,
 

eit
he
r b

y n
ot 
us
ing

 ca
r (w

hic
h m

ay
 ca

us
e 

se
rvi
ce
 di
sru

pti
on
 if 
ca
r u
sa
ge
 es

se
nti
al)
 or

 by
 

pa
rki
ng
 el
se
wh

ere
 (c
au
sin

g p
os
sib

le 
co
ng
es
tio
n).
 M
ay
 di
sc
ou
rag

e c
ar 

us
ag
e i
n l
ine

 
wit

h g
ree

n a
ge
nd
a  
bu
t if
 th
en
 su

cc
es
sfu

l 
inc

om
e f
rom

 pe
rm

its
 w
ou
ld 
red

uc
e a

nd
 

Co
un
cil 

ma
y h

av
e t
o u

pg
rad

e f
ac
iliti
es
 fo
r 

cy
clis

ts.
  T

ak
e-u

p m
ay
 be

 re
du
ce
d b

y m
ore

 
fle
xib

le 
(ho

me
) w

ork
ing

 an
d i
nd
ivid

ua
ls 

ele
cti
ng
 to
 ca

r s
ha
re 

or 
us
e p

ub
lic 

tra
ns
po
rt.

38
IN
TR

OD
UC

E 
DS

E 
EY

E 
TE

ST
 V
OU

CH
ER

 S
CH

EM
E 
FO

R 
EM

PL
OY

EE
S 

IN
 LI
NE

 W
ITH

 D
SE

 R
EG

UL
AT

IO
NS

1,0
00

1,0
00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

39
CO

RP
OR

AT
E 
HE

AL
TH

 &
 S
AF

ET
Y S

TA
FF

 R
EV

IEW
12
,10

0
12
,10

0
Sh

are
d p

os
t

0.5
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
ere

 ar
e r

es
ilie

nc
e i
ss
ue
s i
f m

ov
e t
o 1

 FT
E,
 

thi
s c

ou
ld 
be
 po

ten
tia
lly 

res
olv

ed
 th
rou

gh
 

sh
are

d s
erv

ice
s. 
 Le

arn
ing

 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Sy
ste

m 
co
uld

 be
 us

ed
 fo
r s
elf
 m
an
ag
ed
 H
&S

 
tra

inin
g, 
cu
lltu

re 
an
d b

eh
av
iou

r is
su
es
 bu

t th
e 

lar
ge
st 
ris
k g

rou
p a

re 
no
t P

C 
us
ers

/of
fic
e 

ba
se
d a

nd
 th
ere

for
e s

elf
 m
an
ag
ed
 an

d e
-

lea
rni
ng
 no

t s
uit
ab
le.
  N

ee
d t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 

ca
pa
cit
y i
s t
he
re 

to 
su
pp
ort

 W
as
te 

Pa
rtn
ers

hip
.

40
CU

T C
OR

PO
RA

TE
 TR

AIN
IN
G 
BU

DG
ET

22
,50

0
22
,50

0
Se

nio
r L

ea
de
rsh

ip 
Te

am
 ne

ed
 to
 ke

ep
 an

 
ov
erv

iew
 of
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 tra

inin
g a

nd
 m
ak
e s

ure
 

tha
t th

ere
 ar

e n
o d

etr
im
en
tal
 im

pa
cts

 on
 ou

r 
eq
ua
lity

 co
mm

itm
en
ts.

Th
ere

 w
ill b

e n
o f
un
din

g t
o f
un
d e

xte
rna

l 
tra

inin
g t
ha
t m

ay
 be

 re
qu
ire
d a

s t
he
 re

ma
inin

g 
fun

d i
n c

orp
ora

te 
tra

inin
g t
o l
arg

ely
 m
ad
e u

p 
of 
ex
ist
ing

 co
mm

itm
en
ts,
 so

 tra
inin

g d
eli
ve
ry 

wil
l b
e i
mp

ac
ted

 an
d i
nc
rea

se
d r

eli
an
ce
 on

 e-
lea

rni
ng
.

41
CU

T T
O 
PR

OF
ES

SIO
NA

L T
RA

IN
IN
G 
BU

DG
ET

S 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

52
,15

0
52
,15

0
As

 ab
ov
e.

Po
ten

tia
l im

pa
ct 
on
 st
aff

's 
ab
ility

 m
ain

tai
n 

pro
fes

sio
na
l q
ua
lific

ati
on
s. 
Ma

na
ge
rs 
wil
l 

ne
ed
 to
 ex

plo
re 

alt
ern

ati
ve
 le
arn

ing
 

op
po
rtu
nit
ies

 fo
r th

e t
ea
ms

.

03
/02

/11
Pa

ge
 3 
of 

7

Page 123



BR
ID
GI
NG

 TH
E 
GA

P 
(B
tG
) P

RO
GR

AM
ME

AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Cu
mu

lat
ive

20
11
-12

Br
idg

ing
 th

e G
ap

 P
ro
gr
am

me
 

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

an
nu

al 
im

pa
ct 

on
On

e-o
ff 

FT
E 
Im

pa
ct

FT
E 

FT
E 

Eq
ua
lity

 an
d D

ive
rs
ity

 im
pa

cts
Se

rvi
ce
/R
isk

 im
pli

ca
tio

ns
Pr
oje

ct 
/ A

re
a o

f A
cti

vit
y 

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

20
16
/17

MT
FS

 20
15
/16

 
Co

sts
Lo

ss
es

Lo
ss
es

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

20
11
/12

Fu
tur

e Y
rs

A
D

F
G

H
I

J
K

L
M

N
O

P
Q

MT
FS

 P
ER

IO
D

42
DE

LE
TE

 FR
OZ

EN
 V
AC

AN
CI
ES

 (5
0 t
urn

ov
er 

a y
ea
r, a

ss
um

e 1
0 f
roz

en
 @

 
£2
0k
 in
 la
st 
ha
lf o

f y
ea
r)  

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

80
,00

0
80
,00

0
Se

nio
r L

ea
de
rsh

ip 
Te

am
 to
 ke

ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 

on
 ho

w 
thi
s i
mp

ac
ts 
on
 th
e g

en
de
r / 

dis
ab
ility

 / 
BM

E 
pro

po
rtio

n o
f s
taf
f.

Va
ca
nc
ies

 ar
ise

 as
 a 
ma

tte
r o

f c
ha
nc
e n

ot 
pla

nn
ing

 an
d t
he
 re

qu
ire
me

nt 
for

 pa
rtic

ula
r 

sk
ills
 m
ay
 lim

it t
ran

sfe
rab

ility
 of
 st
aff

 to
 w
he
re 

the
 ne

ed
s a

re 
gre

ate
st.

43
MO

VE
 TO

 H
MR

C 
CA

R 
MI
LE

AG
E 
RE

IM
BU

RS
EM

EN
T R

AT
ES

20
,00

0
20
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Em
plo

ym
en
t re

lat
ion

s i
ss
ue
s w

ill n
ee
d t
o b

e 
ca
ref

ully
 co

ns
ide

red
 re

. v
ary

ing
 co

ntr
ac
tua

l 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
.

44
RE

VIE
W
 E
SS

EN
TIA

L/R
EG

UL
AR

 C
AR

 U
SE

R 
ST

AT
US

38
,20

0
61
,80

0
10
0,0

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
os
e t
ha
t m

ay
 no

t h
av
e c

lai
me

d m
ile
ag
e t
o 

da
te 
ma

y c
lai
m 
mi
lea

ge
 if 
the

y l
os
e t
he
ir 

all
ow

an
ce
.  N

ee
d t
o e

ns
ure

 fo
llo
w 
co
un
cil 

po
licy

 or
 ris

k e
mp

loy
me

nt 
rel
ati
on
s i
ss
ue
.

45
SY

ST
EM

S 
& 
BU

SIN
ES

S 
IM
PR

OV
EM

EN
T M

AN
AG

ER
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Po
sth

old
er 

tra
ns
fer

red
 to
 G
O 
Pr
og
ram

me
 fro

m 
Au

gu
st 
20
11

10
,00

0
10
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

46
RE

MO
VA

L O
F E

VE
NI
NG

 A
LL
OW

AN
CE

S
5,0

00
5,0

00
A 
po
sit
ive

 m
ov
e r

e. 
eq
ua
lity

 as
 th
e a

llo
wa

nc
e 

do
es
 no

t a
pp
ea
r to

 be
 ap

pli
ed
 co

ns
ist
en
tly
 at
 

pre
se
nt.

Th
e w

ith
dra

wl 
of 
ev
en
ing

 m
ee
tin
g a

llo
wa

nc
es
 

wil
l im

pa
ct 
on
 th
os
e o

ffic
ers

 w
ho
 m
us
t a
tte
nd
 

me
eti
ng
s a

s p
art

 of
 th
eir
 re

gu
lar
 du

tie
s e

g 
de
mo

cra
tic
 se

rvi
ce
s. 
 Th

e c
urr

en
t s
taf
fin
g 

lev
els

 ar
e n

ot 
ge
are

d t
ow

ard
s t
im
e o

ff i
n l
ieu

 
an
d t
he
ref

ore
 it 
wil
l im

pa
ct 
on
 th
eir
 av

ail
ab
ility

 
du
rin
g n

orm
al 
off

ice
s h

ou
rs.
  T

he
 ne

w 
loc

ali
sm

 bi
ll w

ill a
lso

 pu
t m

ore
 of
 a 

req
uir
em

en
t o
n o

ffic
ers

 to
 at
ten

d c
om

mu
nit
y 

me
eti
ng
s w

hic
h w

ill b
e i
n a

n e
ve
nin

g a
nd
 

the
ref

ore
 m
em

be
rs,
 pu

bli
c a

nd
 ot
he
r o

ffic
er 

ex
pe
cta

tio
ns
 ab

ou
t o
ffic

er 
av
ail
ab
ility

 du
rin
g 

off
ice

 ho
urs

 w
ill n

ee
d t
o b

e m
an
ag
ed
.

47
RE

MO
VE

 FI
RS

T A
ID
ER

 A
LL
OW

AN
CE

S
5,6

00
5,6

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

St
aff

 un
wil
ling

 to
 vo

lun
tee

r to
 be

 a 
firs

t a
ide

r. 

48
DR

OP
 E
CD

L Q
UA

LIF
IC
AT

IO
N

1,0
00

1,0
00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Lo
ss
 of
 fe
atu

re 
to 
off

er 
pa
rtn
ers

 - p
ote

nti
al 

inc
om

e g
en
era

tio
n l
os
s. 
 W

ill n
ot 
ha
ve
 

ca
pa
cit
y t
o r

ein
sta

te 
on
ce
 lo
st.
  C

BC
 ha

s 
be
en
 4 
gra

de
d t
es
t c
en
tre

 fo
r la

st 
4 y

ea
rs 
- 

los
s o

f k
ud
os
.

HE
AL

TH
 &
 W

EL
LB

EIN
G

49
CU

T G
RA

NT
 TO

 C
HE

LT
EN

HA
M 
FE

ST
IVA

LS
10
9,2

00
10
9,2

00
Th
e g

ran
t c
ut 
ma

y i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 ab

ility
 to
 

pro
vid

e o
utr
ea
ch
 w
ork

 w
hic

h i
s p

art
icu

lar
ly 

va
lue

d b
y c

om
mu

nit
y g

rou
ps
.

Ma
y i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 op

era
tio
ns
 of
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 
Fe

sti
va
ls.

NE
T L

OS
S 
OF

 B
OX

 O
FF

IC
E 
CO

MM
ISS

IO
N 
FR

OM
 C
HE

LT
EN

HA
M 
 

FE
ST

IVA
LS

-71
,40

0
-71

,40
0

50
ME

RG
ER

 O
F A

RT
 G
AL

LE
RY

 &
 M
US

EU
M 
AN

D 
TO

UR
IST

 
IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N 
CE

NT
RE

 FR
ON

T O
F H

OU
SE

 TE
AM

S 
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

50
,00

0
50
,00

0
Th
e p

rop
os
ed
 m
ov
e o

f th
e T

IC
 to
 th
e n

ew
 A
rt 

Ga
lle
ry 
ex
ten

sio
n w

ill i
mp

rov
e a

cc
es
s t
o t
his

 
se
rvi
ce
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

51
AR

T G
AL

LE
RY

 &
 M
US

EU
M 
PR

OJ
EC

TE
D 
SA

VIN
G 
IN
 N
ET

 R
UN

NI
NG

 
CO

ST
S 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Sa
vin

gs
 w
hic

h f
oll
ow

 th
e r

eo
pe
nin

g o
f th

e n
ew

 A
rt G

all
ery

 &
 M
us
eu
m 
as
 

pe
r th

e b
us
ine

ss
 ca

se
 pr

oje
cti
on
s s

up
pli
ed
 to
 th
e H

eri
tag

e L
ott
ery

 Fu
nd
. 

Fu
rth
er 

ad
dit
ion

al 
on
e o

ff s
av
ing

s w
ill b

e g
en
era

ted
 du

rin
g t
he
 te
mp

ora
ry 

clo
su
re 

in 
20
11
/12

 an
d 2

01
2/1

3.

50
,00

0
50
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Bu
sin

es
s c

as
e i
s d

ep
en
de
nt 
up
on
 in
cre

as
ed
 

tur
no
ve
r a

nd
 co

mm
erc

ial
 ac

tiv
ity
.

52
CU

T T
O 
PE

RM
AN

EN
T G

RA
NT

 TO
 TH

E 
AR

TS
 C
OU

NC
IL 

10
,00

0
10
,00

0
As

sis
tan

t D
ire
cto

r to
 ke

ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 on

 
ho
w 
thi
s w

ill i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 w
ork

 w
ith
 B
ME

 
gro

up
s a

nd
 ch

ild
ren

 / y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le.
  

Ma
y i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 op

era
tio
ns
 of
 th
e A

rts
 

Co
un
cil.

53
RE

DU
CT

IO
N 
IN
 G
RA

NT
 FU

ND
IN
G 
TO

 P
ER

FO
RM

IN
G 
AR

TS
 S
OC

IET
Y

10
,80

0
10
,80

0
As

sis
tan

t D
ire
cto

r to
 ke

ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 on

 
ho
w 
thi
s w

ill i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 w
ork

 w
ith
 B
ME

 
gro

up
s a

nd
 ch

ild
ren

 / y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le.
  

Ma
y i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 op

era
tio
ns
 of
 th
e 

Pe
rfo

rm
ing

 A
rts
 S
oc
iet
y.

03
/02

/11
Pa

ge
 4 
of 

7

Page 124



BR
ID
GI
NG

 TH
E 
GA

P 
(B
tG
) P

RO
GR

AM
ME

AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Cu
mu

lat
ive

20
11
-12

Br
idg

ing
 th

e G
ap

 P
ro
gr
am

me
 

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

an
nu

al 
im

pa
ct 

on
On

e-o
ff 

FT
E 
Im

pa
ct

FT
E 

FT
E 

Eq
ua
lity

 an
d D

ive
rs
ity

 im
pa

cts
Se

rvi
ce
/R
isk

 im
pli

ca
tio

ns
Pr
oje

ct 
/ A

re
a o

f A
cti

vit
y 

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

20
16
/17

MT
FS

 20
15
/16

 
Co

sts
Lo

ss
es

Lo
ss
es

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

20
11
/12

Fu
tur

e Y
rs

A
D

F
G

H
I

J
K

L
M

N
O

P
Q

MT
FS

 P
ER

IO
D

54
CA

NC
EL

 C
ON

TR
IBU

TIO
N 
TO

 M
AD

 (M
ak
e A

 D
iffe

ren
ce
) Y

OU
TH

 
CO

UN
CI
L O

FF
IC
ER

15
,00

0
15
,00

0
Th
e r

em
ov
al 
wil
l im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e a

bil
ity
 to
 

en
ga
ge
 w
ith
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 w
hic

h i
s p

art
icu

lar
ly 

va
lue

d b
y h

ard
 to
 re

ac
h g

rou
ps
 an

d 
ind

ivid
ua
ls.

Th
e g

ran
t is

 us
ed
 to
 fu
lly 

fun
d t
he
 M
AD

 co
-

ord
ina

tor
 w
ho
 is
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed
 by

 th
e 

Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
 C
ou
nty

 C
ou
nc
il Y

ou
th 

Se
rvi
ce
.  G

CC
 ha

ve
 no

 re
so
urc

es
 to
 

un
de
rta

ke
 th
is 
fun

cti
on
 w
ith
ou
t th

e g
ran

t 
su
pp
ort

 fro
m 
the

 co
un
cil 

an
d t
he
ref

ore
 th
e 

fun
cti
on
 w
ill c

ea
se
. H

ow
ev
er 

du
e t
o 

res
tru
ctu

rin
g w

ith
in 
GC

C's
 Yo

uth
 S
erv

ice
s a

nd
 

its
 ch

an
gin

g r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
co
nti
nu
ed
 fu
nd
ing

 
co
uld

 no
t g
ua
ran

tee
 th
e c

on
tin
ua
tio
n o

f th
e 

se
rvi
ce
.

BU
ILT

 E
NV

IR
ON

ME
NT

55
PO

W
ER

 P
ER

FE
CT

OR
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

Eq
uip

me
nt 
for

 sa
vin

g e
ne
rgy

 co
sts

 at
 Le

isu
re@

 (to
 be

 ro
lle
d o

ut 
ac
ros

s 
oth

er 
sit
es
 at
 la
ter

 st
ag
es
)

4,3
00

15
,70

0
20
,00

0
75
,94

5
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

En
erg

y s
av
ing

s a
re 

no
t d
eli
ve
red

, o
r a

re 
mi
tig
ate

d b
y o

the
r fa

cto
rs.

56
ME

RG
E 
PR

IVA
TE

 S
EC

TO
R 
HO

US
IN
G 
AN

D 
PL

AN
NI
NG

 
EN

FO
RC

EM
EN

T T
EA

MS
 (1

 FT
E)

30
,00

0
30
,00

0
TB

A
1.0

As
sis

tan
t D

ire
cto

r to
 en

su
re 

tha
t m

erg
er 

do
es
 

no
t h
av
e a

 de
trim

en
tal
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e s

afe
ty 
of 

vu
ne
rab

le 
pe
op
le 
livi
ng
 in
 H
ou
se
s i
n M

ult
ipl
e 

Oc
cu
pa
tio
n.

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y c

ou
ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 th
e 

co
un
cil'
s a

bil
ity
 to
 en

for
ce
 st
atu

tor
y 

req
uir
em

en
ts.

57
CA

R 
PA

RK
IN
G 
ST

AF
F R

ES
TR

UC
TU

RE
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

20
,00

0
20
,00

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
fiti
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

58
ME

RG
IN
G 
ON

 S
TR

EE
T A

ND
 O
FF

 S
TR

EE
T P

AR
KIN

G 
TE

AM
S

30
,00

0
10
,00

0
40
,00

0
TB

A
2.0

Th
e s

erv
ice

 is
 aw

are
 of
 th
e n

ee
d t
o e

ns
ure

 
the

 ef
fec

tiv
e e

nfo
rce

me
nt 
of 
Blu

e B
ad
ge
 

ba
ys
.

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y c

ou
ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 se

rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry.

59
CO

NC
ES

SIO
NE

RY
 FA

RE
S 
- D

ISC
RE

TIO
NE

RY
 TO

P 
UP

 O
F 

ST
AT

UT
OR

Y S
CH

EM
E.
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Cu
rre

ntl
y, 
the

 co
un
cil 

fun
ds
 th
e s

ch
em

e t
op
 up

 fo
r th

e p
eri
od
 9.
00
 - 9

.30
. 

Ho
we

ve
r, t

he
 sp

en
din

g r
ev
iew

 (C
SR

10
) to

ok
 th
e f
ull 

co
st 
/ b
ud
ge
t fo

r th
e 

sc
he
me

 aw
ay
 fro

m 
the

 co
un
cil,

 he
nc
e i
t c
an
 no

 lo
ng
er 

co
nti
nu
e t
o f
un
d t
he
 

en
ha
nc
ed
 sc

he
me

 fo
llo
win

g t
he
 tra

ns
fer

 of
 th
e r

es
po
ns
ibi
lity

 to
 G
CC

 w
ef.
 

1/4
/11

.

0
Th
ere

 w
ill b

e s
om

e d
ire
ct 
im
pa
ct 
on
 vu

ne
rab

le 
gro

up
s a

s a
 re

su
lt o

f th
e c

es
sa
tio
n o

f th
is 

se
rvi
ce
. T

he
 S
en
ior
 Le

ad
ers

hip
 Te

am
 w
ill 

ne
ed
 to
 ke

ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 of
 th
e w

ide
r 

im
pa
cts

 of
 th
e b

ud
ge
t p
rop

os
als

 on
 vu

ne
rab

le 
pe
op
le.

Th
ere

 w
ill b

e a
 di
rec

t a
nd
 ad

ve
rse

 im
pa
ct 
on
 

the
 av

ail
ab
ility

 of
 co

nc
es
sio

na
ry 
tra

ns
po
rt 

be
tw
ee
n 9

.00
am

 an
d 9

.30
am

.

60
CA

NC
EL

 TA
XI 

VO
UC

HE
R 
SC

HE
ME

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Th
ird
 S
ec
tor

 S
erv

ice
s p

rov
ide

 tra
ns
po
rt s

erv
ice

 fo
r th

os
e i
n n

ee
d. 
 

Dis
co
nti
nu
e d

isc
ret

ion
ary

 el
em

en
t o
f c
on
ce
ss
ion

ary
 tra

ve
l s
ch
em

e i
n l
igh

t o
f 

co
un
ty 
on
ly 
ba
ck
ing

 st
atu

tor
y s

ch
em

e. 
 P
rov

ide
 £5

.4k
 ba

ck
 to
 Th

ird
 S
ec
tor

 
Se

rvi
ce
s f
or 

co
mm

un
ity
 tra

ns
po
rt s

up
po
rt. 

    
    
    
    
    
    
  

26
,70

0
26
,70

0
Th
e p

rop
os
al 
wil
l re

mo
ve
 a 
fac

ility
 th
at 

pro
vid

es
 te
n £

2 t
ax
i v
ou
ch
ers

 fo
r d

isa
ble

d 
pe
op
le 
an
d a

s s
uc
h w

ill h
av
e a

 de
trim

en
tal
 

im
pa
ct 
on
 re

cip
ien

ts 
ab
ility

 to
 tra

ve
l.  
Th
e 

gra
nt 
to 
Th
ird
 S
ec
tor

 S
erv

ice
s w

ill p
rov

ide
 

so
me

 m
itig

ati
on
 bu

t S
en
ior
 Le

ad
ers

hip
 Te

am
 

wil
l n
ee
d t
o k

ee
p a

n o
ve
rvi
ew

 of
 th
e w

ide
r 

im
pa
cts

 of
 th
e p

rop
os
al 
on
 di
sa
ble

d p
eo
ple

.

Co
nc
es
sio

na
ry 
tra

ve
l w

ill b
e a

 C
ou
nty

 C
ou
nc
il 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity

 fro
m 
1s
t A

pri
l 2
01
1. 

Pr
ov
ide

 fin
an
cia

l s
up
po
rt t

o T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 S
erv

ice
s t
o s

up
po
rt c

om
mu

nit
y 

tra
ns
po
rt.

-5,
40
0

-5,
40
0

Ch
arg

e T
hir
d S

ec
tor

 S
erv

ice
s f
or 

us
e o

f C
oll
eg
e R

oa
d.

5,4
00

5,4
00

61
CA

NC
EL

 C
HA

RL
TO

N 
KIN

GS
 E
LD

ER
LY

 TR
AN

SP
OR

T G
RA

NT
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

3,0
00

3,0
00

Th
e p

rop
os
al 
wil
l re

mo
ve
 a 
fac

ility
 th
at 

pro
vid

es
 tra

ns
po
rt f

or 
old

er,
 di
sa
ble

d a
nd
 

ho
us
e b

ou
nd
 pe

op
le 
in 
the

 C
ha
rlto

n K
ing

s 
are

a a
nd
 as

 su
ch
 w
ill h

av
e a

 de
trim

en
tal
 

im
pa
ct 
on
 th
eir
 ab

ility
 to
 tra

ve
l.

Of
fic
ers

 w
ill n

ee
d t
o h

av
e d

isc
us
sio

ns
 w
ith
 C
K 

Se
nio

r C
itiz

en
s W

elf
are

 C
om

mi
tte
e, 
wh

o r
un
 

the
 sc

he
me

, a
bo
ut 
ho
w 
the

 w
ith
dra

wa
l o
f 

fun
din

g c
an
 be

 m
itig

ate
d -

 ei
the

r b
y c

ha
rgi
ng
 

fee
s o

r b
y u

sin
g o

the
r c
om

mu
nit
y t
ran

sp
ort

 
op
tio
ns

62
UR

BA
N 
DE

SIG
N 
PR

OJ
EC

TS
 O
FF

IC
ER

20
,00

0
20
,00

0
Re

du
nd
an
cy

0.6
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y w

ill i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 ab

ility
 

of 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 to
 su

pp
ort

 pr
oje

ct 
rel
ate

d 
ac
tiv
itie

s.

OP
ER

AT
IO
NS

63
SH

AR
ED

 W
AS

TE
 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T S

ER
VIC

ES
 W

ITH
 TE

W
KE

SB
UR

Y B
C 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Op
era

tio
na
l e
ffic

ien
cie

s r
es
ult
ing

 fro
m 
op
era

tin
g s

ha
red

 w
ork

ing
 pr

ac
tic
es
 

wit
h T

ew
ke
sb
ury

 B
C.

50
,00

0
50
,00

0
10
0,0

00
20
11
/12

 2.
0 F

TE
 

Va
ca
nt 
po
sts

   
20
12
-13

 2.
0 F

TE
 

Re
du
nd
an
cie

s

2.0
2.0

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

64
IN
CR

EA
SE

 P
ES

T C
ON

TR
OL

 C
HA

RG
ES

 B
Y 5

%
1,1

00
1,1

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
e i
nc
rea

se
 m
ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 th
e a

bil
ity
 of
 

so
me

 in
div

idu
als

 to
 pu

rch
as
e t
he
 co

un
cil'
s 

se
rvi
ce
, b
ut 
alt
ern

ati
ve
 su

pp
lie
rs 
are

 av
ail
ab
le.
  

65
MO

VE
 TO

 S
US

TA
IN
AB

LE
 P
LA

NT
IN
G 
AT

 B
ER

KE
LE

Y M
EW

S 
& 

OX
FO

RD
 G
AR

DE
NS

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

22
,00

0
22
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

03
/02

/11
Pa

ge
 5 
of 

7

Page 125



BR
ID
GI
NG

 TH
E 
GA

P 
(B
tG
) P

RO
GR

AM
ME

AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Cu
mu

lat
ive

20
11
-12

Br
idg

ing
 th

e G
ap

 P
ro
gr
am

me
 

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

an
nu

al 
im

pa
ct 

on
On

e-o
ff 

FT
E 
Im

pa
ct

FT
E 

FT
E 

Eq
ua
lity

 an
d D

ive
rs
ity

 im
pa

cts
Se

rvi
ce
/R
isk

 im
pli

ca
tio

ns
Pr
oje

ct 
/ A

re
a o

f A
cti

vit
y 

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

20
16
/17

MT
FS

 20
15
/16

 
Co

sts
Lo

ss
es

Lo
ss
es

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

20
11
/12

Fu
tur

e Y
rs

A
D

F
G

H
I

J
K

L
M

N
O

P
Q

MT
FS

 P
ER

IO
D

66
RE

VIE
W
 O
F A

LL
OT

ME
NT

S 
SE

RV
IC
E 
- IN

CR
EA

SE
 IN

 C
HA

RG
ES

 TO
 

CO
VE

R 
CO

ST
 O
F S

ER
VIC

E 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

1,0
00

25
,00

0
26
,00

0
Th
e i
nc
rea

se
 in
 ch

arg
es
 fo
r a

llo
tm
en
ts 
ma

y 
im
pa
ct 
on
 th
e a

bil
ity
 of
 so

me
 in
div

idu
als

 to
 

aff
ord

 th
eir
 al
lot
me

nts
. A

ss
ist
an
t D

ire
cto

r to
 

ke
ep
 an

 ov
erv

iew
 on

 th
e i
mp

ac
t o
f th

is 
pro

po
sa
l.

It i
s a

nti
cip

ate
d t
ha
t th

e r
ev
iew

 of
 th
e 

all
otm

en
t c
ha
rge

 an
d t
he
 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of
 a 

ne
w 
ch
arg

ing
 st
ruc

tur
e w

ill n
ot 
im
pa
ct 

sig
nif
ica

ntl
y o

n a
llo
tm
en
t ta

ke
-up

.

67
RE

OR
GA

NI
SE

 P
UB

LIC
 P
RO

TE
CT

IO
N 
TO

 R
ED

UC
E 
TH

RE
E 
SE

RV
IC
E 

MA
NA

GE
RS

 TO
 TW

O 
    
  

35
,00

0
35
,00

0
Re

du
nd
an
cy

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 ca

pa
cit
y c

ou
ld 
im
pa
ct 
on
 se

rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry.

68
DE

PO
T R

AT
IO
NA

LIS
AT

IO
N 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Op
era

tio
na
l g
ain

s c
rea

ted
 by

 Te
wk

es
bu
ry 
BC

 an
d a

 re
cy
clin

g o
pe
rat

ors
 

oc
cu
pa
nc
y e

.g.
 le
as
e i
nc
om

e a
nd
 fu
el 
sa
vin

g d
ue
 to
 re

du
cti
on
 in
 jo
urn

ey
s t
o 

the
 tip

.   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
 - p

roj
ec
t c
om

ple
te.

TB
C 
an
d F

OD
 D
C 
Dr
y R

ec
yc
lat
e

12
,50

0
12
,50

0
St
ren

gth
en
ed
 m
ark

et 
pri
ce
s p

lus
 lo
ng
er 

ter
m 
de
als

 fa
cili
tat
ed
 th
rou

gh
 th
e 

Pr
int
wa

ste
 C
on
tra

ct
89
,20

0
89
,20

0

69
MO

VE
 TO

 A
LT

ER
NA

TE
 W

EE
KL

Y C
OL

LE
CT

IO
NS

 an
d C

HA
RG

E 
FO

R 
CO

LL
EC

TIO
N 
OF

 G
RE

EN
 W

AS
TE

74
7,1

00
58
,80

0
80
5,9

00
Th
e i
ntr
od
uc
tio
n o

f c
ha
rgi
ng
 fo
r g

ard
en
 w
as
te 

wil
l im

pa
ct 
mo

re 
on
 re

sid
en
ts 
on
 lo
we

r 
inc

om
es
 w
ho
 w
ish

 to
 pu

rch
as
e t
his

 se
rvi
ce
 

wh
ich

 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y f
ree

, o
r c
an
 no

t a
cc
es
s t
he
 

fac
iltie

s a
t th

e d
ep
ot.
  T

he
 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of
 

wh
ee
lie
 bi
ns
 fo
r g

ard
en
 w
as
te 
wil
l m

ak
e i
t 

ea
sie

r to
 tra

ns
po
rt f

or 
res

ide
nts

 an
d s

taf
f.  
It 

wil
l b
e i
mp

ort
an
t to

 en
su
re 

tha
t re

sid
en
ts 
wil
l 

red
uc
e m

ob
ility

 ar
e a

wa
re 

of 
the

 as
sis

ted
 

co
lle
cti
on
 se

rvi
ce
.

Ta
ke
 up

 of
 th
e n

ew
 se

rvi
ce
 m
ay
 be

 lo
we

r th
an
 

an
tic
ipa

ted
. A

 co
mp

reh
en
siv

e p
rom

oti
on
al 

ca
mp

aig
n i
s b

ein
g d

eli
ve
red

 to
 hi
gh
lig
ht 
the

 
se
rvi
ce
 an

d t
he
 be

ne
fits

 to
 cu

sto
me

rs.

1%
 In
cre

as
e i
n R

ec
yc
ling

 P
erf

orm
an
ce

33
,60

0
33
,60

0
Ad

dit
ion

al 
inc

om
e f
rom

 ke
rbs

ide
 co

lle
cti
on
 du

e t
o i
nc
rea

se
d r

ec
yc
lat
e 

pri
ce
s

39
,30

0
39
,30

0

70
DE

LE
TE

 V
AC

AN
T P

AR
T T

IM
E 
CO

MM
UN

ITY
 R
AN

GE
R

12
,00

0
12
,00

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

0.5
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

71
ST

OP
 S
UP

PL
Y O

F F
RE

E 
DO

G 
BA

GS
12
,20

0
12
,20

0
Th
e r

em
ov
al 
of 
thi
s f
ree

 fa
cili
ty 
ma

y i
mp

ac
t 

mo
re 

on
 th
os
e r

es
ide

nts
 on

 lo
we

r in
co
me

s.
Th
ere

 is
 a 
ris
k t
ha
t in

cid
en
ce
s o

f d
og
 fo
ulin

g i
n 

pu
bli
c a

rea
s m

ay
 in
cre

as
e. 
 Th

e d
eg
ree

 to
 

wh
ich

 re
sp
on
sib

le 
do
g o

wn
ers

 w
ill s

till 
co
nti
nu
e t
o c

lea
r u
p a

fte
r th

eir
 do

gs
 de

sp
ite
 

ha
vin

g t
o p

rov
ide

 th
eir
 ow

n b
ag
s i
n u

nk
no
wn

.
72

CL
OS

UR
E 
OF

 P
UB

LIC
 C
ON

VE
NI
EN

CE
S 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

Co
xs 

Me
ad
ow

, C
oro

na
tio
n S

qu
are

, A
mb

ros
e S

tre
et,
 B
ath

 Te
rra

ce
, C

hu
rch

 
Pie

ce
, P

ort
lan

d S
tre

et 
wil
l c
los

e. 
To

ile
ts 
at 
the

 To
wn

 H
all
, R

oy
al 
W
ell
, 

Pit
tvi
lle
 P
ark

 an
d M

on
tpe

llie
r a

nd
 S
an
for

d P
ark

 (s
um

me
r o

nly
) w

ill r
em

ain
. 

A 
sc
he
me

 fo
r a

cc
es
sin

g t
oil
ets

 in
 ca

fes
 / s

ho
ps
 et
c i
s a

lso
 be

ing
 fin

ali
se
d. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

10
0,0

00
10
0,0

00
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

2.0
Th
e c

los
ure

 of
 pu

bli
c t
oil
ets

 w
ill h

av
e a

 
de
trim

en
tal
 im

pa
ct 
on
 ol
de
r p

eo
ple

 / d
isa

ble
d 

pe
op
le 
an
d p

are
nts

 w
ith
 ch

ild
ren

 w
ho
 ne

ed
 to
 

ac
ce
ss
 pu

bli
c t
oil
ets

 at
 sh

ort
 no

tic
e. 
 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ill n
ee
d t
o c

on
sid

er 
ho
w 
the

 
im
pa
ct 
of 
the

 cl
os
ure

s c
an
 be

 m
itig

ate
d b

y 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 bu

sin
es
se
s t
o o

pe
n u

p t
he
ir 

toi
let
s t
o p

ub
lic 

ac
ce
ss
, a
nd
 si
gn
ag
e t
o 

alt
ern

ati
ve
 fa
cilt

iie
s.

73
CU

TT
IN
G 
GR

AS
S 
VE

RG
ES

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ill t
erm

ina
te 
the

 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 ag

ree
me

nt 
we

f 1
/4/
20
12
.  T

he
 

res
po
ns
ibi
lity

 fo
r v
erg

es
 lie

s w
ith
 G
CC

 an
d C

BC
 un

de
rta

ke
 th
is 
wo

rk 
un
de
r 

an
 ag

en
cy
 ag

ree
me

nt.
    
    
   

11
0,0

00
11
0,0

00
Se

as
on
al 
FT

E 
no
t 

req
uir
ed

3.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
ere

 is
 a 
ris
k t
ha
t lo

ng
er 

gra
ss
 co

uld
 ob

sc
ure

 
sig

na
ge
 an

d v
iew

s a
t ju

nc
tio
ns
 in
hib

itin
g 

dri
ve
rs.
  F

ew
er 

cu
ts 
wil
l le

ad
 to
 lo
ng
er 

gra
ss
 

wit
h a

 co
ns
eq
ue
nti
al 
im
pa
ct 
on
 th
e 

en
vir
on
me

nt.

CA
ST

74
RE

VE
NU

ES
 &
 B
EN

EF
ITS

: R
ED

UC
E 
0.5

 FT
E 
AD

MI
NI
ST

RA
TIO

N 
PO

ST
9,0

00
9,0

00
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

0.5
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

75
RE

VE
NU

ES
 &
 B
EN

EF
ITS

:P
OS

T O
N 
MA

TE
RN

ITY
 LE

AV
E 
NO

 LO
NG

ER
 

RE
QU

IR
ED

20
,00

0
20
,00

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

76
SY

ST
EM

S 
TH

IN
KIN

G 
- IC

T P
HA

SE
 2 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

To
 be

 de
live

red
 w
ith
 ac

tiv
itie

s b
elo

w:
0

RE
VIE

W
 O
F P

RI
NT

ER
S 
CO

NT
RA

CT
 A
T M

UN
IC
IPA

L O
FF

IC
ES

 A
ND

 
CH

EL
TE

NH
AM

 FE
ST

IVA
LS

9,0
00

9,0
00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

CA
NC

EL
LA

TIO
N 
OF

 R
ED

UN
DA

NT
 B
T L

IN
ES

3,0
00

3,0
00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

RE
DU

CT
IO
N 
IN
 C
OS

TS
 O
F L

AN
DL

IN
E 
TO

 M
OB

ILE
 C
AL

L C
HA

RG
ES

10
,00

0
10
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

77
CA

R 
PA

RK
IN
G 
IN
CO

ME
 C
OU

RI
ER

 S
ER

VIC
E 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Re
du
cti
on
 in
 nu

mb
er 

of 
ho
urs

 w
ork

ed
3,5

00
3,5

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

03
/02

/11
Pa

ge
 6 
of 

7

Page 126



BR
ID
GI
NG

 TH
E 
GA

P 
(B
tG
) P

RO
GR

AM
ME

AP
PE

ND
IX 

4

Cu
mu

lat
ive

20
11
-12

Br
idg

ing
 th

e G
ap

 P
ro
gr
am

me
 

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

Es
tim

ate
Es

tim
ate

an
nu

al 
im

pa
ct 

on
On

e-o
ff 

FT
E 
Im

pa
ct

FT
E 

FT
E 

Eq
ua
lity

 an
d D

ive
rs
ity

 im
pa

cts
Se

rvi
ce
/R
isk

 im
pli

ca
tio

ns
Pr
oje

ct 
/ A

re
a o

f A
cti

vit
y 

20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

20
16
/17

MT
FS

 20
15
/16

 
Co

sts
Lo

ss
es

Lo
ss
es

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

20
11
/12

Fu
tur

e Y
rs

A
D

F
G

H
I

J
K

L
M

N
O

P
Q

MT
FS

 P
ER

IO
D

78
RE

DU
CE

 C
OL

LE
CT

IO
NS

 TO
 S
AT

EL
LIT

E 
OF

FIC
ES

 TO
 3 
PE

R 
W
EE

K
6,5

00
6,5

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

79
CA

SH
IER

S 
(2)

 - R
ED

UC
E 
HO

UR
S 
TO

 4 
DA

YS
 P
ER

 W
EE

K
6,5

00
6,5

00
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

0.4
Th
e p

rop
os
al 
ma

y i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 le
ng
th 
of 

tim
e i
t ta

ke
s t
o m

ak
e c

as
h p

ay
me

nts
 an

d 
As

sis
tan

t D
ire
cto

r to
 m
ak
e s

ure
 th
at 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 ar

e i
n p

lac
e f
or 

tho
se
 w
ith
 

mo
bil
ity
 di
ffic

ult
ies

.

Re
du
ce
 ca

pa
cit
y m

ay
 im

pa
ct 
on
 ab

ility
 to
 

de
live

r s
erv

ice
.

80
CA

NC
EL

 C
US

TO
ME

R 
SE

RV
IC
ES

 C
RM

 S
YS

TE
M 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

Us
e U

NI
FO

RM
 sy

ste
m 
ins

tea
d 

23
,00

0
23
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

PO
LIC

Y &
 P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

81
RE

VIE
W
 O
F C

OR
PO

RA
TE

 C
OM

MU
NI
CA

TIO
NS

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

10
,00

0
20
,00

0
30
,00

0
Re

du
nd
an
cy

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Im
po
rta

nt 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t th

e p
ub
lic 

ha
ve
 th
e 

rig
ht 
lev

el 
of 
inf
orm

ati
on
 to
 ac

ce
ss
 th
e 

co
un
cil'
s s

erv
ice

s.
82

RE
ST

RU
CT

UR
E 
OF

 E
CO

NO
MI
C 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
16
,00

0
16
,00

0
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

0.4
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

83
RE

DU
CE

 E
CO

NO
MI
C 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T G
RA

NT
 S
UP

PO
RT

 TO
 

CO
UN

TY
 A
ND

 R
EG

IO
NA

L O
RG

AN
ISA

TIO
NS

15
,00

0
15
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Cu
rre

ntl
y w

ork
ing

 w
ith
 pa

rtn
er 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
 

on
 ho

w 
ca
n w

ork
 co

lle
cti
ve
ly 
an
d u

se
 

res
ou
rce

s m
ore

 co
lla
bo
rat

ive
ly.

84
RE

DU
CT

IO
N 
IN
 G
RA

NT
 S
UP

PO
RT

 TO
 C
HE

LT
EN

HA
M 
ST

RA
TE

GI
C 

PA
RT

NE
RS

HI
P

10
,00

0
10
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
e g

ran
t h
as
 be

en
 us

ed
 in
 pr

ev
iou

s y
ea
rs 
to 

su
pp
ort

 vu
ne
rab

le 
co
mm

un
itie

s. 
 Th

e C
SP

 is
 

be
ing

 su
pp
ort

ed
 to
 m
ov
e t
o m

ore
 jo
int
 

co
mm

iss
ioi
ng
 an

d p
oo
ling

 of
 bu

dg
ets

 so
 th
at 

fun
din

g c
an
 be

 us
ed
 m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
ly 
to 
su
pp
ort

 
co
mm

un
ity
 ou

tco
me

s.
85

RE
DU

CT
IO
N 
OF

 C
AB

IN
ET

 A
LL
OW

AN
CE

S 
BY

 5%
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 4,9
00

4,9
00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
e p

rop
os
al 
ma

y i
mp

ac
t o
n a

 co
un
cill
or'
s 

de
cis

ion
 to
 ac

ce
pt 
a c

ab
ine

t p
os
t.

86
RE

DU
CT

IO
N 
IN
 C
IVI

C 
AN

D 
MA

YO
RA

L E
XP

EN
DI
TU

RE
    
    
    
    
    
    

14
,70

0
14
,70

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Th
is 
wil
l m

ea
n a

 re
du
cti
on
 in
 th
e l
ev
el 
of 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

an
d r

ed
uc
ed
 le
ve
l o
f s
up
po
rt t

o 
the

 m
ay
or.

87
RE

DU
CT

IO
N 
IN
 E
XP

EN
DI
TU

RE
 O
N 
TW

IN
NI
NG

5,0
00

5,0
00

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Le
ss
 su

pp
ort

 fo
r p

rog
ram

me
 of
 ac

tiv
ity
 an

d 
wil
l n
ee
d t
o w

ork
 m
ore

 co
lla
bo
rat

ive
ly 
wit

h 
oth

ers
.

88
RE

DU
CT

IO
N 
IN
 P
OL

IC
Y &

 P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 E
XP

EN
DI
TU

RE
4,2

00
4,2

00
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

89
EN

D 
OF

 FI
XE

D 
TE

RM
 C
ON

TR
AC

T F
OR

 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 LA

ND
 U
SE

 
TE

CH
NI
CA

L S
UP

PO
RT

20
,80

0
20
,80

0
Re

du
nd
an
cy

1.0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 S
ER

VIC
ES

90
ON

E 
OF

F F
UN

DI
NG

 O
F H

OM
EL

ES
SN

ES
S 
PO

ST
 P
RI
OR

 TO
 

CO
NS

ID
ER

AT
IO
N 
OF

 TH
E 
TR

AN
SF

ER
 O
F H

OU
SIN

G 
OP

TIO
NS

 TO
 

CH
EL

TE
NH

AM
 B
OR

OU
GH

 H
OM

ES

30
,00

0
30
,00

0
As

sis
tan

t D
ire
cto

r to
 en

su
re 

tha
t th

ere
 is
 no

 
los

s o
f s
erv

ice
 to
 ho

me
les

s a
nd
 vu

ne
rab

le 
pe
op
le 
as
 pa

rt o
f th

es
e p

rop
os
als

.

Re
du
ce
d c

ap
ac
ity
 co

uld
 im

pa
ct 
on
 ab

ility
 to
 

de
live

r s
tat
uto

ry 
du
tie
s.

91
ME

RG
ER

 O
F S

TR
AT

EG
IC
 LA

ND
 U
SE

 A
ND

 H
OU

SIN
G 
EN

AB
LIN

G 
FU

NC
TIO

NS
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

15
,50

0
14
,50

0
30
,00

0
TB

A
1.0

No
ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

Re
du
ce
d c

ap
ac
ity
 an

d w
ill n

ee
d t
o c

on
sid

er 
po
ten

tia
l fo

r p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wo

rki
ng
.

92
RE

DU
CE

 G
RA

NT
S 
TO

 R
EG

EN
ER

AT
IO
N 
PA

RT
NE

RS
HI
PS

    
    
    
    
    

(O
ak
ley

 an
d H

es
ter

s W
ay
 P
art

ne
rsh

ips
)   

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

Re
du
ce
 bo

th 
pa
rtn
ers

hip
s b

y £
2k
 ea

ch
 pe

r a
nn
um

 ov
er 

5 y
ea
rs.

4,0
00

4,0
00

4,0
00

4,0
00

16
,00

0
No

ne
 id
en
tifi
ed
.

As
sis

tan
t D

ire
cto

r to
 en

su
re 

tha
t R

eg
en
era

tio
n 

Pa
rtn
ers

hip
s c

on
tin
ue
 to
 be

 su
cc
es
sfu

l in
 

pro
mo

tin
g c

om
mu

nit
y r
eg
en
era

tio
n i
n t
he
ir 

are
as
.

93
CU

T F
OR

UM
S 
BU

DG
ET

 (R
ed
uc
e f
oru

ms
 by

 £2
50
 ea

ch
)

50
0

50
0

Th
e c

ou
nc
il w

ill n
ee
d t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
it h

as
 

me
ch
an
ism

s f
or 

en
ga
gin

g w
ith
 di
sa
ble

d /
 

old
er 

pe
op
le 
to 
en
su
re 

tha
t th

eir
 vi
ew

s a
re 

ca
ptu

red
.

Ma
y i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 op

era
tio
ns
 of
 th
e f
oru

ms
.

2,0
76
,05

0
44
9,6

00
25
9,9

00
4,0

00
0

0
2,7

89
,55

0
75
,94

5
21
.9

4.5

2,8
07
,75

0
58
5,6

00
32
3,3

00
43
,90

0
11
,40

0
0

3,7
71
,95

0
75
,94

5
0

31
.9

7.4

20
11
-12

20
12
-13

2,8
07
,75

0
82
4,0

27
58
1,4

77
60
6,9

26
40
1,3

24
88
,32

3
5,3

09
,82

7
Va

ca
nt 
po
st

17
.8

0.0
Re

du
nd
an
cy

6.6
6.9

Sh
are

d p
os
t

0.5
0.5

0
-23

8,4
27

-25
8,1

77
-56

3,0
26

-38
9,9

24
-88

,32
3

-1,
53
7,8

77
TB

A
4.0

0.0
Se

as
on
al 
FT

E
3.0

0.0
31
.9

7.4

TO
TA

L S
AV

IN
GS

 TO
 B
E C

ON
SID

ER
ED

TO
TA

L P
RO

PO
SA

LS

MT
FS

 FU
ND

IN
G 
GA

P

SU
RP

LU
S (

SH
OR

TF
AL

L)

03
/02

/11
Pa

ge
 7 
of 

7

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
5

Ca
pit

al 
Ch

arg
es

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

OR
IG
IN
AL

RE
VIS

ED
OR

IG
IN
AL

NO
TE

£
£

£
Mi
nim

um
 R
ev
en
ue
 Pr

ov
isio

n (
MR

P)
49
8,6

00
87
5,1

00
61
6,2

00
1

De
bt 
Re

de
mp

tio
n P

rem
ium

s
22
0,7

00
14
5,7

00
14
5,7

00
2

De
pre

cia
tio
n

(1,
85
5,3

00
)

(2,
75
3,7

00
)(

2,7
53
,70

0)
3

Am
ort

isa
tio
n

(65
,80

0)
(10

5,8
00
)

(10
5,8

00
)

4
Go

ve
rnm

en
t G

ran
ts 
/ C

ap
ita
l C

on
trib

uti
on
s D

efe
rre

d
44
4,2

00
0

0
5

Ca
pit

al 
Ch

arg
es

(75
7,6

00
)

(1,
83
8,7

00
)(

2,0
97
,60

0)

NO
TE

1P
res

cri
be
d %

 re
qu
ire
d t
o b

e s
et 
as
ide

 to
 re

pa
y d

eb
t a
s s

et 
in 
the

 M
RP

 Po
licy

2A
mo

rtis
ed
 co

st 
of 
de
bt 
re-

sc
he
du
lin
g

3D
ep
rec

iat
ion

 - d
ep
rec

ati
on
 ch

arg
ed
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 ta
ng
ibl
e f
ixe

d a
ss
ets

4A
mo

rtis
ati
on
 - a

mo
rtis

ati
on
 ch

arg
ed
 on

 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 in
tan

gib
le 
fix
ed
 as

se
ts

5C
ap
ita
l G

ran
ts 
an
d C

on
trib

uti
on
s D

efe
rre

d -
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o o

ffs
et 
de
pre

cia
tio
n a

nd
 am

ort
isa

tio
n c

ha
rge

s
on
 th
os
e a

ss
ets

 fin
an
ce
d f
rom

 G
ov
ern

me
nt 
Gr
an
ts 
an
d e

xte
rna

l c
on
trib

uti
on
s

As
 a 
res

ult
 of
 IF

RS
 (In

ter
na
tio
na
l F
ina

nc
ial
 R
ep
ort

ing
 St

an
da
rds

) th
is 
is 
no
 lo
ng
er 

req
uir
ed
 fro

m 
1s
t A

pri
l 2
01
0

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
6

Int
ere

st 
an

d I
nv

es
tm

en
t In

co
me

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

OR
IG
IN
AL

RE
VIS

ED
OR

IG
IN
AL

NO
TE

£
£

£

Ex
ter

na
l In

ter
es
t P

ay
ab
le

1,2
34
,30

0
1,2

12
,60

0
1,2

12
,60

0
1

HR
A I

tem
 8 
Cr
ed
it

54
,70

0
74
,20

0
62
,40

0
2

Ex
ter

na
l In

ter
es
t re

ce
ive

d
(24

3,2
00
)

(22
1,1

00
)

(16
8,3

00
)

3
Int
ere

st 
du
e f
rom

 th
e I
ce
lan

dic
 ba

nk
s

0
(33

1,5
00
)

0
4

Ice
lan

dic
 Ba

nk
s i
mp

air
me

nt
0

(23
0,0

00
)

0
5

HR
A I

tem
 8 
De

bit
(75

2,2
00
)

(57
6,9

00
)

(57
6,9

00
)

6

Int
ere

st 
an

d I
nv

es
tm

en
t In

co
me

29
3,6

00
(72

,70
0)

52
9,8

00

NO
TE

1E
xte

rna
l in

ter
es
t p
ay
ab
le 
- in

ter
es
t p
aid

 on
 th
e C

ou
nc
il's
 tre

as
ury

 m
an
ag
em

en
t / 
ca
sh
flo
w 
ac
tiv
ity

2I
tem

 8 
cre

dit
 - c

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 th
e H

ou
sin

g R
ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t (H

RA
) in

 re
sp
ec
t o
f d
isc

ou
nt 
rec

eiv
ed
 fro

m 
de
bt 
re-

sc
he
du
lin
g a

nd
 in
ter

es
t re

ce
iva

ble
on
 ca

sh
 ba

lan
ce
s h

eld
 by

 th
e H

RA
3I

nte
res

t e
arn

ed
 on

 C
ou
nc
il's
 fu
nd
s a

nd
 tre

as
ury

 m
an
ag
em

en
t / 
ca
sh
flo
w 
ac
tiv
ity

4I
nte

res
t d
ue
 in
 ye

ar 
fro

m 
Ice

lan
dic

 ba
nk
s

5I
mp

air
me

nt 
of 
Ice

lan
dic

 ba
nk
s d

ep
os
its
 cr
ed
it

6I
tem

 8 
de
bit
 - c

on
trib

uti
on
 fro

m 
the

 H
ou
sin

g R
ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t in

 re
sp
ec
t o
f p
rem

ium
 in
cu
rre

d f
rom

 de
bt 
re-

sc
he
du
lin
g a

nd
 de

bt 
ch
arg

es

Page 131



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
7

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E M
OV

EM
EN

TS
RS

VE
BU

DG
ET

BO
OK

RE
VIS

ED
OR

IG
IN
AL

RE
F:

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

NO
TE

£
£

£
US

E O
F B

AL
AN

CE
S &

 R
ES

ER
VE

S -
 SU

MM
AR

Y

73
01

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to
 re

se
rve

s -
 se

e d
eta

il b
elo

w*
1,7

12
,94

7
4,3

07
,79

3
1,7

36
,34

3
82
40

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 fro

m 
res

erv
es
 - s

ee
 de

tai
l b
elo

w 
**

(1,
58
7,3

00
)

(5,
27
3,4

96
)

(90
0,6

00
)

82
48

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 fro

m 
res

erv
es
 to
 fu
nd
 on

e o
ff r

ev
en
ue
 - s

ee
 de

tai
l b
elo

w*
**

(81
1,0

00
)

(75
1,6

00
)

(40
6,2

00
)

(68
5,3

53
)

(1,
71
7,3

03
)

42
9,5

43

*  C
ON

TR
IB
UT

IO
NS

 TO
 R
ES

ER
VE

S
BR

02
Pe

ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
15
0,0

00
15
0,0

00
15
0,0

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o p

en
sio

n r
es
erv

e t
o f
un
d f
utu

re 
pe
ns
ion

 an
d a

ug
me

nta
tio
n c

os
ts 

BR
05

IBS
 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
26
,70

0
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d c

os
t o
f IB

S l
ice

nc
e p

aid
 up

 fro
nt

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
7,5

00
7,5

00
7,5

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
ow

ard
s s

urv
ey
 ev

ery
 3 
ye
ars

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
57
,59

0
Re

se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
fro

m 
Ho

us
ing

 N
ee
ds
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
Re

se
rve

BR
45

Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y R

es
erv

e
12
3,8

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 Jo

int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y w

ith
 Te

wk
es
bu
ry 
an
d G

lou
ce
ste

r
BR

58
Civ

ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
1,0

00
,00

0
Re

se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
fro

m 
Ho

us
ing

 C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
BR

63
Re

nt 
All
ow

an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
13
1,4

00
13
1,4

00
29
,30

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e c
os
ts 
Iin
 lie

u o
f a
dd
itio

na
l a
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 gr

an
t

BR
67

Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
33
1,5

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o c

ov
er 

an
y a

dd
itio

na
l lo

ss
es
 ar

isin
g i
n t
he
 va

lue
 of
 Ic
ela

nd
ic 
de
po
sit
s a

nd
/or

 
to 
red

uc
e t
he
 bo

rro
win

g a
ris
ing

 fro
m 
the

 ca
pit
ali
sa
tio
n o

f th
e l
os
se
s

BR
76

Ele
cti
on
s R

es
erv

e
61
,20

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e e
lec

tio
n c

os
ts

BR
88

IT 
Re

pa
irs
 & 

Re
ne
wa

ls 
Re

se
rve

77
,50

0
12
7,5

00
77
,50

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 IT

 re
pla

ce
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e
BR

89
Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
69
3,0

00
69
3,0

00
69
3,0

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d P

lan
ne
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 pr

og
ram

me
BR

92
Re

ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

62
5,0

00
62
5,0

00
70
0,0

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o c

ap
ita
l re

se
rve

 (s
ub
jec

t to
 fu
tur

e r
ev
iew

 of
 ca

pit
al 
fin
an
cin

g s
tra

teg
y)

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

29
,50

0
Re

se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
fro

m 
LA

BG
I R

es
erv

e
BR

92
Re

ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

30
0,0

00
Re

se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
fro

m 
Ho

us
ing

 C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
71
7,3

73
Re

se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
fro

m 
PD

G 
Re

se
rve

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
13
,58

4
Re

se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
fro

m 
Hig

hw
ay
s I
ns
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
16
,30

0T
ran

sfe
r to

 G
en
era

l B
ala

nc
es
 in
 re

sp
ec
t o
f A

ud
it p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
sa
vin

gs
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
1,8

47
47

1,5
43

Tr
an
sfe

r to
 G
en
era

l B
ala

nc
es

1,7
12
,94

7
    
    
    
    

4,3
07
,79

3
    
   

1,7
36
,34

3
    
    

** 
CO

NT
RI
BU

TIO
NS

 FR
OM

 R
ES

ER
VE

S
BR

01
Sin

gle
 St

atu
s R

es
erv

e
(94

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
ran

sit
ion

al 
co
sts

 of
 si
ng
le 
sta

tus
BR

01
Sin

gle
 St

atu
s R

es
erv

e
(23

,80
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d 2

01
0/1

1 b
ac
k-p

ay
BR

01
Sin

gle
 St

atu
s R

es
erv

e
(20

1,7
00
)

(20
0,9

00
)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d p

ay
 pr

ote
cti
on

BR
02

Pe
ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(15

0,0
00
)

(15
0,0

00
)

(10
0,0

00
)C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 in
cre

as
ed
 pe

ns
ion

 co
sts

 as
 a 
res

ult
 of
 th
e 2

00
4 t
rie
nn
ial
 re

va
lua

tio
n

BR
02

Pe
ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(65

,50
0)

(65
,50

0)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d i
nc
rea

se
d p

en
sio

n c
os
ts 
as
 a 
res

ult
 of
 th
e 2

00
7 t
rie
nn
ial
 re

va
lua

tio
n

BR
05

IBS
 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
(1,

80
0)

(1,
80
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d c

os
t o
f IB

S l
ice

nc
e

BR
05

IBS
 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
(5,

00
0)

(5,
00
0)

(5,
00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d m

ain
ten

an
ce
 on

 up
gra

de
s t
o C

ou
nc
il T

ax
 / B

en
efi
ts 
sy
ste

m
BR

08
Gr
av
e M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
(3,

30
0)

(3,
30
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d h

ea
lth
 & 

sa
fet
y r
eq
uir
em

en
ts

BR
09

Cu
ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
(54

,20
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d A

rt G
all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 de
ve
lop

me
nt

BR
09

Cu
ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
(10

,00
0)

(15
,00

0)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d P

lay
ho
us
e T

he
atr

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
t

BR
10

Bu
sin

es
s G

row
th 
Inc

en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA

BG
I) R

es
erv

e
(13

5,0
00
)

(13
5,0

00
)

(30
,00

0)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d e

co
no
mi
c a

nd
 cu

ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il in

 pr
ev
iou

s 
fin
an
cia

l y
ea
ras

BR
10

Bu
sin

es
s G

row
th 
Inc

en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA

BG
I) R

es
erv

e
(25

,00
0)

(10
,00

0)
(10

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d e

co
no
mi
c a

nd
 cu

ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 2

9/6
/09

BR
10

Bu
sin

es
s G

row
th 
Inc

en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA

BG
I) R

es
erv

e
(50

,50
0)

(50
,50

0)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d s

up
po
rte

d o
ne
-of

f g
row

th 
ite
ms

 as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 1

2/2
/10

BR
10

Bu
sin

es
s G

row
th 
Inc

en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA

BG
I) R

es
erv

e
(29

,50
0)

Re
se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
to 
Ca

pit
al 
Re

se
rve

pa
ge
 1

Page 133



Ap
pe
nd
ix 
7

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E M
OV

EM
EN

TS
RS

VE
BU

DG
ET

BO
OK

RE
VIS

ED
OR

IG
IN
AL

RE
F:

20
10
/11

20
10
/11

20
11
/12

NO
TE

£
£

£
BR

11
Ho

us
ing

 N
ee
ds
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
Re

se
rve

(57
,59

0)
Re

se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
to 
Ho

us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
BR

12
Ho

us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
(32

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d h

ou
sin

g s
toc

k c
on
dit
ion

s s
urv

ey
 co

sts
BR

14
Flo

od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(10

0,0
00
)

(15
0,0

00
)

(50
,00

0)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d f
loo

d a
lle
via

tio
n w

ork
s

BR
14

Flo
od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(30

,00
0)

(52
,00

0)
(30

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d l
oc
al 
flo
od
 al
lev

iat
ion

 w
ork

s f
or 

3 y
ea
rs 
(fro

m 
EU

 G
ran

t)
BR

14
Flo

od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(63

,00
0)

(10
,00

0)
(74

,70
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d S

ev
ern

 Tr
en
t W

ate
r c
om

mu
nit
y f
un
d s

ch
em

es
BR

42
Ve

hic
le 
Le
as
ing

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
(10

1,2
00
)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d n

ew
 w
as
te 
rec

yc
lin
g s

erv
ice

BR
52

Co
mm

ute
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 

(66
,00

0)
(66

,00
0)

(39
,00

0)
Us

e o
f d
ev
elo

pe
rs 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to
 fu
nd
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 co

sts
BR

54
Le
ga
l S

taf
fin
g R

es
erv

e
(16

,30
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d s

et 
up
 co

sts
 of
 O
ne
 Le

ga
l

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
(10

4,6
00
)

(10
7,4

00
)

(10
8,7

00
)C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 Pr

oje
ct 
Ma

na
ge
r

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
(54

,90
0)

(39
,80

0)
(11

2,5
00
)C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 pr

oje
ct 
co
sts

BR
61

PD
G 
Re

se
rve

(24
5,9

00
)

(13
0,8

00
)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d f
utu

re 
PD

G 
co
sts

BR
61

PD
G 
Re

se
rve

(71
7,3

73
)

Re
se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
to 
Ge

ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
s

BR
63

Re
nt 
All
ow

an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
(65

,30
0)

(72
,10

0)
(68

,40
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d i
nc
rea

se
d n

et 
co
st 
co
mp

are
d t
o b

ud
ge
t

BR
65

Lic
en
sin

g F
ee
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
(17

,00
0)

(17
,00

0)
(17

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d T

ax
i M

ars
ha
lls 

in 
20
09
/10

BR
72

Lo
ca
l P

lan
 R
es
erv

e
(60

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 Jo

int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y w

ith
 Te

wk
es
bu
ry 
an
d G

lou
ce
ste

r
BR

72
Lo
ca
l P

lan
 R
es
erv

e
(20

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d c

om
pe
ns
ati
on

BR
76

Ele
cti
on
s R

es
erv

e
(65

,20
0)

(65
,20

0)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d l
oc
al 
ele

cti
on
 co

sts
 in
 20

10
/11

BR
77

Ca
pit
al 
Re

se
rve

 - H
IP

(1,
30
0,0

00
)

Re
se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
to 
Civ

ic 
Pr
ide

 an
d R

CC
O 
Re

se
rve

s
BR

78
Hig

hw
ay
s I
ns
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e 
(13

,58
4)

Re
se
rve

 re
ali
gn
me

nt 
to 
Ge

ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
s

BR
88

IT 
Re

pa
irs
 & 

Re
ne
wa

ls 
Re

se
rve

(13
4,9

00
)

(10
9,9

00
)

(11
9,9

00
)C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 IT

 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e
BR

89
Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
(53

,80
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d r

ev
alu

ati
on
 an

d b
us
ine

ss
 ra

te 
rev

iew
s

BR
89

Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
(15

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d E

ve
rym

an
 Th

ea
tre

 gr
an
t

BR
89

Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
(16

6,8
00
)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d R

eg
en
t A

rca
de
 im

pro
ve
me

nts

BR
91

Ol
d Y

ea
r C

red
ito
r R

sv
e -

 R
R

(4,
50
0)

(4,
50
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 on

e-o
ff s

taf
fin
g c

os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th
e 2

00
8/0

9 b
ud
ge
t 

pro
po
sa
ls 
as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 8

/2/
08

BR
92

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

(35
0,0

00
)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d R

eg
en
t A

rca
de
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
BR

92
Re

ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

(8,
00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d B

riz
en
 Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

's 
Ce

ntr
e s

et-
up
 co

sts
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(44

,15
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d a

dd
itio

na
l M

RP
 in
 20

10
/11

 as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 1

2/2
/10

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(37

,10
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d E

un
om

ia 
joi
nt 
wa

ste
 m
an
ag
em

en
t p
roj
ec
t

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(11

4,0
00
)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d S

ou
rci
ng
 St

rat
eg
y i
nv
es
tm
en
t

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(3,

30
0)

(71
,60

0)
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d G

O 
Pr
og
ram

me
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(50

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d I
ce
lan

dic
 ba

nk
s c

ou
rt c

as
e

BS
01

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(24

8,6
00
)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d t
he
 on

e o
ff s

taf
fin
g c

os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th
e 2

01
0/1

1 b
ud
ge
t 

20
09
/10

 ca
rry

 fo
rw

ard
 re

se
rve

s c
rea

ted
 at

 31
.3.
10

BR
91

Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
s

(11
0,6

00
)

Ap
pro

ve
d c

arr
y f
orw

ard
s a

t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
CA

ST
(20

,00
0)

Ap
pro

ve
d c

arr
y f
orw

ard
s a

t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
He

alt
h &

 C
ult
ure

(83
,90

0)
Ap

pro
ve
d c

arr
y f
orw

ard
s a

t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on
me

nt
(14

,90
0)

Ap
pro

ve
d c

arr
y f
orw

ard
s a

t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
Int
eg
rat

ed
 Tr

an
sp
ort

(1,
70
0)

Ap
pro

ve
d c

arr
y f
orw

ard
s a

t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
Op

era
tio
ns

(12
,60

0)
Ap

pro
ve
d c

arr
y f
orw

ard
s a

t 2
8/6

/10
BR

91
Bu

sin
es
s C

ha
ng
e

(9,
80
0)

Ap
pro

ve
d c

arr
y f
orw

ard
s a

t 2
8/6

/10
(1,

58
7,3

00
)

(5,
27
3,4

96
)

(90
0,6

00
)

***
 C
ON

TR
IB
UT

IO
NS

 FR
OM

 R
ES

ER
VE

S T
O 
FU

ND
 O
NE

 O
FF

 R
EV

EN
UE

BR
89

Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
(81

1,0
00
)

(75
1,6

00
)

(40
6,2

00
)T

o f
un
d P

rog
ram

me
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

(81
1,0

00
)

(75
1,6

00
)

(40
6,2

00
)

pa
ge
 2

Page 134



 3

Appendix 7 
Sourcing strategy – programme closedown / transfer to General Reserve 
A decision has been taken to decommission the Sourcing Strategy as a strategic programme.  A 
number of the projects now exist in their own right and will report their delivery through to either 
Operational Programme Board or Bridging the Gap.  A summary of the programme’s deliverables is as 
follows: 
 
The GO Shared Services Programme, approved by Council in October, is now a key strategic project 
in its own right and a ground-breaking partnership for 4 councils and one ALMO in Gloucestershire and 
Oxfordshire.  The Council was successful in its bid to become the Support and Hosting Centre of 
Excellence and has more recently concluded successful discussions with Cheltenham Borough Homes 
to join the partnership. The new ERP system will be implemented in the Council in April 2012 and the 
Council intends to bid to run the remaining 2 Centres of Excellence.  The total savings impact on the 
MTFS from GO Shared Services Programme is £179k pa by 2013/14 equating to £0.9M over 10 years 
(net of investment). 
 
Original proposals to share Revenues and Benefits did not prove financially attractive to the Council.  
In addition to shared service investigation, the service also undertook systems thinking work and will 
have delivered its original target of £75k by 2011/12 and a further £115k target by April 2012.  The total 
savings impact on the MTFS from Revenues and Benefits systems thinking is £190k pa equating to 
£1.72M over 10 years (net of investment).  
 
Original proposals included a feasibility study to share ICT with Tewkesbury Borough Council (TBC). A 
small investment of £10k was set aside for the feasibility review.  However, the project did not progress 
as a result of TBC withdrawing from the GO partnership and needing to concentrate on the installation 
of a new finance system.  A decision was taken to use the £10k investment to undertake systems 
thinking work in ICT to deliver £30k pa savings from 2011/12.  The total savings impact on the MTFS 
from ICT systems thinking is £30k pa equating to £290k over 10 years (net of investment). 
 
Original proposals to share HR (known as OneHR) also with Tewkesbury did not go ahead again due 
to their withdrawal from the GO partnership.  Whilst the decision to close the project was difficult, the 
shared learning will be beneficial as the service prepares its bid for the GO HR and Payroll Centre of 
Excellence.  HR generated £24k additional income by providing an interim service to TBC in 2010/11. 
 
In July it was reported that category management had been successfully implemented in the 
Procurement service.  However, quarter 2 budget monitoring reported that whilst procurement had 
identified current year savings of c£62k, against a 2010/11 target of £120k, these could not be readily 
identified as cashable and matched to budget allocations.  Therefore the original target of £130k pa 
savings will not be delivered.  For 2011/12 onwards SLT endorse a cashable savings procurement 
work-plan with accountability to deliver savings resting with service managers. 
 
Finally, the original recommended proposal for Customer Services was a consolidated customer 
service function across CBC.  Whilst supportive of such a proposal SLT resolved they could not 
support better and more accessible electronic service delivery at the present time as it did not present 
a sufficiently compelling business case.  However, SLT did acknowledge the significant benefits and 
savings derived through systems thinking work and endorsed this as the approach to take to improve 
services and drive further cashable savings.  They will support investment in technology where this 
delivers an invest to save case.  £254k was set aside in the Sourcing Strategy for this part of the 
programme. 
 
As a result of the above, £274.4k of the original £785k allocated to the sourcing strategy programme 
can be returned to general balances. It is however, recommended that £80k of this sum be reallocated 
to support the organisations’s business change activity in a period of significant change facilitated by 
the GO programme. In addition it is recommended that £100k be put aside for potential revenues and 
benefits shared service with a future partnering authority. 

Page 135



Page 136

This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

8

PR
OJ

EC
TIO

N 
OF

 R
ES

ER
VE

S T
O 
31
ST

 M
AR

CH
 20

12
20
10
/11

20
10
/11

Re
se
rve

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

Su
pp

or
t 2

01
1/1

2
Pu

rp
os

e o
f R

es
erv

e
31
/3/
10

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Re

-al
ign

me
nt

31
/3/
11

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
bu

dg
et 

an
d

31
/3/
12

Re
ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

Re
ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

on
e o

ff g
ro
wt

h
EA

RM
AR

KE
D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

Ot
he

r
BR

01
Sin

gle
 St

atu
s R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f S
ing

le 
Sta

tus
(33

2,9
47
.00

)
31
8,7

00
.00

(14
,24

7.0
0)

(14
,24

7.0
0)

BR
02

Pe
ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e p
en
sio

n l
iab

ility
(93

,87
3.3

8)
65
,50

0.0
0

(28
,37

3.3
8)

(50
,00

0.0
0)

(78
,37

3.3
8)

BR
03

CP
A R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e C
PA

 co
sts

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
04

Ec
on
om

ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
Re

se
rve

To
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e e
co
no
mi
c s

tud
ies

(14
,20

0.0
0)

(14
,20

0.0
0)

(14
,20

0.0
0)

BR
05

IBS
 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 co

st 
of 
IBS

 lic
en
se
 pa

id 
up
 fro

nt
(15

5,5
00
.00

)
6,8

00
.00

(14
8,7

00
.00

)
6,8

00
.00

(14
1,9

00
.00

)
BR

06
Ke

ep
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 Ti
dy
 R
es
erv

e
Ke

ep
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 Ti
dy
 ca

mp
aig

n -
 sc

he
me

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns

(62
6.2

7)
(62

6.2
7)

(62
6.2

7)
BR

08
Gr
av
e M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
Lo
ng
-te

rm
 gr

av
e m

ain
ten

an
ce

(3,
67
4.3

3)
3,3

00
.00

(37
4.3

3)
(37

4.3
3)

BR
09

Cu
ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e a
rts
 fa
cili

tie
s/a

cti
vit
y

(80
,16

1.0
0)

64
,20

0.0
0

(15
,96

1.0
0)

15
,00

0.0
0

(96
1.0

0)
BR

10
LA

BG
I R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e e
co
no
mi
c /
 cu

ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

(30
1,0

52
.86

)
22
5,0

00
.00

(76
,05

2.8
6)

40
,00

0.0
0

(36
,05

2.8
6)

BR
11

Ho
us
ing

 N
ee
ds
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
Re

se
rve

To
 fu
nd
 cy

clic
al 
ho
us
ing

 ne
ed
s s

urv
ey
s

(57
,58

9.8
3)

57
,58

9.8
3

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
12

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 cy

clic
al 
ho
us
ing

 st
oc
k c

on
dit
ion

 su
rve

ys
(39

,93
5.0

0)
(7,

50
0.0

0)
(57

,58
9.8

3)
(10

5,0
24
.83

)
24
,50

0.0
0

(80
,52

4.8
3)

BR
13

Tw
inn

ing
 R
es
erv

e
Tw

inn
ing

 to
wn

s c
ivic

 vi
sit
s t
o C

he
lte
nh
am

(17
,40

0.0
0)

(17
,40

0.0
0)

(17
,40

0.0
0)

BR
14

Flo
od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e f
loo

d r
es
ilie

nc
e w

ork
, d
ele

ga
ted

 to
 th
e F

loo
d 

wo
rki
ng
 gr

ou
p f
or 

all
oc
ati
on

(42
3,9

34
.70

)
21
2,0

00
.00

(21
1,9

34
.70

)
15
4,7

00
.00

(57
,23

4.7
0)

BR
15

Ar
t G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
(2,

00
0,0

00
.00

)
(2,

00
0,0

00
.00

)
1,0

00
,00

0.0
0

(1,
00
0,0

00
.00

)
BR

25
Pu

mp
 R
oo
m 
Ins

ura
nc
e R

es
erv

e
Ins

ura
nc
e r

es
erv

e f
or 

sto
len

 je
we

lle
ry

(28
,06

6.1
1)

(28
,06

6.1
1)

(28
,06

6.1
1)

BR
26

Mu
se
um

 Sh
op
 R
es
erv

e
Ac

cu
mu

lat
ed
 pr

ofi
ts 
he
ld 
for

 M
us
eu
m 
sh
op
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
0.0

0
0.0

0
0.0

0
BR

27
TIC

 Sh
op
 R
es
erv

e
Ac

cu
mu

lat
ed
 pr

ofi
ts 
he
ld 
for

 TI
C 
sh
op
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
(11

,72
9.1

8)
(11

,72
9.1

8)
(11

,72
9.1

8)

BR
30

GF
 In
su
ran

ce
 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 ris

k m
an
ag
em

en
t in

itia
tiv
es
 / e

xc
es
s /
 pr

em
ium

 
inc

rea
se
s

(15
9,9

71
.44

)
(15

9,9
71
.44

)
(15

9,9
71
.44

)
BR

42
Ve

hic
le 
Le
as
ing

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
Pu

rch
as
e o

f v
eh
icle

s a
nd
 eq

uip
me

nt
(11

1,6
74
.04

)
10
1,2

00
.00

(10
,47

4.0
4)

(10
,47

4.0
4)

BR
45

Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 Jo

int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y

(11
0,0

00
.00

)
(12

3,8
00
.00

)
(23

3,8
00
.00

)
(23

3,8
00
.00

)
BR

54
Le
ga
l S

taf
f R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 se

t-u
p c

os
ts 
of 
On

e L
eg
al

(16
,35

0.0
0)

16
,30

0.0
0

(50
.00

)
(50

.00
)

BR
58

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

To
 pu

mp
 pr

im
e c

ivic
 pr

ide
 in
itia

tiv
e /
 m
atc

h f
un
din

g
(25

3,5
86
.76

)
14
7,2

00
.00

(1,
00
0,0

00
.00

)
(1,

10
6,3

86
.76

)
22
1,2

00
.00

(88
5,1

86
.76

)
(4,

21
2,2

71
.90

)
(4,

18
3,3

71
.90

)
(2,

77
1,1

71
.90

)
Re

pa
irs

 &
 R
en

ew
als

 R
es
erv

es
BR

52
Co

mm
ute

d M
ain

ten
an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
De

ve
lop

er 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to
 fu
nd
 m
ain

ten
an
ce

(32
9,6

29
.37

)
66
,00

0.0
0

(26
3,6

29
.37

)
39
,00

0.0
0

(22
4,6

29
.37

)
BR

78
Hig

hw
ay
s I
ns
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e
Co

un
ty 
hig

hw
ay
s -
 in
su
ran

ce
 ex

ce
ss
es

(28
,58

3.9
1)

13
,58

3.9
1

(15
,00

0.0
0)

(15
,00

0.0
0)

BR
83

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x/B

en
efi
ts 
IT 
Re

se
rve

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
fun

d t
o c

ov
er 

so
ftw

are
 re

lea
se
s

(30
,00

0.0
0)

(30
,00

0.0
0)

(30
,00

0.0
0)

BR
83

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x/B

en
efi
ts 
IT 
Re

se
rve

(30
,00

0.0
0)

(30
,00

0.0
0)

(30
,00

0.0
0)

BR
88

I.T
. R

ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
fun

d
(78

,46
4.7

0)
(17

,60
0.0

0)
(96

,06
4.7

0)
42
,40

0.0
0

(53
,66

4.7
0)

BR
89

Pla
nn
ed
 M
ain

ten
an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
20
 ye

ar 
ma

int
en
an
ce
 fu
nd

(1,
06
3,7

08
.61

)
27
9,2

00
.00

20
0,0

00
.00

(58
4,5

08
.61

)
(27

1,8
00
.00

)
45
5,0

00
.00

75
,90

0.0
0

(32
5,4

08
.61

)
(1,

53
0,3

86
.59

)
(98

9,2
02
.68

)
(64

8,7
02
.68

)

Pa
ge
 1

Page 137



AP
PE

ND
IX 

8

PR
OJ

EC
TIO

N 
OF

 R
ES

ER
VE

S T
O 
31
ST

 M
AR

CH
 20

12
20
10
/11

20
10
/11

Re
se
rve

20
11
/12

20
11
/12

Su
pp

or
t 2

01
1/1

2
Pu

rp
os

e o
f R

es
erv

e
31
/3/
10

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Re

-al
ign

me
nt

31
/3/
11

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
bu

dg
et 

an
d

31
/3/
12

Re
ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

Re
ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

on
e o

ff g
ro
wt

h
EA

RM
AR

KE
D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

Eq
ua

lis
ati

on
 R
es
erv

es
0.0

0
BR

61
Pla

nn
ing

 D
eli
ve
ry 
Gr
an
t E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Cu
sh
ion

 im
pa
ct 
of 
flu
ctu

ati
ng
 ac

tiv
ity
 le
ve
ls

(84
8,1

72
.67

)
13
0,8

00
.00

71
7,3

72
.67

0.0
0

0.0
0

BR
63

Re
nt 
All
ow

an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Cu
sh
ion

 im
pa
ct 
of 
flu
ctu

ati
ng
 ac

tiv
ity
 le
ve
ls

(11
0,3

55
.60

)
(59

,30
0.0

0)
(16

9,6
55
.60

)
39
,10

0.0
0

(13
0,5

55
.60

)

BR
64

Pla
nn
ing

 Ap
pe
als

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n

Fu
nd
ing

 fo
r o

ne
 of
f a
pe
als

 co
st 
in 
ex
ce
ss
 of
 re

ve
nu
e b

ud
ge
t

(38
,95

5.0
9)

(38
,95

5.0
9)

(38
,95

5.0
9)

BR
65

Lic
en
sin

g F
ee
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Pa
st 
inc

om
e s

urp
lus

es
 to
 cu

sh
ion

 im
pa
ct 
of 
rev

ise
d l
eg
isla

tio
n

(43
,70

0.0
0)

17
,00

0.0
0

(26
,70

0.0
0)

17
,00

0.0
0

(9,
70
0.0

0)

BR
66

Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n

To
 co

ve
r a

ny
 ad

dit
ion

al 
los

se
s a

ris
ing

 in
 th
e v

alu
e o

f Ic
ela

nd
ic 

de
po
sit
s a

nd
/or

 to
 re

du
ce
 th
e b

orr
ow

ing
 ar

isin
g f
rom

 th
e 

ca
pit
ali
sa
tio
n o

f th
e l
os
se
s

0.0
0

(33
1,5

00
.00

)
(33

1,5
00
.00

)
(33

1,5
00
.00

)
BR

72
Lo
ca
l P

lan
 Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n

Fu
nd
 cy

clic
al 
co
st 
of 
loc

al 
pla

n i
nq
uir
y

(13
5,0

30
.00

)
80
,00

0.0
0

(55
,03

0.0
0)

(55
,03

0.0
0)

BR
76

Ele
cti
on
s/E

lec
tor

al 
Re

g. 
Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n

Fu
nd
 cy

clic
al 
co
st 
of 
loc

al 
ele

cti
on
s

(66
,20

0.0
0)

65
,20

0.0
0

(1,
00
0.0

0)
(61

,20
0.0

0)
(62

,20
0.0

0)
(1,

24
2,4

13
.36

)
(62

2,8
40
.69

)
(62

7,9
40
.69

)
Re

se
rve

s f
or
 co

mm
itm

en
ts

BR
91

Ol
d Y

ea
r C

red
ito
r R

sv
e -

 R
R

Ap
pro

ve
d b

ud
ge
t c
arr

y f
orw

ard
s

(25
8,0

00
.00

)
25
8,0

00
.00

0.0
0

0.0
0

CA
PIT

AL
BR

77
Ca

pit
al 
Re

se
rve

 - G
F H

ou
sin

g
To

 fu
nd
 H
ou
sin

g G
en
era

l F
un
d c

ap
ita
l e
xp
en
dit
ure

(2,
20
2,4

76
.15

)
42
,00

0.0
0

1,3
00
,00

0.0
0

(86
0,4

76
.15

)
37
0,0

00
.00

(49
0,4

76
.15

)
BR

92
Ca

pit
al 
Re

se
rve

 - G
F

To
 fu
nd
 G
en
era

l F
un
d c

ap
ita
l e
xp
en
dit
ure

 
(81

6,4
57
.80

)
(29

6,5
00
.00

)
65
7,6

00
.00

(30
0,0

00
.00

)
(75

5,3
57
.80

)
(70

0,0
00
.00

)
75
0,0

00
.00

32
0,3

00
.00

(38
5,0

57
.80

)
(3,

01
8,9

33
.95

)
(1,

61
5,8

33
.95

)
(87

5,5
33
.95

)

TO
TA

L E
AR

MA
RK

ED
 R
ES

ER
VE

S
(10

,26
2,0

05
.80

)
(7,

41
1,2

49
.22

)
(4,

92
3,3

49
.22

)

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
BA

LA
NC

E
BS

01
Ge

ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
 - R

R
Ge

ne
ral
 ba

lan
ce

(2,
44
6,3

76
.13

)
49
7,1

03
.00

32
1,7

00
.00

(73
0,9

56
.58

)
(2,

35
8,5

29
.71

)
53
,75

7.0
0

18
0,0

00
.00

(2,
12
4,7

72
.71

)
(2,

44
6,3

76
.13

)
(2,

35
8,5

29
.71

)
(2,

12
4,7

72
.71

)

TO
TA

L G
EN

ER
AL

 FU
ND

 R
ES

ER
VE

S A
ND

 B
AL

AN
CE

S
(12

,70
8,3

81
.93

)
1,7

17
,30

3.0
0

1,2
21
,30

0.0
0

0.0
0

(9,
76
9,7

78
.93

)
(42

9,5
43
.00

)
2,5

75
,00

0.0
0

57
6,2

00
.00

(7,
04
8,1

21
.93

)

Pr
oje

cte
d A

nn
ua

l R
ed

uc
tio

n
2,9

38
,60

3.0
0

2,7
21
,65

7.0
0

Pr
oje

cte
d A

nn
ua

l R
ed

uc
tio

n
2,9

38
,60

3.0
0

2,7
21
,65

7.0
0

Pa
ge
 2

Page 138



AP
PE

ND
IX 

9
GE

NE
RA

L F
UN

D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc

he
me

 D
es
cri

pti
on

Or
igi

na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Sc

he
me

to
20
10
/11

Bu
dg

et
20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03

/10
ag
ree

d
20
10
/11

29
/06

/10
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

BU
ILT

 EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
 

Va
rio
us

C/
R

Pr
og
ram

me
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

Ne
w 
cre

ma
tor

s
75
0,0

00
20
0,0

00
45
5,0

00

C
Re

ge
nt 
Ar
ca
de

Es
tim

ate
d s

ha
re 

of 
ref

urb
ish

me
nt 
co
sts

 - r
ec
las

sif
ied

 as
 

rev
en
ue
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re 

as
 as

se
t w

as
 re

va
lue

d a
t 3
1s
t 

Ma
rch

 20
10

35
0,0

00
35
0,0

00

GR
EE

N 
EN

VIR
ON

ME
NT

 
LC

60
01

S
S.1

06
 Pl

ay
 ar

ea
 re

fur
bis

hm
en
t

De
ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0

LC
60
02

LP
SA

/P
Br
ize

n R
ec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd

Re
pla

ce
me

nt/
En

ha
nc
em

en
t o
f p
od
 at
 Br

ize
n R

ec
rea

tio
n 

Gr
ou
nd
 fo
r y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le

19
7,0

00
45
,00

0

LC
60
06

C
Pla

y A
rea

 En
ha
nc
em

en
t

On
go
ing

 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 an

d r
efu

rbi
sh
me

nt 
of 
pla

y a
rea

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
ey
 im

pro
ve
 an

d m
ee
t s
afe

ty 
sta

nd
ard

s 
22
6,0

00
22
6,0

00
80
,00

0
80
,00

0
80
,00

0
80
,00

0
80
,00

0

LC
60
11

P
Pit

tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
Bo

ath
ou
se

En
ha
nc
em

en
ts 
to 
Pit

tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e B

oa
tho

us
e 

bri
dg
e f
un
de
d f
rom

 Se
ve
rn 

Tre
nt 
W
ate

r C
om

mu
nit
y F

un
d 

aw
ard

ed
 fo
llo
win

g t
he
 flo

od
s i
n 2

00
7.

72
,00

0
72
,00

0

LC
60
15

P
Le
ck
ha
mp

ton
 H
ill d

ry 
sto

ne
 w
all

Ma
tch

 fu
nd
ed
 w
ith
 N
atu

ral
 En

gla
nd
 to
 co

ns
tru

ct 
dry

 
sto

ne
 w
all
ing

 on
 Le

ck
ha
mp

ton
 H
ill s

it o
f s
pe
cia

l s
cie

nti
fic
 

int
ere

st 
(S
SS

I)
62
0,0

00
48
3,0

00
48
3,0

00

LC
60
20

C
Mu

lti 
Us

e G
am

es
 Ar

ea
s (
MU

GA
's)

Pr
ov
isio

n o
f M

UG
A's

 at
 Br

ize
n R

ec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd
, 

Sa
nd
for

d P
ark

, N
au
nto

n P
ark

, a
nd
 O
ak
ley

13
5,0

00
12
1,7

54
13
,00

0
13
,00

0

IN
TE

GR
AT

ED
 TR

AN
SP

OR
T 

EC
00
33

C
CC

TV
 in
 C
ar 

Pa
rks

Ad
dit
ion

al 
CC

TV
 in
 or

de
r to

 im
pro

ve
 sh

op
pin

g a
rea

s a
nd
 

red
uc
e f
ea
r o

f c
rim

e
84
,00

0
84
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0

EN
VIR

ON
ME

NT
AL

 M
AIN

TE
NA

NC
E

EC
00
51

C
Re

-jo
int
ing

 H
igh

 St
ree

t/P
rom

en
ad
e p

ed
es
tria

nis
ed
 ar

ea
Re

-jo
int
ing

 w
ork

s r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 im

pro
ve
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 

ap
pe
ara

nc
e o

f th
e c

ore
 co

mm
erc

ial
 ar

ea
60
,00

0
36
,73

4
23
,00

0
23
,00

0

LC
60
22

Bu
ria
l C

ha
pe
l

Inv
es
t to

 sa
ve
 sc

he
me

 to
 co

nv
ert

 bu
ria
l c
ha
pe
l to

 ha
nd
le 

cre
ma

tio
ns
.

11
0,0

00
11
0,0

00
11
0,0

00

Fin
an

cia
l S

erv
ice

s

GC
ER

P
C

GO
 ER

P
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
ER

P s
ys
tem

 w
ith
in 
the

 G
O 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
32
1,7

00
10
0,0

00

c
Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
 Ai

rpo
rt

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
ow

ard
s t
he
 re

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pro

jec
t - 

£1
.2m

 
loa

n
1,2

00
,00

0

IC
T

DC
32
04

C
Bu

sin
es
s C

ha
ng
e P

rog
ram

me
Pr
ep
ara

tio
n o

f th
e G

O 
Ce

ntr
e o

f E
xc
ell
en
ce
 pr

op
os
als

 
for

 IC
T h

os
tin
g

20
,00

0

DC
32
11

W
ork

ing
 Fl
ex
ibl
y

De
live

r c
ou
nc
il s

erv
ice

s a
t a
 tim

e a
nd
 pl
ac
e w

hic
h s

uit
 

the
 cu

sto
me

r.
67
,00

0
67
,00

0

Pa
ge
 1 

Page 139



AP
PE

ND
IX 

9
GE

NE
RA

L F
UN

D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc

he
me

 D
es
cri

pti
on

Or
igi

na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Sc

he
me

to
20
10
/11

Bu
dg

et
20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03

/10
ag
ree

d
20
10
/11

29
/06

/10
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

DC
32
11

Fle
xib

le 
W
ork

ing
 - P

ha
se
 2

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f C
itri
x e

nv
iro
nm

en
t to

 de
live

r b
us
ine

ss
 

ap
llic

ati
on
s t
o t
he
 ho

me
 / r

em
ote

 us
ers

 de
sk
top

49
,00

0
49
,00

0

DC
32
13

Sto
rag

e A
rea

 N
etw

ork
Sto

rag
e f
or 

the
 co

un
cil’

s d
ata

 in
 a 
se
cu
re,

 ex
pa
nd
ab
le 

an
d r

ob
us
t e
nv
iro
nm

en
t

15
5,0

00
15
5,0

00
15
5,0

00

RE
VE

NU
ES

 &
 B
EN

EF
ITS

DC
32
14

IBS
 PT

C 
sc
he
du
ler

Sc
he
du
lin
g s

oft
wa

re 
for

 th
e R

ev
en
ue
s &

 Be
ne
fits

 
Sy

ste
m 
to 
au
tom

ate
 th
e r

un
nin

g o
f p
roc

es
se
s.

10
,60

0

DS
U

DC
32
12

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 
co
mm

itte
e w

eb
 sy

ste
m

Th
is 
pro

po
sa
l is

 to
 m
igr
ate

 to
 a 
pu
rpo

se
 bu

ilt 
co
mm

itte
e 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
sy
ste

m,
 m
od
ern

.go
v w

hic
h w

ou
ld 
be
 

ac
ce
ss
ibl
e f
rom

 th
e n

ew
 Ja

du
 w
eb
sit
e

20
,00

0
20
,00

0
20
,00

0

CO
MM

UN
ITY

 SE
RV

IC
ES

HC
74
40

C/
SC

G/
 

PS
R

Dis
ab
led

 Fa
cili

tie
s G

ran
ts

Ma
nd
ato

ry 
Gr
an
t fo

r th
e p

rov
isio

n o
f b
uil
din

g w
ork

, 
eq
uip

me
nt 
or 

mo
dif
yin

g a
 dw

ell
ing

 to
 re

sto
re 

or 
en
ab
le 

ind
ep
en
de
nt 
livi

ng
, p
riv
ac
y, 
co
nfi
de
nc
e a

nd
 di
gn
ity
 fo
r 

ind
ivid

ua
ls 
an
d t
he
ir f
am

ilie
s.

60
0,0

00
61
4,0

00
60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00
60
0,0

00

HC
74
45

C
Ad

ap
tat
ion

 Su
pp
ort

 G
ran

t

Us
ed
 m
os
tly
 w
he
re 

es
se
nti
al 
rep

air
s (
he
alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y) 

are
 id
en
tifi
ed
 to
 en

ab
le 
the

 D
FG

 w
ork

 to
 pr

oc
ee
d (

e.g
. 

ele
ctr
ica

l w
ork

s).
  

26
,00

0
12
,00

0
26
,00

0
26
,00

0
26
,00

0
26
,00

0
26
,00

0

HC
74
00

PS
DH

He
alt
h &

 Sa
fet
y G

ran
t / 
Lo
an
s

A n
ew

 fo
rm

 of
 as

sis
tan

ce
 av

ail
ab
le 
un
de
r th

e c
ou
nc
il's
 

Ho
us
ing

 R
en
ew

al 
Po

licy
 20

03
-06

HC
74
00

PS
DH

He
alt
h &

 Sa
fet
y G

ran
t / 
Lo
an
s

Ho
us
ing

 R
en
ew

al 
Po

licy
 20

03
-06

HC
74
05

PS
DH

Va
ca
nt 
Pr
op
ert

y G
ran

t
A n

ew
 fo
rm

 of
 as

sis
tan

ce
 av

ail
ab
le 
un
de
r th

e c
ou
nc
il's
 

Ho
us
ing

 R
en
ew

al 
Po

licy
 20

03
-06

HC
74
10

PS
R

Re
no
va
tio
n G

ran
ts

Gr
an
ts 
pro

vid
ed
 un

de
r th

e H
ou
sin

g G
ran

ts,
 C
on
str
uc
tio
n 

an
d R

eg
en
era

tio
n A

ct 
19
96

81
9,0

00
40
0,0

00
29
9,8

00

HC
74
55

PS
DH

W
arm

 & 
W
ell

A G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire
-w
ide

 pr
oje

ct 
to 
pro

mo
te 
ho
me

 en
erg

y 
eff
icie

nc
y, 
pa
rtic

ula
rly
 ta
rge

ted
 at
 th
os
e w

ith
 he

alt
h 

pro
ble

ms

HC
92
00

C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 En
ab
lin
g

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

in 
su
pp
ort

 of
 en

ab
lin
g t
he
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f n
ew

 
aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 re

gis
ter

ed
 So

cia
l 

La
nd
lor
ds
 an

d t
he
 H
ou
sin

g C
orp

ora
tio
n

35
0,0

00
42
,00

0
37
0,0

00

HC
92
00

C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 En
ab
lin
g

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

in 
su
pp
ort

 of
 en

ab
lin
g t
he
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f n
ew

 
aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 
Bo

rou
gh
 H
om

es
50
0,0

00
11
0,0

00
1,7

90
,00

0
2,9

00
,00

0

EC
00
06

C
CC

TV
/To

wn
 C
en
tre

 in
itia

tiv
e

Ex
pa
ns
ion

 of
 on

 st
ree

t C
CT

V i
n t
he
 to
wn

 ce
ntr

e t
o 

inc
rea

se
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 se

cu
re 

the
 en

vir
on
me

nt
55
,00

0
55
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0

HE
AL

TH
 AN

D 
WE

LL
 B
EIN

G
R/
P

Ar
t G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t S

ch
em

e
Co

un
cil'
s c

om
mi
tm
en
t to

 ne
w 
sc
he
me

 as
 ag

ree
d b

y 
Co

un
cil 

20
th 
Ju
ly 
20
08

1,0
00
,00

0
0

1,0
00
,00

0
1,0

00
,00

0

Ev
ery

ma
n T

he
atr

e
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
ow

ard
s t
he
 re

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pro

jec
t - 

£1
m 

loa
n a

nd
 £2

50
k g

ran
t

1,2
50
,00

0
1,2

50
,00

0

IN
TE

RI
M 
BU

DG
ET

 PR
OP

OS
AL

S F
UT

UR
E 

CA
PIT

AL
 PR

OG
RA

MM
E:

20
0,0

00
20
0,0

00
20
0,0

00
20
0,0

00

C
Te

lep
ho
ny
 sw

itc
h u

pg
rad

e
70
,30

0

Pa
ge
 2 

Page 140



AP
PE

ND
IX 

9
GE

NE
RA

L F
UN

D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he
me

 
Sc

he
me

 D
es
cri

pti
on

Or
igi

na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

Bu
dg

et
Sc

he
me

to
20
10
/11

Bu
dg

et
20
11
/12

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
14
/15

20
15
/16

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03

/10
ag
ree

d
20
10
/11

29
/06

/10
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

C
Ca

r p
ark

 m
an
ag
em

en
t te

ch
no
log

y
25
0,0

00

CA
PIT

AL
 SC

HE
ME

S -
 R
EC

LA
SS

IFI
ED

 AS
 

RE
VE

NU
E

DC
10
66

C
La
nd
 & 

Pr
op
ert

y p
res

ale
 co

sts
Pr
op
ert

y &
 Le

ga
l c
os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th
e p

rop
os
ed
 

Mi
dw

int
er 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d F

ell
mo

ng
ers

 si
te

10
,00

0

LC
60
05

C
All
otm

en
ts

All
otm

en
t E

nh
an
ce
me

nts
 - n

ew
 to
ile
ts,
 pa

th 
su
rfa

cin
g, 

fen
cin

g, 
sig

na
ge
, a
nd
 ot
he
r im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to
 in
fra

-
str
uc
tur

e.
35
3,1

00
33
6,4

50
16
,60

0
16
,60

0

EC
00
43

C
Ra

tio
na
lisa

tio
n &

 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 of
 st
ree

t fu
rni
tur

e a
nd
 

sig
np
os
tin
g

Ob
so
let
e f
urn

itu
re 

tha
t n
ee
d r

em
ov
ing

. B
ac
klo

g o
f 

rep
air
s t
o s

ign
po
sts

 an
d s

tre
et 
fur

nit
ure

 
20
,00

0
8,0

71
12
,00

0
12
,00

0

EC
00
54

De
po
t R

ati
on
ali
sa
tio
n

Co
sts

 as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 in
co
rpo

rat
ing

 Te
wk

es
bu
ry 

Bo
rou

gh
 C
ou
nc
il w

ith
in 
the

 D
ep
ot 
sit
e a

t S
win

do
n R

oa
d

20
0,0

00
19
1,9

73
12
0,0

00
10
8,0

00

TO
TA

L C
AP

ITA
L P

RO
GR

AM
ME

6,0
15

,60
0

3,2
63

,90
0

7,6
41

,10
0

4,9
56

,00
0

1,0
56

,00
0

1,0
56

,00
0

1,0
56

,00
0

Fu
nd

ed
 by

:
G

Go
ve
rnm

en
t G

ran
ts

10
,60

0
SC

G
Sp

ec
ifie

d C
ap
ita
l G

ran
t (D

FG
)

30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
LP

SA
Lo
ca
l P

ub
lic 

Se
rvi
ce
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
45
,00

0
P
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Fu

nd
ing

80
3,0

00
79
1,0

00
P
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Fu

nd
ing

80
3,0

00
79
1,0

00
PS

DH
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r D

ec
en
t H

om
es
 G
ran

t
81
9,0

00
54
8,0

00
29
9,8

00
HL

FH
eri
tag

e L
ott
ery

 Fu
nd
ing

HR
A
Ho

us
ing

 R
ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t C

on
trib

uti
on

10
0,0

00
R
Pr
op
ert

y P
lan

ne
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
75
0,0

00
20
0,0

00
45
5,0

00
R
AG

&M
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
1,0

00
,00

0
1,0

00
,00

0
1,0

00
,00

0
S
De

ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 S1

06
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
C
Ge

ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
s

32
1,7

00
C
HR

A C
ap
ita
l R

ec
eip

ts
11
0,0

00
39
0,0

00
C
GF

 C
ap
ita
l R

ec
eip

ts
22
7,0

00
C
HI
P C

ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
85
0,0

00
42
,00

0
37
0,0

00
C
Pr
ud
en
tia
l B

orr
ow

ing
3,6

00
,00

0
2,9

00
,00

0
C
GF

 C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
1,3

92
,60

0
65
7,6

00
1,0

70
,30

0
70
0,0

00
70
0,0

00
70
0,0

00
70
0,0

00
6,0

15
,60

0
3,2

63
,90

0
7,6

41
,10

0
4,9

56
,00

0
1,0

56
,00

0
1,0

56
,00

0
1,0

56
,00

0

Pa
ge
 3 

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



Pr
og

ram
me

 M
ain

ten
an

ce
 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

SU
MM

AR
Y -

 Ye
ar 

6 -
 7

C
Ca

pit
al 
To

tal
R

Re
ve
nu

e T
ota

l
 To

tal
 C
os

t to
 

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
Co

de
Bu

ild
ing

 20
10
/11

    
  

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 
 20

10
/11

    
 

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 

PM
00
00

All
 pr

op
ert

ies
 (H

&S
)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

42
,00

0
    
   

42
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

42
,00

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
00
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

42
,00

0
    
   

42
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

42
,00

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
10

Ar
t G

all
ery

/M
us
eu
m

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

2,7
00

    
    
   

2,5
00

    
    
 

5,2
00

    
    
    
    
   

5,2
00

    
    
    
   

Cla
ren

ce
 St

ree
t (5

1)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

30
0

    
    
    

30
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

30
0

    
    
    
    
  

Cla
ren

ce
 St

ree
t (5

3)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

30
0

    
    
    

30
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

30
0

    
    
    
    
  

Cla
ren

ce
 St

ree
t (5

5)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

30
0

    
    
    

30
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

30
0

    
    
    
    
  

Cla
ren

ce
 St

ree
t L
ibr
ary

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

1,0
00

    
    
 

1,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

1,0
00

    
    
    
   

PM
00
10
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

2,7
00

    
    
   

4,4
00

    
    
 

7,1
00

    
    
    
    
   

7,1
00

    
    
    
   

PM
00
20

To
wn

 H
all

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

83
,50

0
    
    
  

83
,50

0
    
    
 

30
,00

0
    
   

11
3,5

00
    
    
    
   

11
3,5

00
    
    
   

PM
00
20
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

83
,50

0
    
    
  

83
,50

0
    
    
 

30
,00

0
    
   

11
3,5

00
    
    
    
   

11
3,5

00
    
    
   

PM
00
30

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pu

mp
 R
oo
m

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

88
,70

0
    
    
  

11
5,7

00
    
   

21
,20

0
    
   

13
6,9

00
    
    
    
   

13
6,9

00
    
    
   

PM
00
30
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

88
,70

0
    
    
  

11
5,7

00
    
   

21
,20

0
    
   

13
6,9

00
    
    
    
   

13
6,9

00
    
    
   

PM
00
40

Pit
tvi
lle
 C
ric
ke
t H

all
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

12
,20

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

12
,20

0
    
    
    
    
 

12
,20

0
    
    
    
 

Pit
tvi
lle
 R
ec
 C
en
tre

 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

2,0
00

    
    
    

2,0
00

    
    
   

1,0
00

    
    
 

3,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

3,0
00

    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 R
ec
rea

tio
n C

en
tre

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

10
,00

0
    
    
  

29
,20

0
    
    
 

36
,70

0
    
   

65
,90

0
    
    
    
    
 

65
,90

0
    
    
    
 

Pit
tvi
lle
 Sw

im
mi
ng
 Po

ol
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

6,5
00

    
    
   

7,0
00

    
    
 

13
,50

0
    
    
    
    
 

13
,50

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
40
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

17
,00

0
    
    
  

49
,90

0
    
    
 

44
,70

0
    
   

94
,60

0
    
    
    
    
 

94
,60

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
41

Po
W
 St

ad
ium

 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

4,0
00

    
    
 

4,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

4,0
00

    
    
    
   

Pr
inc

e o
f W

ale
s S

tad
ium

 Tr
ac
k

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

2,0
00

    
    
    

2,0
00

    
    
   

62
,50

0
    
   

64
,50

0
    
    
    
    
 

64
,50

0
    
    
    
 

Pr
inc

e o
f W

ale
s S

tad
ium

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

27
,30

0
    
    
  

27
,30

0
    
    
 

37
,00

0
    
   

64
,30

0
    
    
    
    
 

64
,30

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
41
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

29
,30

0
    
    
  

29
,30

0
    
    
 

10
3,5

00
    
 

13
2,8

00
    
    
    
   

13
2,8

00
    
    
   

PM
00
41
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

29
,30

0
    
    
  

29
,30

0
    
    
 

10
3,5

00
    
 

13
2,8

00
    
    
    
   

13
2,8

00
    
    
   

PM
00
42

Ag
g G

ard
ne
r P

av
ilio

n
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Be
ec
he
s P

av
ilio

n
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Br
ize

n P
av
ilio

n
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Bu
rro

ws
 Pa

vili
on

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

12
,00

0
    
    
  

12
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

12
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

12
,00

0
    
    
    
 

Ce
ntr

al 
Cr
os
s K

ios
k

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

7,9
50

    
    
 

7,9
50

    
    
    
    
   

7,9
50

    
    
    
   

Kin
g G

eo
rge

 V 
Pa

vili
on

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ma
ry 
Go

dw
in 
Pa

vili
on

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Na
un
ton

 Pa
rk 

Pa
vili

on
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 Bo

at 
Ho

us
e

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
ior
s F

arm
 Pa

vili
on

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

14
1,0

00
    
    

30
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

30
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

30
,00

0
    
    
    
 

W
elc

h R
oa
d P

av
ilio

n
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

W
ha
dd
on
 R
oa
d P

av
ilio

n
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

All
 Pa

vili
on
s

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

5,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

5,0
00

    
    
    
   

Ha
the

rle
y P

ark
 Pa

vili
on

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
00
42
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

15
8,0

00
    
    

47
,00

0
    
    
 

7,9
50

    
    
 

54
,95

0
    
    
    
    
 

54
,95

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
60

Ce
ntr

al 
De

po
t (S

win
do
n R

d) 
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

30
,00

0
    
    
  

33
,00

0
    
    
 

57
,50

0
    
   

90
,50

0
    
    
    
    
 

90
,50

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
60
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

30
,00

0
    
    
  

33
,00

0
    
    
 

57
,50

0
    
   

90
,50

0
    
    
    
    
 

90
,50

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
61

Civ
ic 
Am

en
ity
 C
en
tre

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

1,5
00

    
    
 

1,5
00

    
    
    
    
   

1,5
00

    
    
    
   

PM
00
61
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

1,5
00

    
    
 

1,5
00

    
    
    
    
   

1,5
00

    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 1

Page 143



Pr
og

ram
me

 M
ain

ten
an

ce
 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

C
Ca

pit
al 
To

tal
R

Re
ve
nu

e T
ota

l
 To

tal
 C
os

t to
 

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
Co

de
Bu

ild
ing

 20
10
/11

    
  

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 
 20

10
/11

    
 

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 

PM
00
70

Mu
nic

ipa
l O

ffic
e

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

20
,00

0
    
    
  

10
,00

0
    
    
 

4,0
00

    
    
 

14
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

14
,00

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
70
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

20
,00

0
    
    
  

10
,00

0
    
    
 

4,0
00

    
    
 

14
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

14
,00

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
80

Ce
me

ter
y G

ard
en
s

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

25
,00

0
    
    
  

25
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

25
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

25
,00

0
    
    
    
 

Ce
me

ter
y L

od
ge

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

50
0

    
    
    

50
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

50
0

    
    
    
    
  

Ce
me

ter
y C

ha
pe
l

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

1,2
00

    
    
 

1,2
00

    
    
    
    
   

1,2
00

    
    
    
   

Ce
me

ter
y N

urs
ery

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

65
0

    
    
    

65
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

65
0

    
    
    
    
  

Ce
me

ter
y O

ffic
es

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

4,5
00

    
    
    

4,5
00

    
    
   

65
0

    
    
    

5,1
50

    
    
    
    
   

5,1
50

    
    
    
   

PM
00
80
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

29
,50

0
    
    
  

29
,50

0
    
    
 

3,0
00

    
    
 

32
,50

0
    
    
    
    
 

32
,50

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
81

Th
e C

rem
ato

riu
m

75
0,0

00
    
 

20
0,0

00
    
    
 

45
5,0

00
    
 

65
5,0

00
    
    
    
  

50
,00

0
    
    
  

50
,00

0
    
    
 

61
,20

0
    
   

11
1,2

00
    
    
    
   

76
6,2

00
    
    
   

PM
00
81
 To

tal
75
0,0

00
    
 

20
0,0

00
    
    
 

45
5,0

00
    
 

65
5,0

00
    
    
    
  

50
,00

0
    
    
  

50
,00

0
    
    
 

61
,20

0
    
   

11
1,2

00
    
    
    
   

76
6,2

00
    
    
   

PM
00
82

Ch
arl
ton

 Ki
ng
s C

em
ete

ry
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

65
0

    
    
    

65
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

65
0

    
    
    
    
  

PM
00
82
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

65
0

    
    
    

65
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

65
0

    
    
    
    
  

PM
00
90

Ag
g G

ard
ne
r R

ec
rea

tio
n G

rd
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Alm
a R

d S
co
uts

 H
ut

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ba
rn 

Fa
rm

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ba
th 
Ro

ad
 (5

5)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Be
rkl
ey
 M
ew

s 
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

19
,00

0
    
    
  

19
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

19
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

19
,00

0
    
    
    
 

Br
ize

n P
lay

ing
 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Bu
rro

ws
 Pl

ay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Bu
rts
 Ya

rd
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ca
ern

arv
on
 R
d R

ec
rea

tio
n G

rd
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ca
mb

ray
 Pl

ac
e (

24
)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

2,0
00

    
    
    

2,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

2,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

2,0
00

    
    
    
   

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Sp

a B
ow

lin
g C

lub
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Sp

a B
ow

lin
g C

lub
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
To

wn
 Fo

otb
all
 C
lub

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ch
es
ter

 W
alk

 (0
4)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ch
es
ter

 W
alk

 (0
5)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ch
urc

h S
t N

urs
ery

 Sc
ho
ol 
Sit

e
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ch
urc

hd
ow

n P
ari
sh
 C
ou
nc
il O

ffic
es

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Civ
ic 
Ga

rag
e

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

10
0

    
    
    

10
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

10
0

    
    
    
    
  

Civ
il S

erv
ice

 Sp
ort

s G
rou

nd
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Cly
de
 C
res

ce
nt 
Re

cre
ati
on
 G
rd

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Do
wt
y H

ou
se

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ed
inb

urg
h P

lac
e S

ho
pp
ing

 C
en
tre

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Elm
fie
ld 
Rd

 Pl
ay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Gr
an
ge
 W

alk
 Pl

ay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Gr
an
ge
 W

alk
 Te

nn
is 
Cr
t

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Gr
an
ge
 W

alk
 Yo

uth
 C
lub

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Gr
iffi
ths

 Av
e N

atu
re 

Re
se
rve

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Gr
os
ve
no
r S

tre
et 
(39

)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ha
the

rle
y P

ark
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ha
yw

ard
s L

an
e P

lay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

He
ste

rs 
W
ay
 Pa

rk
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

He
ste

rs 
W
ay
 Pa

rk 
Sto

res
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 2

Page 144



Pr
og

ram
me

 M
ain

ten
an

ce
 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

C
Ca

pit
al 
To

tal
R

Re
ve
nu

e T
ota

l
 To

tal
 C
os

t to
 

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
Co

de
Bu

ild
ing

 20
10
/11

    
  

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 
 20

10
/11

    
 

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 

Hil
l F
arm

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ho
rse

 & 
Gr
oo
m

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Im
pe
ria
l S

q B
ee
r P

av
ilio

n
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Kin
g G

eo
rge

 V 
Pla

yin
g F

iel
d

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Kin
g G

eo
rge

 V 
Te

nn
is 
Cr
t

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Kin
g S

tre
et 
(S
ite
 of
)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Le
ck
ha
mp

ton
 Sc

ou
ts 
Ha

ll
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Mo
ntp

ell
ier
 G
ard

en
s B

an
ds
tan

d
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Mo
ntp

ell
ier
 G
ard

en
s L

od
ge

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

50
0

    
    
    

50
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

50
0

    
    
    
    
  

Mo
ntp

ell
ier
 G
ard

en
s P

ros
ce
niu

m
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Mo
ntp

ell
ier
 G
ard

en
s S

he
lte
r

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

15
,00

0
    
    
  

15
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

15
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

15
,00

0
    
    
    
 

Mo
ntp

ell
ier
 G
ard

en
s T

en
nis

 C
rt

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Na
un
ton

 Pa
rk 

Re
cre

ati
on
 G
rd

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ne
ptu

ne
's 
Fo

un
tai
n 

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

5,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

5,0
00

    
    
    
   

Ol
d P

ate
sia

ns
 Sp

ort
s C

lub
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 C
ivil

 D
efe

nc
e C

en
tre

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
Av

iar
ies

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

20
0

    
    
    

20
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

20
0

    
    
    
    
  

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
Ba

nd
sta

nd
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
Go

lf C
ou
rse

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
La
nd
ing

 St
ag
e

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
Te

nn
is 
Cr
t

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rks
 & 

Ga
rde

ns
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

3,5
00

    
    
    

3,5
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

3,5
00

    
    
    
    
   

3,5
00

    
    
    
   

Pla
yh
ou
se
 Th

ea
tre

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pla
yh
ou
se
 Th

ea
tre

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
ior
s F

arm
 Pl

ay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
om

en
ad
e B

as
em

en
t F

ron
t

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pr
om

en
ad
e L

on
g G

ard
en
s

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ro
se
 & 

Cr
ow

n P
as
sa
ge
 D
ep
ot

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ro
ya
l C

res
ce
nt 
(14

)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ro
ya
l W

ell
 Bu

s S
tat
ion

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ro
ya
l W

ell
 C
loc

k
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sa
nd
for

d P
ark

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sa
nd
for

d P
ark

 O
ffic

es
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

21
,30

0
    
    
  

21
,30

0
    
    
 

40
0

    
    
    

21
,70

0
    
    
    
    
 

21
,70

0
    
    
    
 

Sa
nd
y L

an
e P

lay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sh
op
mo

bil
ity

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Six
 W

ay
s H

all
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ge

org
es
 Pl

ac
e (

03
)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ge

org
es
 Pl

ac
e B

uri
al 
Gr
ou
n

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ja
me

s S
tre

et 
(08

)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ja
me

s S
tre

et 
(12

)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ja
me

s S
tre

et 
(14

)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ja
me

s S
tre

et 
(28

)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 3

Page 145



Pr
og

ram
me

 M
ain

ten
an

ce
 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

C
Ca

pit
al 
To

tal
R

Re
ve
nu

e T
ota

l
 To

tal
 C
os

t to
 

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
Co

de
Bu

ild
ing

 20
10
/11

    
  

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 
 20

10
/11

    
 

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 

St 
Ja
me

s S
tre

et 
(30

)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ja
me

s S
tre

et 
(32

-34
)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ja
me

s S
tre

et 
(36

-38
)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ma

rga
ret

's 
Ha

ll
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ma

rga
ret

's 
Sc

ou
ts 
Ha

ll
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ma

ry'
s M

iss
ion

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

20
0

    
    
    

20
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

20
0

    
    
    
    
  

St 
Pa

uls
 Te

rra
ce
 (0

4)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St 
Ste

ph
en
s C

ric
ke
t P

av
illio

n
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sw
ind

on
 R
oa
d (

08
)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sw
ind

on
 R
oa
d (

14
)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sw
ind

on
 R
oa
d D

ep
ot 
(M

itto
n's

 G
ara

ge
)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sw
ind

on
 R
oa
d D

ep
ot 
(P
ipe

lin
e C

om
po
un
d)

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sw
ind

on
 R
oa
d D

ep
ot 
(P
MF

)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sw
ind

on
 R
oa
d D

ep
ot 
(Ti

pw
eld

)
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sw
ind

on
 Vi

lla
ge
 Pl

ay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

TA
VR

 C
en
tre

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Th
e B

ee
ch
es
 Pl

ay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Tra
mw

ay
 C
ott
ag
e

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

25
,00

0
    
    
  

25
,00

0
    
    
 

20
0

    
    
    

25
,20

0
    
    
    
    
 

25
,20

0
    
    
    
 

Qu
ee
n E

liza
be
th 
II R

ec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

7,0
00

    
    
 

7,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

7,0
00

    
    
    
   

Up
 H
ath

erl
ey
 W

ay
 Pl

ay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

W
elc

h R
oa
d P

lay
ing

 Fi
eld

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

W
ha
dd
on
 R
d B

ow
lin
g C

lub
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

W
ha
dd
on
 R
ec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

W
ha
dd
on
 R
ec
rea

tio
n G

rou
nd

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
00
90
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

90
,80

0
    
    
  

90
,80

0
    
    
 

8,6
00

    
    
 

99
,40

0
    
    
    
    
 

99
,40

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
91

Ev
ery

ma
n T

he
atr

e
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

35
,00

0
    
    
  

35
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

35
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

35
,00

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
91
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

35
,00

0
    
    
  

35
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

35
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

35
,00

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
92

Ce
me

ter
y N

urs
ery

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ce
ntr

al 
Nu

rse
ry

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

26
,70

0
    
    
  

26
,70

0
    
    
 

1,1
00

    
    
 

27
,80

0
    
    
    
    
 

27
,80

0
    
    
    
 

Ce
ntr

al 
Nu

rse
ry 
Ho

us
e 1

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

12
,00

0
    
    
  

12
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

12
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

12
,00

0
    
    
    
 

Ce
ntr

al 
Nu

rse
ry 
Ho

us
e 2

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

8,0
00

    
    
    

8,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

8,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

8,0
00

    
    
    
   

PM
00
92
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

46
,70

0
    
    
  

46
,70

0
    
    
 

1,1
00

    
    
 

47
,80

0
    
    
    
    
 

47
,80

0
    
    
    
 

PM
00
95

Ed
inb

urg
h H

ou
se

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

2,5
00

    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

2,2
00

    
    
 

2,2
00

    
    
    
    
   

2,2
00

    
    
    
   

PM
00
95
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

2,5
00

    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

2,2
00

    
    
 

2,2
00

    
    
    
    
   

2,2
00

    
    
    
   

PM
00
96

Sta
nto

n R
oo
ms

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

40
0

    
    
    

40
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

40
0

    
    
    
    
  

PM
00
96
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

40
0

    
    
    

40
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

40
0

    
    
    
    
  

PM
00
99

Me
mo

ria
ls/
Sta

tue
s/F

ou
nta

ins
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

1,0
00

    
    
   

2,0
00

    
    
 

3,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

3,0
00

    
    
    
   

PM
00
99
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

1,0
00

    
    
   

2,0
00

    
    
 

3,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

3,0
00

    
    
    
   

PM
01
20

Ar
le 
Co

urt
 Pa

rk/
Rid

e
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ba
yn
ha
m 
W
ay
 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Be
nn
ing

ton
 St

ree
t C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ch
ap
el 
W
alk

 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Co
ron

ati
on
 Sq

ua
re 

CP
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 4

Page 146



Pr
og

ram
me

 M
ain

ten
an

ce
 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

C
Ca

pit
al 
To

tal
R

Re
ve
nu

e T
ota

l
 To

tal
 C
os

t to
 

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
Co

de
Bu

ild
ing

 20
10
/11

    
  

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 
 20

10
/11

    
 

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 

Gl
en
fal
l S

tre
et 
CP

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Je
rse

y S
tre

et 
CP

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ph
oe
nix

 Pa
ss
ag
e C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
Go

lf C
ou
rse

 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ra
ce
 C
ou
rse

 Pa
rk/

Rid
e

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ro
dn
ey
 R
oa
d C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sid
ne
y S

tre
et 
CP

1
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sid
ne
y S

tre
et 
CP

2
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Sp
rin
gb
an
k W

ay
 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

St.
 Pe

ter
's 
Re

c G
rou

nd
 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

W
hit
eh
art

 St
ree

t C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

All
 C
Ps

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

8,0
00

    
    
    

8,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

8,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

8,0
00

    
    
    
   

PM
01
20
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

8,0
00

    
    
    

8,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

8,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

8,0
00

    
    
    
   

PM
01
21

Ba
th 
Te

rra
ce
 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
21
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
23

Ch
urc

h P
iec

e C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
23
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
24

Co
mm

erc
ial
 St

ree
t C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
24
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
25

Gr
os
ve
no
r T

err
ac
e M

ult
i-S

tor
ey
 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
25
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
26

Hig
h S

tre
et 
CP

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
26
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
26
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
27

Ids
all
 D
riv
e C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
27
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
28

La
ns
do
wn

 Pl
ac
e C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
28
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
29

No
rth

 Pl
ac
e C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
29
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
30

Po
rtla

nd
 St

ree
t C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
30
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
31

Re
ge
nt 
Ar
ca
de
 M
ult
i-s
tor

ey
 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

6,5
00

    
    
    

6,5
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

6,5
00

    
    
    
    
   

6,5
00

    
    
    
   

PM
01
31
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

6,5
00

    
    
    

6,5
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

6,5
00

    
    
    
    
   

6,5
00

    
    
    
   

PM
01
33

Sh
erb

orn
e P

lac
e C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
33
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
34

W
hit
efr

iar
s S

ixw
ay
s C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
34
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
35

St.
 G
eo
rge

's 
Ro

ad
 C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
35
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
36

St.
 Ja

me
s's

 St
ree

t C
P

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
36
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
37

Sy
na
go
gu
e L

an
e C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
37
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 5

Page 147



Pr
og

ram
me

 M
ain

ten
an

ce
 

AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

C
Ca

pit
al 
To

tal
R

Re
ve
nu

e T
ota

l
 To

tal
 C
os

t to
 

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
Co

de
Bu

ild
ing

 20
10
/11

    
  

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 
 20

10
/11

    
 

OR
IG
IN
AL

 
 20

10
/11

    
  

RE
VIS

ED
 

 20
11
/12

 

PM
01
39

Ba
th 
Pa

rad
e C

P
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
39
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
50

Ho
ne
yb
ou
rne

 Li
ne
 Fo

lly 
La
ne
 Br

idg
e

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

3,0
00

    
    
    

3,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

3,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

3,0
00

    
    
    
   

Ho
ne
yb
ou
rne

 Li
ne
 Lo

we
r H

igh
 St

 Br
idg

e
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

40
,00

0
    
    
  

40
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

40
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

40
,00

0
    
    
    
 

Ho
ne
yb
ou
rne

 Li
ne
 M
alv

ern
 R
d B

rid
ge

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

7,0
00

    
    
    

7,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

7,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

7,0
00

    
    
    
   

Ho
ne
yb
ou
rne

 Li
ne
 M
ark

et 
St 

Br
idg

e
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    

5,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

5,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

5,0
00

    
    
    
   

Ho
ne
yb
ou
rne

 Li
ne
 St

. P
au
l's 

Rd
 Br

idg
e

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

35
,00

0
    
    
  

35
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

35
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

35
,00

0
    
    
    
 

Ho
ne
yb
ou
rne

 Li
ne
 Sw

ind
on
 R
d B

rid
ge

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

8,0
00

    
    
    

8,0
00

    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

8,0
00

    
    
    
    
   

8,0
00

    
    
    
   

Kin
gh
am

 La
ne
 Br

idg
e

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

PM
01
50
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

98
,00

0
    
    
  

98
,00

0
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
 

98
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

98
,00

0
    
    
    
 

PM
01
60

Am
bro

se
 St

ree
t  W

C
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

50
0

    
    
    

50
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

50
0

    
    
    
    
  

Ba
th 
Te

rra
ce
 W

C
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Ch
urc

h P
iec

e W
C

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

30
0

    
    
    

30
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

30
0

    
    
    
    
  

Co
x's

 M
ea
do
w 
W
C

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

30
0

    
    
    

30
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

30
0

    
    
    
    
  

Ed
inb

urg
h P

lac
e W

C
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Gr
os
ve
no
r T

err
ac
e W

C
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Im
pe
ria
l G

ard
en
s W

C
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

30
0

    
    
    

30
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

30
0

    
    
    
    
  

Mo
ntp

ell
ier
 W

C
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pa

rk 
W
C

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Po
rtla

nd
 St

ree
t W

C
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

30
0

    
    
    

30
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

30
0

    
    
    
    
  

Ro
ya
l W

ell
 W

C
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

30
0

    
    
    

30
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

30
0

    
    
    
    
  

Sa
nd
for

d P
ark

 W
C

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

30
0

    
    
    

30
0

    
    
    
    
    
  

30
0

    
    
    
    
  

All
 W

Cs
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

12
,50

0
    
    
  

15
,00

0
    
    
 

8,0
00

    
    
 

23
,00

0
    
    
    
    
 

23
,00

0
    
    
    
 

PM
01
60
 To

tal
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

12
,50

0
    
    
  

15
,00

0
    
    
 

10
,30

0
    
   

25
,30

0
    
    
    
    
 

25
,30

0
    
    
    
 

Gr
an

d T
ota

l
75
0,0

00
    
 

20
0,0

00
    
    
 

45
5,0

00
    
 

65
5,0

00
    
    
    
  

81
1,0

00
    
    

75
1,6

00
    
   

40
6,2

00
    
 

1,1
57
,80

0
    
    
    

1,8
12
,80

0
    
    

Gr
an

d T
ota

l
75
0,0

00
    
 

20
0,0

00
    
    
 

45
5,0

00
    
 

65
5,0

00
    
    
    
  

81
1,0

00
    
    

75
1,6

00
    
   

40
6,2

00
    
 

1,1
57
,80

0
    
    
    

1,8
12
,80

0
    
    

Ex
ter

na
l F

un
din

g
Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
 C
ou
nty

 C
ou
nc
il

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

Re
cre

ati
on
 C
en
tre

 M
ain

ten
an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
-

    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

W
ar 

Co
mm

iss
ion

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

-
    
    
    
    
    
   

To
tal

 N
et 

Co
st 

to 
Ge

ne
ral

 Fu
nd

75
0,0

00
    
 

20
0,0

00
    
    
 

45
5,0

00
    
 

65
5,0

00
    
    
    
  

81
1,0

00
    
    

75
1,6

00
    
   

40
6,2

00
    
 

1,1
57
,80

0
    
    
    

1,8
12
,80

0
    
    

Ho
us

ing
 R
ev
en

ue
 Ac

co
un

t
-

    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

-
    
    
    
    
    

-
    
    
    
    
   

2,2
00

    
    
 

2,2
00

    
    
    
    
   

2,2
00

    
    
    
   

Pa
ge
 6

Page 148



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 1

1.  Introduction  
 
1.1  The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is the council’s key financial 

planning document. It sets out, and considers the financial implications of the 
council’s objectives and priorities. The aim of the MTFS is to ensure a stable 
and sustainable financial position that will allow the council to achieve its 
vision, aims and ambitions over the next 5 years. 

 
1.2 The council is committed to maximising the use of scarce resources and 

directing resources towards its priorities whilst keeping council tax at an 
affordable level. The MTFS is reviewed regularly and reported to Members 
during the budget process and at budget setting annually. 

 
1.3 The identification of efficiencies and other savings (including increases in fees 

and charges) has enabled the council to reallocate available resources to 
achieve the introduction of new or enhanced services (e.g. new recycling 
initiatives). 

 
1.4 The purpose of this document is to formulate a financial strategy which will 

guide the management of the council’s finances during a period of very tight 
external financial constraint. The strategy considers the factors and influences 
on the council’s resources. 

 
1.5 This year’s review is once again overshadowed by the national economic 
 climate. The council faces a major challenge in managing the impact of the 
 recession on budgets and services, including the impact of falling interest 
 rates coupled with tight government grant settlements. Most of the issues  had 
 already been anticipated but not to the extent now being experienced. 
 
1.6 The strategy covers the period 2011/12 - 2016/17 and sets out the resource 

issues and principles that shape the budget; identifies current issues and 
considers potential developments / related issues that are likely to provide the 
basis for future revenue and capital budgets.  

 
1.7 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is not included, as a separate budget 

and Business Plan is produced for the HRA to cover its planning processes. 
 
 
2.  Links to other Council Plans 
 
2.1 Cheltenham Borough Council's Corporate Strategy 2010 to 2015 was agreed 

in March 2010. The strategy sets out what the council is hoping to achieve 
over the next five years and what actions were planned to be taken in the first 
year (2010/11) to support these longer-term plans.  

 
2.2 The corporate strategy provides over-arching long term framework for the 

MTFS, annual budget and action plan which will be reviewed and updated 
annually.  

 
 The council’s objectives  
2.3 The council agreed that it should move to fewer high-level objectives to help 

us be clearer about our priorities and that these objectives must reflect the 

Page 149



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 2

reality of community needs and provide a framework for community 
outcomes. 

 
2.4 The strategy sets out the following three community objectives: 

• Enhancing and protecting our environment; 
• Strengthening our economy; and 
• Strengthening our communities. 

 
2.5 These are supported by two cross-cutting objectives of: 

• Enhancing the provision of arts and culture; and 
• Ensuring we provide value for money services that effectively meet the 

needs of our customers. 
 
 The council’s outcomes 
2.6 The outcomes are critical in that they describe the improvements we will 

make to improve the well-being of the whole population of Cheltenham. By 
putting outcomes centre-stage in our strategy, we are making a commitment 
that our customers and communities will judge us by how well we are 
improving the quality of life rather than other measures of success.  

 
2.7 Some of these outcomes we will be able to deliver by ourselves, but for many 

other outcomes we will have to work in partnership with other organisations.  
 
2.8 From the consultation activities and the needs analysis we are proposing a 

set of outcomes the council should be focusing on. 
 
Objectives Outcomes 
Enhancing and protecting our 
environment. 

Cheltenham has a clean and well-maintained 
environment. 
Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is enhanced 
and protected. 
Carbon emissions are reduced and Cheltenham is able 
to adapt to the impacts of climate change. 

Strengthening our economy. 
 

Cheltenham is able to recover quickly and strongly from 
the recession. 
We attract more visitors and investors to Cheltenham. 

Strengthening our communities. Communities feel safe and are safe. 
People have access to decent and affordable housing. 
People are able to lead healthy lifestyles. 
Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community and 
involved in resolving local issues. 

Enhancing the provision of arts and 
culture. 

Arts and culture are used as a means to strengthen 
communities, strengthen the economy and enhance and 
protect our environment. 

Ensuring we provide value for 
money services that effectively meet 
the needs of our customers. 

The council delivers cashable savings, as well as 
improved customer satisfaction overall and better 
performance through the effective commissioning of 
services. 

 
2.9 The outcomes also relate back to the nine community aims set out in 

Cheltenham’s Sustainable Community Strategy. This means that the council 

Page 150



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 3

is continuing its commitment to support the delivery of the community 
strategy. 

 
2.10 The role of the MTFS is to support the delivery of the council’s objectives and 

outcomes. A key delivery driver for this to be achieved is through joint plans 
with partners and stakeholders alike which are detailed in section 8 below. 

 
 
3.  Financial Projections – Revenue Resource Requirements 
 
3.1  The key aim of the MTFS is to develop a series of financial projections to 

determine the longer term financial implications, in order to deliver the aims 
set out in the council’s business plan. 

 
3.2 As in previous years, the approach is to use the current financial year as a 

base position, inflate this to the price base of the budget year, and add 
unavoidable spending pressures and the implications of immediate priorities 
and previous decisions. This is then measured against the projection of 
available funding to determine affordability. The package of measures 
required to equalise the two forms the financial strategy to ‘bridge’ the funding 
gap for each financial year. 

 
3.3 The projections of the funding gap based on council tax increases of 2.5%, 

3.5% and 5% are shown in Table 1. The base budget projection reflects the 
transfer of responsibility and funding for concessionary fares from CBC to 
Gloucestershire county council.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 151



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 4

Table 1: Projection of Funding Gap 
       
 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 
 £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Net Cost of Services brought forward 
from previous year (assuming a 
balanced budget has been set) 

 14,077,293 13,609,666 13,559,089 13,528,263 13,763,639 

       
Increased costs of existing services       
General Inflation  200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 
Employee related expenditure  57,700 392,100 381,400 387,800 394,700 
Pension costs - 2004 Revaluation  50,000 50,000    
Pension costs - 2010 Revaluation  110,000 82,000    
Pension costs - 2013 Revaluation    120,000 120,000 120,000 
Landfill Tax  40,000 41,100 41,100   
Maintenance of watercourses, streams 
and ditches 

 30,000     
       
Income        
Fees and Charges  (348,700) (356,500) (366,400) (375,100) (384,600) 
Investment Income  17,400 (77,800)    
Specific grant to fund council tax freeze     197,000  
       
Reserves       
Property repairs & renewals fund  200,000 200,000 200,000 107,000  
       
Projected Net Cost of Service 14,077,293 14,433,693 14,140,566 14,135,189 14,164,963 14,093,739 
       
Government Grants (6,098,332) (5,473,039) (5,199,387) (4,939,418) (4,939,418) (4,939,418) 
Collection Fund surplus (59,500)      
Council Tax (assumes 2.5% increase 
from 2012/13) 

(7,919,461) (8,136,627) (8,359,702) (8,588,846) (8,824,221) (9,065,998) 
       
Projected Funding Gap - 824,027 581,477 606,925 401,324 88,323 
       
Cumulative Funding Gap  824,027 1,405,504 2,012,429 2,413,753 2,502,076 
       
       
Funding Gap Projections:       
Council Tax (assumes 3.5% increase)  744,645 496,947 516,996 305,734 (13,202) 
Cumulative Funding Gap  744,645 1241,592 1,758,588 2,064,322 2,051,120 
       
Council Tax (assumes 5.0% increase)  625,572 367,168 375,785 152,318 (179,639) 
Cumulative Funding Gap  625,572 992,740 1,368,525 1,520,843 1,341,204 
       
 
3.4 The key assumptions for the preparation of these projections are explained 

below. 
 
 
4.  Key Assumptions  
 
 General 
 
4.1  The net cost of services has been estimated by using the ‘approved’ 2011/12 

base budget (subject to council approval on 11th February 2011) as the base 
for future projections through to 2016/17. 

 
4.2  General inflation on supplies, services, and non-domestic rates has been 

projected based on previous detailed information. Gas and electricity prices 
will remain static until the contracts come up for renewal at the end of October 
2011. Current feedback from our advisors indicates that the council should 
not expect a significant price rise when entering into new contracts.  Work is 
already starting on the energy tenders and the council will aim to buy from the 
markets at the most appropriate time to get the lowest prices, given the best 

Page 152



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 5

information available.  However, gas transportation and distribution charges 
are due to increase by around 2% from April 2011.  This equates to around 
£8,400 additional annual cost. 

 

4.3 The retail cost of fuel is heavily linked to the global cost of oil and the 
Dollar/Sterling exchange rate. The recent reduction in the global cost of oil is 
now being reversed, current prices are rising and although still fluctuating, 
have now exceeded their peak levels of 2008. 

 
4.4  Major contracts and agreements are rolled forward based on the specified 

inflation indices in the contract or agreement. 
 
 Employee related costs 
 
4.5  In line with the 2010 budget report a pay freeze on public sector pay 

settlements (excluding increments) in 2011/12 and 2012/13 is factored into 
the projections. Pay settlements for the years 2013/14 to 2016/17 are 
estimated to be 2% per annum.  

 
4.6 An allowance has been included for incremental progression in 2012/13 as a 

result of single status. The net cost of service assumes an employee turnover 
saving of 3% of gross pay budget. 

 

4.7 Currently the unions are lobbying for a pay award for lower paid workers for a 
flat rate of £250 for those earning under £21k per annum. This would cost the 
authority around £88k. Given the financial settlement and the uncertainty over 
whether this will be supported, no budgetary provision has been made for 
this. Had this been built into the budget, additional savings with potential 
staffing implications would have had to be made. The decision to deal with 
any financial consequences of an agreement above a pay freeze within the 
revised budget for 2011/12 is prudent given the uncertainty and implications 
of allowing for it. 

 
4.8  The council is part of the Gloucestershire Pensions Fund, which is 
 administered by the County Council. The rate of contribution paid to the fund 
 by participating employers is set following a triennial revaluation of the Fund 
 by the appointed actuary. 
 
4.9  The most recent triennial revaluation of the Fund was based on the position 
 as at 31st March 2010, the draft results of which were published in  December 
 2010. The valuation found that the Fund’s objective of holding sufficient 
 assets to meet the estimated current cost of providing members’ past service 
 benefits was not met at the valuation date. 
 
4.10  Contribution rates are calculated on an individual basis for each participating 
 employer. For the council’s element of the fund, the funding level was 
 assessed at 66% (compared with 75.3% in 2007), with a shortfall of £34.1m. 
 The fund actuary is aiming for this deficit to be recovered over a 20 year 
 period, giving the following target contribution rates for the council (for this 
 three-year valuation period): 
 
 •  a 14.65% future service rate which should cover the liabilities scheme 
  member’s build up in the future, plus 

Page 153



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 6

 
 •  an annual lump sum past service deficit contribution of £1.387m in 
  2011/12 (rising to £1.728m by 2013/14), to cover the shortfall in the 
  fund. 
 
4.11 The net pension fund liability as at 31st March 2010 is £70.405m as reported 

in the 2009/10 Statement of Accounts. 
 
4.12  The PBR announced reforms to public service pensions from 2012/13 

onwards whereby employer contributions to local government pensions will 
be capped. Cost increases below the cap will be shared equally between 
employers and employees, and those above the cap met solely by 
employees. The Government also expect those earning the highest salaries 
to pay a greater contribution towards their pension. It is unclear at this stage 
what cap will be set and we await further confirmation from the Government. 

 
4.13 Following recent events, the Section 151 Officer has discussed the current 

position with the actuary who has indicated that, given the uncertainty over 
this area of activity future projections of potential increases in contributions 
resulting from the 2013 revaluation based on 1% per annum over remainder 
of the period of the MTFS. 

 
 Landfill Tax 
 
4.14  Central Government is applying a cost escalator for landfill tax which 

increases the cost of commercial waste disposal by £8 per tonne, year on 
year until 2014/15. Although factored into the projections at £41,100 per 
annum, it is worth noting that all commercial operators will face the same cost 
challenge. It is not unreasonable, therefore, to expect the market to stand an 
above inflationary increase in fees to cover this additional cost. This does not 
give the Authority a disadvantageous cost structure compared with the local 
competition. 

 

 Flood Resilience 
 
4.15  The council was successful in applying for a one-off grant to deal with 

restoration work following the July 2007 floods. In setting the 2009/10 budget, 
the Cabinet decided that £90,000 of the grant should be earmarked for the 
maintenance of watercourses, streams and ditches over a three-year period. 
Given the desire to ensure maintenance continues, funding will need to be 
built into the base budget from 2012/13. 

 
 Fees and Charges 
 
4.16  A general assumption for a 2.5% increase in fees and charges (including car 

parking) has been factored in, but reviews of all charges are required annually 
by Service Managers. 

 

 Treasury Management 
 

4.17      Investment income from cash investments falls in 2012/13. This trend was   
acknowledged in the previous MTFS and is largely due to cash balances (i.e. 
ear-marked reserves) being consumed, essentially to finance the council’s 

Page 154



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 7

capital programme and to fund property maintenance, single status and 
increased pension contributions. Whilst there is an option to take out 
prudential borrowing, it has been assumed for MTFS purposes that the capital 
programme will continue to be financed from capital receipts, grants 
(including S106 developer contributions), and revenue contributions and that 
borrowing will only take place if absolutely necessary. 

 
4.18  Investment interest is forecast to be £77,800 favourable in 2013/14 as interest 

 rates are forecast to rise to around 3%. The consolidated rate for borrowing 
 should also increase over the MTFS which would entail the HRA making an 
 increase in debt repayments to the GF. 

 
 Specific Grant – Council Tax freeze 
 
4.19 The Government has confirmed that a specific grant will be paid to authorities 

who set their basic amount of council tax for 2011/12 at a level which is no 
more than its basic amount of council tax for 2010/11 equivalent to a 2.5% 
increase in its 2010/11 basic amount of council tax multiplied by the 
authority’s tax base for 2011/12. For Cheltenham this equates to £197,000. 

 
4.20 The spending review concluded that funding can only be provided to support 

a council tax freeze in 2011/12. However, the Government intends to provide 
supplementary funding to authorities throughout this spending review via a 
specific section 31 grant to compensate them for the council tax foregone 
during the period of the freeze. For financial planning purposes, it is assumed 
that this grant will cease at the end of this spending review in 2015/16. 

 
 Property Maintenance 
 
4.21 Current projections (as detailed in the amended 20 year maintenance 

 programme) indicate a requirement to fund property maintenance of circa 
 £1.4m per annum from revenue contributions which will be achieved in 
 2015/16. 

 
 Government Support 
 
4.22 The main issue in terms of funding availability is the estimation of the level of 

Government grant which the council will receive. Although this has been set 
for the period to 2012/13 as part of the Comprehensive Spending Review 
2010 (CSR10), future settlements may impact on effective longer-term 
financial planning and sustainability. 

 
4.23 Given the severity of the cuts to funding levels, the two year proposal and the 

lateness of the settlement, does not provide stability and predictability in local 
government funding. 

 
4.24  For the purpose of projecting the funding gap, it is estimated that the level of 

 government grant and share of the national non domestic rates pool will 
 decrease by a further 5% in 2013/14 and 5% reduction in 2014/15 (i.e. a 
 31.28% reduction overall for the period of the spending review CSR10). 

 
 
  

Page 155



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 8

 
Council Tax 

 
4.25 Collection fund surpluses arise from higher than anticipated rates of collection 

of the council tax collection rates. This is assessed annually although the 
current economic climate could have an adverse impact on this source of one 
off funding and therefore no increases have been assumed for the period 
covered in this MTFS. 

 
4.26 The taxbase represents the total number of chargeable properties in the 

borough, expressed as band D. The net budget requirement is divided by the 
taxbase to calculate the level of council tax for band D each year. The 
council’s taxbase is estimated to increase by 100 each year for the purposes 
of the MTFS. This is a lesser increase than in recent years and reflects the 
slowdown in the housing market and the reduction in the number of new 
properties being built. 

 
 Funding Gap 
 
4.27 Given Government restrictions on local authorities increasing council tax and 

the subsequent reduction in government funding, the council has faced a 
significantly more challenging financial position. The latest projections 
indicate a gap of £2.502m for the period of the MTFS (2012/13 to 2015/16) 
assuming a ‘standstill’ position in central government funding with 2.5% 
annual increase in council tax. The improvement in the baseline 5 year 
projection reflects the following: 

 
• impact of capping pay increases on pay 
• delivery of the BtG programme savings in the earlier years 
• achieving the target annual funding level for property maintenance 

 
 

5.  Strategy for ‘bridging’ the projected funding gap 
 
5.1  The council could reduce the projected funding gap by increasing council tax 

above 2.5%. Council tax increases of 5% would generate an additional circa 
£200,000 per annum although this approach would be unpopular in the 
current economic climate. 

 
5.2  The council has identified a number of work-streams which form the longer 

term strategy for ‘bridging the gap’ which are detailed below. 
 
5.3 Service Reviews and Benchmarking 
 
5.3.1 The council is keen to ensure that services are of the highest quality and 

lowest cost. Understanding the council’s own costs and how they compare 
with others is key to achieving this. Many of the council’s services undertake 
annual benchmarking exercises using statistical data and analysis that 
already exists, e.g. Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
Statistical Information Service (CIPFA S.I.S.) statistics and benchmarking 
clubs. 

 

Page 156



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 9

5.3.2 In preparation for commissioning, the council is keen to see all services 
benchmarked but recognises the volume of work required to continually do 
so. In preparation for commissioning, a programme of service reviews and 
benchmarking will be developed to support the commissioning programme 
over the MTFS. This will be help facilitate work with SLT and Members, via 
the budget working group, on the developing future outcomes for services. 

 
 
5.4 Asset Management 
 
5.4.1 The council has a significant property portfolio including some key public 

buildings which place significant pressure on the council’s budget and 
represents a significant cost to the tax payer. Annually the council is planning 
to increase its budget by some £200k (equivalent to 2.5% council tax) in order 
to pay the annual cost of around £1.4m on the maintenance of public 
buildings. 

 

5.4.2 The council is aiming to reduce the net cost of the council’s property portfolio 
through increasing income streams or reducing management and operational 
costs of the council’s property portfolio. The council has produced an updated 
Asset Management Plan which will outline the council’s strategic approach to 
asset management. 

 

5.4.3 A review of the asset base could identify potential property disposals which 
will both raise capital resources (capital receipts) and reduce the incidental 
costs of holding properties (e.g. on-going maintenance costs, business rates, 
etc). Similarly, vacant properties are being reviewed to identify alternative 
uses that might better support the council’s business plan objectives and 
generate an income. It is worth noting however, that it has proved difficult to 
release savings from property rationalisation in the current economic climate. 

 

 
5.5 Service Improvement through ‘Systems Thinking’ 
 
5.5.1 The council has adopted a strategy for improving service delivery by: 
 

• designing the service to meet customers needs and expectations, and 
 

• optimising the realisation of cashable efficiency gains by removing 
  failure demand and waste from the system 

 
 
5.5.2 The principal aim of the work is to examine how services are provided in 

order to seek improvements and efficiencies and reduce costs through the 
use of ‘systems thinking’ analytical approaches. This has also been very 
successful with ‘interventions’ in a number of areas which have resulted in 
more efficient services and are projected to deliver savings in the process. 

 
5.6 Shared Services 
 
5.6.1 There has been major progress in the establishment of shared service 

arrangements with some significant achievements being made over a 
relatively short period of time. Recently the council has established a shared 

Page 157



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 10

audit service with Cotswold District council and West Oxfordshire District 
council and shared Legal and Building Control services with Tewkesbury 
Borough council. 

 

5.6.2 A more significant and complex piece of work is the programme for a shared 
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system to replace individual payroll, HR, 
finance and procurement systems in 4 district councils (the other 3 districts 
are Cotswold District Council, Forest of Dean District Council and West 
Oxfordshire District Council) and Cheltenham Borough Homes with one 
system which will be a platform for a shared service for Finance and HR 
across these 4 districts.  

 
5.6.3 Both Cheltenham Borough council and Tewkesbury Borough council have 

been examining options for joint working in waste services as members of the 
Gloucestershire Waste Partnership.  The Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy 2007 – 2020 makes a clear commitment to partnership working to 
make waste management more sustainable, including the development of 
service delivery partnerships with other authorities and the private sector. 
Both councils subsequently considered and accepted a detailed business 
case that outlines a programme of change to deliver significant efficiency 
savings across the partnership, with savings being achieved on both 
collection and disposal budgets.  The timeline for change and realisation of 
the full range of savings is stretched over a period of 10 years. 

 
5.7 SLT options  
 
5.7.1 As part of the BtG work, the Senior Leadership Team was asked to consider 

the implications in their services of a 20% cut in order to generate ideas. The 
Cabinet considered these options in arriving at their budget proposals.  

 

5.7.2 ‘Invest to save’ initiatives will be encouraged to ensure long-term efficiencies 
in service delivery and value for money are delivered. These initiatives may 
well require some up-front capital investment, the criteria for which are 
outlined in the capital strategy which was approved by council in February 
2009. 

 

5.8 Commissioning  
 

5.8.1 Over the last 2 years the "bridging the gap" programme has been successful 
in delivering savings to close the budget gap without any detrimental impact 
upon service delivery. However, the unprecedented financial pressures now 
being faced by the council, and outlined in this MTFS, require a different 
strategy to be adopted for service design and delivery. The objective of 
adopting a different approach is to deliver the best outcomes for individuals 
and communities in the context of the MTFS. When services are redesigned it 
is important that citizens, service users and council tax payers are the focus 
and to this end the council is working towards becoming a commissioning 
council adopting a strategic commissioning approach. 

 
5.8.2 Strategic commissioning is not a new idea; the NHS has been using 

commissioning extensively for many years and legislation particularly in the 
social care and children’s service areas has moved service design to 
embrace a commissioning approach. Commissioning is defined by the 

Page 158



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 11

Cabinet Office as "the cycle of assessing the needs of people in an area, 
designing and then securing appropriate service". Commissioning requires 
better partnership/cross agency working, prioritisation to ensure resources 
(finance, people and assets) are used to best effect to deliver clearly defined 
outcomes which all parties to the commissioning approach are aligned 
behind. Commissioning judgements will be made transparently and 
objectively with a focus on outcomes leaving the method of delivery to the 
provider of the service. By adopting this strategic approach services will be 
transformed, where warranted, and may not necessarily as at present be 
provided through a directly employed workforce; a mixed economy (sharing 
services, outsourcing, creation of "not for profit" vehicles, third sector) 
approach to delivery of services may result. The key tests for commissioning 
will be good quality services, with outcomes for the citizen and community at 
the heart of their provision and which have long term financial viability. 

 
5.8.3 The MTFS assumes some initial savings from commissioning as a result of 

the senior management restructure approved by council. Whilst there are 
currently no target for specific commissioning projects there is an expectation, 
from within the organisation and amongst members, that this approach will 
deliver savings over the period of the MTFS. 

 

5.9 The Residual Funding Gap 
 
5.9.1 Taking into account that the identified work-streams are delivered throughout 

the period covered by this MTFS, the projected residual funding gap 
(assuming a 2.5% increase in council tax annually) is shown below in Table 2. 

 

Table 2: Projection of Residual Funding Gap 
      
 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 
 £ £ £ £ £ 
Projected Funding Gap @ 2.5% 
Council Tax (Table 1) 

824,027 581,477 606,926 401,324 88,323 
      
Identified Work-streams      
Service Reviews (153,100) (18,400) (6,000) (300)  
Asset Management (29,700) (111,100) (37,900) (11,100)  
Service Improvement (115,000)     
Shared Services (50,000) (178,800)    
Commissioning (69,000) (15,000)    
Other Major Projects (168,800)     
      
Projected Residual Funding Gap 238,427 258,177 563,026 389,924 88,323 
      
Cumulative Projected Residual 
Funding Gap 

238,427 496,604 1,059,630 1,449,554 1,537,877 

 
5.9.2 It should be noted that the current MTFS does not assume any recovery in 

the current economic climate and therefore, the view could be taken that the 
current MTFS predicts the worst case scenario. 

 
5.9.3 The council is seeing the impact of the economic downturn on many services. 

As the economic crisis has deepened, the council has witnessed a more 
significant reduction in income levels for many of its service areas resulting in 
the need to revise income estimates further downwards. The income from 
development control, property rentals, land charges and car parking has 
declined to unprecedented levels. 

 

Page 159



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 12

5.9.4 In addition, the Bank of England base rate cut to 0.5% has resulted in a 
significant reduction in the base budget for investment interest. 

 
5.9.5 Recovery within the economy over the course of the current MTFS would 

obviously assist in closing the projected funding gap although some costs 
(e.g. pay awards) may also increase. 

 
 
6.  Financial Projections – Capital Resource Requirements 
 
6.1 The council’s capital strategy is geared towards ensuring the maximisation of 

resources available to the council. 
 
6.2 The council has budgeted to make a revenue contribution to capital outlay 

(RCCO) Capital Reserve of £700,000 in 2011/12. This reserve funds part of 
the capital programme which generally consists of 3 areas of expenditure (i) 
replacement of play equipment (ii) replacement of CCTV equipment and (iii) 
mandatory costs of disabled facilities grant, totalling £500,000. Assuming 
additional one off schemes of circa £200,000, the council has an approximate 
capital programme to be funded from RCCO of £700,000 annually which is 
now fully budgeted for. 

 
6.3 The remainder of the capital programme is funded from other sources e.g. 

specific grants; however, the Private Sector Renewal Policy requires 
amendment following the Government's decision to cease providing private 
sector renewal funding.  Capital received over the last two years, partly as a 
result of bidding and partly as a result of formulae allocation, has been 
carefully managed to avoid over commitment if government funding should 
cease.  This careful planning means that loans to safeguard the health and 
safety of the most vulnerable people in Cheltenham will still be available while 
previous funding lasts.  Limited funding now means that only the most 
financially vulnerable residents should be able to access funds, where their 
health and safety is at risk from a category 1 health hazard, as measured by 
the Health and Safety Rating System. The hope remains that other sources of 
Government funding to finance this important area become available in the 
future 

 
6.4 In order to progress new capital schemes not already identified within the 

MTFS, the council will need to prioritise the use of available resources 
detailed in the Capital Strategy which could involve the disposal of existing 
assets or prudential borrowing on a scheme by scheme basis. 

 
7.  Financial Projections - Reserves 
 

7.1  A review of earmarked reserves in February 2009 resulted in an increase to 
 the General Reserve. This reserve is held to protect existing service levels
 from further fluctuations in interest rates, potential implications from the 
 Icelandic banks situation and reduction in income levels as a result of the 
 economic downturn 

 
7.2  External factors such as the flooding in 2007 and the problems experienced 

 by the global financial markets in 2008 have highlighted the importance for 
 authorities to maintain an appropriate level of reserves. This prompted 

Page 160



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 13

 CIPFA’s Local Authority Accounting Panel (LAAP) to issue a bulletin on local 
 authorities’ reserves and balances. 

 
7.3   As part of the annual budget setting process and in reviewing the MTFS, the 

 council needs to consider the establishment and maintenance of reserves. 
 These can be held for three main purposes: 

 
• a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows 

  and avoid unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms part of  
  general reserves; 

• a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or  
  emergencies – this also forms part of general reserves; 

• a means of building up funds (earmarked reserves) to meet known or 
  predicted requirements. 

 
7.4  The council has benefited from a strong economy over a number of years 

 which has enabled it to earmark significant funds to specific reserves. These 
 are reviewed twice yearly by full council under the guidance of the  Chief 
 Finance Officer.  

 
7.5  Over the course of this MTFS, a number of earmarked reserves will be 

 depleted as they are used to finance planned expenditure. It is also the case 
 that reserves used to finance the capital programme and property 
 maintenance will reach the levels required to fund existing commitments 
 within this MTFS 

 
7.6  The proposed net budget requirement for 2011/12 is £14,077,293, which 

 includes a net transfer to reserves of £429,543. When taking into account the 
 proposals to support one-off growth in 2011/12 and revenue contributions 
 used to fund the capital programme in 2010/11 and  2011/12, the level of 
 reserves held by the council is projected to be £7,048,122 by 31st March 2012 
  

7.7  The projected position for General Fund reserves to 2016/17 is shown below 
 in Table 4: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 161



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 14

 
Table 4: General Fund Reserves Projection 2009/10 to 2016/17 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£ 
m
illi
on

Projected Level Minimum Reserve Level Target Reserve Level

  
7.8  In view of the current  economic climate and the risks associated with holding 

 Icelandic investments, the Chief Finance Officer has maintained that General 
 Reserves should be maintained in the range of £1.5m to £2m. In order to 
 ensure that the council holds significant reserves to cover the purposes for 
 holding reserves (as outlined in 7.4) a target projected reserve level of £5m 
 has been set. 

 
7.9  The projection shown in Table 4 is important as it demonstrates that the 

 uneven impact of unavoidable cost pressures can be handled, whilst 
 providing temporary use of reserves to support the budget if required. 

 
7.10 The graph demonstrates that the level of reserves held over the course of the 

 MTFS is projected to remain above the projected target of £5m throughout 
 the course of this MTFS. 

 
7.11 Risk analysis and a determination of the adequacy of the level of reserves will 

 remain a key element within the Chief Finance Officer’s annual section 25 
 report, in conjunction with the final budget proposals. 

 
 
8.  Working in Partnership 
 

8.1 Partnerships form the basis of an increasing range of the council’s services 
 and extend from joint activities within a loose working arrangement to 
 complex and formally structured vehicles for service delivery. 
 
8.2 The council welcomes the opportunity to work with partner organisations to 
 deliver our proposed outcomes as this adds value for the taxpayers of 
 Cheltenham but will always seek to ensure that the: 
 

• Financial viability of partners is assured before committing to an  
  agreement 

Page 162



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 15

• Responsibilities and liabilities of each of the partners is clearly  
  understood by parties to any agreement; 

• Accounting arrangements are established before any payments are 
  made; and 

• Implications of the terms and conditions of any funding arrangements 
  are considered before any monies are accepted. 

 
8.3 Cheltenham has a clean and well-maintained environment 
 
8.3.1 The council works with a range of community-based organisations to promote 

a clean and well-maintained environment such as Cheltenham in Bloom to 
promote awareness of the importance of Cheltenham's floral heritage 
amongst the borough’s residents and businesses and to involve the 
community in celebrating the borough’s beauty and the Tidy Cheltenham 
Group to promote a clean environment. 

 
8.4 Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is enhanced and protected 
 
8.4.1 We are working in partnership with Gloucestershire County Council and other 

partners to coordinate the Cheltenham Local Development Taskforce project 
that will result in significant investment into the borough to secure its longer-
term economic success whilst improving its look, its ambience and its 
associated transport infrastructure. 

 
8.5 Carbon emissions are reduced and Cheltenham is able to adapt to the 
 impacts of climate change 
 
8.5.1 The council supports partnership working in the county through the 

Gloucestershire Waste Partnership and has adopted a county wide Joint 
Municipal Waste Management Strategy. It is also proposed to share a waste 
management team with Tewkesbury Borough Council, to progress towards 
shared service delivery in waste management by April 2012. This will be 
achieved in a structured and incremental way with progress dependant on 
individual authority agreement at key milestones. The council also works in 
partnership with Vision 21 Gloucestershire to support Community Recycling 
Champions who promote waste reduction, re-use and recycling within their 
local community and puts £5,200 per annum to support the work of the Low 
Carbon Partnership which is focusing on reducing carbon emissions from 
energy and transport use. 

 
8.6 Cheltenham has improved access and travel options 
 
8.6.1 The council works closely with the Highway Authority, Gloucestershire County 

Council, and its delivery arm, Gloucestershire Highways, to enhance and 
maintain the street scene. In recognition of the added value that Cheltenham 
Borough Council can deliver to street scene services a highway agency 
agreement for grounds maintenance was adopted in April 2008, with the 
Borough carrying out a range of services on behalf of the County and match 
funding the replacement programme for street trees 

 
 
 
 

Page 163



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 16

8.7 Cheltenham is able to recover quickly and strongly from the recession  
 
8.7.1 The council has 15 service level agreements in place with a range of partners 

to secure delivery of its economic development strategy worth over £240,000; 
significant SLA’s include those with Gloucestershire First, Adult Education 
department of Gloucestershire County Council and Severn Wye Energy 
Agency.  

 
8.7.2 We work in partnership through the Public Sector Employment Partnership to 

develop a range of workforce development initiatives such as improved NVQ 
training and the apprenticeship scheme. 

 
8.8 We attract more visitors and investors to Cheltenham 
 
8.8.1 We work with the Cotswold and Forest destination management organisation 

to ensure that there is a coordinated approach to promoting the county. 
 
8.9 Communities feel safe and are safe 
 
8.9.1 Tackling crime is consistently the highest priority for our residents and the 

council invests significantly in this work. It directly employs three officers who 
support the work of the community safety partnership, including our anti-
social behaviour officer, but also supports a number of other council services 
that meet the aims of the partnership such as Cheltenham Safe, street 
cleaning, graffiti removal service and summer holiday play schemes. 

 
8.10 People have access to decent and affordable housing 
 
8.10.1 The council has over 4,500 properties which are managed by Cheltenham 

Borough Homes which is our Arms Length Management Organisation 
(ALMO) under the terms of a management agreement. It is a company limited 
by guarantee, with the council as the only guarantor. The council has 
continued to enable the delivery of affordable homes through the Cheltenham 
and Tewkesbury Housing Market Partnership which has delivered 20 
affordable homes since 1st April 2008. We are on track to deliver over 40 
homes in the financial year. 

 
8.11 People are able to lead healthy lifestyles 
 
8.11.1 Under Section 31 of the Health Act 1999 health and local authorities are 

encouraged to work together to improve the lives of residents. 
Gloucestershire PCT and the council jointly-fund a Healthy lifestyles 
development officer who delivers a programme of activities in the borough to 
improve their health and wellbeing. The PCT also committed £25,000 in 
2008/09 to the CSP to reduce health inequalities in Cheltenham. 

 
8.12 Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community and are involved in 

identifying and resolving local issues 
 
8.12.1 We recognise that the Voluntary Sector is central in creating strong 

communities both through larger voluntary sector organisations which provide 
services to communities and the wide range of local community groups and 
organisations. Consequently we provide a range of grant funding to Voluntary 

Page 164



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 17

Sector partners who are able to deliver cost effective services to their 
communities, including Cheltenham Voluntary and Community Action (CVA) 
which is responsible for co-ordinating and representing the voluntary sector in 
the town. 

 
8.13 Arts and culture are used as a means to strengthen communities, 

strengthen the economy and enhance and protect our environment 
 
8.13.1 The council has committed £2m (in addition to £500,000 already earmarked 

from the sale of the Axiom) to secure the improvement of Cheltenham Art 
Gallery & Museum. This has levered in a grant of £750,000 from a Charitable 
Trust. With these financial foundations, we can now move forward towards 
planning approval and further fundraising. Subject to these, it is hoped to 
begin building work in 2010 with a total budget estimated at £6.3m. 

 
8.13.2 The council has a service level agreement with Cheltenham Festivals (CF) to 

provide four annual festivals of jazz, science, music and literature. The 
programme of festival activity includes a wide range of community and 
educational activities within Cheltenham, concentrating particularly on the 
most disadvantaged communities. The current agreement is for the period 1st 
April 2008 to 31st March 2011 and a new agreement will be made with effect 
from 1st April 2011. The council provides annual in-kind support to CF, 
totalling £195,000 in 2010/11. 

 
 
8.14 The council delivers cashable savings, as well as improved customer 

satisfaction overall and better performance through the effective 
commissioning of services 

 
8.14.1 The council is working with other district councils to help realise the cost 

savings from sharing services. We have already launched shared services for 
Audit (with Cotswold District Council), Legal Services and Building Control 
(both with Tewkesbury Borough Council). 

 
8.15 Infrastructure Delivery Planning 
 
8.15.1 A key work stream within the context of partnership working over the period of 

the MTFS is the preparation of a strategic infrastructure delivery plan for 
Gloucestershire. The primary objective of this work is to deliver the 
infrastructure required over the next 15-20 years to support the development 
needs of Gloucestershire and support the visions of sustainable community 
strategies. This will require joint working across public sector organisations to 
release added value in capital projects and other public sector investment. 
This may have implications in the future development of the Capital Strategy. 

 
9.  Areas of Uncertainty associated with the MTFS  
 

9.1  The review has also highlighted a significant number of areas where the 
 impact on revenue spending cannot be quantified with sufficient accuracy, at 
 this point in the process. These have been included as ‘Uncertainties 
 associated with the MTFS’ and these areas will form the basis for ongoing 
 review through the period of the 2011/12 budget process. 

 

Page 165



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 18

 

 

 VAT on Car Parks 
 

9.2  The Isle of Wight (I.O.W.) local authority, along with three others, successfully 
 argued at a VAT Tribunal, that they should not have to charge VAT on off-
 street car parking. This was principally on the basis that it would not, 
 despite protests by HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC), create a significant 
 distortion of competition (a key factor in determining VAT liability). 

 
9.2.1 The Tribunal considered the implications of these local authorities not 

charging VAT by looking at the effect on their pricing policies, on customer 
usage and on potential private providers. It found that prices were set at 
levels to either stimulate customer numbers or discourage car use; were 
generally below those set by the private sector and were not an overriding 
factor in customers choosing where to park (they would park nearest to the 
facility they needed rather than choosing solely on price). It could not find any 
evidence of distortion of competition in respect of the local authorities 
represented at the Tribunal. 

 
9.2.2 In conclusion it was unlikely that a change in VAT liability would result in 
 either a change in price or parking policies. 
 
9.2.3 In anticipation of HMRC being compelled to change the VAT liability of off-
 street car parking for all local authorities, from ‘standard rate’ to ‘non-
 business’ (i.e. no VAT chargeable), Cheltenham Borough Council, along with 
 many other local authorities, under advisement, submitted repayment claims 
 to HMRC requesting reimbursement of the VAT already paid on off-street car 
 parking since 1998 (the furthest back allowed at the time). 
 
9.2.4 Total claims lodged to that date amount to £6,337,701. Claims averaging 

circa £650,000 per annum for 2009/10 and the current year have yet to be 
submitted. Subsequent changes in the law have now allowed the council to 
go back even further - to the start of VAT in April 1973. VAT advisors have 
prepared a claim which has been submitted, and subsequently rejected by 
HMRC, pending the case’s outcome.  This claim amounts to £5,000,825 
covering the period 1st April 1973 to 30th November 1996. 

 
9.2.5 However, HMRC did not agree with the Tribunal decision and lodged an 
 appeal to the High Court. This was heard in November 2006 and on 16th 
 February 2007, the High Court decided to refer the case to the European 
 Court of Justice (ECJ). The ECJ delivered its judgement on 16th September 
 2008 which was not favourable towards IOW. It focussed strongly on the 
 issue of fiscal neutrality i.e. that two operators engaged in the same activity 
 should not be treated differently in respect of levying a tax. 
 
9.2.6 The matter has now been returned to the High Court who referred the issue 

back to the Tribunal to consider.  The Tribunal will commence on 11th March 
2011 and HMRC have submitted requests for further information from the four 
litigant councils involved in the case. 

 
9.2.7 This remains a situation which has the potential for significant revenue 

receipts for the council should HMRC lose their case. However, the ECJ’s 

Page 166



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 19

opinion does diminish the likelihood of success for the plaintiff councils.  The 
Tribunal will consider the issues referred to them and a better idea of the 
likelihood of success going forward will be known once the Tribunal has 
reached its decision. 

 
9.2.8 Cheltenham Borough Council will continue to account for VAT on off-street 

car parking but will also continue lodging claims with HMRC for repayment, in 
order to protect its position. 

  
Compound interest claim 
 

9.2.9 The ‘Sempra Metals’ case has been brought before the High Court to 
determine whether taxpayers should be entitled to compound interest on 
overpaid VAT.  The High Court has agreed to this in principal but has allowed 
the six year time limit under the Limitation Act to stand meaning their claim 
falls out of time.  However, the time limit point has been appealed to the Court 
of Appeal.  A decision is due out on this in April 2011; however any decision 
favourable to the taxpayer will be appealed by HMRC.   

 
9.2.10 Following the High Court’s decision, the council has, under advisement, 

instructed DLA Piper to pursue a compound interest claim in the High Court.  
This follows claims being pursued by other local authorities, including Bristol 
City Council.   

 
9.2.11 Should the council be successful in this claim, the council’s initial interest 

payment of £583k would be repaid again, potentially two or three-fold. 
 
9.2.12 Progress of the court case continues to be monitored and, although a result is 

not expected in the near future, the council’s interests in this case are 
protected should the outcome be favourable. 

 
 Adequacy of Capital Resources and Property Repairs and Renewals 
 Fund (Reserve) 
 
9.3  The Chief Finance Officer has raised the issue of the long term financing of 

 both the council’s capital programme and 20 year maintenance programme 
 on a number of occasions. The work to update the Asset Management Plan 
 identifies additional funding requirements over the coming years and may 
 consider alternative forms of  financing, including prudential borrowing. 

 
 New Homes Bonus 
 
9.4  The government proposes to introduce a new cash incentive scheme to 

 reward councils for new home completions and for bringing empty homes 
 back into use. 

 
9.4.1 Subject to the result of recent consultation, the New Homes Bonus will 

provide match funding of Council Tax for six years (based on national 
average for Band D property – i.e. £8,600 per dwelling over six years), plus a 
bonus of £350 for each affordable home (worth £2,100 over six years). 

 
9.4.2 First allocations will be in 2011 - funding will not be ring-fenced and is 

designed to allow the ‘benefits of growth to be returned to communities’. It 

Page 167



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 20

has been suggested that funding will be split 80:20 between district and 
county authorities. 

 
9.4.3 The government intends that this funding should become a permanent feature 

of the local government finance system with an extra £450 million available 
nationally over the first two years, with additional costs being met from the 
redistribution of formula grant. 

 
9.4.4 The Council will need to decide how it wishes to budget for this new funding 

stream, as it will be an important element of future financing arrangements, 
dependent on both the rate of housing delivery locally and how this compares 
with delivery in other authorities across England. However, housing 
projections are notoriously difficult to predict accurately over the longer term 
and will need to be assessed prudently in making any assumptions about 
likely resource availability. 

 
 Off-Street Parking income 

 
9.5 Income from off-street parking continues to fall as a result of a variety of 

supply and demand factors. There are two income streams which form the 
majority of the budgeted income i.e. fees and fines. The 2011/12 budget has 
addressed the recent shortfall in fee and fine income with a reduction of 
£500,000 in the income target. The VAT rate change to 20% has also been 
reflected in the base budget for 2011/12 with a further reduction in income 
targets of £90,000. Any continuation of the economic downturn is likely to 
result in this reduced level of activity being sustained into the near future 
years. The continuation of the concessionary fares scheme at national level is 
also likely to suppress future demand for parking services locally. 

 
 2012 Olympics 
 
9.6  The council is in the process of assessing the impact and opportunities 

 arising from the 2012 Olympics in terms of adding value to existing service 
 provision, maximising legacy i.e. making sure that clubs and facilities can 
 cater for the enthusiasm generated by 2012; and managing the potential 
 impact on infrastructure and services. 

 
9.7  To complement this work the council committed £30,000 of the 2009/10 

 LAGBI allocation towards providing sport and play activities for young people 
 in the run-up to the Olympics. Spread over three years, a range of 
 programmes and events will take place throughout the town, which will 
 expand and develop the youth focused sporting offer provided by the 
 council's sports development team and Active Gloucestershire. 

 
9.8  Furthermore, the recent successful CSPAN funding bid has secured funding 

 from Sport England which will be used to provide a bursary scheme to 
 support Cheltenham's gifted and talented athletes up until the 2012 Olympics. 

 
 Icelandic Banks 
 
9.9 The council has £9.41m of un-recovered investments with Icelandic banks 

which went into administration in October 2008. The council has logged 
claims for recovery of the deposits with the banks administrators, and court 

Page 168



  APPENDIX 11 
 
MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2011/12 TO 2016/17 
 

 21

proceedings are due to commence in the spring of 2011. The MTFS assumes 
the impact of a worst case scenario based on best information available but 
the situation remains uncertain. 

 
10.  Risk associated with the MTFS 
 

10.1  There are inevitable risks associated with the assumptions for both revenue 
 and capital projections. Employee turnover may vary from that assumed with 
 both financial and service consequences. Net expenditure may be more than 
 has been assumed, either as a consequence of additional demand, e.g. for 
 concessionary fares; reduced income following a fall in demand e.g. car 
 parking; or for new responsibilities which are inadequately provided for within 
 government grant. 

 
10.2  On the capital side, major projects that require additional resources and rely 

 on a level of new capital receipts may prove to be optimistic in the current 
 economic climate. 

 
10.3  Furthermore, the current MTFS assumes that the current system of local 

 government funding will continue. 
 
10.4  However, we now also need to consider additional risks associated with the 

 wider economic situation. Inflation and interest rate assumptions may prove 
 to be incorrect, although this has been factored in to some extent by 
 assuming the worst case scenario. 

 
10.5  The prospect of business failures and a reduction in available tenants may 

 result in rent reductions or rent free periods in order to attract new occupiers 
 to the council’s commercial property portfolio. 

 
10.6  It will continue to be necessary to review the MTFS each year and update it 

 for latest information. In year budget monitoring is crucial to ensure that 
 variances and trends are highlighted at the earliest opportunity. 

 
 
11.  Conclusion  
 

11.1  The council has a track record of strong financial management but is now in 
 a period of significant volatility and uncertainty. The council needs to plan 
 now to ensure that its strong financial position continues throughout the 
 period covered by this MTFS and beyond. 

 
11.2  The development of this strategy for closing the budget gap is an important 

 and on-going issue for the council. 
 

Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 12  

Page 1

BUDGET CONSULTATION 2011/12 – SUMMARY OF RESPONSES 
 
21 completed surveys were received in total.  
 
Q1.   
Given the need to find savings of £2.9m in 2011/12, do you think the council has 
compiled a list of proposals which is broadly acceptable given the circumstances? 

%
Yes 16 84
No 3 16
Total 19 100   
Q2. 
Are their any proposals for cuts which you do not support? 

Response %
Cut grants to the Arts Council 8 26.7%
Reducing charitable concession for hire of town hall 5 16.7%
Cancel contribution to MAD (Youth Council) 2 6.7%
Closure of Public Conveniences 2 6.7%
Reduce Frequency of Cutting Grass Verges 2 6.7%
Stop employing insurance brokers 1 3.3%
Dropping ECDL qualification 1 3.3%
Reducing funding to Cheltenham Festivals 1 3.3%
Merger of Art Gallery & Museum and TIC 1 3.3%
Reduction in grant funding to Performing Arts Society 1 3.3%
Equipment for saving energy costs at leisure @ 1 3.3%
Concessionary fares - discretionary top up of statutory scheme 1 3.3%
Cancel Taxi Vouchers Scheme 1 3.3%
Move to Alternate Weekly Collections and Charge for Collection of Garden
Waste

1 3.3%

Reduce Economic Development Grant Support to County and Regional
Organisations

1 3.3%

Reduction in CIVIC and Mayoral Expenditure 1 3.3%
TOTAL 68 100.0%
 
 
Q3. 
If you have answered No to question 1, what savings could be made instead of the 
proposals you do not support? 
 
Common responses were: 
• Reduce planting in parks and gardens and hanging baskets in the town centre 
• Sell land/buildings which are no longer required  
• Closely examine entertainment and hospitality costs 
• Charge Cheltenham Borough Council tenants for pest control 
• Get tough and commercial on bad debts 
• Funding for “big society” 
• Reduction in chief executives remuneration 
• Reductions in salaries of senior staff 
• Smaller car for the Mayor 
• Reduce amount of paperwork in general 
• Reduce administration costs 
• Ask for volunteers to help cut grass verges 
• Increase charges at Leisure @ and Cemetery 
• Turn down the heating in the Municipal offices 
• Reduce HR and IT budgets by 10% 
• Reduce Twinning Budget Further 

Page 171



APPENDIX 12  

Page 2

• Reduce mileage rates for employees to HMRC rates of 40p  
• Scrap car lump sums 
• Reduce all staff salaries by 5% (except for lowest paid), pay freeze for foreseeable 

future, move to “career average” pension scheme 
• Don’t freeze car parking fees 
• Ask a company to sponsor the mayor an electric car 

 
Q4. 
Given the need to make further savings in future in response to more reductions in 
government funding where should the council continue to look to make savings? 
Please identify any services you believe where the council should reduce, or stop 
funding? 
• Reduce councillor expenses more than 5% 
• Merge Everyman and Playhouse theatres 
• Share the Municipal offices with another organisation 
• Reduce number of councillors 
• Don’t give bus pass’ to 60 year olds 
• Reduce management salaries 
• Reduce CIVIC pride budget 
• Get people doing community service to work on our parks and gardens 
• Increase council tax 
• Reduce discount for single household family’s in council tax 
• Small annual charge for concessionary travel 
• Stop Twinning 
• Reduce back office costs further 
• Reduce business change budget 

 
Q5. 
Finally, do you have any general comments about the proposed budget? 
 
• “its not possible for the layman to analyse in detail the proposed cuts” 
• “in general the budget review Is necessary from time to time” 
• “nobody said it was easy” 
• “it does not seem to go far enough in terms of redundancies” 
• “I am happy to see that the council tax and parking rates are to remain unaltered” 
• “Well considered response to an extremely difficult situation” 
• “we stress the importance of not to undermine Cheltenham as and attractive centre 

for tourism” 
 
 

Page 172



APPENDIX 12  

Page 3

Other Responses: 
 
Anonymous: 
 
The closure of ANY public toilets is a leap back to pre-Victorian times but the closure of the 
Bath Road toilets is totally irresponsible. There are no big stores with conveniences; the little 
shops mostly have 'upstairs' toilets and will not allow public usage for insurance reasons. Like 
myself, many people require easy access to toilets for medical reasons. I have to be sure of 
easy access to facilities  before I go anywhere. I visit the shops, and particularly the opticians, 
in Bath Road, because the conveniences are readily available. I DO NOT WANT AND 
CANNOT GO INTO SHOPS, TELLING THEM MY MEDICAL PROBLEMS AND BEGGING 
TO USE A TOILET. Public toilets are a necessity not a luxury. Supposing EVERY shop and 
store says 'Our toilets can be used only by customers making purchases. Will the authorities 
allow the use of back alleys and gutters for people unable or unwilling to make purchases? By 
the end of the Victorian era, there were facilities in all busy thoroughfare!  As, many of them 
staffed. Is the Council saying to all medically unfit, disabled and elderly people 'We cannot 
provide your basic needs so you cannot go to shopping areas any more'? 
 
 
Mrs H E Atkinson, Secretary, Cheltenham Local History Society. 
  
On behalf of CLHS, I am writing to express our concern at the proposal to cut the funding to 
the Cheltenham Arts Council as a result of the Budget Consultation. We feel that it is vital to 
have a central body, the CAC, to lobby for the many and varied arts groups in Cheltenham.  
We subscribe to CAC annually, and over the years have benefited greatly by grants it has 
given us to aid our research, buy equipment, and provide local history resources and 
displays. Ultimately, this benefits the town, bringing education and pleasure to many. 
  
We therefore support CAC, and hope that the Council will reconsider how it will allocate its 
funding more fairly.  
 
 
A letter was received from Cheltenham Arts Council in support of the Annual Grant to 
Cheltenham Arts Council. 
 
I understand from the draft Budget Proposals that the Annual Grant to the Cheltenham Arts 
Council is likely to be removed in 2011 and beyond.  I am writing to you in my capacity as 
Chairman of the Cheltenham Arts Council to offer my views on this proposal, and would 
appreciate it if this letter could be considered as part of the consultation process. 
 
As you will know the Cheltenham Arts Council was set up by the Borough Council to act as a 
coordinating body for community arts organisations within the borough and to provide a 
valuable link between those organisations and the Borough Council.  This link includes the 
disbursement of modest funds from the council to a range of organisations that would 
otherwise need to seek individual help and support from the Borough Council. The 
Cheltenham Arts Council represents the widest cross section of the population engaged in 
community arts endeavours and includes many organisations whose aims embrace 
encouraging young people to develop community and arts related activities.  A list of our 
members is attached. 
 
I note that the Budget Proposals do continue to include direct funding for some selected arts 
related organisations and I welcome this; however, I feel that for many of the organisations 
we represent, the availability of some funding from the central source of the Cheltenham Arts 
Council is vital.   
 
I am aware that difficult choices have to be made; however, I offer these views, on behalf of 
the Cheltenham Arts Council, in good faith and in the understanding that it is not possible for 
the Borough Council to continue to support all arts ventures to the same extent.   Rather I feel 
that having set up the Arts Council partly for the purpose of disbursing certain council funds 
equitably across various community arts organisations it would be a pity to revert to a 

Page 173



APPENDIX 12  

Page 4

situation where those without a strong individual voice are not able to receive adequate 
support for worthwhile ventures. 
 
Brian Carvell 
Chairman, Cheltenham Arts Council 
 
 
A Response from a member of the public 

 

Page 174



APPENDIX 12  

Page 5

 
CABINET RESPONSE TO BUDGET CONSULTATION 
 
1. There were two stages to the consultation process. The first stage was conducted 

before the draft budget was produced, and the second consultation following the 
production of the draft budget. 

2. The initial feedback was substantial as has been outlined. The results of the 
surveys highlighted those areas that people had suggested should be cut or 
protected and these were subjected to more detailed examination. 

3. Most useful were the four Focus Groups that were selected from the list of 
participants in the survey. There were detailed discussions with the participants in 
these four groups prior to the formation of the budget and following the production 
of the draft budget they were consulted again and gave their response to it.   

4. One of the most useful pointers for the Cabinet in identifying the criteria by which 
the budget should be evaluated was provided by the responses to the question 
‘What do you most like/ dislike about the town’. What emerged was that people 
most valued the environmental, social, cultural and economic quality of the town 
particularly the parks and gardens, the architecture, the festivals and so on. They 
disliked the things that got in the way of this, most notably crowded roads in poor 
repair, and anti-social behaviour. In assessing all the suggestions for cuts, the 
protection of the quality of the town was at the forefront of the Cabinet’s 
considerations. 

5. Following the production of the draft budget the people in the focus groups were 
invited back to respond to the budget suggestions. There was a unanimous view 
that in the circumstances the budget had satisfactorily addressed the deficit even 
though some suggestions – such as closing toilets – were acknowledged as 
difficult decisions. Concerns were voiced particularly about the impact of the 
verge-cutting contract, Cheltenham Festivals, the need to ensure the provision of 
more social housing for local people and the County Council cuts to the Youth 
Service. 

6. The Overview and Scrutiny committees picked up a range of issues including   
Cheltenham Festivals and the verge-cutting contract among other concerns.  

7. In addition there were 21 formal responses to the budget consultation document 
with the majority (16) ‘broadly accepting’ the budget. 

8. As a result of the consultation some changes have been made to the draft 
budget. This has been made possible through further consultation with the 
pensions actuary (following the 2 year freeze on staff salaries) which has 
delivered a one-off saving of £259k. 

9. This funding has therefore been reallocated as follows: 
(i) For the coming year the £110k reduction in spend on the verge cutting 

contract will be reinstated. The basic contract with the County has been 
terminated so that from the financial year 2012/13 it will be their responsibility 

Page 175



APPENDIX 12  

Page 6

to cut the verges unless negotiations with them produce a more acceptable 
settlement to Cheltenham. 

(ii) £140k has been allocated to facilitate works to Imperial and Montpellier 
Gardens as a first phase of works. Cheltenham Festivals initially requested 
that we provide transitional funding to them for the next two years amounting 
to £71k for the coming year, and £35k for the following year (total £106k). 
Because of cuts to their cash grant proposed in the draft budget and the 
installation of a new box office system which will increase their income at a 
cost to the Council, the amount of cash grant they will receive in the next 
financial year is effectively nil, although they will continue to receive 
substantial support in kind from the Council. The Cabinet was sympathetic to 
the Festivals but felt the best way to support them was to invest in the 
infrastructure that enabled them to become financially successful in the long 
term and which also benefited the whole town at the same time. The catering 
contract will be renegotiated in 2012 and will apply only to the Town Hall and 
the outside bar, and not the whole gardens, and so the Festivals will be able 
to make an income from this. They will also be able to use Imperial and 
Montpellier Gardens free this year, but in future years will have to pay a fee at 
the charitable rate. 

(iii) There has been a problem reported relating to nuisances caused by seagulls 
in the town and so £3k one-off additional funding has been allocated over the 
next two years, to extend the oiling of seagull eggs. 

(iv) There have been a series of objections to ending the grant to the Arts Council 
(£10k). The Cabinet suggests that one-off funding of £6k be allocated to them 
to cover this year only, to help reduce the effect of the lost funding.  

(v)  Extensive and intensive work has been put into consultation around the 
budget which has been useful and has reassured people that the Council 
does take their views into account. A Budget Scrutiny Group has been 
established with representatives from all O&S committees which will meet 
throughout the year and consider the budget as it evolves and which can also 
look at more detail at some of the ideas that emerged during the process – 
like the suggestion that the Council should look towards more sponsorship 
and income generating initiatives.  

10. In the commissioning environment there is a need for elected members to 
focus on finances throughout the year and not just at Budget time. 

 

Page 176



APPENDIX 13 
 
 
 

Budget scrutiny working group 
 

Report to Cabinet 8 February 2010 
 
Background 
The council is keen to improve its budget scrutiny process. The current budget scrutiny process happens too late 
in the year to properly consider and influence Cabinet decisions in respect of the budget.  
 
Given the reduction in government funding and the projected budget gap over the period of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS), the budgetary decisions made over the coming years are likely to be more radical as 
the council looks to reduce its costs and look to alternative ways of maintaining services valued by the public. As 
such, it is important to ensure that all options have been considered from whatever source. The council must 
ensure that Members work collectively, accepting political differences, on solutions to the budget gap. 
 
With this in mind, a group of Members was drawn together, 2 from each of the various scrutiny committees to 
develop as budget scrutiny champions to support the process. The budget scrutiny working group met on 2nd 
November 2010 and 11 January 2011 to consider the following recommendation from Council in February 2010. 
 
‘Given the financial outlook, the process for scrutiny of the budget is to be reviewed in order to 
determine a more effective approach’. 
 
Considerations of the working group. 
In considering the current methodology for scrutinising the annual budget and influencing the decision making in 
preparing the annual budgets, the following points were raised by members that should be addressed in the 
shaping of any new process: 
 
• Members wanted to feel that they had some influence over decisions. 
• Members, outside the Cabinet, should have something to focus on in supporting the budget process. 
• Members need to clearly understand any request made of them. 
• The scrutiny process starts too late. 
• Budget consultation is too late in process 
• Some Members lack financial literacy and confidence. 

 
In making these very valid points, Members considered the option of a permanent budget working group to 
support the budget process and develop Members’ financial skills. 
 
The group agreed that a BUDGET WORKING GROUP should be formally constituted and should meet regularly 
throughout the year to develop the budget process, support Members in developing scrutiny skills and consider 
ideas proposed by the Members, including Cabinet leads, on future options for reducing the budget gap. The 
views of the working group may be fed back to the relevant overview and scrutiny committee for further 
consideration prior to feeding back to the Cabinet. 
 
It was considered important that members should be able to float any ideas however controversial or creative and 
those discussions should be confidential.   
 
Members considered the impact on the Audit Committee but agreed that its role was to consider the council’s 
governance arrangements and should remain independent of any process which helped shape the budget. 
 
Members also considered the need to understand the commissioning programme of activity and how this group 
would help shape the options for testing in a commissioning process. Hence, the link with the commissioning 
programme of activity needed to be made. 
 
Members recognised the need to ensure proper, open and transparent scrutiny continued to take place in the 
existing overview and security meetings. As such, it is not proposed that the working group replaces the current 
scrutiny committee but merely acts as a vehicle for the development of the budget scrutiny role. As such, for now, 
the current cycle of budget scrutiny will not change but changes may be proposed by the working group to be 
reflected in the budget strategy report to Cabinet in September 2011 which sets out the approach to the 2012/13 
budget. 
 
 
 

Page 177



APPENDIX 13 
The working group have agreed on the following recommendation to Cabinet: 
 

A cross party BUDGET WORKING GROUP should be formally constituted with 2 members of each 
overview and scrutiny committee to develop the budget process, support the development of 
Members’ scrutiny role and to consider ideas from Members for reducing the budget gap. 

 
Frequency of meetings: Bi - Monthly 
 
Terms of reference: 
 
• To consider options for bridging the funding gap i.e. proposals for charging or reduction in expenditure 
• To review the work programme for commissioning and options being considered 
• To develop members’ scrutiny skills and understanding of financial matters 
• To develop the approach to budget consultation 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 178



Equality Impact Assessment 
The council has taken its commitments to equality and diversity seriously in the development 
of the 2011-12 budget and in line with good practice carried out an equality impact 
assessment on the proposals.  

A small group comprising the Assistant Chief Executive, the Policy and Partnership 
Manager, the Community Outreach Officer and the Services Manager from Cheltenham 
Voluntary and Community Action (VCA) met on 8th December to identify the potential 
equality and diversity impacts associated with the 92 proposals. Where identified, the 
impacts are shown in Budget Proposals Report.  

The Assistant Chief Executive and the Policy and Partnership Manager carried out a further 
impact assessment of three budget proposals where potentially detrimental impacts were 
initially identified on 2 February 2011. The proposed mitigating actions emerging from this 
assessment process are set out below: 

The proposed closure of public toilets - Actions:  
! To work with businesses and other organisations who have toilet facilities in the vicinity of 

the public toilets identified for closure to encourage them to open up their toilets to public 
access. 

! To put a particular focus on identifying alternative toilets that are fully accessible to 
disabled people. 

! To provide signage to alternative facilities. 

The proposed cancelling of the taxi voucher scheme and Charlton Kings Elderly Transport 
Grant - Actions:
! The council works with Third Sector Services, who provide community transport services 

in Cheltenham, to explore the provision of additional capacity to serve disabled people to 
off-set the cuts in taxi vouchers.

! The council’s Senior Leadership Team to keep an overview of the wider impacts of the 
proposal on disabled people. 

The proposed cancelling of the contribution to MAD (Making a Difference) Young people’s 
council - Actions:  
! The council to reassert its commitment to engaging with children and young people as 

part its engagement strategies. 
! The council to ensure youth engagement processes are built into proposals for how youth 

services can be provided in the future. 

For further information, contact 
Richard Gibson 
Policy and Partnerships Manager 
01242 235354 
richard.gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Page 179



E
q

u
al

it
y 

im
p

ac
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 –
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
es

, p
o

lic
ie

s 
an

d
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

W
h

at
 is

 a
n

 e
q

u
al

it
y 

im
p

ac
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
t?

 
A

n 
eq

ua
lit

y 
im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t i

s 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
eq

ua
lit

y 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 T

he
 fo

rm
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

us
 fi

nd
 o

ut
 w

ha
t i

m
pa

ct
 o

r 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

ur
 fu

nc
tio

ns
, p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
es

 h
av

e 
on

 o
ur

 c
iti

ze
ns

, e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l e
m

pl
oy

ee
s.

  

B
y 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

an
 im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

w
e 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
: 

! 
T

ak
e 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

ne
ed

s,
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 a

nd
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

of
 th

os
e 

gr
ou

ps
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 u
se

 (
or

 d
on

’t 
/ c

an
’t 

us
e)

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
! 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

pe
op

le
 m

ay
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
 

! 
T

hi
nk

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

w
ay

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 w

e 
ca

n 
de

liv
er

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 n
ot

 le
ad

 to
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s.
 

! 
D

ev
el

op
 b

et
te

r 
po

lic
y-

m
ak

in
g,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d

N
am

e 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
o

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l
20

11
-1

2 
b

u
d

g
et

 -
 T

h
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
an

ce
lli

n
g

 o
f 

th
e 

ta
xi

 v
o

u
ch

er
 s

ch
em

e 
an

d
 C

h
ar

lt
o

n
 K

in
g

s 
E

ld
er

ly
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 G
ra

n
t 

L
ea

d
 o

ff
ic

er
 

M
ar

k 
S

h
el

d
o

n
, C

h
ie

f 
F

in
an

ce
 O

ff
ic

e 

O
th

er
 p

eo
p

le
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
co

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 f

o
rm

 

D
at

e

Ja
n

e 
G

ri
ff

it
h

s,
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

; 
R

ic
h

ar
d

 G
ib

so
n

, P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
M

an
ag

er
 

2 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

 

Page 180



S
te

p
 1

 -
 A

b
o

u
t 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

/ p
o

lic
y 

/ p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
ai

m
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ 

p
o

lic
y 

an
d

 w
h

at
 o

u
tc

o
m

es
 is

 it
 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 t
o

 

T
he

 2
01

1-
12

 b
ud

ge
t s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 c

ab
in

et
’s

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 b

ud
ge

t. 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 is

 to
 c

an
ce

l 
th

e 
ta

xi
 v

ou
ch

er
 s

ch
em

e 
w

he
re

by
 d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r 
te

n 
£2

 ta
xi

 v
ou

ch
er

s.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 s
av

e 
ap

pr
ox

 
£2

6.
7k

 p
er

 a
nn

um
. A

no
th

er
 p

ro
po

sa
l i

s 
to

 r
em

ov
e 

th
e 

gr
an

t f
ro

m
 C

ha
rlt

on
 K

in
gs

 S
en

io
r 

C
iti

ze
ns

' W
el

fa
re

 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
tr

an
sp

or
t f

or
 o

ld
er

, d
is

ab
le

d 
an

d 
ho

us
e 

bo
un

d 
pe

op
le

 in
 th

e 
C

ha
rlt

on
 K

in
gs

 a
re

a.
  

F
ro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
11

, G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 o
ve

r 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fr
om

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t c

ou
nc

ils
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
co

nc
es

si
on

ar
y 

fa
re

s 
tr

av
el

 in
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
. C

ur
re

nt
ly

 e
ac

h 
di

st
ric

t c
ou

nc
il 

op
er

at
es

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t s

ch
em

e,
 w

hi
ch

 
m

ea
ns

 w
ha

t p
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 fo
r 

va
rie

s 
fr

om
 a

re
a 

to
 a

re
a.

 S
om

e 
of

 th
e 

di
st

ric
t c

ou
nc

ils
 p

ay
 fo

r 
an

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
, w

hi
ch

 in
 s

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 e

ar
lie

r 
st

ar
t t

im
es

, t
ra

ve
l t

ok
en

s 
in

 li
eu

 o
f b

us
 p

as
se

s 
an

d 
ta

xi
 

to
ke

ns
/v

ou
ch

er
s.

 F
ro

m
 A

pr
il 

20
11

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

no
 c

en
tr

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t f
un

di
ng

 fo
r 

an
y 

co
nc

es
si

on
ar

y 
fa

re
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, a
s 

al
l m

on
ie

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

W
h

o
 a

re
 t

h
e 

p
ri

m
ar

y 
cu

st
o

m
er

s 
o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
an

d
 h

o
w

 d
o

 
th

ey
 / 

w
ill

 t
h

ey
 b

en
ef

it
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
re

si
de

nt
s 

of
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 a
nd

 o
ld

er
, d

is
ab

le
d 

an
d 

ho
us

e 
bo

un
d 

pe
op

le
 in

 th
e 

C
ha

rlt
on

 K
in

gs
 a

re
a 

H
o

w
 a

n
d

 w
h

er
e 

is
 t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

/ 
p

o
lic

y 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d

 
T

he
 b

ud
ge

t s
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 h
ow

 m
on

ey
 is

 s
pe

nt
 a

nd
 h

ow
 m

on
ey

 is
 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
fe

es
.  

S
te

p
 2

 –
 W

h
at

 d
o

 y
o

u
 k

n
o

w
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

ab
o

u
t 

yo
u

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 / 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

W
h

at
 e

xi
st

in
g

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 d

at
a 

d
o

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

ab
o

u
t 

yo
u

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 / 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

e.
g

. S
ta

ti
st

ic
s,

 
cu

st
o

m
er

 f
ee

d
b

ac
k,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n

A
pp

ro
x 

1,
20

0 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e 
ta

ke
 u

p 
th

e 
di

sa
bl

ed
 ta

xi
 v

ou
ch

er
 s

ch
em

e.
 

T
he

re
 a

re
 9

0 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f C
ha

rlt
on

 K
in

gs
 S

en
io

r 
C

iti
ze

ns
' W

el
fa

re
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 th
at

 b
en

ef
it 

fr
om

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

  

W
h

at
 h

av
e 

yo
u

 le
ar

n
t 

ab
o

u
t 

re
al

 
b

ar
ri

er
s 

to
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
fr

o
m

 a
n

y 
co

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

an
d

 
an

y 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
 g

ro
u

p
s?

 

T
hr

ou
gh

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 d
iff

er
en

t c
om

m
un

iti
es

, w
e 

kn
ow

 th
at

 th
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
! 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 o

ur
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
! 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
! 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ca

nc
el

lin
g 

of
 th

e 
gr

an
t a

nd
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 ta

xi
 v

ou
ch

er
s 

do
es

 r
ed

uc
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

If
 n

o
t,

 w
h

o
 d

o
 y

o
u

 h
av

e 
p

la
n

s 
to

 
co

n
su

lt
 w

it
h

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ 

p
o

lic
y?

 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 d

ra
ft 

bu
dg

et
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
th

at
 r

an
 b

et
w

ee
n 

22
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 to
 2

2 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

11
. O

ut
 o

f 2
1 

re
sp

on
se

s,
 1

 r
es

po
nd

en
t d

id
 n

ot
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 ta
xi

 v
ou

ch
er

s.
  

Page 181



S
te

p
 3

 -
 A

ss
es

si
n

g
 Im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
/ p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
H

ow
 d

oe
s 

yo
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

 / 
po

lic
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
di

ffe
re

nt
 g

ro
up

s 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
? 

G
ro

u
p

H
o

w
 w

ill
 t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
e,

 p
o

lic
y 

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l b

en
ef

it
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

e 
se

rv
ic

e,
 p

o
lic

y 
o

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l d
is

ad
va

n
ta

g
e 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p

 
N

o
 im

p
ac

t 
o

n
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 

E
th

n
ic

it
y 

/ R
ac

e 
N

o 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

is
 g

ro
up

 

G
en

d
er

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s-
g

en
d

er
 

N
o 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
is

 g
ro

up
 

A
g

e
!

O
ld

er
 p

eo
p

le
 

!
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 r

em
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 c

om
m

un
ity

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
 li

vi
ng

 in
 

C
ha

rlt
on

 K
in

gs
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
!

P
eo

p
le

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ci

n
g

 m
en

ta
l i

ll-
h

ea
lt

h
!

P
eo

p
le

 w
it

h
 p

h
ys

ic
al

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 r
ed

uc
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 p
re

fe
r 

to
 u

se
 ta

xi
s 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 b

us
es

 a
s 

ac
ce

ss
 is

 e
as

ie
r.

  

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 r

em
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 c

om
m

un
ity

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
 li

vi
ng

 in
 

C
ha

rlt
on

 K
in

gs
. 

R
el

ig
io

n
 o

r 
b

el
ie

f 
N

o 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

is
 g

ro
up

 

S
ex

u
al

 o
ri

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

N
o 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
is

 g
ro

up
 

O
th

er
 s

o
ci

al
ly

 e
xc

lu
d

ed
 g

ro
u

p
s 

o
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

N
o 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
es

e 
gr

ou
ps

Page 182



S
te

p
 4

 -
 w

h
at

 a
re

 t
h

e 
d

if
fe

re
n

ce
s 

A
re

 a
n

y 
g

ro
u

p
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 in
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

ay
s 

to
 o

th
er

s 
as

 a
 r

es
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y?
 

T
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

w
ar

e 
th

at
 th

e 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 g
ra

nt
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

an
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 o

f C
ha

rlt
on

 K
in

gs
 S

en
io

r 
C

iti
ze

ns
' W

el
fa

re
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 F
ro

m
 a

n 
E

ch
o 

ar
tic

le
 d

at
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 
30

th
, t

he
 

ch
ai

rm
an

 is
 r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
co

nf
id

en
t t

ha
t t

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 d

es
pi

te
 th

e 
w

ith
dr

aw
al

 o
f t

he
 g

ra
nt

. 

T
he

 r
em

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 £

20
 b

oo
k 

of
 ta

xi
 v

ou
ch

er
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 u
se

 ta
xi

s 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 b
us

es
 a

s 
ac

ce
ss

 is
 e

as
ie

r.
  

D
o

es
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
ei

th
er

 
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

o
r 

in
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

d
is

cr
im

in
at

e?
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l i
s 

a 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f a
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
ea

so
ns

. T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

in
te

nt
io

n 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 b

e 
di

sc
rim

in
at

or
y.

  

If
 y

es
, w

h
at

 c
an

 b
e 

d
o

n
e 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

th
is

?
T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
is

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 w
ho

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
om

m
un

ity
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 C

he
lte

nh
am

, t
o 

se
e 

if 
th

ey
 c

an
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 s

er
ve

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 to
 o

ff-
se

t t
he

 c
ut

s 
in

 ta
xi

 v
ou

ch
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 C
ha

rlt
on

 K
in

gs
 S

en
io

r 
C

iti
ze

ns
' W

el
fa

re
 C

om
m

itt
ee

. 

S
te

p
 5

 –
 t

ak
in

g
 t

h
in

g
s 

fo
rw

ar
d

 
W

h
at

 a
re

 t
h

e 
ke

y 
ac

ti
o

n
s 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

an
d

 h
o

w
 w

ill
 t

h
ey

 b
e 

re
so

u
rc

ed
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
?

 

! 
T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
is

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 T
hi

rd
 S

ec
to

r 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 w
ho

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
om

m
un

ity
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 C

he
lte

nh
am

, 
to

 s
ee

 if
 th

ey
 c

an
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 s

er
ve

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 to
 o

ff-
se

t t
he

 c
ut

s 
in

 ta
xi

 v
ou

ch
er

s.
  

! 
S

en
io

r 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 T
ea

m
 to

 k
ee

p 
an

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 w
id

er
 im

pa
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 o
n 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e.

W
h

o
 w

ill
 p

la
y 

a 
ro

le
 in

 t
h

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

-
m

ak
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
?

 
O

w
en

 P
ar

ry
, I

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

 M
an

ag
er

 is
 le

ad
in

g 
th

e 
w

or
k 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

es
e 

im
pa

ct
s.

  

H
o

w
 w

ill
 y

o
u

 c
ap

tu
re

 t
h

es
e 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
in

 y
o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
la

n
n

in
g

?
 

T
o 

be
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

  

Page 183



E
q

u
al

it
y 

im
p

ac
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 –
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
es

, p
o

lic
ie

s 
an

d
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

W
h

at
 is

 a
n

 e
q

u
al

it
y 

im
p

ac
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
t?

 
A

n 
eq

ua
lit

y 
im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t i

s 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
eq

ua
lit

y 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 T

he
 fo

rm
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

us
 fi

nd
 o

ut
 w

ha
t i

m
pa

ct
 o

r 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

ur
 fu

nc
tio

ns
, p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
es

 h
av

e 
on

 o
ur

 c
iti

ze
ns

, e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l e
m

pl
oy

ee
s.

  

B
y 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

an
 im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

w
e 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
: 

! 
T

ak
e 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

ne
ed

s,
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 a

nd
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

of
 th

os
e 

gr
ou

ps
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 u
se

 (
or

 d
on

’t 
/ c

an
’t 

us
e)

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
! 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

pe
op

le
 m

ay
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
 

! 
T

hi
nk

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

w
ay

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 w

e 
ca

n 
de

liv
er

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 n
ot

 le
ad

 to
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s.
 

! 
D

ev
el

op
 b

et
te

r 
po

lic
y-

m
ak

in
g,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d

N
am

e 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e,
 p

o
lic

y 
o

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
20

11
-1

2 
b

u
d

g
et

 -
 T

h
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
lo

su
re

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 t
o

ile
ts

 

L
ea

d
 o

ff
ic

er
 

M
ar

k 
S

h
el

d
o

n
, C

h
ie

f 
F

in
an

ce
 O

ff
ic

e 

O
th

er
 p

eo
p

le
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
co

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 f

o
rm

 

D
at

e

Ja
n

e 
G

ri
ff

it
h

s,
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

; 
R

ic
h

ar
d

 G
ib

so
n

, P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
M

an
ag

er
 

2 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

 

Page 184



S
te

p
 1

 -
 A

b
o

u
t 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

/ p
o

lic
y 

/ p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
ai

m
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ 

p
o

lic
y 

an
d

 w
h

at
 o

u
tc

o
m

es
 is

 it
 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 t
o

 

T
he

 2
01

1-
12

 b
ud

ge
t s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 c

ab
in

et
’s

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 b

ud
ge

t. 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 is

 to
 c

lo
se

 a
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
 to

ile
ts

; C
ox

s 
M

ea
do

w
, C

or
on

at
io

n 
S

qu
ar

e,
 A

m
br

os
e 

S
tr

ee
t, 

B
at

h 
T

er
ra

ce
, C

hu
rc

h 
P

ie
ce

 a
nd

 
P

or
tla

nd
 S

tr
ee

t. 
P

ro
po

sa
ls

 to
 k

ee
p 

th
e 

to
ile

ts
 a

t t
he

 T
ow

n 
H

al
l, 

R
oy

al
 W

el
l, 

S
an

df
or

d 
P

ar
k 

an
d 

P
itt

vi
lle

 P
ar

k 
an

d 
M

on
tp

el
lie

r 
op

en
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 c
on

si
de

re
d.

 A
 s

ch
em

e 
fo

r 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

to
ile

ts
 in

 c
af

es
 / 

sh
op

s 
et

c 
is

 a
ls

o 
be

in
g 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

. 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 s

av
e 

ap
pr

ox
 £

10
0k

 p
er

 a
nn

um
. 

W
h

o
 a

re
 t

h
e 

p
ri

m
ar

y 
cu

st
o

m
er

s 
o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
an

d
 h

o
w

 d
o

 
th

ey
 / 

w
ill

 t
h

ey
 b

en
ef

it
 

A
ll 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 

H
o

w
 a

n
d

 w
h

er
e 

is
 t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

/ 
p

o
lic

y 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d

 
T

he
 b

ud
ge

t s
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 h
ow

 m
on

ey
 is

 s
pe

nt
 a

nd
 h

ow
 m

on
ey

 is
 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
fe

es
.  

S
te

p
 2

 –
 W

h
at

 d
o

 y
o

u
 k

n
o

w
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

ab
o

u
t 

yo
u

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 / 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

W
h

at
 e

xi
st

in
g

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 d

at
a 

d
o

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

ab
o

u
t 

yo
u

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 / 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

e.
g

. S
ta

ti
st

ic
s,

 
cu

st
o

m
er

 f
ee

d
b

ac
k,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
st

at
is

tic
s 

ab
ou

t w
ho

 u
se

s 
ou

r 
pu

bl
ic

 to
ile

ts
 b

ut
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
na

l E
Q

IA
 g

ro
up

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 th

e 
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
 to

ile
ts

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

de
tr

im
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
 / 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

pa
re

nt
s 

w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
 

ne
ed

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
pu

bl
ic

 to
ile

ts
 a

t s
ho

rt
 n

ot
ic

e.
 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 g
ro

up
 w

as
 a

w
ar

e 
th

at
 c

er
ta

in
 g

ro
up

s 
do

 n
ot

 u
se

 p
ub

lic
 to

ile
ts

 d
ue

 to
 p

er
ce

pt
io

ns
 o

f s
af

et
y 

– 
th

e 
po

lic
e 

do
 h

av
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 c
er

ta
in

 p
ub

lic
 to

ile
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

se
d 

fo
r 

dr
ug

-d
ea

lin
g 

an
d 

ar
e 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
to

 c
lo

se
 th

es
e 

to
ile

ts
.  

W
h

at
 h

av
e 

yo
u

 le
ar

n
t 

ab
o

u
t 

re
al

 
b

ar
ri

er
s 

to
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
fr

o
m

 a
n

y 
co

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

an
d

 
an

y 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
 g

ro
u

p
s?

 

T
hr

ou
gh

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 d
iff

er
en

t c
om

m
un

iti
es

, w
e 

kn
ow

 th
at

 th
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
! 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 o

ur
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
! 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
! 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
cl

os
ur

e 
of

 p
ub

lic
 to

ile
ts

 d
oe

s 
re

du
ce

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 v

al
ua

bl
e 

pu
bl

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  
If

 n
o

t,
 w

h
o

 d
o

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

p
la

n
s 

to
 

co
n

su
lt

 w
it

h
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

/ 
p

o
lic

y?
 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 d

ra
ft 

bu
dg

et
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
th

at
 r

an
 b

et
w

ee
n 

22
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 to
 2

2 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

11
. O

ut
 o

f 2
1 

re
sp

on
se

s,
 2

 r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 d
id

 n
ot

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

 to
ile

ts
.  

Page 185



S
te

p
 3

 -
 A

ss
es

si
n

g
 Im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
/ p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
H

ow
 d

oe
s 

yo
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

 / 
po

lic
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
di

ffe
re

nt
 g

ro
up

s 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
? 

G
ro

u
p

H
o

w
 w

ill
 t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
e,

 p
o

lic
y 

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l b

en
ef

it
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

e 
se

rv
ic

e,
 p

o
lic

y 
o

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l d
is

ad
va

n
ta

g
e 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p

 
N

o
 im

p
ac

t 
o

n
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 

E
th

n
ic

it
y 

/ R
ac

e 
N

o 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

is
 

gr
ou

p
G

en
d

er
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s-

g
en

d
er

 
N

o 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

is
 

gr
ou

p
A

g
e

!
O

ld
er

 p
eo

p
le

 
!

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 r
em

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
to

ile
t f

ac
ili

tie
s 

fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 
m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

em
 a

t s
ho

rt
 

no
tic

e

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 r
em

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
to

ile
t f

ac
ili

tie
s 

fo
r 

pa
re

nt
s 

w
ith

 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ho
 m

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

em
 a

t s
ho

rt
 n

ot
ic

e 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
!

P
eo

p
le

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ci

n
g

 m
en

ta
l i

ll-
h

ea
lt

h
!

P
eo

p
le

 w
it

h
 p

h
ys

ic
al

 d
is

ab
ili

ti
es

 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 r
em

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
to

ile
t f

ac
ili

tie
s 

fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 m
ay

 n
ee

d 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

th
em

 a
t 

sh
or

t n
ot

ic
e 

R
el

ig
io

n
 o

r 
b

el
ie

f 
N

o 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

is
 

gr
ou

p
S

ex
u

al
 o

ri
en

ta
ti

o
n

 
N

o 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

is
 

gr
ou

p
O

th
er

 s
o

ci
al

ly
 e

xc
lu

d
ed

 g
ro

u
p

s 
o

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
N

o 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

es
e 

gr
ou

ps

Page 186



S
te

p
 4

 -
 w

h
at

 a
re

 t
h

e 
d

if
fe

re
n

ce
s 

A
re

 a
n

y 
g

ro
u

p
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 in
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

ay
s 

to
 o

th
er

s 
as

 a
 r

es
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y?
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

de
tr

im
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
ol

de
r 

pe
op

le
 / 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

pa
re

nt
s 

w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
 

ne
ed

 to
 a

cc
es

s 
pu

bl
ic

 to
ile

ts
 a

t s
ho

rt
 n

ot
ic

e.
  

D
o

es
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
ei

th
er

 
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

o
r 

in
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

d
is

cr
im

in
at

e?
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l i
s 

a 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f a
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
ea

so
ns

. T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

in
te

nt
io

n 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 b

e 
di

sc
rim

in
at

or
y.

  

If
 y

es
, w

h
at

 c
an

 b
e 

d
o

n
e 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

th
is

?
T

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
is

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 th
at

 th
e 

cl
os

ur
es

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
on

 th
es

e 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
to

 
op

en
 u

p 
th

ei
r 

to
ile

ts
 to

 p
ub

lic
 a

cc
es

s,
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
ig

na
ge

 to
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 fo
cu

s 
on

 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 to
ile

ts
 th

at
 a

re
 fu

lly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

. T
he

se
 p

la
ns

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
11

.  

S
te

p
 5

 –
 t

ak
in

g
 t

h
in

g
s 

fo
rw

ar
d

 
W

h
at

 a
re

 t
h

e 
ke

y 
ac

ti
o

n
s 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

an
d

 h
o

w
 w

ill
 t

h
ey

 b
e 

re
so

u
rc

ed
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
?

 

! 
T

o 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

to
ile

t f
ac

ili
tie

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 to
ile

ts
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
cl

os
ur

e 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 th

em
 to

 o
pe

n 
up

 th
ei

r 
to

ile
ts

 to
 p

ub
lic

 a
cc

es
s.

 
! 

T
o 

pu
t a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 fo

cu
s 

on
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

to
ile

ts
 th

at
 a

re
 fu

lly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

. 
! 

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

si
gn

ag
e 

to
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 

W
h

o
 w

ill
 p

la
y 

a 
ro

le
 in

 t
h

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

-
m

ak
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
?

 
Jo

hn
 R

ee
s,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 is
 le

ad
in

g 
th

e 
w

or
k 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 th

es
e 

im
pa

ct
s.

  

W
h

at
 a

re
 y

o
u

r 
le

ar
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

n
ee

d
s?

 
N

on
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 

H
o

w
 w

ill
 y

o
u

 c
ap

tu
re

 t
h

es
e 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
in

 y
o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
la

n
n

in
g

?
 

T
o 

be
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

  

Page 187



E
q

u
al

it
y 

im
p

ac
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 –
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
es

, p
o

lic
ie

s 
an

d
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

W
h

at
 is

 a
n

 e
q

u
al

it
y 

im
p

ac
t 

as
se

ss
m

en
t?

 
A

n 
eq

ua
lit

y 
im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t i

s 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t p
ar

t o
f o

ur
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
eq

ua
lit

y 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 T

he
 fo

rm
 w

ill
 h

el
p 

us
 fi

nd
 o

ut
 w

ha
t i

m
pa

ct
 o

r 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

ur
 fu

nc
tio

ns
, p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
es

 h
av

e 
on

 o
ur

 c
iti

ze
ns

, e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

po
te

nt
ia

l e
m

pl
oy

ee
s.

  

B
y 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

an
 im

pa
ct

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

w
e 

ar
e 

ab
le

 to
: 

! 
T

ak
e 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

ne
ed

s,
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 a

nd
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

of
 th

os
e 

gr
ou

ps
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 u
se

 (
or

 d
on

’t 
/ c

an
’t 

us
e)

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
! 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

pe
op

le
 m

ay
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
 

! 
T

hi
nk

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
ot

he
r 

w
ay

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 w

e 
ca

n 
de

liv
er

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 n
ot

 le
ad

 to
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s.
 

! 
D

ev
el

op
 b

et
te

r 
po

lic
y-

m
ak

in
g,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

B
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d

N
am

e 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
o

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l
20

11
-1

2 
b

u
d

g
et

 -
 T

h
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
an

ce
lli

n
g

 o
f 

th
e 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 M
A

D
 (

M
ak

in
g

 a
 D

if
fe

re
n

ce
) 

Y
o

u
n

g
 

p
eo

p
le

’s
 c

o
u

n
ci

l. 

L
ea

d
 o

ff
ic

er
 

M
ar

k 
S

h
el

d
o

n
, C

h
ie

f 
F

in
an

ce
 O

ff
ic

e 

O
th

er
 p

eo
p

le
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 
co

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 f

o
rm

 

D
at

e

Ja
n

e 
G

ri
ff

it
h

s,
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

; 
R

ic
h

ar
d

 G
ib

so
n

, P
o

lic
y 

an
d

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
M

an
ag

er
 

2 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
11

 

Page 188



S
te

p
 1

 -
 A

b
o

u
t 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

/ p
o

lic
y 

/ p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
ai

m
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ 

p
o

lic
y 

an
d

 w
h

at
 o

u
tc

o
m

es
 is

 it
 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

n
g

 t
o

 

T
he

 2
01

1-
12

 b
ud

ge
t s

et
s 

ou
t t

he
 c

ab
in

et
’s

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 b

ud
ge

t. 
O

ne
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 is

 to
 c

an
ce

l 
th

e 
gr

an
t w

hi
ch

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 p
ai

d 
to

 G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
em

 to
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
th

e 
M

A
D

 (
M

ak
in

g 
a 

D
iff

er
en

ce
) 

Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

co
un

ci
l. 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 s
av

e 
£1

5k
 p

er
 a

nn
um

.  

W
h

o
 a

re
 t

h
e 

p
ri

m
ar

y 
cu

st
o

m
er

s 
o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
an

d
 h

o
w

 d
o

 
th

ey
 / 

w
ill

 t
h

ey
 b

en
ef

it
 

M
A

D
 w

or
ks

 w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ag

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

11
 a

nd
 1

8 
ye

ar
s 

ol
d.

  

H
o

w
 a

n
d

 w
h

er
e 

is
 t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

/ 
p

o
lic

y 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d

 
T

he
 b

ud
ge

t s
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l i
n 

te
rm

s 
of

 h
ow

 m
on

ey
 is

 s
pe

nt
 a

nd
 h

ow
 m

on
ey

 is
 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
fe

es
.  

S
te

p
 2

 –
 W

h
at

 d
o

 y
o

u
 k

n
o

w
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

ab
o

u
t 

yo
u

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 / 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

W
h

at
 e

xi
st

in
g

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 d

at
a 

d
o

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

ab
o

u
t 

yo
u

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 / 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

e.
g

. S
ta

ti
st

ic
s,

 
cu

st
o

m
er

 f
ee

d
b

ac
k,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 1
4 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f M

A
D

 (
at

 N
ov

 2
01

1)
; M

A
D

 R
ep

s 
ar

e 
11

-1
8 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 e

le
ct

ed
 to

 
re

pr
es

en
t t

he
ir 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

yo
ut

h 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 in

 th
e 

to
w

n.
 

W
h

at
 h

av
e 

yo
u

 le
ar

n
t 

ab
o

u
t 

re
al

 
b

ar
ri

er
s 

to
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
fr

o
m

 a
n

y 
co

n
su

lt
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

an
d

 
an

y 
st

ak
eh

o
ld

er
 g

ro
u

p
s?

 

T
hr

ou
gh

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 d
iff

er
en

t c
om

m
un

iti
es

, w
e 

kn
ow

 th
at

 th
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
! 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 o

ur
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
! 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
! 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 o
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

If
 n

o
t,

 w
h

o
 d

o
 y

o
u

 h
av

e 
p

la
n

s 
to

 
co

n
su

lt
 w

it
h

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ 

p
o

lic
y?

 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 d

ra
ft 

bu
dg

et
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
th

at
 r

an
 b

et
w

ee
n 

22
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
10

 to
 2

2 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

11
. O

ut
 o

f 2
1 

re
sp

on
se

s,
 2

 r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 d
id

 n
ot

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

ca
nc

el
la

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
M

A
D

 g
ra

nt
.  

Page 189



S
te

p
 3

 -
 A

ss
es

si
n

g
 Im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
/ p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
H

ow
 d

oe
s 

yo
ur

 s
er

vi
ce

 / 
po

lic
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
di

ffe
re

nt
 g

ro
up

s 
in

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
? 

G
ro

u
p

H
o

w
 w

ill
 t

h
e 

se
rv

ic
e,

 p
o

lic
y 

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l b

en
ef

it
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 
H

o
w

 w
ill

 t
h

e 
se

rv
ic

e,
 p

o
lic

y 
o

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l d
is

ad
va

n
ta

g
e 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p

 
N

o
 im

p
ac

t 
o

n
 t

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 

E
th

n
ic

it
y 

/ R
ac

e 
N

o 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

is
 g

ro
up

 

G
en

d
er

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s-
g

en
d

er
 

N
o 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
is

 g
ro

up
 

A
g

e
!

O
ld

er
 p

eo
p

le
 

!
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ab

ili
ty

 
of

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l (

an
d 

ot
he

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
) 

to
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 w
hi

ch
 is

 s
ee

n 
as

 b
ei

ng
 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 v
al

ua
bl

e 
in

 s
ha

pi
ng

 h
ow

 
w

e 
pr

ov
id

e/
co

m
m

is
si

on
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 
be

ne
fit

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
.  

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

!
P

eo
p

le
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ci
n

g
 m

en
ta

l i
ll-

h
ea

lt
h

!
P

eo
p

le
 w

it
h

 p
h

ys
ic

al
 d

is
ab

ili
ti

es
 

N
o 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
is

 g
ro

up
 

R
el

ig
io

n
 o

r 
b

el
ie

f 
N

o 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

is
 g

ro
up

 

S
ex

u
al

 o
ri

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

N
o 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
is

 g
ro

up
 

O
th

er
 s

o
ci

al
ly

 e
xc

lu
d

ed
 g

ro
u

p
s 

o
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

N
o 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
es

e 
gr

ou
ps

Page 190



S
te

p
 4

 -
 w

h
at

 a
re

 t
h

e 
d

if
fe

re
n

ce
s 

A
re

 a
n

y 
g

ro
u

p
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 in
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

ay
s 

to
 o

th
er

s 
as

 a
 r

es
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y?
 

T
he

 g
ra

nt
 is

 u
se

d 
to

 fu
lly

 fu
nd

 th
e 

M
A

D
 c

o-
or

di
na

to
r 

w
ho

 is
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

G
lo

uc
es

te
rs

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

Y
ou

th
 

S
er

vi
ce

.  
G

C
C

 h
av

e 
no

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 th

is
 fu

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
ou

t t
he

 g
ra

nt
 s

up
po

rt
 fr

om
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
nd

 
th

er
ef

or
e 

th
e 

fu
nc

tio
n 

w
ill

 c
ea

se
. H

ow
ev

er
 d

ue
 to

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
rin

g 
w

ith
in

 G
C

C
's

 Y
ou

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
fu

nd
in

g 
co

ul
d 

no
t g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 th
e 

co
nt

in
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
as

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 p

ro
vi

de
d.

  

D
o

es
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
/ p

o
lic

y 
ei

th
er

 
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

o
r 

in
d

ir
ec

tl
y 

d
is

cr
im

in
at

e?
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l i
s 

a 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f a
 g

ra
nt

 to
 G

lo
uc

es
te

rs
hi

re
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 r

ea
so

ns
. T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
in

te
nt

io
n 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 b
e 

di
sc

rim
in

at
or

y.
 

If
 y

es
, w

h
at

 c
an

 b
e 

d
o

n
e 

to
 im

p
ro

ve
 

th
is

?

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 m

ov
e 

to
 b

ec
om

e 
a 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n,

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l n

ee
ds

 to
 r

ea
ss

er
t i

ts
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
s 

pa
rt

 it
s 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t s

tr
at

eg
ie

s.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 im
po

rt
an

t t
ha

t 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t i
s 

bu
ilt

 in
to

 p
ro

po
sa

ls
 fo

r 
ho

w
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 c
an

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
.  

S
te

p
 5

 –
 t

ak
in

g
 t

h
in

g
s 

fo
rw

ar
d

 
W

h
at

 a
re

 t
h

e 
ke

y 
ac

ti
o

n
s 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

an
d

 h
o

w
 w

ill
 t

h
ey

 b
e 

re
so

u
rc

ed
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
?

 

! 
R

ea
ss

er
t i

ts
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

en
ga

gi
ng

 w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

s 
pa

rt
 it

s 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t s
tr

at
eg

ie
s.

 
! 

E
ns

ur
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
re

 b
ui

lt 
in

to
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

ho
w

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 c

an
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
.

W
h

o
 w

ill
 p

la
y 

a 
ro

le
 in

 t
h

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

-
m

ak
in

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
?

 
Ja

ne
 G

rif
fit

hs
, A

ss
is

ta
nt

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

(D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g)
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 th

e 
le

ad
 o

n 
th

is
.  

H
o

w
 w

ill
 y

o
u

 c
ap

tu
re

 t
h

es
e 

ac
ti

o
n

s 
in

 y
o

u
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

p
la

n
n

in
g

?
 

T
o 

be
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

  

Page 191



Page 192

This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$iy0baz23.doc Page 1 of 9 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 8 February 2011 
Council – 11 February 2011 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Revised Budget 2010/11 and 
Final Budget Proposals 2011/12  

 
Accountable member Cabinet Member Community Development and Finance,  Councillor 

John Webster 
Accountable officer Chief Finance Officer, Mark Sheldon 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

All Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes  
Executive summary This report summarises the HRA revised budget for 2010/11 and the budget 

for 2011/12 
Recommendations Approve the HRA revised budget for 2010/11. 

Approve the HRA 2011/12 budget including a proposed average rent 
increase of 5.43% applied in accordance with the rent restructuring 
guidelines (subject to restraints on individual property increases when 
aggregated with service charges) and increases in other rents and charges 
as detailed at Appendix 5. 
 
Approve the revised HRA capital programme for 2010/11 at Appendix 6.  
Approve the HRA capital programme for 2011/12 at Appendices 6 and 7. 
That receipts of up to £3m from the sale of HRA assets (other than through 
Right To Buy) in the period 1st April 2011 to 31st March 2014 be used for 
affordable housing provision 

 
 
Financial implications  As contained in the report and appendices. 

Contact officer: Bob Dagger,                
bob.dagger@cheltborohomes.org, 01242 264225 

Agenda Item 10
Page 193



 

   

$iy0baz23.doc Page 2 of 9 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Legal implications The Council cannot approve an HRA budget which would lead to an 
overall deficit on the account 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis 
E-mail: peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None as a direct result of this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy 
E-mail: julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 
Tel no: 01242 264355 

Key risks An overall risk assessment of the budget proposals is contained in 
Appendix 1. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The aim of the budget is to direct resources towards the key priorities 
identified in the Council’s Corporate Business Plan whilst recognising the 
reduction in government funding. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The budget contains a number of proposals for improving the local 
environment, as set out in this report. 

Page 194



 

   

$iy0baz23.doc Page 3 of 9 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

1.       Introduction 
At the meeting on 21st December 2010, the Cabinet approved draft HRA budget proposals for 
2011/12 for consultation. The Cabinet is now required to make recommendations to Council on 
the 2011/12 budget, having regard to the responses to the consultation.  

2.     Background 
2.1 Both the revised budget for 2010/11 and budget for 2011/12 (Appendices 2 and 3) have been 
 prepared to achieve the financial objective of retaining a contingent balance of at least £1million 
 in revenue reserve with any additional funds being carried forward to fund capital expenditure in 
 future years. 
2.2  The draft revenue budgets approved by Cabinet on 21st December 2010 have been amended as 

 follows:- 
• Increase in CBH management fee to fund additional post of Money & Benefits Officer (cost 

£31,500) 
• Reduction in HRA subsidy payable following receipt of the final determination for 2011/12 (saving 

£86,600) 
• Other minor adjustments to central administration charges and service charge income (saving 

£9,600) 
The net impact of these amendments is to increase the estimated revenue reserve balance at 
31st March 2012 by £64,700 

   
3. 2010/11 Revised Budget 
3.1  The revised budget at Appendix 2 shows an increase in surplus of £810,500 compared to the 

 original estimate. This will increase the revenue reserve to £2,989,000 by 31st March 2011. 
 Significant variations have been identified in budget monitoring reports and are summarised 
 below:-   

Budget Heading Change in 
resources 

 £’000 
  
Reduction in revenue contributions required to fund capital 

programme 
596 

Reduction in interest payable (lower interest rates) 175 
Reduction in HRA subsidy payable (lower interest rates) 52 
Additional interest receivable (net impact of higher reserves and 

lower interest rates) 
13 

Reduction in Council Tax on empty properties (fewer long term 
voids) 

17 
Rent and service charge income (lower than estimate) -49 
Other net 6 
  
Net Increase in Surplus 810 
                                                                                                                                                             
The increase in surplus reflects £214,500 of additional resources and a further £596,000 which 
arises from deferred capital expenditure and will be required in 2011/12. 

Page 195



 

   

$iy0baz23.doc Page 4 of 9 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

4. 2011/12 Budget 
4.1 The final HRA subsidy determination was published on 10th January 2011. It confirmed the 
 proposals contained in the draft published in November except for an increase in the GDP 
 deflator used to calculate allowances. This reduces the subsidy payable next year by £86,600.                                                                                                                 
 
4.1.1 It is anticipated that next year will be the last year of housing subsidy. The Government has 

announced it intends to introduce a new self financing regime for local authority housing from April 
2012. Further details were published on 1st February 2011 and are currently being evaluated. The 
final individual settlements for each Council are to be announced in Autumn 2011. 

 
4.1.2  The determination for 2011/12 shows a national average increase in guideline rent of 6.8% (6.5% 

for Cheltenham). Rent restructuring uses the retail price index for September each year to uplift 
the formula rent for the following financial year. In September 2010 this was 4.6% so formula rents 
will be increased by 5.1% (including +0.5% for convergence*) with rent restructuring now 
timetabled to complete in 2015/16. For Cheltenham tenants this will result in an average rent 
increase of 5.4% from April 2011 as illustrated by Appendices 4 & 5, although this may be  
marginally reduced when rents are aggregated with final service charges due to restraints on 
individual property increases.   

 
4.1.3   As anticipated the special ALMO allowance for Councils with Round 1 and 2 ALMO’s has been 

withdrawn. This gave a favourable rate of support (8% per annum) to offset the borrowing costs 
arising from the decent homes programme. These ongoing costs will in future be financed at the 
Council’s consolidated borrowing rate, estimated at 3.08% for next year. This reduction in 
Government support has a net cost of £1,641,000 in 2011/12 but had been factored into HRA 
business plans.  

 
4.1.4  The determination includes increases in management, maintenance and major repair allowances 

to partly offset the increase in guideline rent. The net effect of the subsidy proposals for 
Cheltenham, allowing for changes to unit allowances and stock levels, is a net additional liability 
of £2,099,000 compared with the current year. The changes proposed to individual elements are 
shown below:- 

 
Element of Subsidy % change in unit 

subsidy 
Net variation to 
subsidy payable 

  £’000 
   
Management Allowance +2.2% -56 
Maintenance Allowance +5.5% -284 
Major Repairs Allowance +4.7% -139 
Guideline Rent Income +6.5% 938 
Removal of ALMO Allowance  2,515 
Charges for Capital  -835 
Other Changes  -40 
   
Additional Subsidy Payable  2,099 

 
 
 
4.2      Significant changes to the HRA in 2011/12 as compared to the revised estimates for 2010/11 are 

itemised in the table below. The net impact is a decrease in resources of £2,500,500 producing a 
deficit of £1,092,300 for the year and reducing revenue reserves to £1,896,700 at 31st March 
2012. This reflects the completion of capital projects originally programmed for 2010/11. The 
medium term forecast cannot be completed until further details of the self financing settlement are 
known but it is anticipated that it will produce additional resources to further improve the longer 
term viability of the HRA. 

Page 196



 

   

$iy0baz23.doc Page 5 of 9 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

 
 * Rent restructuring is a government policy which is bringing all local authority rents in line with 

those charged by Housing Associations as calculated by a national formula. 
 
 
 

 
Budget Heading Change in 

resources 
 £’000 
Increase in revenue contributions required to fund capital -937 
Net impact of HRA subsidy settlement (see para 4.1 above) -2,099 
Depreciation of dwellings  -140 
Increase in rents  905 
Other rents and charges increases 60 
Increase in estate services & direct costs -32 
Increase in CBH management fee (Agresso implementation & 
additional post) 

-66 
Increase in cyclical repairs -218 
Rent rebate subsidy limitation 39 
Other (net) -12 
  
Net reduction in surplus -2,500 

 
 
4.3     The Housing Repairs Account at Appendix 3 shows reactive spend at the same level as the 

revised estimate for the current year but includes a growth item of £218,000 to fund additional 
preventative maintenance programmes including drain clearance and cyclical electrical testing. 

  
4.4      Appendix 4 gives details of the progress in rent restructuring to date and illustrates potential rent 

increases forward to the current convergence date of 2015/16 using an estimated RPI of 2.5% per 
annum.   

 
4.5      Appendix 5 details the proposed average rent for 2011/12 with recommended charges for other 

services. Gas charges for communal heating schemes will be increased by 7.5% to reflect 
anticipated fuel increases and there will be a 25% increase towards the rising cost of the electric 
fuelled scheme at Cumming Court. Provision has been included for a 3% increase in garage rents 
to reflect both inflation and fund a significant improvement programme in garage sites. 
 
     

5.      Service Charges 
 
5.1      The proposed charges for cleaning, grounds maintenance and communal power are currently 

being finalised. It is anticipated that cleaning charges will increase by 1.7% and grounds 
maintenance by 10.2% (reflecting the full impact of single status implementation). Changes to the 
charges for communal power will be block specific dependent on consumption estimates.  
       

 
6. Cheltenham Borough Homes (CBH) 
  
6.1  The budget includes provision for the management fee payable to CBH. The company has 

submitted its own detailed budget and fee proposal for 2011/12.  
 
6.2      CBH budgets for 2011/12 were prepared to achieve a breakeven position based on the 

assumption of holding fees and charges to the Council at 2010/11 levels. The company reports 

Page 197



 

   

$iy0baz23.doc Page 6 of 9 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

that savings of £204,500 will be achieved with a proportion of that sum being re-invested to deliver 
further efficiencies and improvements to tenant services. 

 
6.3      The HRA management fee for 2011/12 is cash frozen except for:- 

• One off item of £35,000 to provide for the implementation of an Enterprise Resource 
Planning (ERP) system as part of the GO shared services programme.  

• A growth bid of £31,500 to fund a new post of Money & Benefits Officer. This follows the 
confirmation of a significant rent increase in the final subsidy determination and a 
reduction in the estimate of subsidy payable thus releasing additional resources. The post 
will assist the delivery of the financial exclusion strategy helping tenants through the 
impact of spending cuts and controlling the level of rent arrears. 

 
The fee for managing the capital programme is kept cash frozen for a similar range and value of 
projects in 2011/12. 

 
6.4      The overall cost of reactive repairs to the stock is forecast at £2,559,000 being a balance of CBH 

direct costs and use of sub contractors. CBH has commenced a comprehensive review of the 
maintenance operation which is expected to produce significant savings from 2012/13 onwards.  

 
6.5     There is a reduction in the cost of delivering the estate cleaning contract which arises from savings 

on the waste disposal of fly tipping. 
 
6.6  The company’s income is derived primarily from four funding streams being management fees 

chargeable to the HRA and the HRA Capital Programme, the cost of revenue and capital repairs 
and the block cleaning service (mainly funded by service charges to tenants and leaseholders). 
CBH also provides a cashiering facility for General Fund Services at the two area offices. The fee 
submission for the main areas of activity is shown below and compared with 2010/11.  

 
  2010/11       

(Revised) 
2011/12 

Average Stock  4,597 4,592 
    
  £ £ 
Management Fee    
- including growth bid Gross Cost 4,263,700 4,330,200 
 Per Unit 927 943 
    
Reactive Repairs Gross Cost 2,165,700 2,165,700 
 Per Unit 471 472 
    
Management of Capital 
Programme 

 405,000 405,000 
Block Cleaning Service  324,500 310,700 
    
Total   7,158,900 7,211,600 

   
 

7.        HRA Capital Programme 
 

7.1       The revised programme for 2010/11 and proposals for 2011/12 are shown at Appendix 6, 
together with a more detailed schedule of improvement and repair works at Appendix 7. 

 
7.2       The revised estimates for the current year reflect changes identified in budget monitoring reports. 

Estimated spend in year will reduce from £4,482,000 to £3,851,000 primarily due to a later start 
on the transformational improvements in St Paul’s. Works have now started on site and will 
continue through 2011/12.  

Page 198



 

   

$iy0baz23.doc Page 7 of 9 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

 
7.3       The 2011/12 programme reflects the need to spend identified in the stock condition database and 

includes provision for works delayed in the current year. This will retain all stock to decency 
standard and provide further neighbourhood improvements through external works. 

 
8. HRA Capital Receipts 

8.1       In February 2008 the Council approved a resolution to use capital receipts from the sale of HRA 
assets (other than Right to Buy sales), realised in the period to 31st March 2011, to fund 
affordable housing provision. This has exempted such receipts from pooling regulations which 
could have resulted in either 50% or 75% of the receipt being paid to Government. The 
Government has announced that despite the introduction of self financing in April 2012 pooling 
will continue throughout the period covered by the latest Comprehensive Spending Review. It is 
therefore recommended that a further resolution be approved to continue the policy of using such 
receipts to fund investment in affordable housing. 

 
 
9. Consultation process 

9.1 The draft budget proposals approved by Cabinet on 21st December 2010 were endorsed by the 
Board of Cheltenham Borough Homes Ltd. subject to the growth bid identified in paragraph 6.3. 
No further comments have been received during the public consultation period. 

 

Report author Bob Dagger, Assistant Chief Executive, Cheltenham Borough Homes 
 
Tel. 01242 264225;  
e-mail address: bob.dagger@cheltborohomes.org 
 
Mark Sheldon, Chief Finance Officer 
 
Tel. 01242 264123;  
e-mail address: mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. HRA Operating Account 
3. Housing Repairs Account and Major Repairs Reserve 
4. Rent Restructuring 
5. HRA – Rents and Charges 
6. HRA Capital Programme 
7. HRA works to properties 2011/12 

Background information      HRA subsidy determinations received from DCLG, 10th January 2011 
 

Page 199



 

   
$iy0baz23.doc Page 8 of 9 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1 Reform of local authority 
housing finance 

Mark 
Sheldon 

November 
2010 

4 6 24 Accept Government has confirmed 
its intention to scrap the 
HRA subsidy system and 
replace it with a self 
financing alternative by 
April 2012. Impact remains 
uncertain until further 
details are published but 
initial assessment would 
indicate that this would be 
beneficial to the Council.. 
This will change 
significantly previous HRA 
medium and long term 
forecasts. Progress to be 
monitored and new HRA 
Business Plan to be 
prepared following receipt 
of Government proposals. 
 

April 
2012 

Paul Jones Corporate  

2 Supporting People Grant Mike 
Redman 

November 
2010 

2 4 8 Accept Funding for existing 
contracts currently under 
review. Should contracts 
not be renewed then a 
decision on future service 
provision would be 
required. 
 

April 
2011 

Kath 
Chamberlain 

Divisional 

3 Higher than estimated void 
rent loss 

Mike 
Redman 

November 
2010 

2 1 2 Accept Demand for social housing 
remains high with 
significant waiting list. 
Current number of void 
properties at lowest level 
for many years and CBH 
are achieving top quartile 
performance for void re-

March 
2012 

Kath 
Chamberlain 

Divisional 

P
age 200



 

   
$iy0baz23.doc Page 9 of 9 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

letting times. Quality of 
accommodation needs to 
be maintained and changes 
in tenancy termination rates 
monitored. 
 

4 Demand for reactive repairs 
increased 

Mike 
Redman 

November 
2010 

4 2 8 Accept Having completed the 
decent homes programmes 
and refreshed stock 
condition data CBH can 
plan more effectively for 
future maintenance spend. 
The major peril to the stock 
is fire which is covered by 
appropriate insurance. HRA 
reserves are maintained at 
a level which is considered 
sufficient for uninsured 
stock damage. 
 

March 
2012 

Kath 
Chamberlain 

Divisional 

 

P
age 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2
2011/12

Original Revised Estimate
£ £ £

EXPENDITURE

General & Special Management 1,800,300 1,803,300 1,835,700
ALMO Management Fee 4,263,700 4,263,700 4,330,200
Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 56,500 39,500 39,900
Transfer to Housing Repairs Account 3,735,000 3,735,000 3,953,000
Provision for Bad Debts 200,000 200,000 200,000
Interest Payable 752,200 576,900 576,900
Depreciation of Dwellings 3,101,300 3,101,300 3,240,900
Depreciation of Other Assets 75,000 78,000 86,000
Debt Management Expenses 46,500 46,500 46,500
Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation 131,000 122,000 82,600
Housing Revenue Account Subsidy 3,680,400 3,628,400 3,212,100

TOTAL 17,841,900 17,594,600 17,603,800

INCOME

Dwelling Rents 15,788,600 15,773,000 16,678,000
Non Dwelling Rents 396,400 404,800 421,000
Charges for Services and Facilities 702,300 661,000 705,100
HRA Subsidy - ALMO Allowance 2,515,200 2,515,200 0
Supporting People Grant 150,000 150,000 150,000

TOTAL 19,552,500 19,504,000 17,954,100

NET COST OF SERVICES -1,710,600 -1,909,400 -350,300

Amortised Premiums / Discounts 8,900 8,900 8,900
Interest Receivable -66,700 -79,400 -67,400

NET OPERATING INCOME -1,768,400 -1,979,900 -408,800

Appropriations
Revenue Contributions to Capital 1,245,700 649,700 1,587,100
Transfer from Major Repairs Reserve -75,000 -78,000 -86,000

HRA SURPLUS carried to reserve 597,700 1,408,200 -1,092,300

Revenue Reserve brought forward 648,800 1,580,800 2,989,000

Revenue Reserve carried forward 1,246,500 2,989,000 1,896,700

Average Rent:-
Increase 1st April 2011 5.43%

48 wk 72.45 72.45 76.39
52 wk 66.87 66.88 70.51

Average Stock 4,595 4,597 4,592

2010/11

HRA OPERATING ACCOUNTPage 203



APPENDIX 3

2011/12
Original Revised Estimate

£ £ £
EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance :-
Reactive Repairs 2,559,000 2,559,000 2,559,000
Annual & Cyclical Maintenance 1,176,000 1,176,000 1,394,000

3,735,000 3,735,000 3,953,000

INCOME
Contribution from Housing Revenue Account 3,735,000 3,735,000 3,953,000

Surplus/Deficit for the Year 0 0 0

Balance brought forward 0 0 0
Balance carried forward 0 0 0

2011/12
Original Revised Estimate

£ £ £
Balance brought forward 0 0 0

Major Repairs Allowance 3,101,300 3,101,300 3,240,900
3,101,300 3,101,300 3,240,900

Utilised in Year (Funding Capital Programme App 6) -3,101,300 -3,101,300 -3,240,900

Balance carried forward 0 0 0

HOUSING REPAIRS ACCOUNT 

2010/11

MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE 

2010/11

Page 204



APPENDIX 4

This shows Cheltenham's progression towards rent restructuring. The Government currently estimates this will
be completed by 2015/16. However this will be subject to future rates of inflation and government rent policy.

Definitions:-
Formula Rent = the target for Cheltenham as calculated by the government's formula
Limit Rent = the maximum rent that the government will pay for rent rebates
Guideline Rent = the rent the government uses to calculate income in the subsidy calculation

By the end of rent restructuring formula rent, limit rent, guideline rent and the actual rent paid by tenants are  
required to be the same.

Limit Guideline
Rent Rent

£ % Inc £ £ £ % Inc
2010-2011 67.91 66.22 63.61 66.88
2011-2012 71.37 5.1 69.95 67.76 70.51 5.4
2012-2013 73.51 3.0 72.41 70.72 72.85 3.3
2013-2014 75.72 3.0 74.96 73.80 75.27 3.3
2014-2015 77.99 3.0 77.60 77.00 77.76 3.3
2015-2016 80.33 3.0 80.33 80.33 80.33 3.3

RENT RESTRUCTURING

Formula Rent Actual Rent

P
age 205



APPENDIX 5

2010/11 2011/12
£ £

Dwelling Rents (average)
48 wk basis 72.45 76.39
52 wk basis 66.88 70.51

Garages (per month) 24.50 25.24

Communal Heating Schemes (52 wk basis)
Gas 1 person flat 6.68 7.18

2 person flat 9.00 9.68

Cumming Court 1 person flat 3.02 3.78
2 person flat 4.16 5.20

Guest Bedrooms (per night) 9.00 10.00

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT - RENTS & CHARGES

Page 206



APPENDIX 6

2011/12
Original Revised Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000

EXPENDITURE

Property Improvements & Major Repairs (incl fees) 4,022 3,391 4,368

Adaptations for the Disabled 350 350 350

Environmental Works (Tenant Selection) 60 60 60

Repurchase of Shared Ownership Dwellings 50 50 50

4,482 3,851 4,828
FINANCING

Government Grant (Cavity Wall Insulation) 85
Capital Receipts 50 100
HRA Revenue Contribution 1,246 650 1,587
Major Repairs Reserve 3,101 3,101 3,241

4,482 3,851 4,828

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

2010/11

Page 207



APPENDIX  7  

COST HEADING 2011/12 BUDGET
 

£

INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS 400,000                        

INSULATION 25,000                          

WORKS TO BUILDING FABRIC 393,000                        

RENEWAL OF WATER MAINS 100,000                        

RENEWAL OF HEATING SYSTEMS 100,000                        

MAJOR REFURBISHMENTS TO VOID PROPERTIES 350,000                        

WINDOWS & DOORS 100,000                        

ASBESTOS 100,000                        

SHELTERED ACCOMMODATION 50,000                          

NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKS 430,000                        

DOOR ENTRY SCHEMES 200,000                        

STRUCTURAL/DAMP WORKS 100,000                        

CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTORS 25,000                          

FIRE PROTECTION 50,000                          

AUTOMATIC DOOR OPENERS 80,000                          

ELECTRIC SCOOTER HOUSING 60,000                          

ST PAULS TRANSFORMATIONAL IMPS 1,250,000                     

GARAGE IMPROVEMENTS 100,000                        

ELECTRIC SUB MAINS 50,000                          

FEE FOR MANAGING PROGRAMME 405,000                        

TOTAL BUDGET 4,368,000                     

HRA WORKS TO PROPERTIES 2011/12

Page 208



 

Cabinet 8th February 2011-02-03 
Council 11th February 2011 

  

 Page 1 of 3 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 8 February 2011 
Council - 11 February 2011 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 2011/12 

Accountable member Finance & Community Development , John Webster 
Accountable officer Chief Finance Officer, Mark Sheldon 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Economy & Business Improvement 

Ward(s) affected None 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary In accordance with best practice, the Council has adopted and complies 

with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the public 
services. To comply with the code, the Council has a responsibility to set out 
its Treasury Management Strategy Statement for borrowing and to prepare 
an Annual Investment Strategy for council approval prior to the start of a 
new financial year. 

Recommendations Cabinet recommend to Council the approval of the attached Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy for 
2011/12 at Appendix 2 including : 
• The general policy objective ‘that Council should invest 

prudently the surplus funds held on behalf of the community 
giving priority to security and liquidity’. 

• That the Prudential Indicators for 2011/12 including the 
authorised limit as the statutory affordable borrowing limit 
determined under Section 3 (1) Local Government Act 2003 be 
approved. 

• Additions to the Council’s lending list are proposed in order to 
provide some further capacity. These proposals have been put 
forward after taken advice from the Council’s treasury 
management advisers and are prudent enough to ensure the 
credit quality of the Council’s investment portfolio remains 
high. 

• To increase the time period of investing up to two years with 
counterparties noted in the recommended lending list. 

• For 2011/12 in calculating the Minimum Revenue Provision 
(MRP), the Council will apply Option 1 in respect of supported 
capital expenditure and Option 3 in respect of unsupported 
capital expenditure as per section 21 in Appendix 3. 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 209



 

Cabinet 8th February 2011-02-03 
Council 11th February 2011 

  

 Page 2 of 3 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

Financial implications All financial implications are noted in the report. 
Contact officer: Andrew Sherbourne, 
andrew.sherbourne@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264337 

Legal implications As detailed in the report. 
Contact officer: Nicolas Wheatley                              
nicolas.wheatley@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272695 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None arising directly from this report. 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, 
julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks As noted in Appendix 1. 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The purpose of the strategy is to improve corporate governance, a key 
objective for the Council. 

 
Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None arising directly from this report. 

 
1. Background 
1.1   The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in Public Services and the Prudential Code 

require local authorities to determine the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and the 
Prudential Indicators on an annual basis. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement also 
incorporates the Investment Strategy as required under the CLG’s Investment Guidance. 

1.2  For the purposes of the Code, CIPFA has adopted the following as its definition of treasury 
management activities:  

         “the management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and 
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

1.3    The Council will create and maintain, as the basis for effective treasury management: 
• A Treasury Management Strategy Statement, stating the policies, objectives and approach to risk 

management of its treasury management activities 
• Suitable Treasury Management Practices (TMP’s) setting out the manner in which the Council will 

seek to achieve those polices and objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and control those 
activities. 

 1.4  The local authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003, which came   
into force on 1st April 2004, include provisions relevant to investments. These regulations, together 
with amendments subsequently made to them (S.I No.534), determine the nature of specific 
investments, and how they should be treated/accounted for by a local authority. Formal guidance 
was revised and issued by the Communities and Local Government (CLG) in 2010. 

Page 210



 

Cabinet 8th February 2011-02-03 
Council 11th February 2011 

  

 Page 3 of 3 Last updated 03 February 2011 
 

 
   
1.5  The Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy at Appendix 2, 

state the overriding principles and objectives governing treasury management activity. As an 
integral part of that Statement, the Council includes the preparation of Treasury Management 
Practices which set out the manner in which the Council will achieve those principles and 
objectives prescribing how it will manage and control those activities. 

1.6   The general policy objective of the Annual Investment Strategy is that: 
        ‘the Council should invest prudently the surplus funds held on behalf of the community 

giving priority to security and liquidity’. 
        The Council is responsible for its treasury decisions and activity. No treasury management activity 

is without risk. The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk is an important and 
integral element of its treasury management activities. 

1.7   The strategy allows sufficient flexibilities and delegations to avoid the need for a formal variation, 
other than in the most exceptional circumstance. 

2.0    Icelandic Banks          
2.1   The council has been actively pursuing the deposits from the three Icelandic owned banks, Glitnir, 

Landsbanki and Kaupthing Singer and Friedlander (KSF). The situation with both Glitnir and 
Landsbanki is that the council’s legal advisors have now filed written submissions with the 
Icelandic courts with regards to the deposits made in 2006, and court hearings are due to take 
place in early-spring 2011. As regards to KSF we have received £1.628m back to date which 
amounts to 53p in the pound. The latest information we have indicates a recovery rate in the range 
of 75p to 84p in the pound. 

 
 
3.0   Consultation 
 
3.1   The Council’s external treasury advisors, Arlingclose Ltd, supported the Council in the production of 

the strategies. 
 
3.2   The strategy was approved by the Treasury Management Panel at its meeting on 27th January 

2011. 
           
 

Report author Contact officer: Mark Sheldon,  mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk      
01242 264123 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 

Strategy for 2011/12 
3. Annual MRP Statement 

Background information Section 15(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 2003 
Cheltenham Borough Council Treasury Management Practices 
  

 

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
$fr

2u
54
rp.

do
c 

Pa
ge
 1 
of 
3 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 03
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
11
 

 Ri
sk
 A
ss
es
sm

en
t  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
1  

 
Th

e r
isk

 
Or
igi

na
l ri

sk
 

sc
or
e 

(im
pa
ct 
x 

lik
eli
ho

od
) 

Ma
na
gin

g r
isk

 

Ri
sk
 re

f. 
Ri
sk
 de

sc
rip

tio
n 

Ri
sk
 

Ow
ne
r 

Da
te 
rai

se
d 

I 
L 

Sc
or
e 

Co
ntr

ol 
Ac

tio
n 

De
ad
lin

e 
Re

sp
on

sib
le 

off
ice

r 
Tr
an
sfe

rre
d 

to 
ris

k 
reg

ist
er 

CR
28
 

Ice
lan

dic
 Ba

nk
s –

 fin
an
cia

l 
ex
po
su
re 

 If t
he
 cu

rre
nt 
sta

tus
 as

 
pri
ori
ty 
de
po
sit
s w

ith
 

La
nd
sb
an
ki 
ba
nk
 is
 

su
cc
es
sfu

lly 
ch
all
en
ge
d, 

the
 co

un
cil’

s d
ep
os
its
 

wo
uld

 be
 re

-cl
as
sif
ied

 as
 

‘ge
ne
ral
 un

se
cu
red

 
cre

dit
ors

’ re
su
ltin

g i
n a

 
low

er 
rec

ov
ery

 ra
te 
an
d 

ex
po
su
re 

to 
cla

im
an
t c
os
ts 

an
d i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 M
TF

S 
ov
er 

tha
t a
lre
ad
y f
ac
tor

ed
 

in 
thr

ou
gh
 th
e c

ap
ita
lisa

tio
n 

of 
los

se
s. 

Dir
ec
tor

 
for

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

9 A
pri
l 

20
10
 

4 
3 

12
 

Ac
ce
pt 

Co
un
cil 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 
joi
n i
n g

rou
p a

cti
on
 w
ith
 

oth
er 

co
un
cils

 to
 de

fen
d 

cu
rre

nt 
pri
ori
ty 
de
po
sit
or 

sta
tus

. 
 Ini
tia
l c
ou
rt h

ea
rin
gs
 to
 

tak
e p

lac
e i
n F

eb
rua

ry 
20
11
 bu

t a
ny
 de

cis
ion

 
co
uld

 be
 de

lay
ed
 if 

ap
pe
als

 ar
e t
o b

e m
ad
e  

ag
ain

st 
the

 ou
tco

me
.  

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

Se
cti
on
 

15
1 O

ffic
er 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

CR
33
 

Ice
lan

dic
 Ba

nk
s –

 fin
an
cia

l 
ex
po
su
re 

 If t
he
 gr

ou
p c

lai
m 
ag
ain

st 
Gl
itn
ir b

an
k f
ail
s a

nd
 th
e 

co
un
cil 

is 
no
t re

co
gn
ise

d 
as
 a 
‘pr
ior
ity
 de

po
sit
or’
 th
e 

co
un
cil’

s d
ep
os
its
 w
ou
ld 
be
 

re-
cla

ss
ifie

d a
s ‘
ge
ne
ral
 

un
se
cu
red

 cr
ed
ito
rs’
 

res
ult
ing

 in
 a 
low

 re
co
ve
ry 

rat
e a

nd
 ex

po
su
re 

to 
de
fen

da
nts

 co
sts

. 

Dir
ec
tor

 
for

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
  

9 A
pri
l 

20
10
 

4 
4 

16
 

Ac
ce
pt 

Co
un
cil 

co
mm

itm
en
t to

 
joi
n i
n g

rou
p a

cti
on
 w
ith
 

oth
er 

co
un
cils

 to
 de

fen
d 

cu
rre

nt 
pri
ori
ty 
de
po
sit
or 

sta
tus

 
 Ca

pit
ali
sa
tio
n d

ire
cti
on
 

ap
pro

ve
d f
or 

£4
.3m

 
all
ow

s f
or 

wr
ite
 of
f o
f 

los
s o

ve
r 2

0 y
ea
rs.
 

 Ini
tia
l c
ou
rt h

ea
rin
gs
 to
 

tak
e p

lac
e i
n M

arc
h 

20
11
 bu

t a
ny
 de

cis
ion

 
co
uld

 be
 de

lay
ed
 if 

ap
pe
als

 ar
e m

ad
e  

ag
ain

st 
the

 ou
tco

me
. 

   

Ju
ne
 20

11
 

Se
cti
on
 

15
1 O

ffic
er 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

Page 213



 
 

 
$fr

2u
54
rp.

do
c 

Pa
ge
 2 
of 
3 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 03
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
11
 

 

HR
A-

1 

Re
for

m 
of 
loc

al 
au
tho

rity
 

ho
us
ing

 fin
an
ce
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
for

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

No
ve
mb

er 
20
10
 

4 
6 

24
 

Ac
ce
pt  

Go
ve
rnm

en
t h
as
 

co
nfi
rm

ed
 its

 in
ten

tio
n t
o 

sc
rap

 th
e H

RA
 su

bs
idy

 
sy
ste

m 
an
d r

ep
lac

e i
t 

wit
h a

 se
lf f
ina

nc
ing

 
alt
ern

ati
ve
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
12
. Im

pa
ct 
rem

ain
s 

un
ce
rta

in 
un
til 
fur

the
r 

de
tai
ls 
are

 pu
bli
sh
ed
 bu

t 
ini
tia
l a
ss
es
sm

en
t w

ou
ld 

be
 be

ne
fic
ial
 to
 th
e 

Co
un
cil.

 Th
is 
wil

l 
ch
an
ge
 si
gn
ific

an
tly
 

pre
vio

us
 H
RA

 m
ed
ium

 
an
d l
on
g t
erm

 fo
rec

as
ts.
 

Pr
og
res

s  
to 
be
 

mo
nit
ore

d a
nd
 ne

w 
HR

A 
Bu

sin
es
s P

lan
 to
 be

 
pre

pa
red

 fo
llo
win

g 
rec

eip
t o
f G

ov
ern

me
nt 

pro
po
sa
ls.
 

Ap
ril 
20
12
 

Pa
ul 
Jo
ne
s 

 

 
To

 in
cre

as
e t
he
 du

rat
ion

 of
 

inv
es
tm
en
ts 
for

 up
 to
 tw

o 
ye
ars

 
As

so
cia

ted
 ris

ks
 ar

e 
Re

gu
lat
ory

, L
iqu

idi
ty 
& 

Int
ere

st 
Ris

k. 
 

    Re
gu
lat
ory

 R
isk

-
Ec

on
om

ist
s a

re 
co
mm

en
tat
ing

 th
at 
the

 
Br
itis

h b
an
kin

g s
ec
tor

 co
uld

 
be
co
me

 st
ron

ge
r if
 th
e 

ret
ail
, c
om

me
rci
al 
an
d 

inv
es
tm
en
t p
ort

ion
s o

f th
e 

ba
nk
s w

ere
 to
 be

 so
ld 
off
. 

W
he
re 

wo
uld

 ou
r d

ep
os
its
 

res
ide

 if 
thi
s o

cc
urr

ed
. 

 W
ith
 liq

uid
ity
 ris

k –
 if 
we

 
ha
ve
 ‘ r
un
 on

 a 
ba
nk
’ w

e 
co
uld

 fa
ce
 a 
lon

ge
r ti
me

 to
 

wa
it t
o g

et 
ou
r in

ve
stm

en
ts 

ba
ck
 

Dir
ec
tor

 
for

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

     Dir
ec
tor

 
for

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

     Dir
ec
tor

 
for

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

27
th
 

Ja
nu
ary

 
20
11
 

       27
th
 

Ja
nu
ary

 
20
11
 

        27
th
 

Ja
nu
ary

 
20
11
 

  

          2           3     

          4           3     

          8           9     

Ac
ce
pt 

Ar
lin
gc
los

e L
td,
 th
e 

co
un
cil’

s t
rea

su
ry 

ad
vis

ors
 vi
ew

 th
e 

as
so
cia

ted
 ris

ks
 to
 be

 a 
fai
r tr

ad
e o

ff f
or 

so
me

 of
 

the
 po

ten
tia
l re

tur
ns
 

av
ail
ab
le 
for

 le
nd
ing

 
be
yo
nd
 on

e y
ea
r. 

  If t
he
 ba

nk
s w

ere
 to
 be

 
sp
lit 
up
, it
 w
ou
ld 
tak

e a
 

nu
mb

er 
of 
mo

nth
s/y

ea
rs 

be
for

e i
t c
am

e i
nto

 
for

ce
. 

      Th
e b

an
ks
 on

 ou
r 

ap
pro

ve
d c

ou
nte

r p
art

y 
list

 ar
e a

ll d
ee
me

d t
o b

e 
sy
ste

mi
ca
lly 

im
po
rta

nt 
to 
ou
r s
ov
ere

ign
 co

un
try
 

          De
ce
mb

er 
20
11
 

         De
ce
mb

er 
20
11
 

   

Se
cti
on
 

15
1 O

ffic
er 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

Page 214



 
 

 
$fr

2u
54
rp.

do
c 

Pa
ge
 3 
of 
3 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 03
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
11
 

 

       Int
ere

st 
rat

e r
isk

 – 
if r
ate

s 
we

re 
to 
ris
e e

arl
ier
 th
an
 

for
ec
as
t th

en
 th
e c

ou
nc
il 

ma
y b

e t
ied

 in
 an

d c
ou
ld 

los
e p

ote
nti
al 
ret

urn
s. 

      Dir
ec
tor

 
for

 
Re

so
urc

es
 

Ma
rk 

Sh
eld

on
 

 

       27
th
 

Ja
nu
ary

 
20
11
 

      

       1  

       4  

       4  

an
d t
he
 G
ov
ern

me
nt 
are

 
of 
a s

tro
ng
 st
an
din

g t
o 

co
nti
nu
e t
o s

up
po
rt t

he
ir 

ba
nk
ing

 in
sti
tut
ion

s i
f 

the
y c

om
e u

nd
er 

str
es
s. 

  An
y i
nv
es
tm
en
t d
ec
isio

n 
sh
ou
ld 
tak

e i
nto

 ac
co
un
t 

the
 co

un
cils

 cu
rre

nt 
vie

w 
on
 in
ter

es
t ra

tes
.  

Ar
lin
gc
los

e L
td,
 th
e 

co
un
cil’

s t
rea

su
ry 

ad
vis

ors
 vi
ew

 th
e 

as
so
cia

ted
 ris

ks
 to
 be

 a 
fai
r tr

ad
e o

ff f
or 

so
me

 of
 

the
 po

ten
tia
l re

tur
ns
 

av
ail
ab
le 
for

 le
nd
ing

 
be
yo
nd
 on

e y
ea
r. I

f 
rat

es
 ris

e q
uic

ke
r th

an
 

ex
pe
cte

d t
he
 po

ten
tia
l to

 
ea
rn 

mo
re 

int
ere

st 
is 

los
t.  

       Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11
 

 
 

Page 215



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 1

 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 
 
1.  Introduction 
 

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to ‘have regard to ‘the Prudential 
Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s 
capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 
 
The Act therefore requires the Council to set out its treasury strategy for borrowing and to 
prepare an Annual Investment Strategy (AIS) (as required by Investment Guidance issued 
subsequent to the Act) (included as paragraph 9). The AIS sets out the Council’s policies for 
managing its investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those 
investments.  
 
The suggested strategy for 2011/12 in respect of the following aspects of the treasury 
management function is based upon the Treasury officers’ views on interest rates, 
supplemented with leading market forecasts provided by the Council’s treasury advisors, 
Arlingclose Ltd. The strategy covers: 
 

• treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 
• Prudential Indicators; 
• the current treasury position; 
• prospects for interest rates; 
• the borrowing requirement; 
• the borrowing strategy; 
• debt rescheduling; 
• the investment strategy; 
• Annual MRP statement 
• Other items 

 
There is a statutory requirement under Section 33 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, for the Council to produce a balanced budget.  In particular, Section 32 requires a 
local authority to calculate its budget requirement for each financial year to include the 
revenue costs that flow from capital financing decisions.  This, therefore, means that 
increases in capital expenditure must be limited to a level whereby increases in charges to 
revenue from: - 
 

a) increases in interest charges caused by increased borrowing to finance additional  capital 
expenditure, and  
 

b) any increases in running costs from new capital projects are limited to a level which is 
affordable within the projected income of the Council for the foreseeable future.      

 
2.     Treasury Limits for 2011/12 to 2013/14 
 
  There is a statutory duty under S.3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting 
regulations, for the Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to 
borrow.  The amount so determined is termed the “Affordable Borrowing Limit”.  

 
  The Council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised Limit, 
which essentially requires it to ensure that total capital investment remains within 
sustainable limits and, in particular, that the impact upon its future council tax and council 
rent levels is ‘acceptable’.   

Page 217



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 2

 
  Whilst termed an “Affordable Borrowing Limit”, the capital plans to be considered for 
inclusion incorporate financing by external borrowing.  The Authorised Limit is to be set, 
on a rolling basis, for the forthcoming financial year and the two successive financial 
years. 

 
3.       Prudential Indicators for 2010/11 – 2013/14 
 
3.1.1  The Council is also required to indicate that it has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice 

on Treasury Management.  This was adopted in February 2002 by full Council. 
 
          The following prudential indicators are relevant for the purposes of setting an integrated 

treasury management strategy.   
 
3.1.2 The Council must estimate its total capital expenditure, split between the Housing     

Revenue Account (HRA) and non HRA, in the next three or more financial years. This 
indicator is set to ensure that the level of proposed capital expenditure remains within 
sustainable limits and, in particular, to consider the impact on Council Tax and in the 
case of the HRA, housing rent levels. 

 
3.1.3 The actual capital expenditure that was incurred in 2009/10 and the estimates of capital 

expenditure to be incurred for the current and future years that are recommended for 
approval are:- 
 

Capital Expenditure 
Proposed 
Capital 
programme  

2009/10 
£000 
Actual 

2010/11 
£000 

Revised 
2011/12 
£000 

Estimate 
2012/13 
£000 

Estimate 
2013/14 
£000 

Estimate 
General 
Fund 

2,136 3,254 7,641 4,956 1,056 
HRA 4,314 3,851 4,828 3,800 4,000 
Total 6,450 7,105 12,469 8,756 5,056 

 
                            
3.1.4 Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to the net revenue stream 
 
 This is an indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing 

and proposed capital expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget 
required to meet borrowing costs.  It would not be prudent for borrowing costs to be a 
significant proportion of net revenue either now or in the future.  By estimating the ratio 
for at least the next three years the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing costs net of 
interest and investment income) as a proportion of revenue income can be seen. 

 
3.1.5 Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for the current and future 

years, and the actual figures for 2009/10 are: 
 

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 
 2009/10 

Actual 
% 

2010/11 
Revised 

% 
2011/12 
Estimate 

% 
2012/13 
Estimate 

% 
2013/14 
Estimate 

% 
Non-HRA 3.03% 3.77% 4.81% 5.07% 4.52% 
       HRA 2.55% 2.67% 2.67% 3.64% 3.60% 

 
 

Page 218



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 3

3.1.6 Capital Financing Requirement 
 
 The capital financing requirement measures the authority’s underlying need to borrow for 

a capital purpose. In accordance with best professional practice, Cheltenham Borough 
Council does not associate borrowing with particular items or types of expenditure. The 
authority has an integrated treasury management strategy and has adopted the CIPFA 
Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services. Cheltenham Borough 
Council has, at any point in time, a number of cashflows both positive and negative, and 
manages its treasury position in terms of its borrowings and investments in accordance 
with its approved treasury management strategy and practices. In day to day cash 
management, no distinction can be made between revenue cash and capital cash. 
External borrowing arises as a consequence of all the financial transactions of the 
authority and not simply those arising from capital spending. 

 
3.1.7 The Council can borrow without limit, provided it ensures such borrowing is affordable, 

prudent and sustainable. 
 
3.1.8 Estimates of the end of year capital financing requirement for the authority for the current 

and future years and the actual capital financing requirement at 31st March 2010 are: 
 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 31/3/10 

£000 
Actual 

31/3/11 
£000 

Revised 
31/3/12 
£000 

Estimate 
31/3/13 
£000 

Estimate 
31/3/14 
£000 

Estimate 
Non-HRA 26,709 25,834 28,818 31,118 30,534 
HRA 18,728 18,728 18,728 18,728 18,728 
Total CFR 45,437 44,562 47,546 49,846 49,262 

 

  

The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) from 1 April 2010 may 
in future have implications for the capital expenditure and Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) indicators.  This is because under IFRS all leases have to be 
reassessed and classified either as ‘finance’ or ‘operating’ leases.  Under IFRS, finance 
leases in effect count as capital expenditure funded by borrowing, whereas operating 
leases are rental agreements, which do not affect the indicators.   
 
Following an analysis of the council’s leases at 1 April 2010, all have been classified as 
operating leases.  However if the wheeled bins, caddies, recycling and other vehicles to 
be bought in 2010/11 are leased, they are likely to be classified as finance leases, 
counting as capital expenditure and borrowing.  Given the accounting treatment of 
finance leases is now in effect the same as if the council undertook prudential  
borrowing, an assessment of the funding options for these assets is currently being 
undertaken.   
 
If the assets are leased under a finance lease or if the council borrows to fund the 
assets, the forecast capital expenditure and CFR for 2010/11 will increase by the cost of 
these assets and the prudential indicators will need to be revised for future years.  This 
will be reported as part of the Treasury Management and Revenue Outturn reports in 
June 2011.   
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 219



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 4

3.1.9 Net borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement 
 
 CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the following as 

a key indicator of prudence: 
 “In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital 

purpose, the local authority should ensure that the net external borrowing does not, 
except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding 
year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and 
next two financial years.” 

 
3.1.10 Local authorities may borrow temporarily to cover cash flow shortages but over the 

medium term should only borrow to finance capital expenditure.  
 

3.1.11 In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for capital 
purposes, the Council needs to ensure its net external borrowing does not exceed its 
Capital Financing Requirement over the current and next three years. The table below 
demonstrates that the estimated level of net investments remains lower than the capital 
financing requirement in each year, and therefore meets this requirement. 

 
Estimated net 
borrowing and 
capital financing 
requirement at 

Year end 

2009/10 
£000 
Actual 

2010/11 
£000 

Revised 
2011/12 
£000 

Estimate 
2012/13 
£000 

Estimate 
2013/14 
£000 

Estimate 

Gross borrowing 51,997 57,013 60,612 63,512 61,512 
Investments 16,557 15,535 15,535 15,535 13,535 
Net (Investment) / 
borrowing 

 
35,440 

 
41,478 

 
45,077 

 
47,977 

 
47,977 

Capital financing 
requirement 

 
45,437 

 
44,562 

 
47,546 

 
49,846 

 
49,262 

  
3.1.12    Estimates of the incremental impact of capital expenditure on the council tax and  
              housing rents 

 
 A fundamental indicator of the affordability of capital expenditure plans is its impact on 

the council tax and housing rents.  Any borrowing for capital purposes has an impact on 
the revenue account and, to the extent it is not supported by government or other 
contributions, on council tax and/or housing rents.  Using capital receipts to fund capital 
expenditure also has an impact because the assets sold would no longer generate 
rental income or investment income.  The use of revenue funding to fund capital clearly 
has a direct impact on the revenue account and council taxes/rents.  The completed 
capital schemes will also have an impact in terms of running costs and income 
generated. 
 

3.1.13 The Council must estimate the incremental impact of its capital expenditure plans 
(shown above) on the council tax and housing rents for the next three years or more.  
 

3.1.14 The estimate of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions proposed in this 
budget report, over and above capital investment decisions that have previously been 
taken by the Council are: 

 
 
 

 

Page 220



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 5

For the Band D Council Tax –  
 
      2011/12                                    2012/13                                2013/14 
        £Nil*                                           £Nil                                          £Nil 

           * As a proposed Council Tax freeze for 2011/12. 
 
 For average weekly housing rents 
 

      2011/12                                    2012/13                                2013/14 
           Nil**                                        Nil**                                       Nil** 

 
 ** Decisions on annual rent increases are now subject to rent restructuring guidelines set 

by Central Government. As a consequence the link between rent levels and capital 
expenditure no longer applies. 

 
 
3.2 External Debt Indicators 
 
 Two limits need to be set and monitored to ensure borrowing is prudent, affordable and 

sustainable.   
 

 
3.2.1 Authorised Limit 
 
 The Council must set an authorised limit for its external debt for the next three financial 

years or more.  This is  
 

• the possible maximum level of borrowing that may need to be incurred and the limit 
beyond which borrowing will be prohibited 
 

• the statutory limit specified in section 3(1) of the Local Government Act 2003 
 

• Reflects a level of borrowing which, although affordable in the short term may not be 
sustainable 
 

• The ‘outer boundary’ of the Council’s possible need to borrow. 
 
 

3.2.2 In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the Council approves the following 
authorised limits for its total external debt gross of investments for the next three financial 
years. The Council is asked to approve these limits and to delegate authority to the 
Section 151 Officer, within the total limit for any individual year, to effect movement 
between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long term liabilities, in 
accordance with option appraisal and best value for money for the authority.  

 
Authorised Limit for External Debt 

 2010/11 
£000 

2011/12 
£000 

2012/13 
£000 

2013/14 
£000 

Borrowing 
 

83,000 81,000 80,000 79,000 
Other long 
term 
liabilities 

- - - - 

Total 83,000 81,000 80,000 79,000 

Page 221



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 6

 
 
 

3.2.3  In setting the limit, account must be taken of the authority’s current commitments, 
 existing plans and the proposals in the budget report for capital expenditure and 
 financing, and with its approved treasury management policy statement and 
 practices. Risk analysis has been taken into account; as have plans for capital 
 expenditure, estimates of the capital financing requirement and estimates of cash 
 flow requirements.  
 

 This limit represents the worst case scenario, i.e. the effect on the cash flow of 
 receiving no council tax income and borrowing to the maximum of the capital 
 financing requirement, in addition to investments held. The calculation follows a 
 prescribed formula and is in excess of the expected levels of borrowing for 2011/12 
 to 2013/14 in accordance with Treasury strategy and as shown in the Operational 
 Boundary indicator in paragraph 3.2.6. 
 

3.2.4 In taking its decisions on this report, the Council is asked to note that the authorised 
limit determined for 2011/12 the statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the 
Local Government Act 2003. 
 
 
 

3.2.5 Operational Boundary 
 
 The Council is also asked to approve the following operational boundary for external 

debt for the same time period. The proposed operational boundary for external debt is 
based on the same estimates as the authorised limit but reflects directly the estimate of 
the most likely, prudent but not worst case scenario, without the additional headroom 
included within the authorised limit to allow for example for unusual cash movements. 
The operational boundary represents a key management tool for in year monitoring. 
Within the operational boundary, figures for borrowing and other long term liabilities are 
separately identified. The Council is also asked to delegate authority to the Section 151 
Officer, to effect movement between separately agreed figures for borrowing and other 
long term liabilities, in a similar fashion to the authorised limit.  
 

3.2.6 The boundary may be breached occasionally due to unexpected cash flow shortages 
but a sustained breach would indicate the Council may be in danger of breaching the 
Authorised Limit. The Council is recommended to approve the following limits for this 
indicator. 

 
Operational Boundary for External Debt 

 2010/11 
£000 

2011/12 
£000 

2012/13 
£000 

2013/14 
£’000 

Borrowing 67,000 71,000 74,000 72,000 
Other long term 
liabilities 

- - - - 
Total 67,000 71,000 74,000 72,000 

 
 
3.2.7  The operational boundary represents the maximum expected operational borrowing 

 at a given time, which is significantly lower than the prescribed authorised limit shown 
 in paragraph 3.2.2. This measure reflects a more realistic view of likely cash flow  
 scenarios, and should not be exceeded. 

Page 222



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 7

 
3.2.8   The Council’s actual external debt at 31st March 2010 was £51.997 million. It should be 

 noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the authorised limit and 
 operational boundary, since the actual external debt reflects the position at one point 
 in time. 

 
 
 
 
 
3.3. Upper limits on interest rate exposure 
 
 The Council must set upper limits on its exposure to changes in interest rates for at least 

the next three years.  An upper limit must be set for both fixed and variable rates 
covering both borrowing and investments.  

 
3.3.1 The purpose of these indicators is to reduce the likelihood of an adverse movement in 

interest rates or borrowing / investment decisions impacting negatively on the Council’s 
overall financial position. 
  

3.3.2 It is recommended that the Council sets an upper limit on its fixed interest rate exposures 
for 2011/12, 2012/13 and 2013/14 of its gross outstanding borrowing. 
 

3.3.3 It is further recommended that the Council sets an upper limit on its variable interest rate 
exposures for 2011/12, 2012/13 and 2013/14 of 100% of its gross outstanding borrowing.  
 

3.3.4 This means the Section 151 Officer will manage fixed interest rate exposures within the 
range 0% to 100% and variable interest rate exposures within the range 0% to 100%. 

 
 
3.3.5 Maturity structure of borrowing 
 

 The Council must set both upper and lower limits with respect to the maturity structure of 
borrowing for the following financial year.  This indicator is designed to be a control over 
an authority having large concentrations of fixed rate debt needing to be replaced at times 
of uncertainty over interest rates.  Therefore the aim should be a relatively even spread of 
debt repayment dates. 

 
3.3.6 It is recommended that the Council sets upper and lower limits for the maturity structure 

of its borrowings as follows: 
 

          Amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period is: 
 

 Upper Limit 
% 

Lower Limit 
% 

Under 12 months 50 0 
12 months and within 24 
months 

50 0 
24 months and within 5 
years 

100 0 
5 years and within 10 
years 

100 0 
10 years and within 20 
years 

100 0 

Page 223



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 8

20 years and within 30 
years 

100 0 
30 years and within 40 
years 

100 0 
40 years and within 50 
years 

100 0 
50 years and above 100 0 

 
 
4.   Current Portfolio Position 
 

The Council’s treasury debt portfolio position at 31st December 2010 comprised: 
 

          
5.   Outlook for Interest Rates 
 
5.1   The Bank of England cut interest rates to 0.5% in March 2009, its lowest level in its 315 

year history as part of a continued effort to aid an economic recovery. It is expected that the 
Bank Rate will remain at this level for some time, and is not predicted to start to rise before 
the 2nd/ or 3rd quarter of 2011. Short – term money market rates will continue to pay at very 
low levels. This impact on investment income has been factored into 2011/12 investment 
budgets. 

 
The recently announced Basel III capital/liquidity rules are positive for banks. However, the 
restructuring of UK bank balance sheets is ongoing and is expected to take a long time to 
complete, and is a pre-condition for eventual normalization of credit conditions and bank 
lending. 

 
5.2   Part of the service offered by the Council’s treasury advisers, Arlingclose Ltd, is to assist the 

Council to formulate a view on interest rates.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Principal Ave. rate 
£m %

Fixed rate borrowing
 

PWLB 11.0 
Market 15.9 26.9 

4.78 
4.00 

Variable rate borrowing PWLB 0 
Market 0      

Temporary Borrowing 
 
 

  8.0           0.56 
TOTAL DEBT
DEBT 

34.9m 3.46 

TOTAL INVESTMENTS  19.4m 3.06 

Page 224



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The following table gives Arlingclose Ltd  view:  
 
 

Mar-11 Jun-11 Sep-11 Dec-11 Mar-12 Jun-12 Sep-12 Dec-12 Mar-13 Jun-13 Sep-13 Dec-13 Mar-14
Official Bank Rate
Upside risk       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       0.50       0.50       0.75       1.00       1.25       1.50       2.00       2.50       2.75       2.75       3.00       3.00       3.00 
Downside risk           -             -   -     0.25 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 

1-yr LIBID
Upside risk       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       1.65       1.90       2.15       2.40       2.50       2.50       2.75       3.00       3.25       3.50       3.50       3.50       3.50 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 -     0.50 

5-yr gilt
Upside risk       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       2.75       3.00       3.25       3.50       3.75       4.00       4.00       4.00       4.00       4.00       4.25       4.25       4.00 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 

10-yr gilt
Upside risk       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       3.90       4.00       4.10       4.25       4.50       4.75       4.75       4.75       4.75       4.75       5.00       5.00       4.75 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 

20-yr gilt
Upside risk       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       4.50       4.75       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.00       5.25       5.25       5.00 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 

50-yr gilt
Upside risk       0.25       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50       0.50 
Central case       4.25       4.50       4.75       4.75       4.75       4.75       4.50       4.50       4.50       4.50       4.75       4.75       4.50 
Downside risk -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25 -     0.25   
 

5.3   Outlook for the Economy 
 
Credit - The availability of credit is still expected to remain restricted as banks address their 
balance sheets, particularly as banks change their lending behaviour and lower their lending 
risk. Also the uncertainty surrounding Eurozone sovereign debt will remain a driver of global 
credit market sentiment. 
 
Growth – The path of base rates reflects the fragility of the recovery and the significantly 
greater fiscal tightening of the emergency budget. With growth and underlying inflation likely to 
remain subdued, the Bank of England will stick to its lower for longer stance on policy rates. 
Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) has risen to 3.7% driven largely by energy and transport prices 
and could peak at over 4% in the first quarter of 2011 with the impact of the VAT increase. CPI 
will remain high for the rest of the year and February’s Inflation Report could be a key indicator 
to the timing and aggressiveness of interest rates. 
 
Labour Market – employment outlook remains uncertain, as unemployment remains near a 
sixteen year high at just over 2.5 million as is set to increase as the Public Sector shrinks. Pay 
freezes and job losses will continue into 2011. 
 

Page 225



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 10

 
 
6. Borrowing Strategy 
 
The Council prefers to maintain maximum control over its borrowing activities as well as 
flexibility on its loan portfolio. A prudent and pragmatic approach to borrowing will be 
maintained to minimise borrowing costs without compromising longer-term stability of the 
portfolio, consistent with the Council’s Prudential Indicators. In conjunction with advice from its 
treasury advisor, Arlingclose Ltd, the Chief Finance Officer will keep under review the options 
it has in borrowing from the PWLB, the market and other sources. 
 
Any borrowing undertaken and the timing will depend on capital expenditure levels, interest 
rate forecasts and market conditions during the year in order to minimise borrowing costs. The 
Council will be advised by Arlingclose Ltd of the specific timing of borrowing. The overall 
borrowing must be within the Council’s projected Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) and its 
approved Affordable Borrowing Limit. 
 
 

 
7. Debt Rescheduling 
The Council will continue to maintain a flexible policy for debt rescheduling. Market        
volatility may provide opportunities for rescheduling debt from time to time. The rationale for 
rescheduling would be one or more of the following: 
 
• Savings in interest costs with minimal risk 
• Balancing the  ratio of fixed to variable debt 
• Amending the profile of maturing debt to reduce inherent refinancing risks. 

 
Any rescheduling activity will be undertaken following the rationale within the Council’s 
Treasury Management Strategy. The Section 151 Officer will agree in advance with 
Arlingclose Ltd the strategy and framework within which debt will be repaid/rescheduled if 
opportunities arise. Thereafter the Council’s debt portfolio will be monitored against equivalent 
interest rates and available refinancing options on a regular basis. As opportunities arise, they 
will be identified by Arlingclose Ltd and discussed with the Council’s officers. 
 

All rescheduling activity will comply with the accounting requirements of the local authority 
SORP and regulatory requirements of the Capital Finance and Accounting Regulations (SI 
2007 No 573 as amended by SI 2008/414). 
 
All rescheduling and any new long term borrowing undertaken will be reported to the Treasury 
Management Panel at the meeting following its action. 
 
 
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 
8.  Investment Policy 
 
The Council will have regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the 
Guidance”) issued in March 2010 and CIPFA’s Treasury Management in Public Services Code 
of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s 
investment priorities are:   
 

• Security of the invested capital; 
• Liquidity of the invested capital;  
• An optimum yield which is commensurate with security and liquidity. 

Page 226



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 11

 
 
As such it is important to restate the overall policy objective of the Annual Investment Strategy  
i.e. that: 

‘the council should invest prudently the surplus funds held on behalf of the 
community giving priority to security and liquidity’.  

The borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and make a return is unlawful and this 
Council will not engage in such activity. 
 
Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed below under the 
‘Specified’ Investments categories.  
 

Specified investments are investments offering high security and high liquidity. The 
investments will be sterling denominated with maturities up to a revised maximum of 1 year 
and meet the minimum ‘high’ credit rating criteria where applicable. 
 
SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS 
All “Specified Investments” listed below must be sterling-denominated.  
 

Investment Max Sum per 
institution/group 

Maximum 
period 

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility*  (DMADF) 
• this facility is at present available 

for investments up to 6 months 
 

 
 
     NONE 

 
 
6 months  

Term deposits with the UK government 
or with UK local authorities (i.e. local 
authorities as defined under Section 23 of the 
2003 Act) with maturities up to 1 year 
 

 
 
      £5m 

 
 
1 year 

Term deposits with credit-rated deposit 
takers (banks and building societies), 
including callable deposits, with maturities 
up to 1 year 

 
 
      £7m 

 
 
1 year 

 
 
Non-specified investments are of greater potential risk and cover deposit periods over one 
year. To protect against a lower for longer prolonged period of low interest rates and to provide 
certainty of income, two year deposits will be actively considered within the limits the Council 
has set for its specified and non-specified investments. Arlingclose Ltd, the council’s treasury 
advisors have been consulted with this change and have endorsed the extension of 
investments with UK Banks and Building Societies. 
 
 

9.   Lending criteria 
 
Period of loans 
On the advice of the treasury advisors Arlingclose Ltd and in view of the current prevailing 
interest rates, the council is seeking to extend lending to a maximum of 2 years and with only 
the institutions listed in the Councils approved lending list. There is one organisation which the 
Council could lend up to 3 years (Gloucestershire Airport Company), which the Council owns a 
50% share in. 
 

Page 227



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 12

Credit ratings 
The credit crisis and exposure to Icelandic banks has focused attention on the treasury 
management priority of security of capital monies invested. An authorised ‘Counter party 
lending’ list is maintained by the treasury team on behalf of the Council’s Section 151 Officer 
which includes those counterparties which meet the minimum criteria for lending. The Council 
will use Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor ratings to derive its criteria for lending. CIPFA 
suggests using the lowest rating from all three of the agencies to determine creditworthy 
counterparties, plus additional market information. On the advice of Arlingclose Ltd in order to 
minimise risk, the Council will restrict lending to those institutions which meet the following 
minimum criteria, defined as: 
 
 
Moody’s ratings: 
Aaa – Aa3 are judged to be of the highest quality, with minimal credit risk for long term 
investments. The ratings from Aa may be modified by the addition of a 1, 2 or 3 to show 
relative standing within the category where the highest within the rating is 1 and 3 the lowest. 
 
P-1 - Banks having this rating offer superior credit quality and a very strong capacity for timely 
payment of short-term deposit obligations. 
 
Fitch ratings: 
AAA - AA– Implies a bank with very high credit quality and denotes expectations of very low 
credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for payment of long term financial commitments. 
The ratings may be modified by the addition of  – or + where a + is higher rated within this 
category. 
 
F1+ - Indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of short term financial   
commitments. 
 
S&P ratings: 
 AAA - AA– Implies a bank with very high credit quality and denotes expectations of very low 
credit risk. They indicate very strong capacity for payment of long term financial commitments. 
The ratings may be modified by the addition of  – or + where a + is higher rated within this 
category. 
 
A-1+ - Indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of short term financial commitments. 
 
 
The Council is alerted to changes in Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s ratings through its 
treasury management advisors, Arlingclose Ltd. If a downgrade results in the 
counterparty/investment scheme no longer meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further 
use as an investment will be withdrawn immediately. Likewise if a counterparty/investment 
scheme is upgraded and meets the lending criteria then it will be added to the ‘counterparty 
lending list’.  
 
The Council will monitor and update the credit standing of the institutions on a regular basis. It 
will not simply rely on credit ratings but will also consider alternative assessments of credit 
strength i.e. Statements of government support and information on corporate developments or 
market sentiment towards investment counterparties. 
 
Size of deposits 
In reviewing the lending criteria in view of the current market situation and based upon advice 
form Arlingclose Ltd the Council has restricted the lending list to a small number of very low 
risk counterparties. As such the following is recommended: 
 

Page 228



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 13

 
 
 

The current authorised lending list meeting the criteria is as follows: 
 
TABLE 3 CURRENT COUNTERPARTY LENDING LIST & LIMITS 
 
 

 
BANKS COUNTRY               LONG TERM 

                         
SHORT TERM LIMIT TIME 

    Fitch Moody's S&P Fitch Moody's S&P £   
Bank of Scotland (Lloyds Banking 
group) GB AA- Aa3 A+ F1+ P-1 A-1 7,000,000 2 Years 
Barclays Bank plc GB AA- Aa3 AA- F1+ P-1 A-1+ 7,000,000 2 Years 
Clydesdale Bank GB AA- A1 A+ F1+ P-1 A-1+ 7,000,000 1 Year 
HSBC Bank plc GB AA Aa2 AA F1+ P-1 A-1+ 7,000,000 2 Years 
Lloyds TSB  (Lloyds Banking 
Group) GB AA- Aa3 A+ F1+ P-1 A-1 7,000,000 2 Years 
Nat West Bank (RBS Group) GB AA- Aa3 A+ F1+ P-1 A-1 7,000,000 2 Years 
Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS 
Group) GB AA- Aa3 A+ F1+ P-1 A-1 7,000,000 2 Years 
Standard Chartered Bank GB AA- A1 A+ F1+ P-1 A-1 7,000,000 1 Year 

Santander UK PLC GB AA- Aa3 AA F1+ P-1 A-1+ 4,000,000 
    6 
months 

BUILDING SOCIETIES COUNTRY              LONG TERM     SHORT TERM LIMIT TIME 
    Fitch Moody's S&P Fitch Moody's S&P £   
Nationwide  GB AA- Aa3 A+ F1+ P-1 A-1 7,000,000 2 Years 
          
GOVT & LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT COUNTRY              LONG TERM    SHORT TERM LIMIT TIME 
    Fitch Moody's S&P Fitch Moody's S&P £   

Debt management account GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A unlimited 
     6 
Months 

UK local authorities GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 5,000,000 1 Year 
Cheltenham Festivals GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 100,000 1 Year 
          
OTHER COUNTRY             LONG TERM   SHORT TERM LIMIT TIME 
    Fitch Moody's S&P Fitch Moody's S&P £   
Gloucestershire Airport  GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,550,000 3 Years 
Gloucestershire Everyman Theatre GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,000,000 2 Years 
Cheltenham Borough Homes GB N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 5,000,000 2 Years 
 
 

The Council’s shorter term cash-flow investments are made with reference to the outlook for the 
UK Bank Rate and money markets. For these monies, the Council will mainly utilise its business 
reserve accounts, Government’s Debt Management Office and Term deposits with UK Banks in 
2011/12 
 
The existing lending criteria, although limiting the exposure to individual institutions, does not 
limit the exposure to a particular country. The Icelandic bank position has raised the potential to 
do so.  
 
 

Page 229



APPENDIX 2  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT and ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY 2011/2012 

 14

 
10.   Icelandic banks 

 
In early October 2008 all three of Iceland’s major banks (Glitnir, Kaupthing and Landsbanki) 
collapsed following their difficulties in re-financing their short-term debt. In the UK, the Financial 
Services Authority (FSA) placed Kaupthing, Singer & Friedlander (the UK subsidiary of 
Kaupthing) into administration. The Council has logged claims for recovery of the deposits and 
some monies have been repaid in 2009 and 2010, leaving deposits of £9.41m still to be repaid. 
The likely recovery rates or timescales for future repayments is still unknown at this time.  

 
            

11.  Annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement 
 The annual MRP Statement is disclosed in Appendix 3.  
 
 

12.   Reform to the Council Housing Subsidy System 
The government has confirmed its intention to scrap the HRA Subsidy System and replace it 
with a self financing alternative. Details of the new system will be announced following the 
recent Comprehensive Spending Review, and will be introduced in the Localism Bill later this 
autumn to enable the new system to start in 2012. 
 
This will require the Council to fund the amount owed in the medium term through external 
borrowing or the use of internal resources. The Council will have the option to borrow from the 
PWLB or the market. The type of loans taken will be decided on in discussions with the Housing 
department and Arlingclose Ltd, the Council’s treasury advisors. 

 
13.  Reporting on the Treasury Outturn 

The Section 151 Officer will report to Council on its treasury management activities and 
performance against the strategy at least twice a year, one at mid year and a year end review at 
closedown time. 
 
The Treasury Management Panel will be responsible for the scrutiny of treasury management 
activity and practices. 

 
 

14.   Other Items 
In CIPFA’s revised Code for Treasury Management, it requires the Section 151 Officer to 
ensure that all appropriate staff and members tasked with treasury management 
responsibilities, including scrutiny of the treasury management function, receive appropriate 
training relevant to their needs and understand fully their roles and responsibilities. Training 
requirements will be identified and any shortfalls will be met by Arlingclose Ltd or other 
organisations. 
         
       

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  

Page 230



Appendix 3 
 

 1 of 4

 
Annual MRP Statement 

 
Background: 

 
 1. For many years local authorities were required by Statute and associated Statutory Instruments to 

charge to the Revenue Account an annual provision for the repayment of debt associated with 
expenditure incurred on capital assets. This charge to the Revenue Account was referred to as the 
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). In practice MRP represents the financing of capital 
expenditure from the Revenue Account that was initially funded by borrowing. 

 
 2. In February 2008 the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2008 [Statutory Instrument 2008/414] were approved by Parliament and became 
effective on 31st March 2008. These regulations replaced the formula based method for calculating 
MRP which existed under previous regulations under the Local Government Act 2003.  The new 
regulations required a local authority to determine each financial year an amount of MRP which it 
considers to be prudent. Linked to this new regulation, the Department of Communities and Local 
Government (CLG) produced Statutory Guidance which local authorities are required to follow, 
setting out what constitutes a prudent provision. 

 
 3. The CLG Guidance recommends that before the start of the financial year, a statement of MRP 

policy for the forthcoming financial year is approved by Full Council.  
 
 4. The broad aim of the Policy is to ensure that MRP is charged over a period that is reasonably 

commensurate with the period over which the capital expenditure which gave rise to the debt 
provides benefits. In the case of borrowing supported by Revenue Support Grant, the aim is that 
MRP is charged over a period reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in the 
determination of that grant. MRP is not required to be charged to the Housing Revenue Account. 
Where a local authority’s overall CFR is £nil or a negative amount there is no requirement to 
charge MRP. 

 
 5. The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) means that Private Finance 

Initiative (PFI) schemes and Operating Leases may be brought onto the Balance Sheet. Where this 
is the case, such items are classed in accounting terms as a form of borrowing. CLG has therefore 
proposed amending the Capital Finance Regulations to ensure that the impact on the Revenue 
account is neutral, with MRP for these items matching the principal repayment embedded within the 
PFI or lease agreement. 

 
 

MRP Options: 
 
 6. Four options for prudent MRP provision are set out in the CLG Guidance. Details of each are set 

out below with a summary set out in Table 1: 
 

Option 1 – Regulatory Method: 
 

 7. This method replicates the position that would have existed under the previous regulatory 
environment. MRP is charged at 4% of the Authority’s underlying need to borrow for capital 
purposes; the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  The formula includes an item known as 
“Adjustment A” which was intended to achieve neutrality between the CFR and the former Credit 
Ceiling which was used to calculate MRP prior to the introduction of the Prudential System on 1st 
April 2004. The formula also took into account any reductions possible related to commutation of 
capital related debt undertaken by central government.  

 
 8. The General Fund MRP charge using this method is estimated at £0.407m for 2011/12. 

  

Page 231



Appendix 3 
 

 2 of 4

Option 2 – CFR Method: 
 

 9. This method simplifies the calculation of MRP by basing the charge solely on the authority’s CFR 
but excludes the technical adjustments included in Option 1.  The annual MRP charge is set at 4% 
of the non-housing CFR at the end of the preceding financial year.  

 
 10. The General Fund MRP charge for this method is £nil for 2011/12. 

 
Option 3 – Asset Life Method: 
 

 11. Under this method MRP is determined by the life of the asset for which the borrowing is 
undertaken. This can be calculated by either of the following methods: 

  (a) Equal Instalments: where the principal repayment made is the same in each year, or  
  (b) Annuity: where the principal repayments increase over the life of the asset. 
 
  The annuity method has the advantage of linking MRP to the benefits arising from capital 

expenditure, where these benefits are expected to increase over the life of the asset. 
 

 12. MRP commences in the financial year following that in which the expenditure is incurred or, in the 
year following that in which the relevant asset becomes operational. This enables an MRP “holiday” 
to be taken in relation to assets which take more than one year to be completed before they 
become operational. 

 
 13. The estimated life of the asset will be determined in the year that MRP commences and will not be 

subsequently revised. However, additional repayments can be made in any year which will reduce 
the level of payments in subsequent years. 

 
 14. If no life can be reasonably attributed to an asset, such as freehold land, the life is taken to be a 

maximum of 50 years. In the case of freehold land on which a building or other structure is 
constructed, the life of the land will be treated as equal to that of the structure, where this would 
exceed 50 years. 

 
 15. In instances where central government permits revenue expenditure to be capitalised, the Statutory 

Guidance sets out the number of years over which the charge to revenue must be made. The 
maximum useful life for expenditure capitalised by virtue of a direction under s16(2)(b) is 20 years 

 
 16. MRP in respect of PFI and Operating Leases brought onto the Balance Sheet under IFRS falls 

under Option 3. 
 
 17. The General Fund MRP charge using this method is estimated at £0.209m for 2011/12.  

 
Option 4 - Depreciation Method: 
 

 18. The depreciation method is similar to that under Option 3 but MRP is equal to the depreciation 
provision required in accordance with proper accounting practices to be charged to the Income and 
Expenditure account. 

 
 19. The General Fund MRP charge for this method is £nil for 2011/12 

 
 
Conditions of Use: 
 

 20. The CLG Guidance puts the following conditions on the use of the four options: 
 
  Options 1 and 2 can be used on all capital expenditure incurred before 1st April 2008 and on 

Supported Capital Expenditure on or after that date. 

Page 232



Appendix 3 
 

 3 of 4

 
  Options 3 and 4 are considered prudent options for Unsupported Capital Expenditure on or after 1st 

April 2008. These options can also be used for Supported Capital Expenditure whenever incurred. 
 
MRP Policy for 2011/12: 
 

 21. It is proposed that for 2011/12 the Council adopts Option 1 for Supported Borrowing and Option 3 
for Unsupported Borrowing. For Option 3, the annuity method for calculating MRP will be used 
when applicable as it has the advantage of linking MRP to the benefits arising from capital 
expenditure, where these benefits are expected to increase over the life of the asset. 

 
 

Page 233



Appendix 3 
 

 4 of 4

 
 
 

Table 1 
 
 

MRP Options 1 2 3 4
Regulatory Method CFR Method Asset Life Method Depreciation Method

Expenditure capitalised by 
virtue of a Direction under 
s16(2)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 2003

MRP Basis Former regulations 28 and 29 4% of Non-Housing CFR Equal Annual Instalments of 
Principal

Depreciation

Aspects of MRP charges EIP commences when asset 
operational

Depreciation MRP 
commences when asset 

operational
Freehold land 50 years. Depreciation MRP ceases 

when CFR component is £Nil

Freehold land with structure 
>50 years

Depreciation MRP not 
adjusted for capital receipt

Capitalisation periods Depreciation MRP based on 
proportion of asset financed 

from "borrowing".
PFI/Operating Leases 

brought on Balance Sheet 
under IFRS

CFR excludes element attributable to Unsupported Capital 
Expenditure

MRP under the CLG Guidance

Classifications of Capital Expenditure 
impacting on the CFR

Capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008
Supported Capital expenditure incurred after 1 April 2008 Unsupported Capital expenditure incurred after 1 April 2008

 
 
 
 
  

Page 234



Agenda Item 15
Page 235By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 7a of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of interest
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	5 Marketing Brief for Disposal of North Place and Portland Street
	Appendix_2_Evaluation_Approach
	APPENDIX 3
	Appendix_3.1_Introductory_Pack
	Appendix_3.2_PPQ

	6 Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy Consultation
	Appendix_1_Response
	Appendix_2_Map

	7 Future Joint Working in the South West
	Appendix_2_SW_Councils_Proposals
	Appendix_3_Letter_from_SW_Councils
	Appendix_4.1_Legal_Advice_Aug_2010
	Appendix_4.2_Legal_Advice_Dec_2010
	SW_Councils_appendix_5_Onelegal_advice

	8 Section 25 report
	9 Final  General Fund Budget Proposals 2011/12
	Appendix 2 Summary net budget requirement
	Appendix 3 Growth Summary 2011.12
	Appendix 4 Bridging the Gap
	Appendix 5 Capital Charges
	Appendix 6 Interest and Investment Income
	Appendix 7 detailed reserve movements
	Appendix 7 - sourcing stategy
	Appendix 8 Projection of Reserves
	Appendix 9 GF Capital Programme
	Appendix 10 Planned Maintenance
	Appendix 11 MTFS 2011.12 to 2016.17
	Appendix 12 2011.12 Budget consultation responses
	Appendix 13 budget scrutiny working group recommendations1
	Appendix 14 - equality impact assessment

	10 Final HRA Budget Proposals for 2011/12
	HRA_Budget_Appendices

	11 Treasury Management Policy and Annual Investment Strategy 2011/12
	Appendix 1 - Risk Assessment
	Appendix_2_Treasury Management Statement
	Appendix_3_Annual MRP Statement

	15 Exempt minutes

